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Safe Harbor Statement

This annual report on Form 10-K (the “Report”) ains forwardlooking statements within the meaning of SectioA B7the Securities Act ¢
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecuEitiglsange Act of 1934, as amended. Discussionsicong such forward-looking

statements may be found in Part I. Items 1, 3,d77ékhereof, as well as within this Report gengrdh addition, when used in this Report, the

words “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “estitea,” “plans,” “intends”, “will” and similar expressons are intended to identify forward-

looking statements. All forward-looking statemeats subject to a number of risks and uncertaitiiascould cause actual results to differ
materially from projected results. These risks andertainties include, without limitation, the fmNing:

»  Our operating results have been, and may contimbe tadversely affected by unfavorable market itimmd;
«  Timing of market adoption of light emitting diod&ED”) technology for general lighting is uncertain

e Our failure to successfully manage our outsoureictiyities or failure of our outsourcing partnessperform as anticipated could
adversely affect our results of operations andaduility to adapt to fluctuating order volumes;

*  The further reduction or elimination of foreign gomment subsidies and economic incentives may adleaffect the future order rate
our metal organic chemical vapor deposition (“MOCYBquipment;

»  Our operating results have been, and may contimbe tadversely affected by tightening credit meske

e Our backlog is subject to customer cancellatiomodification and such cancellation could resuliétreased sales and increased
provisions for excess and obsolete inventory andbilities to our suppliers for products no longeeded;

e Our failure to estimate customer demand accuratyd result in excess or obsolete inventory anlifibilities to our suppliers for
products no longer needed, while manufacturingiiapgions or delays could affect our ability to rheestomer demand;

»  The cyclicality of the industries we serve direaf§ects our business;
*  Werely on a limited number of suppliers, some bbm are our sole source for particular components;

* Oursales to LED and data storage manufacturenrsiginty dependent on these manufacturers’ salesdiosumer electronics applications,
which can experience significant volatility dueseasonal and other factors, which could materadiyersely impact our future results of
operations;

We are exposed to the risks of operating a globsingss, including the need to obtain export liesrfer certain of our shipments and
political risks in the countries we operate;

*  We may be exposed to liabilities under the For&gnrupt Practices Act and any determination thavigtated these or similar laws
could have a material adverse effect on our busjnes

*  The timing of our orders, shipments, and revenaegsition may cause our quarterly operating resalftuctuate significantly;
We operate in industries characterized by rapildrtelogical change;
»  We face significant competition;

«  We depend on a limited number of customers, locatidarily in a limited number of regions, whicheypte in highly concentrated
industries;
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*  Our sales cycle is long and unpredictable;

We are subject to internal control evaluations attelstation requirements of Section 404 of the &sb-Oxley Act and any delays or
difficulty in satisfying these requirements or neédg@areports concerning our internal controls coadiyersely affect our future results of
operations and our stock price;

e The price of our common shares may be volatileandd decline significantly;

»  Ourinability to attract, retain, and motivate k@ayployees could have a material adverse effecuobuwsiness;

*  We are subject to foreign currency exchange risks;

»  The enforcement and protection of our intellecpraberty rights may be expensive and could divertlimited resources;

We may be subject to claims of intellectual proparfringement by others;

« If we are subject to cyber-attacks we could inalrssantial costs and, if such attacks are sucdessiuld result in significant liabilities,
reputational harm and disruption of our operations;

e Our acquisition strategy subjects us to risks aateat with evaluating and pursuing these opporiemiand integrating these businesses;

* We may be required to take additional impairmeratrgas for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangitdssets or definite-lived intangible
and long-lived assets;

* Changes in accounting pronouncements or taxaties nr practices may adversely affect our finanaults;
»  We are subject to risks of non-compliance with emwvinental, health and safety regulations;

*  We have significant operations in locations whiohld be materially and adversely impacted in thenéwf a natural disaster or other
significant disruption;

*  We have adopted certain measures that may havea&ativer effects which may make an acquisitioawwfCompany by another
company more difficult;

*  New regulations related to conflict minerals wdtée us to incur additional expenses, may makewpply chain more complex, and may
result in damage to our relationships with cust@nand

e  The matters set forth in this Report generallyluding the risk factors set forth in “Part I. ItelA. Risk Factors.”

Consequently, such forward-looking statements shbalregarded solely as the current plans, estinaate beliefs of Veeco Instruments Inc.
(together with its consolidated subsidiaries, “V@ethe “Company”, “we”, “us”, and “our”, unlessetcontext indicates otherwise). The
Company does not undertake any obligation to upaiayeforward-looking statements to reflect futuverds or circumstances after the date of
such statements.
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PART I.
Item 1. Business
The Company

Veeco Instruments Inc. (together with its consdédasubsidiaries, “Veeco”, the “Company”, “we”, "usnd “our”, unless the context indica
otherwise) creates process equipment that enatbadlogies for a cleaner and more productive wakdd design, manufacture and market
thin film equipment aligned with global “megatreidsich as energy efficiency and mobility. Our gumeént is primarily sold to make
electronic devices including light emitting diod&sED"s), flexible organic LED (OLED) displays, haudisk drives, solar cells, power
semiconductors and wireless components.

We develop highly differentiated, “best-in-claggbcess equipment for critical performance steps.fPoducts feature leading technology,
cost-of-ownership and high throughput. Core compeiés in advanced thin film technologies, over paents, and decades of specialized
process know-how helps us to stay at the forefobthese demanding industries.

OurLED & Solar segmernihcludes two related compound semiconductor tealgies, metal organic chemical vapor deposition (‘GAD")
and molecular beam epitaxy (“MBE”) as well as neatyguired atomic layer deposition (“ALD”) technolog@@ur MOCVD and MBE systems
and components enable the manufacture of LEDsinsemhsumer electronics, displays and lighting, posemiconductors, wireless
components and solar cells. Our ALD technologysisduby the manufacturers of OLED displays and hdkdr applications in the
semiconductor and solar markets.

OurData Storage segmedesigns and manufactures systems used to creat@thimagnetic heads (“TFMH”s) that read and wdtga on
hard disk drives. These include ion beam etchpmam deposition, diamond-like carbon, physical val@position, chemical vapor deposition,
and slicing, dicing and lapping systems. While systems are primarily sold to hard drive customtiesy also have applications in optical
coatings, micro-electro-mechanical systems (“MEM&i)l magnetic sensors, and extreme ultraviolet {¥gUthography.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 80pleyees to support our customers through produtipaocess development, training,
manufacturing, and sales and service sites in tBe, South Korea, Taiwan, China, Singapore, Jdpargpe and other locations.

Veeco Instruments Inc. was organized as a Delae@yoration in 1989.
Our Growth Strategy
Our growth strategy consists of:
*  Providing differentiated process equipment to asisli@istomers’ next generation product developnutmaps;
* Investing to win through focused research and dgreknt spending in markets that we believe prosigeificant growth
opportunities or are at an inflection point in pFes equipment requirements. Examples include LHEDD and power semiconduct

devices;

* Leveraging our world-class sales channel and lpadess applications support to build strong sgiateelationships with technology
leaders;

e Expanding our portfolio of service products thapmove the performance of our systems, includingesparts, upgrades and
consumables to drive growth and improve customtisfaation;

«  Combining outsourced and internal manufacturingtsties to flex manufacturing capacity through stduinvestment cycles; and

»  Pursuing partnerships and acquisitions to expanghmduct portfolio and accelerate our growth.

4
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Business Overview and Industry Trends

Business OvervievOur deposition, etch and other systems are appdid¢atihe creation of a broad range of microelegtrcomponents,
including LEDs, OLEDs, TFMHs and compound semicartdudevices. Our customers who manufacture thegiees invest in equipment in
order to advance their next generation productsdafider more efficient and cost effective techmpylsolutions. Our businesses tend to be
cyclical, and are highly influenced by customeribgypatterns that are dependent upon industry sreidhile our products are sold to multiple
end markets, we are focused herein on the trerdsrbst influence our business.

LED Industry TrendsFollowing the global recession in 2008-2009, wesgignced a rapid improvement in business conditiofste 2009
through mid2011, particularly in our MOCVD business. Demaaddur MOCVD equipment increased dramatically, @ity from customel
in South Korea, China, and Taiwan, as LEDs becd&metandard illumination for TV backlighting. Wepexienced a strong increase in
demand for MOCVD from customers in China due toegoment funding of LED fabrication facility expaass throughout the region.
Following this large investment, the LED industrtered an overcapacity situation, evidenced byttt utilization rates being reported by
many key global customers. As a result, our MOQXMBiness declined significantly from the middle6f.1 through the end of 2013. While
utilization rates of our equipment in many custoffiaeilities improved in 2013 from prior trough ldgén 2012, weak business conditions in
MOCVD persist and continue to be difficult at tharsof 2014. In the short term, it is difficutirfus to predict when the supply/demand of
MOCVD equipment will return to equilibrium and wherder rates for our MOCVD products will meanindfulecover.

While consumer electronics (e.g. cell phones, laptbED-TVS) have been the dominant end markets for LEBrtelogy over the past deca
and for which most of the new MOCVD capacity wastaied, these applications are expected to reatination in the next few years.
Conversely, the general lighting market is iniitiahcy, and we believe that thousands of additiM@CVD tools will be required as LEDs
become widely adopted for this much larger markgtieation.

As part of the shift toward more efficient energeacross the globe, we believe LED technologyplély a key role in energy and cost sav
in lighting. We see this opportunity as both vau dong-term given that LED lighting is just nowgiening to penetrate the global lighting
market. LED adoption is happening initially in oata, commercial and industrial lighting where higdage and lower efficiency make
incumbent lighting costly. Further adoption acrab$orms of lighting is expected to occur in thenuing years with rapidly declining LED
costs, shortening payback periods versus convettiighting technologies, and “ban-the-bulb” legigbn now underway in more than 20
countries around the globe. In addition to the matesscent bulb phase-outs, many countries are ingulieng policies to accelerate adoption of
LEDs. These include China’s “10 cities 10,000 Igjiirogram, South Korea's “20-60" plan targetin@®@enetration of lighting on a national
level by 2020, and Japan’s “Basic Energy Plan” wjilecific goals for energy efficient lighting. Inavth 2013, LED industry forecasters at
Digitimes Research projected that LED lighting wilpresent about 38.6% of the total lighting mar&et will be worth approximately $44.2
billion by 2015.

In order to capitalize on this opportunity, we attuced several new generations of MOCVD tools pidiclg our TurboDisc® K-Series™ and
MaxBright® MOCVD systems which provide customerstusignificant cost of ownership advantages whenpared with alternative
equipment. These activities enabled us to overvakerimary competitor in market share in 2012 nfaintain our leadership position, we
continue to invest heavily in MOCVD research andedepment to help drive down cost of LED manufaictgifor our customers in order to
accelerate lighting adoption.

Trends in other Markets Impacting our MOCVD Bus@ne®ower semiconductors are an emerging marketroppty for MOCVD
equipment. While silicon-based transistors arenlamstream of power electronic devices todayjwallnitride (“GaN”)-on-Silicon based
power electronics developed on MOCVD tools can miiaély deliver higher performance (i.e. higherigncy and switching speed). Global
industry leaders in power electronics are currewtiyking on research and development programsptoexthis new technology. GaN-on-
Silicon based power devices have potential forrmigtion technology and consumer devices (e.g. psweplies, inverters).

Another application for MOCVD is in the solar mark€lOCVD equipment can also be used to manufadtigie-efficiency triple junction
photovoltaic cells. We currently sell a small numbEMOCVD systems each year to make solar celi<fancentrator Photovoltaic (CPV) and
Space Based applications.
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Trends Impacting our MBE Busines®©ur MBE systems, sources and components aretasadnufacture critical epitaxial layers in
applications such as solar cells, fiber-optics, ilegithones, radar systems and displays. Our busisgwimarily influenced by long-term
market trends in cell phone manufacturing. Eachafritbese complex cell phone devices contains arasing number of power amplifiers or
other compound semiconductor radio frequency corapisn Due to industry consolidation and resultimgroapacity, our sales of MBE
production tools have been declining for aboutarykn 2013, we refocused our business and prquhrtfolio to increase our market share in
sales of MBE systems to scientific research orgditms and universities.

Trends Impacting our ALD Busines®n October 1, 2013, we completed the acquisitio8yafos Technology, Inc.(*Synos”), which brought
atomic layer deposition technology to us. We areking with the world leader in mobile OLED displatgsdevelop ALD systems that
effectively encapsulate the OLED materials and mitd#ly enable flexible displays for mobile phon@&cording to industry forecasting firm
IHS iSuppli, the flexible OLED display market ispected to grow from $21 million in 2013 to almo&®dillion by 2020. In addition, we al:
see numerous extended opportunities for ALD teasmoln OLED TV, lighting, semiconductor, solar asither adjacent markets.

Data Storage Business Overview and Trel Worldwide storage demand continues to increaggleMard disk drives (“HDDs”) face
significant competition from flash memory, we beéghat HDDs will continue to provide the best wafor mass storage and will remain at the
forefront of large capacity storage applicationscérding to data storage research firm TrendFo&ugust 2013 report, shipments of TFMHSs,
the HDD component that our equipment makes, aexésted to grow at a compound annual growth rade28b from 2013 to 2017.

While technological change continues in data s@yrége industry has gone through a period of maturaincluding vertical integration and
consolidation. A recovery in capital spending by kbey data storage customers in 2010, combined thétsuccessful introduction of several
new deposition tools to advance areal density, ledals to report revenue growth in both 2010 antii26latural disasters in Japan (tsunami)
and Thailand (floods) caused major disruptionsieoHDD supply chain in 2011. The floods in Thailaisdulted in an unexpected increase in
equipment orders for us in the fourth quarter df28s customers rebuilt lost capacity. This lecktmrd levels of Data Storage revenue in the
first half of 2012. However, this significant eqoipnt investment, combined with industry consolioiatand a slowdown in hard drive unit
demand in mid-2012 due to weak global economic itiomd, caused our hard drive customers to freapacity additions. So, for the full year
of 2012, our Data Storage revenue was flat andrendere well below recent historical averages.ustgy overcapacity and weak order rates
continued into 2013 and it is unclear when hardedmanufacturers will need to make significant stugents in new equipment capacity.

Throughout industry cycles, we continue to invaesiéveloping systems to support advanced techredagich as heat assisted magnetic
recording (“HAMR”). HAMR is a technology that magieally records data on high-stability media usiager thermal assistance to first heat

the material. HAMR takes advantage of high-stabititagnetic compounds that can store single bigsrituch smaller area than in current harc
drive technology.

Our Data Storage systems are also sold for apjgitain MEMS magnetic sensors, optical coatingsiBddY photomasks. We have put in
place new product development, marketing and satategies to grow the non-data storage applicafionour technologies.

We have two segments, LED & Solar and Data Storfdgesales for these segments are illustrateddriaffowing table (dollars in thousands):

For the year ended December 3.

Percent of Percent of Percent of
2013 total 2012 total 2011 total
Segment Analysis
LED & Solar $ 249,74. 75.9% $ 363,18: 70.49% $ 827,79 84.5%
Data Storage 82,007 24. 1% 152,83 29.6% 151,33t 15.5%
Total $ 331,74¢ 100.(% $ 516,02 100.(% $ 979,13 100.(%

Please see our footndtereign Operations, Geographic Area and ProductrBegt Informatiorin our Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information regarding our segments aaldssby geographic location.
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LED & Solar

Metal Organic Chemical Vapor Deposition SystefMOCVD”): We are the world’s leading supplier of MOCVD taology. MOCVD
production systems are used to make GaN-basededeflitie and green LEDs) and AsP-based devicesqiraage and yellow LEDs), which
are used today in television and laptop backlight@eneral illumination, large area signage, sptgdilumination and many other applications.
Our AsP MOCVD systems also are used to make hifibiezicy triple junction photo cells. In 2011, watrioduced the industry’s first
production-proven multi-chamber MOCVD system, thax@right, for high-volume production of LEDs. WdIdOCVD systems in either
single or multi-chamber configurations. In 2012, imeoduced the TurboDisc MaxBright M & MHP and KgléHP GaN MOCVD systems, the
industry’s highest productivity, highest footprafficiency platforms for LED manufacturing.

Molecular Beam Epitaxy Systen'MBE"): MBE is the process of precisely depositing epéix aligned atomically thin crystal layers, or
epilayers, of elemental materials onto a subsineém ultrahigh vacuum environment. For many compound semigctods, MBE is the critici
first step of the fabrication process, ultimategtetmining device functionality and performance. pvevide MBE systems and components fo
the production of wireless devices (e.g. power #mepd, high electron mobility transistors or hetg¢unction bipolar transistors) and a broad
array of compound semiconductor materials resegpplications. In 2013, we introduced the GENxplotR& industry’s first fully-integrated
MBE system for the compound semiconductor R&D miarkee GENxplor creates high quality epitaxial lesyen substrates up to 3” in
diameter and is ideal for cutting edge research wide variety of materials including gallium ar&bn nitrides, and oxides.

Fast Array Scanning Atomic Layer Deposition Syst¢'FAST-ALD” ): FAST-ALD™ represents a paradigm shift in a temlbgy long known
for excellent deposition uniformity and pin-holedrfilms. While traditional ALD is slow, costly attichited to “chamber-sized” reactors,
FAST-ALD can deposit materials below 100° Celsind &0 times faster, making it capable of depositinrsubstrates with virtually no size
limitation. Our patented linear reactor allows tiemical reaction to occur at the substrate’s serf/e are primarily focused on applying this
technology for the encapsulation of organic ligimitéing diode (OLED) materials used to enable fégimobile devices and we are also
exploring additional applications in solar, semidoctor and other end markets.

Data Storage

lon Beam DepositiorfIBD”) Systems: Our IBD systems and NEXUS® IBD systems utilize meam technology to deposit precise layers of
thin films. The NEXUS systems may be included ona@uster system platform to allow either paratiesequential etch/deposition processes
IBD systems deposit high purity thin film layersdgorovide maximum uniformity and repeatability.dddition to IBD systems, we provide a
broad array of ion beam sources. These technolaegéeapplicable in the hard drive industry as aslfor optical coatings and other end
markets.

lon Beam Etch“IBE”) Systems: Our NEXUS IBE systems etch precise, complex festfor use primarily by data storage and
telecommunications device manufacturers in theidabon of discrete and integrated microelectratgwices.

Physical Vapor Depositior’PVD”) Systems:Our NEXUS PVD systems offer manufacturers a hidldyible deposition platform for
developing next-generation data storage applicgtion

DiamoncLike Carbon (“DLC") Deposition System@ur DLC deposition systems deposit protective cggtion advanced TFMHSs.

Chemical Vapor Deposition (“CVD”") System®ur NEXUS CVD systems deposit conformal films &olvanced TFMH applications.
Precision Lapping, Slicing, and Dicing Systel Our Optium® products generally are used in “baokF’ applications in a data storage
fabrication facility where TFMHs or “sliders” araliricated. This equipment includes lapping toolsictv enable precise material removal
within three nanometers, which is necessary fot gereration TFMHs. We also manufacture tools slie¢ and dice wafers into rowbars and
TFMHs.

Optical CoatingsOur SPECTOR offers manufacturers improvementsrigetanaterial utilization, optical endpoint contesld process time fi
cutting-edge optical interference coating applmagi
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Service and Sales

We sell our products and services worldwide prilgahrough various strategically located sales savice facilities in the U.S., Europe and
Asia Pacific, and we believe that our customeriserarganization is a significant factor in our sess. In 2010 and 2011, we significantly
expanded our footprint in Asia to bring training¢hnology support and R&D closer to our customfasugh new sites in China, Taiwan and
South Korea. We provide service and support onraamgy, service contract or an individual serviedl-basis. We believe that offering timely
support creates stronger relationships with custsrmed provides us with a significant competitideantage. Revenues from the sale of parts
service and support represented approximately 2%, and 9% of our net sales for the years endedeer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Parts and consumables sales repegsapproximately 23%, 17% and 7% of our net salethbse years, respectively, and ser
and support sales were 6%, 4% and 2%, respectively.

Customers

We sell our products to many of the world’s maj&D, solar and hard drive manufacturers as welbasistomers in other industries, researct
centers, and universities. We rely on certain fpplccustomers for a significant portion of ourezalSales to HC SemiTek in our LED & Solar
segment accounted for more than 10% of our totasales in 2013, Western Digital in our Data Steraggment accounted for more than 10%
of our total net sales in 2012, and Elec-Tech maBonal Co. Ltd. and Sanan Optoelectronics inLd&tP & Solar segment each accounted for
more than 10% of our total net sales in 2011. ¥f mrincipal customer discontinues its relationshith us or suffers economic difficulties, our
business, prospects, financial condition and opeyaesults could be materially and adversely a&dc

Research and Development and Marketing

Our marketing, research and development functiom®@ayanized by business unit. We believe thatdigsnizational structure allows each
business unit manager to more closely monitor thduyrcts for which they are responsible, resultmgiore efficient marketing and research
and development. Our research and developmenitagitake place at our facilities in Plainview,W& ork; Poughkeepsie, New York;
Camarillo, California; Ft. Collins, Colorado; Soraet, New Jersey; St. Paul, Minnesota; Fremontf@ala; and South Korea.

We believe that continued and timely developmentest products and enhancements to existing produetaecessary to maintain our
competitive position. We work collaboratively withur customers to help ensure our technology anduystaoadmaps are aligned with
customer requirements.

Our research and development expenses were ap@i@tyn$81.4 million, $95.2 million and $96.6 millipor approximately 25%, 18% and
10% of net sales for the years ended December@@B, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These expensessted primarily of salaries, project
materials and other product development and ennagciecosts.

Suppliers

We currently outsource certain functions to thiedties, including the manufacture of all or subs#dly all of our new MOCVD systems, Data
Storage systems and ion sources. We primarilyaelgeveral suppliers for the manufacturing of thestems. In addition, certain of the
components and sub-assemblies included in our pte@ue obtained from a single source or a limjgeaip of suppliers.
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Backlog

Our backlog consists of orders for which we recgiadirm purchase order, a customer-confirmed shiirdate within twelve months and a
deposit, where required.

Our backlog decreased to $143.3 million as of Ddmam31, 2013 from $150.2 million as of DecemberZ12. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, we recorded backlog adjustnuérpproximately $6.8 million, consisting of a $5nfllion adjustment related to orders
that no longer met our bookings criteria as welhasdjustment related to foreign currency traiwsiadf $1.2 million.

Competition

In each of the markets that we serve, we face antiat competition from established competitorsnemf which have greater financial,
engineering and marketing resources than us, dseélom smaller competitors. In addition, manyaf products face competition from
alternative technologies, some of which are motabdished than those used in our products. Signititactors for customer selection of our
tools include system performance, accuracy, repéigyaease of use, reliability, cost of ownershipd technical service and support. We
believe that we are competitive based on the cust@election factors in each market we serve. Mdmeir competitors compete with us
across all of our product lines.

Some of our competitors include, but are not lichit® Aixtron; Canon Anelva DCA Instruments; Leyib@ptics; Oerlikon Balzers; Oxford
Instruments; Toyo Nippon Sanso; and Riber.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in part on our proprietaryntdopy. Although we attempt to protect our inteliesd property rights through patents,
copyrights, trade secrets and other measures, therbe no assurance that we will be able to protactechnology adequately or that
competitors will not be able to develop similarttealogy independently.

We have patents and exclusive and emolusive licenses to patents owned by others auyeertain of our products, which we believe pde
us with a competitive advantage. We have a policseeking patents on inventions concerning newyxctedand improvements as part of our
ongoing research, development and manufacturingities. We believe that there is no single patamgxclusive or non-exclusive license to
patents owned by others that is critical to ourrapens, as the success of our business depemdargyi on the technical expertise, innovation,
customer satisfaction and experience of our empgleye

We also rely upon trade secret protection for aunfidential and propriety information. There canrmeassurance that others will not
independently develop substantially equivalent pedgry information and techniques or otherwisengaicess to our trade secrets or that we
can meaningfully protect our trade secrets. Intémttiwe cannot be certain that we will not be shedhird parties alleging that we have
infringed their patents or other intellectual prageights. If any third party sues us, our busieesults of operations or financial condition
could be materially adversely affected.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 80pleyees, of which there were approximately 16anufacturing and testing, 90 in
sales and marketing, 160 in service and produgi@ap260 in engineering, research and developreatl 30 in information technology,
general administration and finance. In addition,had approximately 10 temporary employees/outsiaractors in support of our variable
cost strategy. The success of our future operatiepends in large part on our ability to recruid agtain engineers, technicians and other
highly-skilled professionals who are in considerable dem¥ve feel that we have adequate programs in péaadract, motivate and retain ¢
employees. We plan to monitor industry practicesiédke sure that our compensation and employee iberezhain competitive. However,
there can be no assurance that we will be sucdésskcruiting or retaining key personnel. We be# that our relations with our employees
are good.
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Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, infation statements and other information with teeusities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC"). The public may obtain information by catjithe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also mainsairiaternet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, andrdtifermation regarding issuers that file electaatly with the SEC. The address of that site
iS www.sec.gov.

Internet Address

We maintain a website where additional informattoncerning our business and various upcoming evamtde found. The address of our
website is www.veeco.com. We provide a link on website, under Investors—Financial—SEC Filingsptigh which investors can access
our filings with the SEC, including our filed andwaport on Form 10-K, filed quarterly reports ocorf 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K anc
all amendments to those reports. These filingpasted to our website as soon as reasonably mhbiiafter we electronically file such
material with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risk Factors That May Impact Future Results

In addition to the other information set forth hierehe following risk factors should be carefulignsidered by shareholders of and potential
investors in the Company.

Our operating results have been, and may continoebe, adversely affected by unfavorable market dtods.

Market conditions relative to the segments in whighoperate have deteriorated significantly in mahthe countries and regions in which we
do business, and may remain depressed for theckmbte future. Our MOCVD order volumes decreasguifgiantly in the latter part of 2011,
remained depressed through 2012 and 2013, and oméiyige to remain at low levels. Foreign governmeogéntives designed to encourage
development of the LED industry have been curtaidedll the demand for our MOCVD products has softewée have experienced and may
continue to experience customer rescheduling ana lésser extent, cancellations of orders forppaducts. Continuing adverse market
conditions relative to our products would negatneipact our business, and could result in:

»  further reduced demand for our products;

»  further rescheduling and cancellations of ordersfo products, resulting in negative backlog aments;

* increased price competition and lower margin fargoducts;

* increased competition from sellers of used equigroetower-priced alternatives to our products;

* increased risk of excess and obsolete inventories;

* increased risk in the collectability of amounts diwen our customers;

* increased risk in potential reserves for doubtbdoaints and write-offs of accounts receivable;

» disruptions in our supply chain as we reduce ouchpasing volumes and limit our contract manufacyioperations; and

» higher operating costs as a percentage of revenues.

If the markets in which we patrticipate continuekperience a slow recovery or an additional down, tthis could have a further negative
impact on our sales and revenue generation, maagidi®perating expenses, and the time it takes refdrn to profitability.

10




Table of Contents
Timing of market adoption of LED technology for gemnal lighting is uncertain.

Our future business prospects depend largely om#r&et adoption of products that incorporate eahhologies. Potential barriers to such
adoption include higher initial costs and custofaeriliarity with, and substantial investment andkrhow in, existing technologies. These
barriers apply to the adoption of LED technologiydeneral illumination applications, including @sntial, commercial and street lighting
markets. While the use of LED technology for gehkgating has grown in recent years, challengesaia and widespread adoption may not
occur at currently projected rates. Furthermore athoption of, or changes in, government polidias discourage the use of traditional lighting
technologies may impact LED adoption. These bariaéso apply to the adoption of OLED products. ilé/the use of OLED is expected to
grow in the near future, it is difficult to preditte rate at which OLED will be adopted by the nearhe market adoption of OLED products
may not occur at our currently projected rates.

Our failure to successfully manage our outsourciragtivities or failure of our outsourcing partnersotperform as anticipated could
adversely affect our results of operations and @bility to adapt to fluctuating order volumes.

To better align our costs with market conditiomgréase the percentage of variable costs relatit@al costs and to increase productivity and
operational efficiency, we have outsourced cetfiaictions to third parties, including the manufaetof all or substantially all of our new
MOCVD systems, Data Storage systems and ion sal¢esre relying heavily on our outsourcing parsrterperform their contracted
functions and to allow us the flexibility to adaptchanging market conditions, including periodsighificantly diminished order volumes. If
our outsourcing partners do not perform as requived our outsourcing model does not allow usedalize the intended cost savings and
flexibility, our results of operations (and thodeoar third party providers) may be adversely aféelc Disputes and possibly litigation involvi
third party providers could result and we couldsuflamage to our reputation. Dependence on cdntracufacturing and outsourcing may
also adversely affect our ability to bring new prot$ to market. Although we attempt to select raplat providers, it is possible that one or
more of these providers could fail to perform asexpect. In addition, the role of third party prdeis has required and will continue to require
us to implement changes to our existing operatarsadopt new procedures and processes for rejaanithmanaging these providers in ordel
to realize operational efficiencies, assure quadityd protect our intellectual property. If we diut effectively manage our outsourcing strategy
or if third party providers do not perform as aitéded, we may not realize the benefits of proditgtimprovements and we may experience
operational difficulties, increased costs, manufaag and/or installation interruptions or delaiysfficiencies in the structure and/or operation
of our supply chain, loss of intellectual propetghts, quality issues, increased product time-trkat and/or inefficient allocation of human
resources, any or all of which could materially @ddersely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

The further reduction or elimination of foreign goernment subsidies and economic incentives may aseigraffect the future order rate for
our MOCVD equipment.

We generate a significant portion of our revenu€liina. In recent years, the Chinese governmenpimagded various incentives to encouri
development of the LED industry, including subsiidiga significant portion of the purchase cost @®WVD equipment. These subsidies have
enabled and encouraged certain customers in thigrréo purchase more of our MOCVD equipment thasé customers might have
purchased without these subsidies. These subsidiesnow been curtailed and are expected to fudbeine over time and may end at some
point in the future. The further reduction or eliraiion of these incentives may result in a furtieeluction in future orders for our MOCVD
equipment in this region which could materially amtersely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

A related risk is that many customers use or hadm#d to use Chinese government subsidies, ini@adit other incentives from the Chinese
government, to build new manufacturing facilitiesmexpand existing manufacturing facilities. Beldén the start-up of these facilities or the
cancellation of construction plans altogether, tbgewith other related issues pertaining to custoreadiness, could adversely impact the
timing of our revenue recognition, could resulfunther order cancellations, and could have otlegrative effects on our financial condition
and operating results.
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Our operating results have been, and may continoebt, adversely affected by tightening credit maske

As a global company with worldwide operations, we subject to volatility and adverse consequensssaated with worldwide economic
downturns. As seen in recent years, in the eveatwdridwide downturn, many of our customers madpyler further reduce their purchases of
our products and services. If negative conditionthée global credit markets prevent our customaesess to credit, product orders in these
channels may decrease which could result in loeeemue. Likewise, if our suppliers face challenigesbtaining credit, in selling their
products or otherwise in operating their businesbey may become unable to continue to offer théenmls we use to manufacture our
products. With the recent downturn in our MOCVD reegit, we have experienced, and may continue toriexpe, lower than anticipated
order levels, cancellations of orders in backlegcheduling of customer deliveries, and attendacing pressures, all of which could adver:
affect our results of operations.

Furthermore, tightening macroeconomic measuresrantktary policies adopted by China’s governmenediat preventing overheating of
China’s economy and controlling China’s high legginflation have limited, and may continue to ltiithe availability of financing to our
customers in this region. Limited financing, oraie in the timing of such financing, may resultiglays and cancellations of shipments of oul
products (and associated revenues) conditionedamnfgancing.

In addition, we finance a portion of our sales thylo trade credit. In addition to ongoing creditlaaions of our customerfihancial condition
we seek to mitigate our credit risk by obtainingalgits and/or letters of credit on certain of aales arrangements. We could suffer significant
losses if a customer whose accounts receivableawe hot secured fails or is otherwise unable toysayA significant loss in collections on ¢
accounts receivable would have a negative impacduoriinancial results.

Our backlog is subject to customer cancellationmodification and such cancellation could result ilecreased sales and increased
provisions for excess and obsolete inventory andiabpilities to our suppliers for products no longaeeded

Customer purchase orders are subject to canceallaticescheduling by the customer, sometimes witltdd or no penalties. Often, we have
incurred expenses prior to such cancellation witloiequate monetary compensation. We adjust olttdgator such cancellations, contract
modifications, and delivery delays that result idedivery period in excess of one year, among atkers. The current and forecasted downturi
in our MOCVD reporting unit could result in furthielcreases in order cancellations and/or postpontme

We record a provision for excess and obsolete itorgiased on historical and future usage trendsoftmer factors including the considerat
of the amount of backlog we have on hand at antjqudarr point in time. If our backlog is canceledmodified, our estimates of future product
demand may prove to be inaccurate, in which casmaehave understated the provision required foesx and obsolete inventory. In the
future, if we determine that our inventory is ovaned, we will be required to recognize such costar financial statements at the time of
such determination. In addition, we place ordets wur suppliers based on our customers’ ordeus tdf our customers cancel their orders
with us, we may not be able to cancel our ordetk wiir suppliers and may be required to take agehfor these cancelled commitments to ou
suppliers. Any such charges could be material taesults of operations and financial condition.

Our failure to estimate customer demand accuratebuld result in excess or obsolete inventory andiabilities to our suppliers for
products no longer needed, while manufacturing inteptions or delays could affect our ability to meeustomer demanc

Our business depends on our ability to accuratelychst and supply equipment, services and repatetlicts that meet the rapidly changing
technical and volume requirements of our custonveng;h depends in part on the timely delivery oftpacomponents and subassemblies
(collectively, parts) from suppliers. The currentartain worldwide economic conditions and markstabilities make it increasingly difficult
for us (and our customers and our suppliers) torately forecast future product demand. If act@ahend for our products is different than
expected, we may purchase more/fewer parts thaassary or incur costs for canceling, postponingxpediting delivery of parts. If we
overestimate the demand for our products, excessiary could result which could be subject to hejrice discounting, which could become
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obsolete, and which could subject us to liabilit@®ur suppliers for products no longer needea@ddition, the volatility of demand for capital
equipment increases capital, technical and otkks fior companies in the supply chain.

Furthermore, some key parts may be subject to llesdrtimes and/or obtainable only from a singlepdiep or limited group of suppliers, and
some sourcing or subassembly is provided by supdieated in countries other than the United Statée may experience significant
interruptions of our manufacturing operations, yele our ability to deliver products or servicesreased costs or customer order
cancellations as a result of:

» the failure or inability of suppliers to timely dedr quality parts;

« volatility in the availability and cost of matersal

« difficulties or delays in obtaining required importexport approvals;
« information technology or infrastructure failures;

e natural disasters (such as earthquakes, tsundaudsfor storms); or

»  other causes (such as regional economic downtpamslemics, political instability, terrorism, or adf war) could result in delayed
deliveries, manufacturing inefficiencies, increasedts or order cancellations.

In addition, in the event of an unanticipated ims&in demand for our products, our need to rajidisease our business and manufacturing
capacity may be limited by working capital consitaiof our suppliers and may exacerbate any irgéouos in our manufacturing operations
and supply chain and the associated effect on ouking capital. Any or all of these factors couldterially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The cyclicality of the industries we serve direc#ifects our business.

Our business depends in large part upon the capifanditures of manufacturers in the LED markddisa storage markets, and other device
markets. We are subject to the business cycldsesktindustries, the timing, length, and volatitifywhich are difficult to predict. These
industries have historically been highly cyclicatichave experienced significant economic downtinribe last decade. As a capital equipmer
provider, our revenues depend in large part orspiemding patterns of these customers, who ofteydedpenditures or cancel or reschedule
orders in reaction to variations in their businessiegeneral economic conditions. In downturnspwst be able to quickly and effectively al
our costs with prevailing market conditions, ashaslmotivate and retain key employees. Howeverabige a portion of our costs are fixed,
ability to reduce expenses quickly in responset@nue shortfalls may be limited. Downturns in onenore of these industries, including the
current MOCVD and Data Storage downturn, have mabvéill likely have a material adverse effect o business, financial condition and
operating results. Alternatively, during periodsapid growth, we must be able to acquire and/eelbp sufficient manufacturing capacity to
meet customer demand, and attract, hire, assingtadaetain a sufficient number of qualified peopl&e cannot give assurances that our net
sales and operating results will not be adversiégcted if our customers experience economic domstor slowdowns in their businesses.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers, some diam are our sole source for particular components.

We currently outsource certain functions to thiedties, including the manufacture of all or subs#dly all of our new MOCVD systems, Data
Storage systems and ion sources. We primarilyaelgeveral suppliers for the manufacturing of thstems. We plan to maintain some leve
of internal manufacturing capability for these syss. The failure of our present suppliers to meeit tontractual obligations under our supply
arrangements and our inability to make alternagivangements or resume the manufacture of thetensy®urselves could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, profitability, céalvs, and relationships with our customers.
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In addition, certain of the components and sub+ab$es included in our products are obtained frosingle source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our inability to develop alternative sms, if necessary, could result in a prolongeeriaption in supply or a significant increase in
the price of one or more components, which coulceeskly affect our operating results.

Our sales to LED and data storage manufacturers dighly dependent on these manufacturesles for consumer electronics applicatio
which can experience significant volatility due seasonal and other factors, which could materiadigversely impact our future results of
operations.

The demand for LEDs and hard disk drives is higldpendent on sales of consumer electronics, suithtgmnel televisions and computer
monitors, computers, tablets, digital video recasdeamcorders, MP3/4 players, smartphones, cetigdiand other mobile devices.
Manufacturers of LEDs and hard disk drives are agrar largest customers and have accounted fabstamtial portion of our revenues for
the past several years. Factors that could infla¢ine levels of spending on consumer electronidymts include consumer confidence, access
to credit, volatility in fuel and other energy cgstonditions in the residential real estate andgage markets, labor and healthcare costs and
other macroeconomic factors affecting consumerdipgrbehavior. These and other economic factore had and could continue to have a
material adverse effect on the demand for our owste’ products and, in turn, on our customers’ dashfar our products and services and on
our financial condition and results of operatidfstthermore, manufacturers of LEDs have in the pastestimated their potential market st
growth. If this growth is currently overestimatedimoverestimated in the future, we may experigndber cancellations of orders in backlog,
rescheduling of customer deliveries, obsolete itmgrand/or liabilities to our suppliers for prodsieo longer needed.

In addition, the demand for some of our customgrstucts can be even more volatile and unpredietdbé to the possibility of competing
technologies, such as flash memory as an altemaditard disk drives. Unpredictable fluctuatiamgiémand for our customers’ products or
rapid shifts in demand from our customers’ prodttalternative technologies could materially adedyr impact our future results of
operations.

We are exposed to the risks of operating a globasibess, including the need to obtain export licessfor certain of our shipments and
political risks in the countries we operat

Approximately 83%, 84%, and 90% of our net salesHe years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivarly generated from sales outside of
the United States. We expect sales from non-U.8ketsto continue to represent a significant, anssfbly increasing, portion of our sales in
the future. Our non-U.S. sales and operationsusgst to risks inherent in conducting busines®atly many of which are outside our control,
including:

difficulties in managing a global enterprise, irdihg staffing, managing distributors and repreg@rda, and repatriation of earnings;

e regional economic downturns, varying foreign goveent support, and unstable political environments;

political and social attitudes, laws, rules, regjalas and policies within countries that favor dati@companies over non-domestic
companies, including government-supported effargsromote the development and growth of local cditgs;

» longer sales cycles and difficulty in collectingcaants receivable;

»  multiple, conflicting, and changing governmentalt$sand regulations, including import/export corgrahd other trade barriers;

» reliance on various information systems and infdiometechnology to conduct our business, which imayulnerable to cyber-attacks by
third parties or breached due to employee errcsusa or other causes that could result in busitisagptions, loss of or damage to
intellectual property, transaction errors, proaagsnefficiencies, or other adverse consequencesidlour security practices and
procedures prove ineffective, and

« different customs and ways of doing business.
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These challenges, many of which are associatedsaltfs into China, may continue and recur agaihearfuture, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business. In addition, palitinstability, terrorism, acts of war or epidemin regions where we operate may adversely
affect or disrupt our business and results of djmrs.

Furthermore, products which are either manufactiméde United States or based on U.S. technologabject to the United States Export
Administration Regulations (“EAR”) when exporteddand re-exported from international jurisdictiomsaddition to the local jurisdiction’s
export regulations applicable to individual shipnsei©Currently, our MOCVD deposition systems andaierof our other products are
controlled for export under the EAR. Licenses agar license exceptions may be required for thegnsént of our products to certain countr
Obtaining an export license requires cooperatiomfthe customer and customer-facility readiness,cam add time to the order fulfillment
process. While we have generally been successabtaining export licenses in a timely manner, éh@an be no assurance that this will
continue or that an export license can be obtaimedch instance where it is required. If an expioehse is required but cannot be obtained,
then we will not be permitted to export the prodiacthe customer. The administrative processintgrg@l delay and risk of ultimately not
obtaining an export license pose a particular diaathge to us relative to our non-U.S. competitdie are not required to comply with U.S.
export controls. Non-compliance with the EAR orestapplicable export regulations could result imide range of penalties including the
denial of export privileges, fines, criminal peiedt and the seizure of commodities. In the evsaitany export regulatory body determines
any of our shipments violate applicable export fatjons, we could be fined significant sums andiar export capabilities could be restricted,
which could have a material adverse impact on osiriess.

We may be exposed to liabilities under the Forei@arrupt Practices Act and any determination that wimlated these or similar laws could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices(#&¢TPA”") and other laws that prohibit improper pagnts or offers of payments to foreign
government officials, as defined by the statuteftie purpose of obtaining or retaining businessddition, many of our customers have
policies limiting or prohibiting us from providingertain types or amounts of entertainment, meadgftsto their employees. It is our policy to
implement safeguards to discourage these pradiicesir employees and representatives. Howeversafeguards may prove to be ineffective
and our employees, consultants, sales agentstabdters may engage in conduct for which we mayélel responsible. Violations of the
FCPA or similar laws or similar customer policieaynresult in severe criminal or civil sanctionstoe loss of supplier privileges to a customel
and we may be subject to other liabilities, whiclild negatively affect our business, operatingltesnd financial condition.

The timing of our orders, shipments, and revenueognition may cause our quarterly operating resuttsfluctuate significantly.

We derive a substantial portion of our net salesnip fiscal period from the sale of a relativelyairmumber of highpriced systems. As a resl
the timing of recognition of revenue for a singkenisaction could have a material effect on ourssaifel operating results for a particular fiscal
period. As is typical in our industry, orders, shignts, and customer acceptances often occur dilnénigst few weeks of a quarter. As a result
delay of only a week or two will determine whichripe revenue is reported in and can cause volatiibur revenue for a given reporting
period. Our quarterly results have fluctuated digantly in the past, and we expect this trenddotmue. If our orders, shipments, net sales or
operating results in a particular quarter do no¢tnexpectations, our stock price may be adverdédgtad.

We operate in industries characterized by rapidheological change.

All of our businesses are subject to rapid techgiokd change. Our ability to remain competitive eiegls on our ability to enhance existing
products and develop and manufacture new prodactgimely and cost effective manner and to acelygtredict technology transitions.
Because new product development commitments musidge well in advance of sales, we must anticiffeduture demand for products in
selecting which development programs to fund andymu Our financial results for the current yeat amthe future will depend to a great
extent on the successful introduction of several pppducts, many of which require achieving inciegly stringent technical specifications.
We cannot be certain that we will be successfgkilecting, developing, manufacturing and marketiegy products or new technologies or in
enhancing existing products.
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We face significant competition.

We face significant competition throughout the wlarl each of our reportable segments, which masease as certain markets in which we
operate continue to expand. Some of our competitave greater financial, engineering, manufactyramgl marketing resources than us. In
addition, we face competition from smaller emergagglipment companies whose strategy is to provigartion of the products and services
we offer, with a focused approach on innovativétetogy for specialized markets. New product intrcttbns or enhancements by our
competitors could cause a decline in sales ordbssarket acceptance of our existing products.dased competitive pressure could also lead
to intensified price competition resulting in lowaargins. Our failure to compete successfully whtlse other companies would seriously t
our business.

We depend on a limited number of customers, locgbeidharily in a limited number of regions, which agate in highly concentrated
industries.

Our customer base is and has been highly concedtr@rders from a relatively limited number of cuisers have accounted for, and likely \
continue to account for, a substantial portionwf et sales, which may lead customers to demaoish@rnd other terms less favorable to us.
Based on net sales, our five largest customersuated for 42%, 34%, and 41% of our total net stdeshe years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011
respectively. Customer consolidation activity ining some of our largest customers could resudinieven greater concentration of our sales
in the future.

If a principal customer discontinues its relatiapsiiith us or suffers economic setbacks, our bissinBnancial condition, and operating results
could be materially and adversely affected. Oulitsid increase sales in the future will depengbart upon our ability to obtain orders from
new customers. We cannot be certain that we wililde to do so. In addition, because a relativelglsnumber of large manufacturers, many
of whom are our customers, dominate the indusimieghich they operate, it may be especially diffidar us to replace these customers if we
lose their business. A substantial portion of csderour backlog are orders from our principal oustrs.

In addition, a substantial investment is requirgdlistomers to install and integrate capital eqephinto a production line. As a result, once ¢
manufacturer has selected a particular vendor'gaamuipment, we believe that the manufactureregeally relies upon that equipment for the
specific production line application and frequentiyl attempt to consolidate its other capital gauent requirements with the same vendor.
Accordingly, if a customer selects a competitorsduct over ours for technical superiority or othemsons, we could experience difficulty
selling to that customer for a significant periddime.

Furthermore, we do not have long-term contracth witr customers. As a result, our agreements witlcastomers do not provide any
assurance of future sales and we are exposed tpetitive price pressure on each new order we attéongbtain. Our failure to obtain new
sales orders from new or existing customers woalteha negative impact on our results of operations.

Our customer base is also highly concentratedrmgef geography, and the majority of our sales@@istomers located in a limited number
of countries. In 2013, 62% of our total net salesento customers located in China, Taiwan and Sdatka. Dependence upon sales eman
from a limited number of regions increases our akkxposure to local difficulties and challengasch as those associated with regional
economic downturns, political instability, fluctireg currency exchange rates, natural disaster&@lagwest, pandemics, terrorism or acts of
war. In addition, we may encounter challenges aasatwith political and social attitudes, lawdger) regulations and policies within these
countries that favor domestic companies over nanahtic companies, including customer- or governrsapported efforts to promote the
development and growth of local competitors. Olianee upon customer demand arising primarily fiimited number of countries could
materially adversely impact our future results péations.

Our sales cycle is long and unpredictable.

Historically, we have experienced long and unpitadiie sales cycles (the period between our irgoatact with a potential customer and the
time when we recognize revenue from that custon@uj.sales cycle can range up to twelve montheragdr. The timing of an order often
depends on the capital expenditure budget cycbiptustomers, which is completely out of our colntin addition, the time it takes us to
build a product to customer specifications typicainges
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from one to six months. When coupled with the flating amount of time required for shipment, idata&dn and final acceptance, our sales
cycles often vary widely, and variations in lengftthis period can cause further fluctuations in @perating results. As a result of our lengthy
sales cycle, we may incur significant researchdealopment expenses and selling and general anthistrative expenses before we gene
revenues for these products. We may never genti@gmnticipated revenues if a customer cancelbamges plans. Variations in the length of
our sales cycle could also cause our sales anmftine, our cash flow and net income to fluctuatgely from period to period.

We are subject to internal control evaluations aattestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sambs-Oxley Act and any delays or
difficulty in satisfying these requirements or netipge reports concerning our internal controls coulallversely affect our future results of
operations and our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, we must include in our Annual Report onrrdi0-K a report by management on
the effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting. Ongoing compliance with this regguient is complex, costly, time-consuming
and is subject to significant judgment. If our mi&l controls are ineffective or if our managemdmes not timely assess the adequacy of such

internal controls, our ability to file timely and@urate periodic reports may be impeded. Any deilayiling may cause us to face the follow
risks and concerns, among others:

» concern on the part of our customers, partnergsitovs, and employees about our financial condaihfiling delay status, including the
potential loss of business opportunities;

» significant time and expense required to completaykd filings, and the distraction of our seni@agement team and board of direc
as we work to complete delayed filings;

» investigations by the SEC and other regulatory aities of the Company and of members of our mamesge;
» limitations on our ability to raise capital and readcquisitions;

* suspension or termination of our stock listing loa NASDAQ stock exchange, and the removal of aurksas a component of certain
stock market indices; and

« general reputational harm.
Any or all of the foregoing could result in the corencement of stockholder lawsuits against the Company such litigation, as well as any
proceedings that could arise as a result of ajfifialay and the circumstances which gave rise toal be time consuming and expensive, ma
divert management attention from the conduct ofluginess, could have a material adverse effeouobusiness, financial condition, and
results of operations, and may expose us to costmnification obligations to current or formefioérs, directors, or other personnel,
regardless of the outcome of such matters, which moabe adequately covered by insurance.
The price of our common shares may be volatile aralild decline significantly.
The stock market in general and the market forrteldgy stocks in particular, has experienced vithathat has often been unrelated to the
operating performance of companies. If these marké&tdustry-based fluctuations continue, the tgdirice of our common shares could
decline significantly independent of our actualrepi@g performance, and shareholders could loser @lsubstantial part of their investment.
The market price of our common shares could fluetsanificantly in response to several factorsluding among others:

» general stock market conditions and uncertaintgh s those occasioned by a global liquidity criségative financial news, and a failure
of large financial institutions;

*  receipt of substantial orders or cancellationsofar products;
. issues associated with the performance and retiabfl our products;
e actual or anticipated variations in our result®pérations;

« announcements of financial developments or teclyicdbinnovations;
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» our failure to meet the performance estimatessiment research analysts;

« changes in recommendations and/or financial estisay investment research analysts;
e strategic transactions, such as acquisitions, tiiuess or spin-offs; and

» the occurrence of major catastrophic events.

Significant price and value fluctuations have ocedwith respect to the publicly traded securitiethe Company and technology companies
generally. The price of our common shares is likelpe volatile in the future. In the past, sedesiclass action litigation often has been
brought against a company following periods of tititg in the market price of its securities. Ifsilar litigation were pursued against us, it
could result in substantial costs and a diversiomanagemens attention and resources, which could materiadty @adversely affect our resu
of operations, financial condition and liquidity.

Our inability to attract, retain, and motivate kesmployees could have a material adverse effect onbusiness.

Our success depends upon our ability to attratimeand motivate key employees, including thosexecutive, managerial, engineering and
marketing positions, as well as highly skilled aplified technical personnel and personnel to émpnt and monitor our financial and
managerial controls and reporting systems. Attngctietaining, and motivating such qualified persilrmay be difficult due to challenging
industry conditions, competition for such persormebther technology companies, consolidationsrafatations of operations and workforce
reductions. While we have entered into Employmemte&ments with certain key personnel, our inabibitattract, retain, and motivate key
personnel could have a material adverse effecuomasiness, financial condition or operating resul

We are subject to foreign currency exchange risks.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rsis that are inherent in our anticipated salegssadmmitments and assets and liabilities
that are denominated in currencies other than thieetd States dollar. Although we attempt to mitigatr exposure to fluctuations in currency
exchange rates, hedging activities may not alwayavailable or adequate to eliminate, or even atitigthe impact of our exchange rate
exposure. Failure to sufficiently hedge or otheewnisanage foreign currency risks properly could ntg and adversely affect our revenues
and gross margins.

The enforcement and protection of our intellectuptoperty rights may be expensive and could divert imited resources.

Our success depends in part upon the protectionrohtellectual property rights. We rely primary patent, copyright, trademark and trade
secret laws, as well as nondisclosure and confiléptagreements and other methods, to protecpoaprietary information, technologies and
processes. We own various United States and intenaé patents and have additional pending patepliations relating to certain of our
products and technologies. The process of seekitenpprotection is lengthy and expensive, andavaact be certain that pending or future
applications will actually result in issued pateotghat issued patents will be of sufficient scopstrength to provide meaningful protection or
commercial advantage. In addition, our intellecfuralperty rights may be circumvented, invalidatedemdered obsolete by the rapid pace of
technological change. Policing unauthorized useunfproducts and technologies is difficult and tiooamsuming. Furthermore, the laws of o
countries may less effectively protect our propmigtrights than U.S. laws. Our outsourcing strateguires that we share certain portions of
our technology with our outsourcing partners, whposes additional risks of infringement and tragleret misappropriation. Infringement of
our rights by a third party, possibly for purposésleveloping and selling competing products, cegkllt in uncompensated lost market and
revenue opportunities. Similar exposure could taauhe event that former employees seek to coewéh us, through their unauthorized use
of our intellectual property and proprietary infation. We cannot be certain that the steps we teken will prevent the misappropriation or
unauthorized use of our proprietary information éachnologies, particularly in foreign countrieses the laws may not protect our
proprietary intellectual property rights as fullyas readily as United States laws. Further, weagbe certain that the laws and policies of an
country, including the United States, with resgedntellectual property enforcement or licensing mot be changed in a way detrimental to
the sale or use of our products or technology.
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We may need to litigate to enforce our intellecfuaperty rights, protect our trade secrets orrdatee the validity and scope of proprietary
rights of others. As a result of any such litigatiave could lose our ability to enforce one or mpagents or incur substantial unexpected
operating costs. Any action we take to enforceimi@lectual property rights could be costly andldoabsorb significant management time an
attention, which, in turn, could negatively impaat operating results. In addition, failure to aitour trademark rights could impair our br
identity.

We may be subject to claims of intellectual propeirifringement by others.

From time to time we have received communicatisamfother parties asserting the existence of pateather rights which they believe cover
certain of our products. We also periodically rgeaiotice from customers who believe that we ageired to indemnify them for damages
they may incur related to infringement claims madainst these customers by third parties. Our mestp practice is to evaluate such
assertions and to consider the available alterestincluding whether to seek a license, if appadgr However, we cannot ensure that license
can be obtained or, if obtained, will be on acceletéerms or that costly litigation or other adrstréitive proceedings will not occur. If we are
not able to resolve a claim, negotiate a settleroktite matter, obtain necessary licenses on coriatlgrreasonable terms, and/or successfully
prosecute or defend our position, our businesanfital condition, and results of operations cowdaterially and adversely affected.

If we are subject to cyb-attacks we could incur substantial costs and, ifch attacks are successful, could result in sigodint liabilities,
reputational harm and disruption of our operations.

We manage, store and transmit various proprietdoyination and sensitive data relating to our ofi@na. We may be subject to breaches of
the information technology systems we use for timesposes. Experienced computer programmers aregfsamay be able to penetrate our
network security and misappropriate or compromiseconfidential information or those of third pagj create system disruptions, or cause
shutdowns. Computer programmers and hackers algdeiable to develop and deploy viruses, worms,adiner malicious software programs
that attack our systems or our products, or tHatretise exploit any security vulnerabilities.

The costs to address the foregoing security prabl@nd security vulnerabilities before or after basyincident could be significant. Our
remediation efforts may not be successful and coegdlt in interruptions, delays, or cessationesf’ige, and loss of existing or potential
customers that may impede our sales, manufactutistgibution, or other critical functions. In atidn, breaches of our security measures anc
the unapproved dissemination of proprietary infdforaor sensitive data about us or our customerghaer third parties, could expose us, our
customers, or other third parties to a risk of lmsmisuse of this information, result in litigati@nd potential liability for us, damage our
reputation, or otherwise harm our business.

Our acquisition strategy subjects us to risks asated with evaluating and pursuing these opportue# and integrating these businesses.
We have considered numerous acquisition opporamind completed several significant acquisitiarthé past. We may consider acquisiti
of, or investments in, other businesses in theréuticquisitions involve numerous risks, many ofiehhare unpredictable and beyond our
control, including:

» difficulties and increased costs in integrating pleesonnel, operations, technologies and prodd@saguired companies;

» diversion of management’s attention while evalugtipursuing, and integrating the business to beiesd;

»  potential loss of key employees of acquired comgmrespecially if a relocation or change in resjilitges is involved;

« difficulties in managing geographically dispersg@tions in a cost-effective manner;

» lack of synergy or inability to realize expectedssgies;
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. unknown, underestimated and/or undisclosed commiisnar liabilities;
e increased amortization expense relating to intdagibsets; and

» the potential impairment and write-down of amouw#pitalized as intangible assets and goodwill asqfahe acquisition, as a result of
technological advancements or worse-than-expeadgdnmance by the acquired company.

Our inability to effectively manage these risks Ildomaterially and adversely affect our businesgricial condition, and operating results. We
are subject to many of these risks in connectidgh wir recent acquisition of Synos.

In addition, if we issue equity securities to pay &n acquisition, the ownership percentage oftloem-existing shareholders would be reduced
and the value of the shares held by these shamrisatduld be diluted, which could adversely affbetprice of our stock. If we use cash to pay
for an acquisition, the payment could significamtdgduce the cash that would be available to fundbperations or other purposes.

We may be required to take additional impairmentaches for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblassets or definite-lived intangible and
long-lived assets.

We are required to assess goodwill and indefilnted intangible assets annually for impairmentporan interim basis whenever certain evi
occur or circumstances change, such as an advessge in business climate or a decline in the dhviedustry, that would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit beltsxcarrying amount. We are also required to ¢estdefinite-lived intangible and long-lived
assets, including acquired intangible assets amplepty, plant and equipment, for recoverability amgairment whenever there are indicators
of impairment, such as an adverse change in bisaliesate.

As part of our long-term strategy, we may pursuariacquisitions of other companies or assetstwtiald potentially increase our goodwill
and intangible and long-lived assets. Adverse chsuitgbusiness conditions could materially impactestimates of future operations and
result in additional impairment charges to thesess If our goodwill or intangible and long-livadsets were to become further impaired, our
results of operations could be materially and asklgraffected.

Changes in accounting pronouncements or taxationes or practices may adversely affect our financiakults.

Changes in accounting pronouncements or taxaties ar practices can have a significant effectwnreported results. New accounting
pronouncements or taxation rules and varying imé&tgbions of accounting pronouncements or taxgiractices have occurred and may occur
in the future. New rules, changes to existing rufesny, or the questioning of current practicesyradversely affect our reported financial
results or change the way we conduct our business.

We are subject to risks of non-compliance with emvimental, health and safety regulations.

We are subject to environmental, health and saégfylations in connection with our business openati including but not limited to
regulations related to the research, developmadtuae of our products. Failure or inability to gadynwith existing or future environmental
and safety regulations could result in significerhediation liabilities, the imposition of finesddar the suspension or termination of research
development, or use of certain of our productshedavhich could have a material adverse effecbwnbusiness, financial condition, and
results of operation. In addition, some of ourragiens involve the storage, handling and use shidous materials that may pose a risk of
fire, explosion, or environmental release. Suchesseould result from acts of terrorism, naturaldiers or operational failures and may resul
in injury or loss of life to our employees and athdocal environmental contamination and propdegnage. These events might cause a
temporary shutdown of an affected facility, or pantthereof, and we could be subject to penaltredams as a result. Each of these events
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfgmncial condition, and results of operation.
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We have significant operations in locations whicbwd be materially and adversely impacted in theeevof a natural disaster or other
significant disruption.

Our operations in the U.S., the Asia-Pacific regaod in other areas could be subject to naturaktiss or other significant disruptions,
including earthquakes, tsunamis, fires, hurricafiesds, water shortages, other extreme weathetittons, medical epidemics, acts of
terrorism, power shortages and blackouts, telecomizations failures, and other natural and manmastesters or disruptions. In the event of
such a natural disaster or other disruption, wédcexperience disruptions or interruptions to opemtions or the operations of our suppliers,
distributors, resellers or customers; destructibfacilities; and/or loss of life, all of which cttumaterially increase our costs and expenses ar
materially and adversely affect our business, reageeand financial condition.

We have adopted certain measures that may have-@kigover effects which may make an acquisitionooir Company by another company
more difficult.

We have adopted, and may in the future adopt,inari@asures that may have the effect of delayiatgrdng or preventing a takeover or other
change in control of our Company, any of which &leoof our common stock might not consider in liloéder’s best interest. These measures
include:

»  ‘“blank check” preferred stock;
» classified board of directors; and
e certain certificate of incorporation and bylaws\psions.

Our board of directors has the authority to isgu¢ou500,000 shares of preferred stock and tchixrights (including voting rights),
preferences and privileges of these shares (“btaekk” preferred). Such preferred stock may hayletsi including economic rights, senior to
our common stock. As a result, the issuance opthterred stock could have a material adverse efi@the price of our common stock and
could make it more difficult for a third party teguire a majority of our outstanding common stock.

Our board of directors is divided into three classith each class serving a staggered three-yaar Tene existence of a classified board will
make it more difficult for our shareholders to charthe composition (and therefore the policiegwfboard of directors in a relatively short
period of time.

We have adopted certain certificate of incorporatiad bylaws provisions which may have anti-takee¥tects. These include: (a) requiring
certain actions to be taken at a meeting of shédet®rather than by written consent, (b) requidnguper-majority of shareholders to approve
certain amendments to our bylaws, (c) limiting t@ximum number of directors, and (d) providing thiia¢ctors may be removed only for
“cause.” These measures and those described atmyvbawe the effect of delaying, deferring or preiwgna takeover or other change in
control of Veeco that a holder of our common stotght consider in its best interest.

In addition, we are subject to the provisions oftidm 203 of the General Corporation Law of thet&t# Delaware, which prohibits a Delaw
corporation from engaging in any business comhbinaiincluding mergers and asset sales, with andsted stockholder (generally, a 15% or
greater stockholder) for a period of three yeatsrdhe date of the transaction in which the pelssrame an interested stockholder, unless the
business combination is approved in a prescribathera The operation of Section 203 may have t@ktover effects, which could delay, de
or prevent a takeover attempt that a holder ofconnmon stock might consider in its best interest.

New regulations related to conflict minerals wilbfce us to incur additional expenses, and may make supply chain more complex, ar
may result in damage to our relationships with casters.

On August 22, 2012, under the Dodd-Frank Wall $tReform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, erBlodd-Frank Act, the SEC adopted
new requirements for companies that manufacturdymts that contain certain minerals and metalswknas conflict minerals. These

rules require public companies to perform diligeand to report annually to the SEC whether sucterais originate from the Democratic
Republic of Congo and adjoining countries. The inpéntation of
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these new requirements could adversely affectdhecgg, availability and pricing of minerals weeus the manufacture of our products. In
addition, we will incur additional costs to compljth the disclosure requirements, including costated to determining the source of any of
the relevant minerals used in our products. Giencomplexity of our supply chain, we may not ble @b ascertain the origins of these
minerals used in our products through the duealilog procedures that we implement, which may hammeputation. We may also face
difficulties in satisfying customers who may reguihat our products be certified as conflict mih&ee, which could harm our relationships
with these customers and lead to a loss of revéfhese new requirements could limit the pool ofpdigps that can provide conflict-free
minerals, and we may be unable to obtain confliee-iminerals at competitive prices, which couldéase our costs and adversely affect our
manufacturing operations and our profitability.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters and our principal prodieneelopment and marketing, manufacturing, re$eand development and training
facilities, as well as the approximate size andsigments which utilize such facilities, are:

Approximate

Owned Facilities Location Size (sq. ft.) Mortgaged Use
Plainview, NY 80,00( No Data Storage and Corporate Headqua
Somerset, N 80,00( No LED & Solar
Somerset, N 38,00( No LED & Solar
St. Paul, MN(1 111,00¢ Yes LED & Solar
Yongir-city, South Koret 56,00( No Sales Office, Customer Training Center and R&D €e
Hyeongol-ri, South Kore: 18,00( No Sales Office and Clean Roc
Approximate Lease
Leased Facilities Locatior Size (sq. ft.) Expires Use
Camarillo, CA 23,00( 2015 Data Storag:
Fort Collins, CC 26,00( 2018 Data Storag:
Peabody, MA 30,00( 2014 Held for Subleas
Somerset, N 14,00( 2014 LED & Solar
Poughkeepsie, N' 9,00( 2015 LED & Solar
Kingston, NY 44,00( 2018 LED & Solar
Fremont, CA 17,00( 2015 LED & Solar
Shanghai, China (Z 18,70( 2014 Customer Training Cent
Hsinchu City, Taiwan 13,50( 2015 Sales Office, Process Development, and Customénmifiga
Center
(1) Our LED & Solar segment utilizes approximately @ &quare feet of this facility. The balance isilabde for expansion.
(2 We have the option to renew this lease for two eontive two year terms and also have the optigrutchase this facility.
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The St. Paul, Minnesota facility is subject to artgage which, as of December 31, 2013, had anandstg balance of $2.1 million. We also
lease small offices in Santa Clara, California Bdéha, Minnesota for sales and service. Our fore@aes and service subsidiaries lease office
space in Germany, Japan, South Korea, MalaysigaBore, Thailand, Philippines and China. We belmwefacilities are adequate to meet
current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Environmental

We are aware that petroleum hydrocarbon contanoimditas been detected in the soil at the site atititf formerly leased by us in Santa
Barbara, California. We have been indemnified foy Babilities we may incur which arise from envimmental contamination at the site. Even
without consideration of such indemnification, wernbt believe that any material loss or expengedabable in connection with any such
liabilities. The former owner of the land and binlglin Santa Barbara, California in which our fometrology operations were located
(which business was sold to Bruker Corporation (fi&r”) on October 7, 2010), has disclosed thatetlaee hazardous substances presentin t
ground under the building. Management believesttfmtomprehensive indemnification clause that measof the purchase contract relatin
the purchase of such land provides adequate piaesagainst any environmental issues that may .af&ehave provided Bruker with similar
indemnification as part of the sale.

Non-Environmental

Veeco and certain other parties were named asdefiésin a lawsuit filed on April 25, 2013 in thed@rior Court of California, County of
Sonoma. The plaintiff in the lawsuit, Patrick Catbseeks unspecified damages and asserts claitieethaffered burns and other injuries
while he was cleaning a molecular beam epitaxyesystlleged to have been manufactured by Veecolalisuit alleges, among other things,
that the molecular beam epitaxy system was defeetid that Veeco failed to adequately warn of titergial risks of the system. Veeco
believes this lawsuit is without merit and intendslefend vigorously against the claims. Veeaaniable to predict the outcome of this action
or to reasonably estimate the possible loss orerafgpss, if any, arising from the claims assettetein. The Company believes that, in the
event of any recovery by the plaintiff from Veesach recovery would be fully covered by Veeco’sinasice.

We are involved in various other legal proceediagsing in the normal course of our business. Waatdelieve that the ultimate resolutior
these matters will have a material adverse effeawr consolidated financial position, results pérations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Rity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on The NASDAQ Nationarkét under the symbol “VECOThe 2013 and 2012 high and low closing bid pr
by quarter are as follows:

2013 2012

High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 38.41 $ 28.71 % 33.4C $ 21.4¢
Second Quarte 42.6( 32.2% 36.97 26.5¢
Third Quartel 36.41 33.1¢ 38.11 30.0¢
Fourth Quarte 38.1¢ 28.4¢ 31.52 26.8¢

On February 18, 2014, the closing bid price for cammon stock on The NASDAQ National Market was.$8Jand we had 120 shareholders
of record.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock.Bterd of Directors will determine future dividepdlicy based on our consolidated
results of operations, financial condition, capituirements and other circumstances.
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Stock Performance Graph

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"

Among Veeco Instruments Inc., the S&F Smallcap 600 Index, the PHLX Semiconductor Index,
and the RDG MidCap Technology Index
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—iF— Veeco Instruments Inc. — & — S&P Smallcap 600 ---8--- PHLX Semiconductor —s— RDG MidCap Technology
#5100 invested on 12021708 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fizcal year ending December 31.
Copyright® 2014 S&P, a divigion of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.
ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON DEC. 31, 2008
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC. 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Veeco Instruments Inc. 100.0( 521.1¢ 677.6( 328.0¢ 465.1¢ 519.0¢
S&P Smallcap 600 100.0( 125.5% 158.6( 160.2: 186.3" 263.3°
PHLX Semiconductor 100.0( 159.6¢ 183.2: 186.0" 204.9: 268.5¢
RDG MidCap Technology 100.0( 166.6° 214.7¢ 179.7¢ 177.4° 239.7:
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The financial data set forth below should be readonjunction with “Management’s Discussion and s of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and our Consolidated Firelrigiatements and notes thereto included elsevitnéinés Form 10-K.

Year ended December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands, except per share datz

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales $ 331,74 $ 516,02( $ 979,13' $ 930,89: $ 282,26:
Operating income (loss) (71,817) 37,21 276,25¢ 303,25: 7,631
Income (loss) from continuing operations net obime taxe: (42,267) 26,52¢ 190,50: 277,17¢ a,777)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations nethobime taxe — 4,39¢ (62,515 84,58¢ (13,85%)
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrollingeirest — — — (65)
Net income (loss) attributable to Vee $ (42,26 $ 30,928 $ 12798 $ 361,76( $ (15,56)
Income (loss) per common share attributable to We
Basic:

Continuing operation $ (1.09 $ 0.6¢ $ 480 $ 7.0z $ (0.05)

Discontinued operations — 0.11 (1.57) 2.14 (0.43)

Income (loss) $ (1.09 $ 08C $ 3.2 $ 9.1¢ $ (0.4¢)

Diluted :

Continuing operation $ (1.09 $ 0.6¢ $ 46: $ 6.5z $ (0.05)

Discontinued operations — 0.11 (1.52) 1.9¢ (0.43)

Income (loss) $ (1.09 $ 0.7¢ $ 3.11 $ 8.51 $ (0.48)

Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 38,80 38,47 39,65¢ 39,49¢ 32,62¢

Diluted 38,80" 39,05! 41,15t 42,51« 32,62¢

December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $ 210,79¢ $ 384,55 $ 217,92 $ 24513 $ 148,50(
Shor-term investment 281,53t 192,23« 273,59: 394,18 135,00(
Restricted cas 2,73¢ 2,017 577 76,11¢ —
Working capital 485,45; 632,19 587,07¢ 640,13¢ 317,31
Goodwill 91,34¢ 55,82¢ 55,82¢ 52,00: 52,00:
Total asset 947,96 937,30« 936,06: 1,148,03. 605,37:
Long-term debt (including current installmen 2,131 2,40¢ 2,65¢ 104,02: 101,17¢
Total equity 780,23( 811,21: 760,52( 762,51 359,05¢
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations
Executive Summary

Veeco Instruments Inc. (together with its consdédasubsidiaries, “Veeco”, the “Company”, “we”, "usnd “our”, unless the context indica
otherwise) creates process equipment that enatbadlogies for a cleaner and more productive wakdd design, manufacture and market
equipment primarily sold to make LEDs and hard-digkes, as well as for concentrator photovoltgicsyer semiconductors, wireless
components, and micro-electro-mechanical systeM&S").

Veeco develops highly differentiated, “best-in-slagrocess equipment for critical performance st€ps products feature leading technology,
low cost-of-ownership and high throughput. Core petencies in advanced thin film technologies, @8 patents, and decades of specialize
process know-how helps us to stay at the forefobthese demanding industries.

Veeco’s LED & Solar segmedésigns and manufactures metal organic chemicanagposition (‘MOCVD”) and molecular beam epitaxy
(“MBE") systems and components sold to manufacturers of| f&ideless components, power semiconductors, andentrator photovoltaic
as well as for R&D applications. Our ALD technojdg used by the manufacturers of OLED displays lzelfurther applications in the
semiconductor and solar markets.

Veeco's Data Storage segmelesigns and manufactures systems used to creatfithimagnetic heads (“TFMH) that read and write data
hard disk drives. These include ion beam etchp&am deposition, diamond-like carbon, physical valeposition, chemical vapor deposition,
and slicing, dicing and lapping systems. While systems are primarily sold to hard drive customesy also have applications in optical
coatings, MEMS and magnetic sensors, and extretravidlet (“EUV”") lithography.

As of December 31, 2013, Veeco had approximatelye3fiployees to support our customers through ptathatprocess development,
training, manufacturing, and sales and service @it¢he U.S., South Korea, Taiwan, China, Singepdeipan, Europe and other locations.

Veeco Instruments Inc. was organized as a Delae@mmoration in 1989.
Summary of Results for 2013
Selected financial highlights include:

. Revenue decreased 35.7% to $331.7 million in 2€drd $516.0 million in 2012. LED & Solar revenuesmsed 31.2% to $249.7
million from $363.2 million in 2012. Data Storage/enues decreased 46.3% to $82.0 million from &L&#llion in 2012;

*  Orders were down 15.4%, to $331.6 million in 20d@npared to $391.9 million in 2012;

e Our gross margin decreased, to 31.1%, in 2013 cmedpa 41.7% in 2012. Gross margins in LED & Sdlecreased from 40.9% in
2012 to 28.0%. Data Storage gross margins als@dsed from 43.7% to 40.4%.

*  Our selling, general and administrative expenseeased to $85.5 million, from $73.1 million in 20Belling, general and
administrative expenses were 25.8% of net sal@®13, compared to 14.2% in 2012;

»  Ourresearch and development expenses decrea$8dl.tbmillion from $95.2 million in 2012. Reseamid development expenses
were 24.5% of net sales in 2013, compared to 18M2012;

*  Netincome (loss) from continuing operations in 20das $(42.3) million compared to $26.5 million2d12;
e Diluted net income (loss) from continuing operasigner share in 2013 was $(1.09) compared to $6.8812.
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Outlook
As we begin 2014, it is unclear when business ¢amd may improve for Veeco.

We are seeing some positive signs in our MOCVDrrss. LED customer facility utilization rates atable and at a high level. Itis clear t
LED lighting adoption is accelerating. Some of key customers are currently contemplating capaaititions. However, it remains difficult
to accurately predict if, and when, a turnarountll lméppen and to what extent we will see growtlim MOCVD business. Competitive prici
pressure, which had a dramatic effect on our gnemgjins in 2013, is also difficult to predict. Cfocus is to introduce next-generation
products that will offer our customers additionalue, and that, combined with potentially highelunees, could help restore gross margins in
MOCVD.

Our new ALD business was acquired as a “pre-revebusiness and thus decreased our earnings in Z0A8.timing of production ALD
orders from our key customer could have a signitigapact on our expected revenue growth and pieleeturn to profitability.

While Data Storage orders increased 8.4% from tlog pear period and low growth is expected in hdiges, our customers have excess
manufacturing capacity and they have only been ngagelect technology purchases. Future demandifdbata Storage products is unclear.

Our priorities for 2014 include taking the stepshedieve are necessary to transition us back thtabde growth. We are focused on four area
to improve our financial performance: 1) developamgl launching new products that enable cost éffetED lighting, flexible OLED
encapsulation and other emerging technologiesx@juging manufacturing cost reduction programg]rB)ing process improvement initiatives
to make us more efficient; and 4) improving prodiifferentiation and customer value to stem maggsion. We currently anticipate that our
losses will continue in the near term.

Our outlook discussion above constitutes “forwardking statements” within the meaning of SectioA ®7 the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchaogef 1934, as amended. Our expectations reggifditure results are subject to risks
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ matirifrom those anticipated.

You should not place undue reliance on any forwaeotting statements, which speak only as of thegdtitey are made.
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Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

The following table shows our Consolidated StateimehOperations, percentages of sales and conoparlsetween 2013 and 2012 (dollars in
thousands):

Year ended Dollar and
December 31 Percentage Changt
2013 2012 Year to Year

Net sales $ 331,74 100.% $ 516,02 100.% $ (184,27) (35.)%
Cost of sales 228,60° 68.9% 300,88 58.2% (72,28() (24.0%
Gross profit 103,14: 31.1% 215,13 41.1% (111,99) (52.0)%
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati 85,48¢ 25.8% 73,11( 14.2% 12,37¢ 16.%

Research and developme 81,42¢ 24.5% 95,15: 18.4% (13,729 (14.9%

Amortization 5,527 1.7% 4,90¢ 1.C% 61¢ 12.€%

Restructuring 1,48t 0.4% 3,81: 0.7% (2,329 (61.0)%

Asset impairment 1,22( 0.4% 1,33¢ 0.2% (115) (8.6)%
Total operating expenses 175,14. 52.8% 178,31¢ 34.6% (3,177) (1.9%

Other, net (2,019 (0.9% (399 (0.1)% (619) 155.5%

Changes in contingent consideration 82¢ 0.2% — 0.C% 82¢ *
Operating income (loss) (71,817 (21.6% 37,21 7.2% (109,029 &
Interest income (expense), net 602 0.2% 974 0.2% (372) (38.9%
Income (loss) from continuing operations befi

income taxe: (71,210 (21.5% 38,18t¢ 7.4% (109,39
Income tax provision (benefit) (28,94 (8.0% 11,65] 2.2% (40,604)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (42,267) (12.9% 26,52¢ 5.1% (68,797) &
Discontinued operation

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

before income taxe — 0.C% 6,26¢ 1.2% (6,269

Income tax provision (benefit) — 0.C% 1,87( 0.4% (1,870
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — 0.C% 4,39¢ 0.2% (4,399 *
Net income (loss $ (42,269 (12.9% $  30,92¢ 6.C% $ (73,19) *

* Not Meaningful
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Net Sale:

The following is an analysis of sales by segmenti@anregion (dollars in thousands):

For the year ended

December 31 Dollar and Percentage
Percent Percent Change
2013 of total 2012 of total Year to Year

Segment Analysis

LED & Solar $ 249,74. 75.2%$% 363,18: 70.4% $ (113,439 (31.29%

Data Storage 82,00 24. 1% 152,83 29.6% (70,837 (46.9%

Total $ 331,74¢ 100.(%$ 516,02( 100.% $ (184,27) (35.1%
Regional Analysis

Asia Pacific $ 252,19¢ 76.(%$ 390,99! 75.€% $ (138,799 (35.5%

Americas (1, 57,60¢ 17.2% 83,31: 16.1% (25,709 (30.9%

Europe, Middle East and Africa 21,94 6.€% 41,70¢ 8.1% (19,767 (47.9%

Total $ 331,74¢ 100.(%$ 516,02( 100.(% $ (184,27) (35.9)%

(1) Less than 1% of sales included within the Americggtion above have been derived from other regiotside the United States.

LED & Solar segment sales decreased in 2013 priynduie to lower MOCVD sales as a result of contohiredustry manufacturing
overcapacity and our customer’s hesitancy to makeinvestments. Data Storage sales decreased $hhd2@lto customer fabrication facility
overcapacity and weak hard drive demand. Our Dataa§e sales in 2012 were favorably impacted byeptacement of equipment at one of
our customer’s sites that was damaged by the flood@bailand. By region, net sales decreased i Rsicific (“APAC”), primarily due to a
significant decrease in MOCVD sales in China résglfrom industry manufacturing overcapacity. Nates in the Americas and Europe,
Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA”) also decreased, dogeduced end-market demand resulting from thekvgdobal economy. We believe that
there will continue to be year-to-year variationgtie geographic distribution of sales.

Orders decreased 15.4% to $331.6 million from $3®&iillion in the prior year, primarily attributabte a 22.1% decrease in LED & Solar
orders, principally driven by a decline in MOCVDders due to industry manufacturing overcapacitgc&hitting a peak in the second quarter
of 2011, our orders have slowed dramatically. \&Bhta Storage orders increased 8.4% from the ypei@r period and low growth is expected
in hard drives, our customers have excess manufagtoapacity and they have only been making sééstinology purchases. We continue to
experience weak overall market conditions due groapacity in all of our businesses.

Our book-to-bill ratio for 2013, which is calculdtey dividing orders recorded in a given time péfy revenue recognized in the same time
period, was 1 to 1 compared to 0.76 to 1 in 201&. liacklog as of December 31, 2013 was $143.3anjlicompared to $150.2 million as of
December 31, 2012. During the year ended Decenthe?@® 3, we recorded backlog adjustments of appratély $6.8 million, consisting of a
$5.6 million adjustment related to orders thatemgler met our bookings criteria as well as an adjast related to foreign currency translation
of $1.2 million. For certain sales arrangementgeelire a deposit for a portion of the sales poietore shipment. As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, we had customer deposits of $27.5 millioah $32.7 million, respectively.
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Gross Profit

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Chang
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Gross profit- LED & Solar $ 69,99¢ $ 148,38: $ (78,385 (52.8%
Gross margir 28.(% 40.%
Gross profit- Data Storag $ 33,14« $ 66,75( $ (33,60¢) (50.9%
Gross margir 40.2% 43.1%
Gross profit- Total Veecc $ 103,14: $ 215,13. % (111,99) (52.)%
Gross margir 31.1% 41.7%

LED & Solar gross margins decreased primarily dulwer average selling prices, reduced volumefangr final acceptances partially offset
by cost reductions associated with reduced voluenesreduced expenses in 2013 for slow moving irorgritems. Data Storage gross margins
decreased primarily due to a significant reductionolume.

Operating Expenses

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Selling, general and administrati $ 85,48t $ 73,11C $ 12,37¢ 16.9%
Percentage of sale 25.8% 14.2%

Selling, general and administrative expenses isearimarily from professional fees associateth wiir review of our revenue accounting
that began in 2012 and completed in October 204Rigtly offset by a reduction in bonus and prefiiring expense and increased cost contr
measures put into place in response to weak medkelitions, which resulted in lower personnel-miatosts and discretionary expenses. The
addition of our ALD business in the fourth quad&€2013 has also contributed to an increase irselling, general and administrative
expenses.

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Research and developme $ 81,42: $ 95,15: $ (13,729 (14.9%
Percentage of sale 24.5% 18.4%

Research and development expense decreased aanperstd our focus on product development in artastwipated high-growth. We
selectively funded certain product developmentvitits which resulted in reduced spending for prbjaaterials and professional consultants
as well as lower personnel and personnel-relatstsco

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Amortization $ 5527 $ 4,90¢ $ 61¢ 12.€%
Percentage of sale 1.7% 1.C%

Amortization expense increased primarily due toiteaithl amortization associated with intangibleedssacquired as part of our acquisition of
Synos during the fourth quarter of 2013, partialtiset by certain intangible assets becoming faftyortized.
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Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Restructuring $ 1,48t $ 3,8Ll: % (2,32¢) (61.1)%
Percentage of sale 0.4% 0.7%

During 2013, we recorded $1.5 million in persors@terance and related costs principally resultiomfthe transition from a direct sales
presence to a distributor in one of our internatl@ales offices and the consolidation of certales business and administrative functions.
During 2012, we took measures to improve profitghilncluding a reduction in discretionary expensealignment of our senior managemen
team and consolidation of certain sales, businedsadministrative functions. As a result of thesioms, we recorded a restructuring charge ir
2012 consisting of $3.0 million in personnel sewermand related costs, $0.4 million in equity congagion and related costs and $0.4 million
in other severance costs resulting from a headaeuliction of 52 employees.

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Asset impairmen $ 1,22( $ 1,338 % (115 (8.6)%
Percentage of sale 0.4% 0.2%

During 2013, we recorded asset impairment charge&D & Solar of $0.9 million related to certairbl#éools carried in property, plant and
equipment which we are holding for sale and $0.8anirelated to another asset carried in Otheess®uring 2012, we recorded an asset
impairment charge related to a license agreememiiriiData Storage segment.

Income Taxe
Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Income tax provision (benefi $ (28,94) $ 11,657 $ (40,609 i3
Effective tax rate 40.1% 30.5%

* Not Meaningful

The 2013 net benefit for income taxes included .& #3llion provision relating to our foreign opeats and $32.4 million benefit relating to
our domestic operations. The 2012 provision fooime taxes included $8.3 million relating to oureign operations and $3.4 million relating
to our domestic operations. Our 2013 effectiverta® is higher than the statutory rate as a re$ulte jurisdictional mix of earnings in our
foreign locations, an income tax benefit relatethtogeneration of current year research and dpwredat tax credits and legislation enacted in
the first quarter of 2013 which extended the Fddeesearch and Development Credit for both the 20122013 tax years.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we determinedt thie may not meet the criteria required to recaigertain incentive tax rate pursuant to a
negotiated tax holiday in one foreign jurisdictiéddthough we are continuing to negotiate the cigtdor the incentive, for financial reporting
purposes we have recorded additional tax provisiéi.9 million and $4.0 million in 2013 and 20%&spectively, totaling $4.9 million,

which represents the cumulative effect of calcotathe tax provision using the incentive tax rae@mpared to the foreign country’s statutory
rate. If we successfully renegotiate the incentiniteria, this additional tax provision could b&eesed as a future benefit in the period in whicl
the negotiations are finalized.

During 2012, we recorded an income tax expensd & &illion related to discontinued operations hwib comparable amount in 2013. In
addition, we recorded a current tax benefit of $fillion related to equity-based compensation it 2€r which no current tax benefit was
recorded in 2013.
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Discontinued Operation

Year ended
December 31

Dollar and Percentage Changt

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Year to Year
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

before income taxe — $ 6,26¢ $ (6,269) &
Income tax provision (benefi — 1,87(C (1,870 *
Income (loss) from discontinued operatit — % 4,39 $ (4,399 *

* Not Meaningful

Discontinued operations represent the resultseobfierations of our disposed Metrology segmentclvhias sold to Bruker on October 7,
2010, and our CIGS solar systems business, whishdigaontinued on September 27, 2011. The 2012sesadluded a $1.4 million gain ($1
million net of taxes) on the sale of the assewistontinued segment held for sale and a $5.4aniljiain ($4.1 million net of taxes) associated

with the closing of the sale to Bruker.
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The following table shows our Consolidated StatasenhOperations, percentages of sales and conopartsetween 2012 and 2011 (dollars in
thousands):

Year ended Dollar and
December 31 Percentage Changt
2012 2011 Year to Year

Net sales $ 516,02( 100.% $ 979,13 100.%0 $ (463,119 (47.9%
Cost of sales 300,88 58.2% 504,80: 51.€% (203,919 (40.9%
Gross profit 215,13: 41.71% 474,33 48.4% (259,20 (54.6%
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati 73,11( 14.2% 95,13¢ 9.7% (22,02¢) (23.29%

Research and developme 95,15: 18.4£% 96,59¢ 9.€% (1,449 (1.9%

Amortization 4,90¢ 1.C% 4,73¢ 0.5% 174 3.7%

Restructuring 3,81 0.7% 1,28¢ 0.1% 2,52t 196.%

Asset impairment 1,33¢ 0.2% 584 0.1% 751 128.6%
Total operating expenses 178,31 34.6% 198,33 20.5% (20,019 (10.%

Other, net (39¢) (0.1)% (267) (0.0)% (137) 52.5%
Operating income (loss) 37,21: 7.2% 276,25! 28.2% (239,04) (86.5%
Interest income (expense), net 974 0.2% (829 (0.1)% 1,79¢ *
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 0.C% (3,349 (0.9% 3,34¢ *
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxe 38,18t 7.4% 272,08t 27.€% (233,90() (86.0%
Income tax provision (benefit) 11,65" 2.3% 81,58/ 8.2% (69,927 (85.71%
Income (loss) from continuing operations 26,52¢ 5.1% 190,50 19.5% (163,97) (86.1)%
Discontinued operation

Income (loss) from discontinued

operations before income tax 6,26¢ 1.2% (91,88Y (9.9% 98,15 *

Income tax provision (benefit) 1,87(C 0.4% (29,370 (3.0% 31,24( *
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 4,39¢ 0.€% (62,51%) (6.4)% 66,91+
Net income (loss $ 30,92¢ 6.(% $ 127,98 13.1% $ (97,059 (75.)%

* Not Meaningful
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Net Sale:

The following is an analysis of sales by segmenti@anregion (dollars in thousands):

For the year ended

December 31 Dollar and Percentage
Percent of Percent of Change
2012 total 2011 total Year to Year
Segment Analysis
LED & Solar $ 363,18: 70.2% $ 827,79 84.5% $ (464,61 (56.)%
Data Storage 152,83¢ 29.6% 151,33t 15.5% 1,501 1.C%
Total $ 516,02( 100.% $ 979,13! 100.% $ (463,11} (47.9%
Regional Analysis
Asia Pacific $ 390,99! 75.8% $ 820,88: 83.¢% $ (429,88 (52.9%
Americas (1, 83,31% 16.1% 100,63! 10.2% (17,319 (17.29)%
Europe, Middle East and Africa 41,70¢ 8.1% 57,61% 5.€% (15,909 (27.6%
Total $ 516,02( 100.% $ 979,13! 100.(% $ (463,11} (47.9%

(1) Less than 1%, of sales included within the Uniteaté® caption above has been derived from oth@negvithin the Americas.

By segment, LED & Solar sales decreased from tlue pear primarily due to a 62.0% decrease in MOQ¥Bctor shipments as a result of
industry overcapacity following over two years ttbeig customer investments. Data Storage salesared slightly from the prior year,
primarily due to an increase in shipments to repkquipment destroyed by flooding in customer ifiéedl in Thailand offset by reduced
demand due to our customers’ hesitancy to add rathuing capacity during weak global economic ctiods. By region, net sales decreased
in APAC, primarily due to lower MOCVD sales to LEIDstomers. Sales in the Americas and EMEA alsoedsed due to reduced end marke
demand resulting from the weak global economy. Baleeve that there will continue to be yearywar variations in the geographic distribut

of sales.

Orders in 2012 decreased 52.1% compared to 20iManily attributable to a 53.1% decrease in LED éleé8 orders that were principally
driven by a decline in MOCVD bookings due to indystvercapacity. After hitting a peak in the secgudrter of 2011, our bookings slowed
dramatically in the second half of 2011, which ¢oméd throughout 2012. Data Storage orders deate®&&% as strong prior year orders fi
hard drive customers recovering from the flood railand resulted in those customers being aweested in capacity. In addition, the indu
appears to have frozen further investments as sadhard drive demand has slowed.

Our book-to-bill ratio for 2012, which is calculdtby dividing orders received in a given time pdrixy revenue recognized in the same time
period, was 0.76 to 1 compared to 0.84 to 1 in 2@Lir backlog as of December 31, 2012 was $150lbmicompared to $332.9 million as
December 31, 2011. During the year ended Decenthe?@® 2, we recorded net backlog adjustments afoappately $58.5 million. The
adjustments consisted of $42.0 million relatedritecs that no longer met our booking criteria, ity due to contracts being extended past
twelve month delivery time frame, and $15.4 milli@ihorder cancellations and order adjustments df $iillion. For certain sales arrangeme
we require a deposit for a portion of the salesgbefore shipment. As of December 31, 2012 and,20& had customer deposits of $32.7
million and $57.1 million, respectively.
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Gross Profit

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Gross profit- LED & Solar $ 148,38: $ 397,61: $ (249,23) (62.71%
Gross margir 40.% 48.(%
Gross profil- Data Storag $ 66,75( $ 76,72( $ (9,970 (13.0%
Gross margir 43. 1% 50.7%
Gross profi- Total Veecc $ 215,13: $ 474,33: $ (259,20) (54.€)%
Gross margir 41.7% 48.4%

Total Veeco gross margins decreased primarily duke weak business environment. As a result, werded a total expense for slow moving
items in 2012 of approximately $9.6 million, whinkgatively impacted our gross margins.

LED & Solar gross margins decreased from the préar, primarily due to a significant decrease iesaolumes, lower average selling prices
and fewer final acceptances partially offset bydowlant and service spending associated with estiuolumes and cost reductions in resp
to lower business levels. Data Storage gross madgunreased from the prior year, primarily due $alas mix of lower margin products. We
anticipate a continuing weak business environmesiilting in persistent selling price pressure inM@®CVD business.

Operating Expenses

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Selling, general and administrati $ 73,11( $ 95,13: $ (22,029 (23.29%
Percentage of sale 14.2% 9.7%

Selling, general and administrative expenses dseteprimarily due to lower commissions and bonusg@aofit sharing expenses from the
reduced level of business in each of our segménggidition our cost control measures put into @leoughout the year resulting in lower
personnel-related costs, travel and entertainmgrérese, professional consulting fees and otheratisoary expenses.

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Research and developm: $ 95,15 $ 96,59¢ $ (1,449 (1.5%
Percentage of sale 18.2% 9.€%

We continued to invest, at approximately the pyiear levels, in the development of products in saueehigh-growth for end market
opportunities in our LED & Solar segment.

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Amortization $ 4,90¢ $ 4,73¢ % 174 3.7%
Percentage of sale 1.C% 0.5%

Amortization expense increased from the prior ypamarily due to additional amortization assoaiaéth intangible assets acquired as pa
our acquisition of a privately held company durthg second quarter of 2011, partially offset bytaiarintangible assets becoming fully
amortized.
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Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Restructuring $ 3,81 $ 1,28¢ $ 2,52¢ 196.(%
Percentage of sale 0.7% 0.1%

During 2012, we took measures to improve profitghilncluding a reduction in discretionary expensealignment of our senior managemen
team and consolidation of certain sales, businedsadministrative functions. As a result of thestoms, we recorded a restructuring charge
consisting of $3.0 million in personnel severancd eelated costs, $0.4 million in equity compermaand related costs and $0.4 million in
other severance costs resulting from a headcodottien of 52 employees. During 2011, we recorde@ $illion in personnel severance and
related costs related to a companywide reorganizaésulting in a headcount reduction of 65 empgyd& hese reductions in workforce
included executives, management, administratidessend service personnel and manufacturing emetogempanywide.

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Asset impairmen $ 1,33 $ 584 $ 751 128.6%
Percentage of sale 0.2% 0.1%

During 2012, we recorded an asset impairment chialgéed to a license agreement in our Data Stasagment. During 2011, we recorded an
asset impairment charge for property, plant andpsgent related to the discontinuance of a certandypct line in our LED & Solar segment.

Interest Income (Expense), I

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Interest income (expense), | $ 974 $ 829 $ 1,79¢ &
Percentage of sale 0.2% (0.)%

* Not Meaningful

Interest income, net for 2012 was comprised of $@lbon in cash interest income, partially offdst $0.2 million in cash interest expense and
$1.3 million in non-cash interest expense relatinget amortization of our short-term investmenhtterest expense, net for 2011 was
comprised of $1.4 million in cash interest expei®de9 million in non-cash interest expense relatimget amortization of our short-term
investments and $1.3 million in non-cash intergpease relating to our convertible debt, which wesed during the first half of 2011
creating a loss on extinguishment of approxima$a8 million. Interest expense in 2011 was pastiaffset by $3.8 million in interest income
earned on our cash and short-term investment bedafitie non-cash interest expense is related twating rules that requires a portion of
convertible debt to be allocated to equity in 2@htl accretion of debt discounts and amortizatiotetft premiums related to our short-term
investments in 2012 and 2011.
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Income Taxe
Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Changt
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Income tax provision (benefi $ 11,657 $ 81,58: $ (69,92) (85.71)%
Effective tax ratt 30.5% 30.(%

The 2012 provision for income taxes included $8ilfian relating to our foreign operations and $8&lion relating to our domestic
operations. The 2011 provision for income taxetuihed $9.6 million relating to our foreign operatsoand $72.0 million relating to our
domestic operations. Our 2012 effective tax rateviger than the statutory rate as a result of tinsdlictional mix of earnings in our foreign
locations and other favorable tax benefits inclgdime Domestic Production Activities Deduction amdadjustment for the Research and
Development Credit related to the filing of our 2ederal income tax return.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we determineat thie may not meet the criteria required to recaigertain incentive tax rate pursuant to a
negotiated tax holiday in one foreign jurisdictiddthough we are continuing to negotiate the cigtdor the incentive, for financial reporting
purposes we have recorded an additional tax pravisi $4.0 million which represents the cumulagffect of calculating the tax provision
using the incentive tax rate as compared to theidarcountry’s statutory rate. As such amount tsaxpected to be paid within twelve months,
we have recorded the $4.0 million as a long terragaayable. If we successfully renegotiate thernitige criteria, this additional tax provision
could be reversed as a future benefit in the periadhich the successful negotiations are finalized

During 2012, we recorded an income tax expensd & #illion related to discontinued operations canegl to the $29.4 million income tax
benefit from discontinued operations in the prieaywhich was reported in accordance with the petriad tax allocation provisions. In
addition, we recorded a current tax benefit of $gillion related to equity-based compensation whiets a credit to additional paid in capital
compared to $10.4 million tax benefit recordedhi prior year.

Discontinued Operation

Year ended
December 31 Dollar and Percentage Chang
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Year to Year
Income (loss) from discontinued operations be
income taxe: $ 6,26¢ $ (91,88 $ 98,15 &
Income tax provision (benefi 1,87(C (29,370 31,24( *
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 439 $ (62,519 $ 66,91 *

* Not Meaningful

Discontinued operations represent the resultseobfierations of our disposed Metrology segmentclvhias sold to Bruker on October 7,
2010, and our CIGS solar systems business, whishdigaontinued on September 27, 2011, reportedsesrdinued operations. The 2012
results included a $1.4 million gain ($1.1 millinat of taxes) on the sale of the assets of diswoedti segment held for sale and a $5.4 million
gain ($4.1 million net of taxes) associated with tfosing of the China Assets with Bruker. The 268<llts reflect an operational loss before
taxes of $1.6 million related to the Metrology segrnand an operational loss before taxes of $9@l®mrelated to the CIGS solar systems
business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had cashastdeqjuivalents of $210.8 million and $384.6 miljicespectively, of which $150.6
million and $128.0 million, respectively, were heldtside the United States. Liquidity is affectednany factors, some of which are based or
normal ongoing operations of our business and safadnich arise from fluctuations related to globabnomics and markets. Cash balances
are generated and held in many locations througiheutvorld. It is our current intent to permanemtinvest our funds from Singapore, China,
Taiwan, South Korea, and Malaysia outside of the@ddnStates and our current plans do not demoesdraeed to repatriate them to fund our
United States operations. As of December 31, 2@&3ad $115.0 million in cash held offshore on whie would have to pay significant
United States income taxes to repatriate in thetethat we need the funds for our operations inlthited
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States. Additionally, local government regulatiomsy restrict our ability to move cash balances éettash needs under certain circumsta
We currently do not expect such regulations antiticiens to impact our ability to make acquisitimay vendors, or conduct operations
throughout the global organization. As of Decenfier2013 and 2012, in addition to our cash balangeslso had short-term investments in
the United States of $281.5 million and $192.2ionil] respectively, and restricted cash in Germér§207 million and $2.0 million,
respectively. We believe that our projected casw firom operations combined with our cash and steom investments will be sufficient to
meet our projected working capital and other cémsl fequirements for the next twelve months, ad a&lur contractual obligations.

A summary of cash flow activity is as followin(thousand$:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012
Net income (loss $ (42,269 $ 30,92¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 727 111,96:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (168,05 48,32
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (5,766 5,55¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvatnts (663) 79€
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (173,759 166,63!
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 384,55 217,92:
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year $ 210,79¢ $ 384,55

During 2013, we continued to generate cash fromatjpas despite the $184.3 million decrease inmaes. Cash provided by operations
declined primarily due to a $73.2 million reductiomet income, generating a net loss for 2013. Adtdoss for 2013 included $22.5 million of
noncash items. A $38.8 million decrease in accoretgsivable and $7.5 million increase in accouatgmple contributed most significantly to
our cash provided from operations. This was péytaffset by a $17.3 million reduction of accruedenses, customer deposits and deferred
revenue and a $12.6 million increase in incomegdageeivable, primarily resulting from a net opergioss carryback claim.

Net cash from investing activities in 2013 declitgd$216.4 million compared to the prior year. Thash used in investing activities w
primarily driven by our acquisition of Synos, whicnsumed $71.5 million and the $89.3 million irage in short-term investments. This was
partially offset by a $15.8 million reduction inpital expenditures from the prior year.

Net cash from financing activities in 2013 declingd$11.3 million compared to the prior year. Te¢lmnge results primarily from a $£
million payment of a contingent consideration ntibe® made in accordance with the terms of our ageeeto purchase Synos and a change «
$6.3 million related to option and restricted stackivity, including tax impacts.

On October 1, 2013, we acquired Synos for an Irptiachase price of $71.5 million. Synos develojmsrac layer deposition technology. As a
result of this purchase, we acquired $99.3 milbbulefinite-lived intangibles, of which $78.2 midh is related to core technology, and $35.5
million of goodwill. The financial results of thacquisition are included in our LED & Solar segmasf the acquisition date. As of Octobe
2013, we had a contingent obligation to pay upntadditional $115.0 million if certain conditionseamet. The first $5.0 million of the $115.0
million was earned and paid in the fourth quarfe2@13. Up to $35.0 million of the remaining cargent obligation could be payable in the
first quarter of 2014, if the conditions relatecerning the payments are met. The remaining $8li@n contingent consideration could be
payable in 2015 if the conditions related to eagritre payments are met. As part of the purchase piiocation, we recorded a liability of
$33.5 million related to the fair value of the dogent consideration.
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As of December 31, 2013, our contractual cash abtigs and commitments are as follows thousandy:

Payments due by perioc

Less than More than 5
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

Long-term debt (1) $ 2,137 % 29C % 654 $ 76€ 9 427
Interest on debt (1 558 15¢ 244 132 18
Operating leases (. 8,08 3,07¢ 3,41¢ 1,58¢ —
Letters of credit and bank

guarantees (& 6,49: 6,49: — — —
Purchase commitments (4) 60,29( 60,29( — — —

$ 77,55¢ % 70,30¢ $ 431 $ 2,48¢ $ 44¢

(1) Long-term debt obligations consist of mortgage iaterest payments for our St. Paul, MN facility.
(2) In accordance with relevant accounting guidanceaegmunt for our office leases as operating leagthsexpiration dates ranging

from 2014 through 2018, excluding renewal optidrteere are future minimum annual rental paymentsired under the leases.
Leasehold improvements made at the beginning dfidng a lease are amortized over the shortereofdmaining lease term or the
estimated useful lives of the assets. This alsludies other operating leases we hold, such asagastments and office equipment.
There are no material sublease payments receiaabticiated with the leases.

3) Issued by a bank on our behalf as needed. We Ladslef credit outstanding of $0.6 million and k@yjuarantees outstanding of
$5.9 million, of which, $2.7 million is collaterakd against cash that is restricted from use. A3egember 31, 2013, we had $40.4
million of unused lines of credit available. Thediof credit is available to draw upon to coverf@@nance bonds as required by our
customers.

4 Purchase commitments are primarily for inventorgdusn manufacturing our products. It has been oactce not to enter into
purchase commitments extending beyond one yearha¥e $9.4 million of offsetting supplier depositrminst these purchase
commitments as of December 31, 2013.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current or future materiéiéet on our financie
condition, changes in financial condition, revemu@xpenses, results of operations, liquidity, zdgixpenditures or capital resources other
than operating leases, letters of credit and bamkamtees, and purchase commitments discloseé jpréteding Contractual Cash Obligatio
and Commitments” table.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies

General: Our discussion and analysis of our financial ¢mel and results of operations are based uporComsolidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in accordetitaccounting principles generally accepted i thited States. The preparation of tt
financial statements requires us to make estinsatdgudgments that affect the reported amountsséts, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
Management continually monitors and evaluatessitisnates and judgments, including those relatdshtbdebts, inventories, intangible and
other long-lived assets, income taxes, warrantigabbns, restructuring costs, and contingent liéd, including potential litigation.
Management bases its estimates and judgments tomitds experience and on various other factors dha believed to be reasonable under th
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssiess and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results maferdifom these estimates under different assumgtiwrconditions. We consider certain
accounting policies related to revenue recognitstrort-term investments, the valuation of inversrthe impairment of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets, the impairmehltong-lived assets, accounting for acquisitidag, value measurements, warranty costs,
income taxes and equity-based compensation toitatpolicies due to the estimation processeslved in each. We have reclassified
certain amounts previously reported in our finahsiatements to conform to the current presentaifmiuding amounts related to discontinuec
operations.

Revenue Recognitio We recognize revenue when all of the followinigecia have been met: persuasive evidence of amgement exists
with a customer; delivery of the specified produws occurred or services have been renderedsmaieecontractually fixed or determinable;
and collectability is reasonably assured. Revesuedorded including shipping and handling costsextluding applicable taxes related to
sales. A significant portion of our revenue is ded from contractual arrangements with customeastiave multiple elements, such as
systems, upgrades, components, spare parts, maiceand service plans. For sales arrangementsathi@in multiple elements, we split the
arrangement into separate units of accountingeifinidividually delivered elements have value todhstomer on a standalone basis. We also
evaluate whether multiple transactions with theesastomer or related party should be considergdpa multiple element arrangement,
whereby we assess, among other factors, whetheotiteacts or agreements are negotiated or exeuttleih a short time frame of each other
or if there are indicators that the contracts agotiated in contemplation of each other. When axeetseparate units of accounting, we allo
revenue to each element based on the followingggirice hierarchy: vendor-specific objective arnde (“VSOE") if available; third party
evidence (“TPE") if VSOE is not available; or owedh estimate of selling price (“BESP”) if neitheB®E nor TPE is available. We utilize
BESP for the majority of the elements in our areangnts. The accounting guidance for selling prieeahchy did not include BESP for
arrangements entered into prior to January 1, 281d as such we recognized revenue for those amzangs as described below.

We consider many facts when evaluating each obala@s arrangements to determine the timing of reeeacognition, including the
contractual obligations, the customer’s creditwiortss and the nature of the customer’s post-dglimeceptance provisions. Our system sale:
arrangements, including certain upgrades, genaralyde field acceptance provisions that may idelfunctional or mechanical test
procedures. For the majority of our arrangementsisiomer source inspection of the system is padrin our facility or test data is sent to
the customer documenting that the system is funictgpto the agreed upon specifications prior tavéey. Historically, such source inspection
or test data replicates the field acceptance pmmssthat will be performed at the customer’s piter to final acceptance of the system. As
such, we objectively demonstrate that the critepi@cified in the contractual acceptance provisayasachieved prior to delivery and, therefore
we recoghize revenue upon delivery since there isubstantive contingency remaining related taatteeptance provisions at that date, subje
to the retention amount constraint described belbar. new products, new applications of existingdurcts or for products with substantive
customer acceptance provisions where we cannottblgéy demonstrate that the criteria specifiedhi@ contractual acceptance provisions |
been achieved prior to delivery, revenue and tse@ated costs are deferred and fully recognizexh tipe receipt of final customer accepta
assuming all other revenue recognition criteriachiaeen met.

Our system sales arrangements, including certagnagies, generally do not contain provisions fontrigf return or forfeiture, refund, or other
purchase price concessions. In the rare instanbesavguch provisions are included, we defer akkmere until such rights expire. In many ce
our products are sold with a billing retention,itglly 10% of the sales price (the “retention am®ymwhich is typically payable by the
customer when field acceptance provisions are cetegl The amount of revenue recognized upon dglivea system or upgrade, if any, is
limited to the lower of i) the amount billed thatriot contingent upon acceptance provisions thé)value of the arrangement consideration
allocated to the delivered elements, if such safeirt of a multiple-element arrangement.
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For transactions entered into prior to January01,12under the accounting rules for multiple-eletre@rangements in place at that time, we
deferred the greater of the retention amount ordlaive fair value of the undelivered elementsdzhon VSOE. When we could not establish
VSOE or TPE for all undelivered elements of anrageamnent, revenue on the entire arrangement waseiéfientil the earlier of the point when
we did have VSOE for all undelivered elements erdblivery of all elements of the arrangement.

Our sales arrangements, including certain upgrageserally include installation. The installatiopess is not deemed essential to the
functionality of the equipment since it is not cden that is, it does not require significant chasdo the features or capabilities of the
equipment or involve building elaborate interfaoesonnections subsequent to factory acceptancehadie a demonstrated history of
consistently completing installations in a timelgmmer and can reliably estimate the costs of satitities. Most customers engage us to
perform the installation services, although theeeather third-party providers with sufficient kniegge who could complete these services.
Based on these factors, we deem the installati@muo$ystems to be inconsequential or perfunctelative to the system as a whole, and as a
result, do not consider such services to be a atpatement of the arrangement. As such, we atloeueost of the installation at the time of
revenue recognition for the system.

In Japan, where our contractual terms with custergenerally specify title and risk and rewardswhership transfer upon customer
acceptance, revenue is recognized and the cusierbiled upon the receipt of written customer aataace. During the fourth quarter of fiscal
2013, we began using a distributor for almost flur product and service sales to customers iarlapitle and risk and rewards of ownership
of our system sales still transfer to our end-austis upon their acceptance. As such, there impadt to our policy of recognizing revenue
upon receipt of written acceptance from the endocusr.

Revenue related to maintenance and service comnisacognized ratably over the applicable cohtexen. Component and spare part reve
are recognized at the time of delivery in accoréanith the terms of the applicable sales arrangémen

Short-Term Investmentg/e determine the appropriate balance sheet cleastdn of our investments at the time of purchaskevaluate the
classification at each balance sheet date. Asgpadr cash management program, we maintain agiortsf marketable securities which are
classified as available-for-sale. These securitielside U.S. treasuries and government agency isiesuvith maturities of greater than three
months. Securities classified as available-for-aatecarried at fair market value, with the unzadigains and losses, net of tax, included in th
determination of comprehensive income (loss) apdnted in equity. Net realized gains and lossesrataded in net income (loss).

Inventory Valuation Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (pially first-in, first-out method) or market. Gnquarterly basis,
management assesses the valuation and recoverabitill inventories, classified as materials (Whioclude raw materials, spare parts and
service inventory), work-in-process and finisheodm

Materials inventory is used primarily to suppor thstalled tool base and spare parts sales asdieved for excess quantities or obsolesc
by comparing on-hand balances to historical usagg adjusted for current economic conditions ahérogualitative factors. Historically, the
variability of such estimates has been impactedusfomer demand and tool utilization rates.

The work-in-process and finished goods inventongriscipally used to support system sales andvieweed for recoverability by considering
whether on hand inventory would be utilized toifuthe related backlog. As we typically receivepdsits for our orders, the variability of this
estimate is reduced as customers have a vestedshie the orders they place with us. Recovetgtoli such inventory is evaluated by
monitoring customer demand, current sales trendgpasduct gross margins. Management also consipletigtative factors such as future
product demand based on market outlook, which sedarincipally upon production requirements résglfrom customer purchase orders
received with a customer-confirmed shipment dathiwithe next twelve months. Historically, the iadility of these estimates of future
product demand has been impacted by backlog catioels or modifications resulting from unanticighthanges in technology or customer
demand.
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Following identification of potential excess or olete inventory, management evaluates the needit® own inventory balances to its
estimated market value, if less than its cost.etaht in the estimates of market value are managgsmestimates related to our future
manufacturing schedules, customer demand, techicalaand/or market obsolescence, possible altematies, and ultimate realization of
potential excess inventory. Unanticipated chamgeemand for our products may require a write dofvimventory that could materially affe
our operating results.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asset Inrpgent: Goodwill represents the excess of the cost @auisition over the fair value of
the net assets acquired. We account for goodndliatangible assets with indefinite useful livesaccordance with relevant accounting
guidance related to goodwill and other intangildseds, which states that goodwill and intangibsetsswith indefinite useful lives should not
be amortized, but instead tested for impairmeldast annually at the reporting unit level. Ouliqpois to perform this annual impairment test
in the fourth quarter, using a measurement da@ctdber 1st, of each fiscal year or more frequeififtypairment indicators arise. Impairment
indicators include, among other conditions, castvftieficits, a historical or anticipated decline@venue or operating profit, adverse legal or
regulatory developments and a material decreaseeifair value of some or all of the assets.

The guidance provides an option for an entity itst fassess qualitative factors to determine whettgeexistence of events or circumstances
leads to a determination that it is more likelyrtiment (that is, a likelihood of more than 50%) ttiee fair value of a reporting unit is less tha
carrying amount. If, after assessing the totalftgwents or circumstances, an entity determinissriot more likely than not that the fair value
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amothmen performing the two-step impairment test isag@ssary.

If we determine the two-step impairment test isassary, we are required to determine if it is appade to use the operating segment, as
defined under guidance for segment reporting, @sdporting unit, or one level below the operagagment, depending on whether certain
criteria are met. We have identified five reportingts that are required to be reviewed for impainin The five reporting units are aggregated
into two segments: the VIBE and Mechanical repgrtinits which are reported in our Data Storage sggnand the MOCVD, MBE and ALD
reporting units which are reported in our LED & &oegment. In identifying the reporting units mgaraent considered the economic
characteristics of operating segments includingptioelucts and services provided, production prasgsgpes or classes of customer and
product distribution.

We perform this impairment test by first comparthg fair value of our reporting units to their resfive carrying amount. When determining
the estimated fair value of a reporting unit, wiéiag a discounted future cash flow approach siepeorted quoted market prices are not
available for our reporting units. Developing ttstimate of the discounted future cash flow requsigsificant judgment and projections of
future financial performance. The key assumpticsedun developing the discounted future cash flasesthe projection of future revenues anc
expenses, working capital requirements, residuaitir rates and the weighted average cost of capitaleveloping our financial projections,
we consider historical data, current internal eatés and market growth trends. Changes to anyeséthssumptions could materially change
the fair value of the reporting unit. We recontfie aggregate fair value of our reporting unitetio adjusted market capitalization as a
supporting calculation. The adjusted market capétibn is calculated by multiplying the averagarghprice of our common stock for the last
ten trading days prior to the measurement datbéytmber of outstanding common shares and addingteol premium.

If the carrying value of the reporting units excélee fair value we would then compare the impliaid ¥alue of our goodwill to the carrying
amount in order to determine the amount of the impent, if any.

Definite-Lived Intangible and Long-Lived Asset®efinite-lived intangible assets consist of pasbd technology, customer-related intangible
assets, patents, trademarks, covenants not-to-¢engudtware licenses and deferred financing c&techased technology consists of the core
proprietary manufacturing technologies associatitld thre products and offerings obtained throughugition and are initially recorded at fair
value. Customer-related intangible assets, patratiemarks, covenants not¢ompete and software licenses that are obtainad acquisitio
are initially recorded at fair value. Other softedicenses and deferred financing costs are ilyittieatorded at cost. Intangible assets with
definitive useful lives are amortized using thaigiht-line method over their estimated useful lif@speriods ranging from 2 years to 17 years

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Besgireciation is provided over the estimated udafes of the related assets using the
straight-line method for financial statement pugmsAmortization of leasehold improvements is cotaguwsing the straight-line method over
the shorter of the remaining lease term or theregéd useful lives of the improvements.
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Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, angpetgnt and intangible assets with definite usefigd, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying amount of an asset may not be recoweréhpairment indicators include, among
other conditions, cash flow deficits, a historioalnticipated decline in revenue or operatingiprativerse legal or regulatory developments
and a material decrease in the fair value of sonadl of the assets. Assets are grouped at thedbleeel for which there are identifiable cash
flows that are largely independent of the cash $lgenerated by other asset groups. Recoverabilagsets to be held and used is measured |
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asstitede@stimated undiscounted future cash flow expecide generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimatedsfcash flows, an impairment charge is recoghimethe amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value ofgketa

Accounting for AcquisitionsOur growth strategy has included the acquisitiobusfinesses. The purchase price of these acqussitias been
determined after due diligence of the acquiredrmss, market research, strategic planning, anfibteeasting of expected future results and
synergies. Estimated future results and expectedrgies are subject to judgment as we integrate @eqguisition and attempt to leverage
resources.

The accounting for the acquisitions we have madaires that the assets and liabilities acquiredyelsas any contingent consideration that
may be part of the agreement, be recorded atrbsdective fair values at the date of acquisitidns requires management to make significan
estimates in determining the fair values, espgciaith respect to intangible assets, includingreates of expected cash flows, expected cost
savings and the appropriate weighted average €ostpital. As a result of these significant judgrseio be made we often obtain the assist
of independent valuation firms. We complete thessmasments as soon as practical after the cloateg.dAny excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the identifialnd¢ assets acquired is recorded as goodwill

Fair Value MeasurementAccounting guidance requires that we disclose ype df inputs we use to value our assets and ili@sithat are
required to be measured at fair value, based ee ttategories of inputs as defined in such. Levwebdts are quoted, unadjusted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilitieat we have the ability to access at the measuredate. Level 2 inputs are other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observdblethe asset or liability, either directly or imectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets ¢
liabilities. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inplatsthe asset or liability. Unobservable inputs ased to measure fair value to the extent that
observable inputs are not available, thereby aligwor situations in which there is little, if anparket activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date. These requirements apply t@ogrlived assets, goodwill, cost method investnaent intangible assets. We use Level 3
inputs to value all of such assets. We primarilglaphe market approach for recurring fair valueasuwwements.

Warranty Costs: Our warranties are typically valid for one yeamf the date of final acceptance. We estimate tiséschat may be incurred
under the warranty we provide and record a ligbititthe amount of such costs at the time theedla¢venue is recognized. Estimated wari
costs are determined by analyzing specific prodadthistorical configuration statistics and regiomarranty support costs. Our warranty
obligation is affected by product failure rates ten@l usage, and labor costs incurred in corrggbioduct failures during the warranty period.
Unforeseen component failures or exceptional corappperformance can also result in changes to wgrsts. If actual warranty costs
differ substantially from our estimates, revisidtaghe estimated warranty liability would be reguir

Income TaxesWe are required to estimate our income taxes ih e&the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thisgess involves estimating
the actual current tax expense, together with asggsemporary differences resulting from differingatment of items for tax and financial
reporting purposes. These differences result inrded tax assets and liabilities, which are inctbaéthin our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The carrying value of our deferred tax assets jisséeld by a partial valuation allowance to recogrize extent to which the future tax benefits
will be recognized on a more likely than not ba€ar net deferred tax assets consist primarilaefdredit carry forwards and timing
differences between the book and tax treatmentwafritory, acquired intangible assets and othett assgations. Realization of these net
deferred tax assets is dependent upon our albligeherate future taxable income.
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We record valuation allowances in order to redugedeferred tax assets to the amount expected tedhieed. In assessing the adequacy of
recorded valuation allowances, we consider a waagfactors, including the scheduled reversalefedred tax liabilities, future taxable incol
and prudent and feasible tax planning strategiagetthe relevant accounting guidance, factors asaturrent and previous operating losses
are given significantly greater weight than thelauit for future profitability in determining the f#gred tax asset carrying value.

Relevant accounting guidance addresses the detgiarirof how tax benefits claimed or expected telbéned on a tax return should be
recorded in the financial statements. Under sudtiagiece, we must recognize the tax benefit fromrazertain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be sustd on examination by the taxing authorities, Hame the technical merits of the position. The
tax benefits recognized in the financial stateméoi® such uncertain tax positions are measureddas the largest benefit that has a greatel
than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upoltimate resolution.

Equity-Based CompensatioliVe grant equity-based awards, such as stock opaiotisestricted stock or restricted stock unitgeidain key
employees to create a clear and meaningful alightvetween compensation and shareholder returncaadable the employees to develop an
maintain a stock ownership position. While the migjoof our equity awards feature time-based vegtperformance-based equity awards,
which are awarded from time to time to certain K®mpany executives, vest as a function of perfoc@aand may also be subject to the
recipient’s continued employment which also acta agynificant retention incentive.

Equity-based compensation cost is measured atr#m: date, based on the fair value of the awardsanetognized as expense over the
employee requisite service period. In order to mieitee the fair value of stock options on the ddtgrant, we apply the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Inherent in the model are assumpti@tated to risk-free interest rate, dividenddj&xpected stock-price volatility and option
life.

The risk-free rate assumed in valuing the optisrizised on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in efietiie time of grant for the expected term of
the option. The dividend yield assumption is basedur historical and future expectation of dividgrayouts. While the risk-free interest rate
and dividend yield are less subjective assumptitypscally based on objective data derived fromljusources, the expected stock-price
volatility and option life assumptions require ggeof judgment which make them critical accountesgimates.

We use an expected stock-price volatility assunnpttiat is a combination of both historical voldgilcalculated based on the daily closing
prices of our common stock over a period equahoeixpected term of the option and implied volstiland utilization of market data of
actively traded options on our common stock, wlgitd obtained from public data sources. We belibaethe historical volatility of the price
of our common stock over the expected term of {it@a is a strong indicator of the expected futuwkatility and that implied volatility takes
into consideration market expectations of how feitwwlatility will differ from historical volatility Accordingly, we believe a combination of
both historical and implied volatility provides thest estimate of the future volatility of the matrprice of our common stock.

The expected option term, representing the peridisn@ that options granted are expected to betautiing, is estimated using a lattice-based
model incorporating historical post vest exercisd amployee termination behavior.

We estimate forfeitures using our historical expece, which is adjusted over the requisite semp@@d based on the extent to which actual
forfeitures differ or are expected to differ, frauch estimates. Because of the significant amdyotigment used in these calculations, it is
reasonably likely that circumstances may causestienate to change.

With regard to the weighted-average option lifeuagstion, we consider the exercise behavior of gestits and model the pattern of aggregatt
exercises.

We settle the exercise of stock options with neisdyied shares.

With respect to grants of performance based awargsissess the probability that such performariterierwill be met in order to determine
the compensation expense. Consequently, the corii@mgxpense is recognized straight-line oventsting period. If that assessment of the
probability of the performance condition being raleinges, we would recognize the impact of the ohamgstimate in the period of the
change. As with the use of any estimate, and owdgrige significant judgment used to derive thotereges, actual results may vary.
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We have elected to treat awards with only servareditions and with graded vesting as one award s€guently, the total compensation
expense is recognized straight-line over the emtigting period, so long as the compensation egsignized at any date at least equals the
portion of the grant date fair value of the awdralttis vested at that date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhietaOperating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax LossTax Credit Carryforward Exist
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-Rfesentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhBeteOperating Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or Tax Credit Carryforward Exist&SU 2013-11 requires entities to present an wgeized tax benefit, or a portion of an
unrecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a dedetax asset for a net operating loss carryforpamilar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward when settlement in this manner is labée under the tax law. This ASU is effective grestively for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after Decambe 2013. We are evaluating the potential impdi¢his adoption on our consolidated
financial statements.

Presentation of Financial Statemenin April 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07,éBentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205):
Liguidation Basis of Accounting.” The objective A8U 2013-07 is to clarify when an entity should lgpthe liquidation basis of accounting.
The update provides principles for the recognitiod measurement of assets and liabilities and nements for financial statements prepared
using the liquidation basis of accounting. This ASéffective prospectively for fiscal years, anterim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2013. We do not anticipatetttadoption of this standard will have a matargdact on our consolidated financial
statements, absent any indications that liquidasamminent.

Paren’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjusnt:In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013®&rent’s Accounting for
the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Deredognof Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Asseithin a Foreign Entity or of an
Investment in a Foreign Enti. This new standard is intended to resolve divgisipractice regarding the release into net incoifrne
cumulative translation adjustment (“CTA”) upon dergnition of a subsidiary or group of assets withiforeign entity. ASU No. 2013-05 is
effective prospectively for fiscal years (and iimereporting periods within those years) beginrafigr December 15, 2013. We currently
anticipate that its adoption could have an impacbar consolidated financial statements, in thenxewéderecognition of a foreign subsidiary
2014 or subsequently. We cannot estimate the anud@iTA to be released into income from any pasmterecognition.

Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several LigbiArrangements for Which the Total Amount of@#igation Is Fixed at the Reporting
Date: In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting @&ats Update No. 2013-04)bligations Resulting from Joint and Several Likitlyi
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the @tion Is Fixed at the Reporting D" . ASU No. 2013-04 provides guidance for the
recognition, measurement, and disclosure of olitigatresulting from joint and several liability angements for which the total amount of the
obligation within the scope of the guidance is dix& the reporting date, as the sum of the amdenteporting entity agreed to pay on the basi
of its arrangement among its co-obligors and amjtaxhal amount the reporting entity expects to paybehalf of its co-obligors. In addition,
ASU No. 2013-04 requires an entity to disclosertatire and amount of the obligation, as well asmififormation about the obligations. ASU
No. 201:-04 is effective for interim and annual periodsibeig after December 15, 2013 and is to be appk#bspectively. We do not
anticipate that the adoption of this standard ale a material impact on our consolidated findrete&tements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk
Market Risk
The principal market risks (such as the risk oflagsing from adverse changes in market ratepao€s) to which we are exposed are:

e rates on investment portfolios, and
e exchange rates, generating translation and traosagdins and losses.
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Interest Rate

We centrally manage our investment portfolios co@sng investment opportunities and risk, tax coueaces and overall financing strategies
Our investment portfolio includes fixed-income sdtges with a fair value of approximately $281.5llloh as of December 31, 2013. These
securities are subject to interest rate risk arlddecline in value if interest rates increase. &hen our investment portfolio as of Decembel
2013, an immediate 100 basis point increase iméateates may result in a decrease in the fairevaf the portfolio of approximately $2.0
million. While an increase in interest rates maguee the fair value of the investment portfolio, wi# not realize the losses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations unless theidual fixed-income securities are sold priorégovery or the loss is determined to be
other-than-temporary.

Foreign Operation:

Operating in international markets involves expegormovements in currency exchange rates, whigalatile at times. The economic
impact of currency exchange rate movements is cexriptcause such changes are often linked to viiidhireal growth, inflation, interest
rates, governmental actions and other factors.&bkanges, if material, could cause us to adjustimancing and operating strategies.
Consequently, isolating the effect of changes imancy does not incorporate these other importaoi@mic factors.

Our net sales to foreign customers representedzriopately 83%, 84% and 90% of our total net sate®013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
expect that net sales to foreign customers wiltiooe to represent a large percentage of our tatasales. Our net sales denominated in fo
currencies represented approximately 4%, 4% andf3#tal net sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respsyti

We are exposed to financial market risks, includihgnges in foreign currency exchange rates. Tigaé these risks, we use derivative
financial instruments. We do not use derivativaficial instruments for speculative or trading psgm We enter into monthly forward
contracts to reduce the effect of fluctuating fgnecurrencies on short-term foreign currency-demaeid intercompany transactions and other
known currency exposures. The foreign currencytiaatthe largest impact on translating our intéonat operating profit (loss) is the Japar
Yen. We believe that based upon our hedging progaah®% change in foreign exchange rates would hanmmaterial impact on the
consolidated results of operations. We believetthiatquantitative measure has inherent limitatioesause it does not take into account any
governmental actions or changes in either cust@uerhasing patterns or our financing and operatrategies.
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As of December 31, 201

Fair Maturity Notional
(in thousands) Component of Value Dates Amount
Not Designated as Hedges under ASC
Foreign currency exchange forwai Prepaid and other current ass 1 January 201. 4,70(
Foreign currency collar Prepaid and other current ass 90€ October 201: 34,06¢
Total Derivative Instruments $ 907 $ 38,76¢
As of December 31, 201
Fair Maturity Notional
(in thousands) Component of Value Dates Amount
Not Designated as Hedges under ASC
Foreign currency exchange forwards Prepaid and other current ass 24¢ January 201. 9,59(
Total Derivative Instruments $ 24¢€ $ 9,59
Amount of realized net gain (loss
and changes in the fair value o
Location of realized net gain derivatives for the year endec
(loss) and changes in the fai December 31
(in thousands) value of derivatives 2013 2012 2011
Foreign currency exchange forwal Other, ne $ 248 $ 338 % 558
Foreign currency colle Other, ne $ 90€ $ — % —

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are listederindex to Consolidated Financial StatementsFandncial Statement Schedule filed as

part of this Form 10-K.
Item 9.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, under the supervision and witlpdngcipation of our Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer, carried out an

evaluation of the effectiveness of the design gretation of our disclosure controls and procedasesf December 31, 2013 (the

“Evaluation”). Based upon the Evaluation, our Chigkcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer ctuded that our disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of then®exs Exchange Act of 1934) are effective.
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate “internal control over finahceporting” @s defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)). Management evatutite effectiveness of our internal control oveaficial reporting using the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (1992 framework). Mamagyet, under the supervision and
with the participation of our Chief Executive O#ficand Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effecess of our internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2013, and concludatitiis effective.

We acquired Synos during the quarter ended DeceB&ihe2013, which is included in our 2013 consokdiatinancial statements and
constituted 14.6 percent and 17.0 percent of totdlnet assets, respectively, as of December 3B, &3d 0.1 percent and 15.3 percent of our
consolidated net sales and net loss, respectif@lyhe year ended December 31, 2013. We have @gdl&ynos from our annual assessment
and conclusion on the effectiveness of our intecoalrol over financial reporting.

Our independent registered public accounting fiemmst & Young LLP, has audited the effectivenesswfinternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, as stated inygort, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We monitor and evaluate, on an ongoing basis, matasure controls and procedures in order to imgtbeir overall effectiveness. In the
course of these evaluations, we modify and refumeiternal processes as conditions warrant. 4gired by Rule 13a-15(d), our managemen
including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chi@fiancial Officer, also conducted an evaluatioowf internal control over financial
reporting to determine whether any changes occutueitig the quarter ended December 31, 2013 thed imaterially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intekeantrol over financial reporting. We implementednaterial change in internal control over
financial reporting during the quarter ended Decend@i, 2013. The change related to the remediafiamernal controls of revenue
recognition and related costs. Specifically, we ptated the implementation of redesigned processagsnzreased the level of review of work
performed by our personnel and third-party profassis in the identification and calculation of reme and cost of revenue. We have
completed our testing of the additional controlgasses outlined above and conclude that our prelyioeported material weakness has been
satisfactorily remediated as of December 31, 2013.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Veeco Instruments Inc.

We have audited Veeco Instruments Inc.’s (the “Camnyp) internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2013, based on criteria
established in Internal Contrb#tegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@92
framework) (the COSO criteria). The Company’s mamagnt is responsible for maintaining effective fing control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting included hetaccompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtagasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etinagutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseoCtimpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®Qompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasanabbsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could lzan®terial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’'s Repointernal Control Over Financial Reporting, ragement’s assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal condrar financial reporting did not include the imef controls of Synos Technology, Inc. which
is included in the 2013 consolidated financialetatnts of Veeco Instruments Inc. and constitutel fidrcent and 17.0 percent of total and
assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2013 AngeBcent and 15.3 percent of net sales and s&tiespectively, for the year then ended.
Our audit of internal control over financial refong of the Company also did not include an evatratf the internal control over financial
reporting of Synos Technology, Inc.

In our opinion, Veeco Instruments Inc. maintairiecall material respects, effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Veeco Instruments Inc. as ofrbleee31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consotiddééements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flowsach of the three years in the period endezkBer 31, 2013 and our report dated
February 28, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitfiereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

New York, New York
February 28, 201
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Portions of the information required by Part IlIFdrm 10-K are incorporated by reference from VéeBooxy Statement to be filed with the

SEC in connection with Veeco’s 2014 Annual Meetifigstockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corprate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-Krisorporated by reference to our Proxy Statemedeuthe headings “Corporate

Governance,” “Executive Officers” and “Section 16Reporting Compliance.”

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Offi¢dre “Code”) which applies to our chief executdféicer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer, and persons perfogréimilar functions. A copy of the Code can be fdam our website vww.veeco.com We
intend to disclose on our website the nature offatyre amendments to and waivers of the Codeaally to the chief executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accountingficer or persons performing similar functions. Wave also adopted a Code of Business
Conduct which applies to all of our employees,udahg those listed above, as well as to our dirscté copy of the Code of Business Conc
can be found on our websitevjvw.veeco.com The website address above is intended to beaative, textual reference only. None of the

material on this website is part of this report.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-Krisorporated by reference to our Proxy Statemadeuthe heading “Executive

Compensation.”

Item 12.

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-Krisorporated by reference to our Proxy Statemadeuthe heading “Security Ownership

of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” anguily Compensation Plan Information.”

Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mé&rs

The following table gives information about our aom stock that may be issued under our equity cosgi®n plans as of December 31,
2013. See our footnotequity Compensation Plans and Equiitythe notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesniecluded herein for

information regarding the material features of ¢hpkans.

Number of Number of securities
securities to be Weighted remaining available
issued upon average exercist for future issuance
exercise of price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, options, (excluding securities
warrants, and warrants, and reflected in column
rights rights (1) (@)
@ (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérslid 2,870,30. $ 28.17 2,775,16
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechaotglers (2) 210,80( $ 37.7(C —
Total 3,081,10: 2,775,16

(1) The calculation of the weighted average exercise ipe includes only stock options and does not incledhe outstanding

restricted stock units which do not have an exercisprice.

(2) In connection with our acquisition of Synos on Octber 1, 2013, equity awards were granted to Synosivployees, pursuant to
our 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan, in ordeto create a retention incentive for those employeeShares issued in

connection with this
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equity award may be granted under the Veeco Instrurants, Inc. 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. There are revards available for
future grant under the Inducement Plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transaains and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-Krisorporated by reference to our Proxy Statemadeuthe headingdridependence of tt
Board of Directors” and “Certain Relationships &wlated Transactions.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-Krisorporated by reference to our Proxy Statemedeuthe heading “Proposal 3—
Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young Plas Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements and Sedule

(&) The Registrant’s financial statements together wiieparate table of contents are annexed hefe¢difancial statement schedule is

listed in the separate table of contents annexestde

(b) Exhibits

Unless otherwise indicated, each of the followirbikits has been previously filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission by the
Company under File No. 0-16244.

Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated September(8,2  Filed herewith
by and among Veeco, Veeco Wyoming Inc., Synos
Technology, Inc. certain stockholders of Synos
Technology, Inc., and Shareholder Representative®s
LLC
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioieecc  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
dated December 1, 1994, as amended June 2, 1997 and 1997, Exhibit 3.1
July 25, 1997
3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veetaied Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduamn31,
May 29, 1998 2000, Exhibit 3.z
3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veataied Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
May 5, 2000 2000, Exhibit 3.1
3.4 Certificate of Designation, Preferences, and Rights Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock oé&te March 31, 2001, Exhibit 3.
35 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veetaied Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 16, 200z September 30, 2009, Exhibit &
3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veataied Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmeamn31,
May 14, 201( 2010, Exhibit 3.¢
3.7 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Veeco, éfiect  Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 27, 2008,
October 23, 200 Exhibit 3.1
3.8 Amendment No. 1 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 26, 2010, iih3.1
Bylaws of Veeco effective May 20, 20.
3.9 Amendment No. 2 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 24, 2011,
Bylaws of Veeco effective October 20, 2C Exhibit 3.1
10.1 Loan Agreement dated as of December 15, 1999 batwee Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Applied Epi, Inc. and Jackson National Life Insuran September 30, 2001, Exhibit 10.2
Company.
10.2 Amendment to Loan Documents effective as of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
September 17, 2001 between Applied Epi, Inc. ackstan 2002, Exhibit 10.2
National Life Insurance Company (executed in JUBE22.
10.3 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 1999ddsye  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Applied Epi, Inc. to Jackson National Life Insuranc September 30, 2001, Exhibit 10.3
Company.
10.4* Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into batw Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 23,200

Veeco and each of its directors and executive @i
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Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents

10.5* Veeco Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentivg Pla Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
effective July 20, 200¢ 2006, Exhibit 10.¢

10.6* Amendment No. 1 effective April 18, 2007 (ratifibg the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Board August 7, 2007) to Veeco Amended and Restated 2007, Exhibit 10.1
2000 Stock Incentive Pla

10.7* Amendment No. 2 dated January 22, 2009 to Veeco Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduan31,
Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive | 2008, Exhibit 10.4:

10.8* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant tokbeco  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective November 2 September 30, 2005, Exhibit 1(

10.9* Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Award and redaierms  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
and conditions pursuant to the Veeco 2000 Stocéritiee September 30, 2006, Exhibit 10.3
Plan, effective June 20(

10.10* Veeco Amended and Restated 2010 Stock Incentivg Pla Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed Novemb&043,
effective May 14, 201 Appendix A

10.11* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agnent  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlgee 30,
(2012 rev.) 2012, Exhibit 10.:

10.12* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (2012 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.:

10.13* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stdok Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (2012 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.¢

10.14* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (No-Employee Director) (2011 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.t

10.15* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (Performance Based) (2012 r 2012, Exhibit 10.¢

10.16* Veeco 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan, effecti Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 26, 201 September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.17* Form of 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan Stopkor Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Agreemen September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.18* Form of 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan Retstli Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Stock Unit Agreemer September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.19* Veeco Performance-Based Restricted Stock 2010 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,

2010, Exhibit 10.:

10.20* Senior Executive Change in Control Policy effectageof Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 12, 20( September 30, 2008, Exhibit 1(

10.21* Amendment No. 1 dated December 23, 2008 (effective ~ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
September 12, 2008) to Veeco Senior Executive Ghang 2008, Exhibit 10.37
Control Policy

10.22* Veeco Amended and Restated Senior Executive Change Filed herewith
Control Policy, effective as of January 1, 2(

10.23* Amendment effective December 31, 2008 to Employment Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
Agreement between Veeco and John R. P 2008, Exhibit 10.3¢

10.24* Second Amendment effective June 11, 2010 to Empboym Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,

Agreement between Veeco and John R. P
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Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents
10.25* Third Amendment effective April 27, 2012 to Emplognt Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Agreement between Veeco and John R. P March 31, 2012, Exhibit 10.
10.26* Employment Agreement dated December 17, 2009 tafee Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
January 18, 2010) between Veeco and David D. ( March 31, 2010, Exhibit 10.
10.27* Letter Agreement dated January 21, 2004 betweend/ee  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
and John P. Kierna 2003, Exhibit 10.3¢
10.28* Amendment effective June 9, 2006 to Letter Agreegmen  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
between Veeco and John P. Kieri 2006, Exhibit 10.:
10.29* Amendment effective December 31, 2008 to Letter Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduan31,
Agreement between Veeco and John P. Kie 2008, Exhibit 10.4(
10.30* Letter agreement effective as of June 19, 2009 doetw Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Veeco and John P. Kiern; 2009, Exhibit 10.:
10.31* Letter agreement effective as of January 4, 2010den Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Veeco and Peter Collingwor March 31, 2012, Exhibit 10.
10.32* Letter Agreement dated January 30, 2012 betweend/ee  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
and Dr. William J. Miller 2011, Exhibit 10.3(
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registra Filed herewitr
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLF Filed herewitr
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t Filed herewith

Rule 13a—14(a) or Rule 15d—14(a) of the Securaies
Exchange Act of 193¢

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamot t Filed herewith
Rule 13a—14(a) or Rule 15d—14(a) of the Securdaies
Exchange Act of 193¢

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 Filed herewith
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@ti6rof
the Sarban« Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot18 Filed herewith
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof
the Sarbane Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS XBRL Instance *x
101.XSD XBRL Scheme *x
101.PRE XBRL Presentatiol *
101.CAL XBRL Calculation *
101.DEF XBRL Definition *x
101.LAB XBRL Label *x

* Indicates a management contract or compensaiaryor arrangement, as required by Item 15(apf{8orm 10-K.
** Eiled herewith electronically

55




Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caus
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidgeied, thereunto duly authorized, on February2Pa4.

Veeco Instruments Ini

By: /S/ JOHN R. PEELEF
John R. Peele
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, this report has sigeed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theataes indicated, on February 28, 2014.

Signature

Title

Is/

JOHN R. PEELE

Is/

John R. Peele

DAVID D. GLASS

/sl

David D. Glass

JOHN P. KIERNAN

Is/

John P. Kiernau

EDWARD H. BRAUN

Is/

Edward H. Brautr

RICHARD A. L AMORE

Is/

Richard A. [’ Amore

GORDON HUNTEF

/sl

Gordon Hunte

KEITH D. JACKSON

Is/

Keith D. Jacksol

ROGER D. MCDANIEL

Is/

Roger D. McDanie

PETER J. SIMONI

Peter J. Simon
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer)

Senior Vice President, Finance, Chief Accountinfjc@f, Corporate
Controller and Treasuri

(principal accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Unless otherwise indicated, each of the followirgikits has been previously filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission by the
Company under File No. 0-16244.

Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated September(8,2  Filed herewith
by and among Veeco, Veeco Wyoming Inc., Synos
Technology, Inc. certain stockholders of Synos
Technology, Inc., and Shareholder Representative s
LLC
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioieecc  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
dated December 1, 1994, as amended June 2, 1997 and 1997, Exhibit 3.1
July 25, 1997
3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veetaied Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduamn31,
May 29, 1998 2000, Exhibit 3.2
3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veataied Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
May 5, 2000 2000, Exhibit 3.1
3.4 Certificate of Designation, Preferences, and Rights Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock oéste March 31, 2001, Exhibit 3.
35 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veataied Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 16, 200z September 30, 2009, Exhibit &
3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Veataied Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmeamn31,
May 14, 201( 2010, Exhibit 3.¢
3.7 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Veeco, éfiect  Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 27, 2008,
October 23, 200 Exhibit 3.1
3.8 Amendment No. 1 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 26, 2010, iih3.1
Bylaws of Veeco effective May 20, 20.
3.9 Amendment No. 2 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 24, 2011,
Bylaws of Veeco effective October 20, 2C Exhibit 3.1
10.1 Loan Agreement dated as of December 15, 1999 batwee Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Applied Epi, Inc. and Jackson National Life Insuran September 30, 2001, Exhibit 10.2
Company.
10.2 Amendment to Loan Documents effective as of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
September 17, 2001 between Applied Epi, Inc. agllstm 2002, Exhibit 10.2
National Life Insurance Company (executed in JUBE22.
10.3 Promissory Note dated as of December 15, 1999ddsye  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Applied Epi, Inc. to Jackson National Life Insuranc September 30, 2001, Exhibit 10.3
Company.
10.4* Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into batw Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 23, 200
Veeco and each of its directors and executive exf§is Exhibit 10.1
10.5* Veeco Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Pla Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
effective July 20, 200¢ 2006, Exhibit 10.¢
10.6* Amendment No. 1 effective April 18, 2007 (ratifibg the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Board August 7, 2007) to Veeco Amended and Restated 2007, Exhibit 10.1
2000 Stock Incentive Pla
10.7* Amendment No. 2 dated January 22, 2009 to Veeco Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduamn31,

Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive |
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Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents

10.8* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant tokbeco  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective November 2 September 30, 2005, Exhibit 1(

10.9* Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Award and redaierms  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
and conditions pursuant to the Veeco 2000 Stocéritiee September 30, 2006, Exhibit 10.3
Plan, effective June 20(

10.10* Veeco Amended and Restated 2010 Stock Incentive Pla Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed Novemb&043,
effective May 14, 201 Appendix A

10.11* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agnent  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
(2012 rev.) 2012, Exhibit 10.:

10.12* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (2012 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.:

10.13* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stdok Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (2012 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.¢

10.14* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (No-Employee Director) (2011 rev 2012, Exhibit 10.t

10.15* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement (Performance Based) (2012 r 2012, Exhibit 10.¢

10.16* Veeco 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan, effecti Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 26, 201 September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.17* Form of 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan Stopkor Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Agreemen September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.18* Form of 2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan Retetli Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Stock Unit Agreemer September 30, 2012, Exhibit 1(

10.19* Veeco Performance-Based Restricted Stock 2010 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,

2010, Exhibit 10.:

10.20* Senior Executive Change in Control Policy effectageof Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 12, 20( September 30, 2008, Exhibit 1(

10.21* Amendment No. 1 dated December 23, 2008 (effective  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
September 12, 2008) to Veeco Senior Executive Ghang 2008, Exhibit 10.37
Control Policy

10.22* Veeco Amended and Restated Senior Executive Change Filed herewith
Control Policy, effective as of January 1, 2(

10.23* Amendment effective December 31, 2008 to Employment Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
Agreement between Veeco and John R. P 2008, Exhibit 10.3¢

10.24* Second Amendment effective June 11, 2010 to Empéoym Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Agreement between Veeco and John R. P 2010, Exhibit 10.:

10.25* Third Amendment effective April 27, 2012 to Emplognt Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Agreement between Veeco and John R. P March 31, 2012, Exhibit 10.

10.26* Employment Agreement dated December 17, 2009 tafee Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
January 18, 2010) between Veeco and David D. ( March 31, 2010, Exhibit 10.

10.27* Letter Agreement dated January 21, 2004 betweend/ee  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,

and John P. Kiernau
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Incorporated by Reference to the Following

Number Exhibit Documents
10.28* Amendment effective June 9, 2006 to Letter Agreegmen  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
between Veeco and John P. Kieri 2006, Exhibit 10.:
10.29* Amendment effective December 31, 2008 to Letter Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmean31,
Agreement between Veeco and John P. Kie 2008, Exhibit 10.4(
10.30* Letter agreement effective as of June 19, 2009 doetw Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
Veeco and John P. Kiern 2009, Exhibit 10.:
10.31* Letter agreement effective as of January 4, 2010den Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
Veeco and Peter Collingwor March 31, 2012, Exhibit 10.
10.32* Letter Agreement dated January 30, 2012 betweend/ee  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddpem31,
and Dr. William J. Miller 2011, Exhibit 10.3(
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registra Filed herewitr
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLF Filed herewitr
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t Filed herewith

Rule 13a—14(a) or Rule 15d—14(a) of the Securaies
Exchange Act of 193¢

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaat t Filed herewith
Rule 13a—14(a) or Rule 15d—14(a) of the Securdaies
Exchange Act of 193¢

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 Filed herewith
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@@i6rof
the Sarban« Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaiot18 Filed herewith
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof
the Sarbane Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS XBRL Instance *
101.XSD XBRL Scheme *x
101.PRE XBRL Presentatiol *x
101.CAL XBRL Calculation *
101.DEF XBRL Definition *x
101.LAB XBRL Label *x

* Indicates a management contract or compensaiaryor arrangement, as required by Item 15(apf{8orm 10-K.
** Filed herewith electronically
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Veeco Instruments Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Veeco Instruments Inc. (the “Compaag"df December 31, 2013 and 2012
and the related consolidated statements of opesmtammprehensive income (loss) , equity, and ftasls for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2013. Our audits aldodad the financial statement schedule listed énltidex at Item 15(a). These financial
statements and the schedule are the responsitiilihe Company’s management. Our responsibilitg isxpress an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstalts of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of Veeco
Instruments Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012tledonsolidated results of its operations andath flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principidso, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when consideredatioa to the basic financial statements takenabale, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Veeco Instruments
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2013, based on criteria estatdighénternal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (1992 framework) andreport dated February 28, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

New York, New York
February 28, 201
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31

2013 2012
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 210,79¢ $ 384,55
Shor-term investment 281,53t 192,23
Restricted cas 2,73¢ 2,017
Accounts receivable, n 23,82! 63,16¢
Inventories 59,72¢ 59,80}
Deferred cost of goods sc 724 1,79i
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 22,57¢ 30,35¢
Deferred income taxes 11,71¢ 10,54
Total current assets 613,64 744,48:
Property, plant and equipment at cost, 89,13¢ 98,30:
Goodwill 91,34¢ 55,82¢
Intangible assets, n 114,71¢ 20,97
Other asset 38,72¢ 16,78:
Deferred income taxes 397 93t
Total assets $ 947,96¢ $ 937,30
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 35,758 $ 26,08
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 51,08« 41,40:
Customer deposits and deferred reve 34,75« 42,09¢
Income taxes payab 6,14¢ 2,29:
Deferred income taxe 15¢ 14C
Current portion of long-term debt 29C 26¢
Total current liabilities 128,19: 112,28
Deferred income taxe 28,05: 7,131
Long-term debt 1,84 2,13¢
Other liabilities 9,64¢ 4,53(
Total liabilities 167,73¢ 126,09:
Equity:
Preferred stock, 500,000 shares authorized; n@shssued and outstandi — —
Common stock; $.01 par value; authorized 120,0@dres; 39,666,195 shares issued and
outstanding in 2013; and 39,328,503 shares issug@atstanding in 201 397 39:
Additional paic-in capital 721,35: 708,72.
Retained earning 53,86( 96,12:
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,621 5,97:
Total equity 780,23( 811,21.
Total liabilities and equity $ 947,96¢ $ 937,30

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati
Research and developme
Amortization
Restructuring
Asset impairment
Total operating expenses
Other, net
Changes in contingent consideration
Operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest expense
Interest income (expense), net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Income (loss) from discontinued operations befoo®ine taxe
Income tax provision (benefit)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net income (loss

Net Income (loss) per common she

Basic:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operations
Income (loss)

Diluted :
Continuing operation
Discontinued operations
Income (loss)

Weighted average shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

For the year ended

December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 331,74 $ 516,02( $ 979,13!
228,60 300,88’ 504,80:
103,14 215,13 474,33
85,48t 73,11 95,13
81,42 95,15: 96,59¢
5,52 4,90¢ 4,73¢
1,48¢ 3,81: 1,28¢
1,22( 1,33¢ 584
175,14 178,31¢ 198,33(
(1,019 (399 (261)
82¢ — —
(71,81) 37,21 276,25
1,20( 2,47¢ 3,77¢
(59¢) (1,507) (4,600)
60z 974 (824
— — (3,349)
(71,210 38,18¢ 272,08
(28,94) 11,65’ 81,58
(42,26Y) 26,52 190,50:
— 6,26¢ (91,889
— 1,87( (29,37
— 4,39¢ (62,51Y)
$ (42,267 $ 30,92¢ $ 127,98
$ (1.09 $ 0.6 $ 4.8(
— 0.11 (1.57)
$ (109 $ 0.8C $ 3.2¢
$ (1.09 $ 0.6 $ 4.65
— 0.11 (1.52)
$ (109 $ 0.7¢ $ 3.11
38,80 38,47 39,65¢
38,80 39,05 41,15¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (kg)
(Dollars in thousands)

For the year ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net income (loss $ (42,269 $ 30,92¢ $ 127,98
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Available-for-sale securitie
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 34 (118 39z
Benefit (provision) for income taxe 11 50 (79
Less: Reclassification adjustments for gains inetlich net income (loss) (61) (24) (2717)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-saleuséies (16) (92 43
Minimum pension liability
Minimum pension liability 12t (21¢€) (73
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (86) 79 30
Net minimum pension liability 39 (137 (43
Foreign currency translatic
Foreign currency translatic (1,327 (2,077 1,22¢
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (53 683 (434)
Net foreign currency translation (1,37%) (38¢) 794
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (1,359 (617 794
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (43,61°) $ 30,31 $ 128,78:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

F-5




Table of Contents

Balance as of January 1, 201

Exercise of stock optior

Equity-based compensation
expens-continuing operation

Equity-based compensation
expens-discontinued operatior

Issuance, vesting and cancellatio
of restricted stoc

Treasury stocl

Debt Conversiot

Excess tax benefits from stock
option exercise

Other comprehensive income (los
net of tax

Net income (loss

Balance as of December 31, 20:

Exercise of stock optior

Equity-based compensation
expens-continuing operation

Issuance, vesting and cancellation
of restricted stoc

Treasury stocl

Prior period debt conversion
adjustmen

Excess tax benefits from stock
option exercise

Other comprehensive income (los
net of tax

Net income (loss

Balance as of December 31, 20:

Exercise of stock optior

Equity-based compensation
expens-continuing operation

Issuance, vesting and cancellatio
of restricted stoc

Other comprehensive income (los
net of tax

Net income (loss

Balance as of December 31, 2013

Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Stock Treasury Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Total

Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings Income Equity
40,337,95 $ 40 $ (38,099 $ 656,96¢ $ 137,43t $ 579¢ $ 762,51
688,10! 7 — 10,70; — — 10,71«
— — — 12,80 — — 12,80
— — — 68¢ — — 68¢
131,19¢ 1 — (3,175 — — (3,179
(4,160,22) —  (162,07) — — — (162,07)
1,771,41: 18 — (50) — — (32)
_ — — 10,40¢ — — 10,40¢
— — — — (10€) 794 68¢
— — — — 127,98 — 127,98
38,768,43 43t (200,179 688,35: 265,31 6,59( 760,52(
351,43t 4 — 5,40¢ — — 5,40¢
_ — — 14,26¢ — — 14,26¢
208,63 7 — (1,737) — — (1,725
— (53 200,17 — (200,12) — —
— — — 31C — — 31C
— — — 2,11¢ — — 2,11¢
— — — — — (617) (617)
— — — — 30,92¢ — 30,92¢
39,328,50 39z — 708,72: 96,12 5,97 811,21.
149,17( 2 — 2,197 — — 2,19¢
— — — 13,13( — — 13,13(
188,52: 2 — (2,69¢) — — (2,69¢6)
— — — — — (1,357 (1,357)
— — — — (42,26%) — (42,26%)
39,666,19 $ 397 $ — $ 72135 $ 53,86( $ 4,621 $ 780,23

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by (used in)

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic

Amortization of debt discour

Non-cash equit-based compensatic
Non-cash asset impairme

Loss on extinguishment of de

Deferred income taxe

Gain on disposal of segme

Gain on sale of lab too

Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc
Change in contingent considerati

Other, ne

Non-cash items from discontinued operatis
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a
Income taxes receivah

Accounts payabl

Accrued expenses, customer deposits, deferred wevaamd other current

liabilities

Income taxes payab

Transfers to restricted ca

Other, ne

Discontinued operations

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital expenditure

Payments for net assets of businesses acc

Payment for purchase of cost method investr

Transfers from (to) restricted cash related toafiioued operation

Proceeds from shterm investment

Payments for purchases of sl-term investment

Proceeds from the sale of lab to

Other

Proceeds from sale of assets from discontinued segm
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from stock option exerci:

Contingent consideration payme|

Restricted stock tax withholding

Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc

Purchases of treasury stc

Repayments of lor-term debt

Other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvatants
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Non-cash investing and financing activitie:
Accrual of fair value of contingent considerat
Merger consideration adjustme

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(42,269 $ 30,92¢ $ 127,98°
18,42¢ 16,19: 12,89:

— — 1,26(
13,13( 14,26¢ 12,807

1,22( 1,33t 584

_ — 3,34¢
(12,269) (340) 11,27¢

— (4,117) —

(767) — —

— (2,119 (10,406)

82¢ — —

1,971 262 (31)

— (706) 44,38:

38,84« 31,21¢ 56,84:
2,75¢ 53,93 (18,627

842 8,52 (13,08))

(12,602 654 (9,076)
7,54¢ (12,106 8,09¢
(17,329 (34,22 (72,729

(130) 1,19¢ (42,202

(721) (1,440) —

1,24¢ 10,43: 2,11¢

— (1,937 —

727 111,96: 115,44;
(9,174 (24,999 (60,369
(71,48%) — (28,279
(2,39)) (10,342)

— — 75,54(
499,64 244,92 707,64
(589,09 (165,08() (588,45))

4,44 — —

11 49 195

— 3,75¢ —
(168,05() 48,32 106,29

2,19¢ 5,40¢ 10,71+
(5,000 — —
(2,696) (1,725 (3,179

— 2,11¢ 10,40¢

— — (162,07)

(26¢) (24¢) (105,80:)

— — (2
(5,766) 5,55¢ (249,93}

(662) 79€ 98¢
(173,75} 166,63 (27,210
384,55 217,92 245,13
210,79¢ $ 38455 $ 217,92.

357 $ 20 $ 1,39:

8,001 11,56¢ 89,74¢
3353¢ $ — % —
2,69t — —



The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

1. Description of Business and Significant Accouimg Policies
Busines:

Veeco Instruments Inc. (together with its consdédasubsidiaries, “Veeco,” the “Company” or “wefeates process equipment solutions that
enable technologies for a cleaner and more produutorid. We design, manufacture and market equipmemarily sold to make light
emitting diodes (“LED”"s) and hard-disk drives, aslvas for emerging applications such as concemtgtotovoltaics, power semiconductors,
wireless components, micro-electromechanical syst¢MEMS”), and other next-generation devices.

OurLED & Solar segmendesigns and manufactures metal organic chemicandgposition (“MOCVD”) and molecular beam epitaxy
(“MBE") systems as well as newly acquired atomigeladeposition (“ALD”) technology. Our MOCVD and MBsystems are sold to
manufacturers of LEDs, wireless devices, power senductors, and concentrator photovoltaics, as agefbr R&D applications. Our ALD
technology is used by the manufacturers of OLERIdiss and has further applications in the semicotadand solar markets. In 2011 we
discontinued the sale of our products related tppeo, Indium, Gallium, Selenide (“CIGS”) solar ®sis technology.

OurData Storage segmedesigns and manufactures systems used to creatflithimagnetic heads (“TFMH"s) that read and wdgga on

hard disk drives. These include ion beam etchpmam deposition, diamond-like carbon, physical val@position, chemical vapor deposition,
and slicing, dicing and lapping systems. While systems are primarily sold to hard drive customesy also have applications in optical
coatings, micro-electro mechanical systems (“MEM&1) magnetic sensors, and extreme ultraviolet {"BUthography.

Basis of Presentatio

We report interim quarters, other than fourth ggrartvhich always end on December 31, on a 13-wasis lending on the last Sunday within
such period. The interim quarter ends are detemin@ié¢he beginning of each year based on thedék quarters. The 2013 interim quarter ¢
were March 31, June 30 and September 29. The 2042m quarter ends were April 1, July 1 and Sepen30. The 2011 interim quarter el
were April 3, July 3 and October 2. For ease aénerice, we report these interim quarter ends ashviir, June 30 and September 30 in our
interim consolidated financial statements. We haeotassified certain amounts previously reportedunfinancial statements to conform to the
current presentation, including amounts relatedigoontinued operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principlethia United States (“U.S. GAAPTgquires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamtsl the reported amounts of revenues and expduoseg the reporting period. Significant
estimates made by management include: the bestagstpf selling price for our products and serviedlswance for doubtful accounts;
inventory obsolescence; recoverability and uséfekl of property, plant and equipment and iderilidntangible assets; investment
valuations; fair value of derivatives; recoverdpibf goodwill and long lived assets; recoverabibf deferred tax assets; liabilities for product
warranty; accounting for acquisitions; accrualsdontingencies; equity-based payments, includinfgfinres and performance based vesting;
and liabilities for tax uncertainties. Actual rasutould differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidatio

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Stateniraolsde the accounts of Veeco and its subsidialisrcompany items and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognitic
We recognize revenue when all of the followingemia have been met: persuasive evidence of angamaent exists with a customer; delivery
of the specified products has occurred or senhiea® been rendered; prices are contractually fxetbterminable; and collectability is

reasonably assured. Revenue is recorded inclutipgiag and handling costs and
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contiraal)
December 31, 2013

excluding applicable taxes related to sales. Ai@amt portion of our revenue is derived from aatual arrangements with customers that
have multiple elements, such as systems, upgradegonents, spare parts, maintenance and seraos. ffor sales arrangements that contai
multiple elements, we split the arrangement infzasate units of accounting if the individually delied elements have value to the custom

a standalone basis. We also evaluate whether neultgmsactions with the same customer or relagety ghould be considered part of a
multiple element arrangement, whereby we assesm@uther factors, whether the contracts or agra&srage negotiated or executed within a
short time frame of each other or if there aredatbrs that the contracts are negotiated in corlgimp of each other. When we have separate
units of accounting, we allocate revenue to eaemeht based on the following selling price hiergreiendor-specific objective evidence
(“VSOE") if available; third party evidence (“TPEMM VSOE is not available; or our best estimateelfing price (“BESP”)f neither VSOE nc
TPE is available. We utilize BESP for the majoofithe elements in our arrangements. The accayigtiidance for selling price hierarchy did
not include BESP for arrangements entered inta poidanuary 1, 2011, and as such we recognizeshuevfor those arrangements as desc
below.

We consider many facts when evaluating each obal@s arrangements to determine the timing of teveecognition, including the
contractual obligations, the customer’s creditwimielss and the nature of the customer’s post-dgli@eceptance provisions. Our system sale:
arrangements, including certain upgrades, genaralyde field acceptance provisions that may idelfunctional or mechanical test
procedures. For the majority of our arrangementsisiomer source inspection of the system is padrin our facility or test data is sent to
the customer documenting that the system is funictgpto the agreed upon specifications prior tavéey. Historically, such source inspection
or test data replicates the field acceptance piangsthat will be performed at the customer’s piter to final acceptance of the system. As
such, we objectively demonstrate that the critepiecified in the contractual acceptance provisaasachieved prior to delivery and, therefore
we recoghize revenue upon delivery since there isubstantive contingency remaining related taatteeptance provisions at that date, subje
to the retention amount constraint described belbar. new products, new applications of existingducts or for products with substantive
customer acceptance provisions where we cannottdlgty demonstrate that the criteria specifiedhia contractual acceptance provisions |
been achieved prior to delivery, revenue and tse@ated costs are deferred and fully recognizexh tipe receipt of final customer accepta
assuming all other revenue recognition criteriachiaeen met.

Our system sales arrangements, including certagnagies, generally do not contain provisions fontrigf return or forfeiture, refund, or other
purchase price concessions. In the rare instanbesavguch provisions are included, we defer akkmere until such rights expire. In many ce
our products are sold with a billing retention,itglly 10% of the sales price (the “retention am®ymwhich is typically payable by the
customer when field acceptance provisions are oeteql The amount of revenue recognized upon dglivea system or upgrade, if any, is
limited to the lower of i) the amount billed thatriot contingent upon acceptance provisions ¢hé)value of the arrangement consideration
allocated to the delivered elements, if such safert of a multiple-element arrangement.

For transactions entered into prior to January01,12under the accounting rules for multiple-eletregrangements in place at that time, we
deferred the greater of the retention amount oretadive fair value of the undelivered elementsdzhon VSOE. When we could not establish
VSOE or TPE for all undelivered elements of anregeament, revenue on the entire arrangement wage@fentil the earlier of the point when
we did have VSOE for all undelivered elements erdklivery of all elements of the arrangement.

Our sales arrangements, including certain upgrageserally include installation. The installatiomgess is not deemed essential to the
functionality of the equipment since it is not cdex that is, it does not require significant chesdo the features or capabilities of the
equipment or involve building elaborate interfacesonnections subsequent to factory acceptanceha¥e a demonstrated history of
consistently completing installations in a timelpmmer and can reliably estimate the costs of sotivitees. Most customers engage us to
perform the installation services, although theeeather third-party providers with sufficient kniegdge who could complete these services.
Based on these factors, we deem the installati@muo$ystems to be inconsequential or perfunctelgtive to the system as a whole, and as a
result, do not consider such services to be a agpatement of the arrangement. As such, we atloeueost of the installation at the time of
revenue recognition for the system.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contiraal)
December 31, 2013

In Japan, where our contractual terms with custergenerally specify title and risk and rewardswhership transfer upon customer
acceptance, revenue is recognized and the cusierbiled upon the receipt of written customer aataace. During the fourth quarter of fiscal
2013, we began using a distributor for almost Bl product and service sales to customers ianldafitle and risk and rewards of ownership
of our system sales still transfer to our end-amstis upon their acceptance. As such, there impadt to our policy of recognizing revenue
upon receipt of written acceptance from the endocuesr.

Revenue related to maintenance and service cosisacognized ratably over the applicable cohtexen. Component and spare part reve
are recognized at the time of delivery in accoréanith the terms of the applicable sales arrangémen

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and céitdity liquid investments. Highly liquid investmentvith maturities of three months or less
when purchased may be classified as cash equiga®ath items may include liquid money market aotxylJ.S. treasuries, government
agency securities and corporate debt. The invedtntleat are classified as cash equivalents aredaat cost, which approximates fair value.

Short-Term Investments

We determine the appropriate balance sheet cleasifn of our investments at the time of purchaskevaluate the classification at each
balance sheet date. As part of our cash managgragrtam, we maintain a portfolio of marketable sii@s which are classified as available-
for-sale. These securities include U.S. treasanesgovernment agency securities with maturitiegreéter than three months when purchase
Securities classified as available-for-sale aréediat fair market value, with the unrealized gaamd losses, net of tax, included in the
determination of comprehensive income (loss) apdnted in equity. Net realized gains and lossesrataded in net income (loss).

Accounts Receivable, N

Accounts receivable are presented net of allowéorcdoubtful accounts of $2.4 million and $0.5 il as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. We evaluate the collectability of @aats receivable based on a combination of factorsases where we become aware of
circumstances that may impair a customer’s abitityneet its financial obligations subsequent todtiginal sale, we will record an allowance
against amounts due, and thereby reduce the regnmized receivable to the amount the we reasortadigves will be collected. For all other
customers, we recognize an allowance for doubtfabants based on the length of time the receivablepast due and consideration of other
factors such as industry conditions, the currestrimss environment and its historical experience.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjectagoncentrations of credit risk, consist primadf accounts receivable, short-term
investments and cash and cash equivalents. Werpediogoing credit evaluations of our customers aritere appropriate, require that letters
of credit be provided on certain foreign salesrageaments. We maintain allowances for potentialittegses and make investments with
strong, higher credit quality issuers and contiralmonitor the amount of credit exposure to ang msuer.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (ppalty first-in, first-out method) or market. Orgaarterly basis, management assesses the
valuation and recoverability of all inventoriesassified as materials (which include raw materispgre parts and service inventory), work-in-
process and finished goods.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contiraal)
December 31, 2013

Materials inventory is used primarily to suppor fhstalled tool base and spare parts sales apdliesved for excess quantities or obsolesc
by comparing on-hand balances to historical usage adjusted for current economic conditions ahérogualitative factors. Historically, the
variability of such estimates has been impactedusfomer demand and tool utilization rates.

The work-in-process and finished goods inventongriscipally used to support system sales andvieweed for recoverability by considering
whether on hand inventory would be utilized toifuthe related backlog. As we typically receivepdsits for our orders, the variability of this
estimate is reduced as customers have a vestedsnie the orders they place with us. Recovetgtoli such inventory is evaluated by
monitoring customer demand, current sales trendgpasduct gross margins. Management also consipletigtative factors such as future
product demand based on market outlook, which sedg@rincipally upon production requirements résglfrom customer purchase orders
received with a customer-confirmed shipment datbiwithe next twelve months. Historically, the iaility of these estimates of future
product demand has been impacted by backlog catioaek or modifications resulting from unanticightdhanges in technology or customer
demand.

Following identification of potential excess or olete inventory, management evaluates the needit® down inventory balances to its
estimated market value, if less than its cost.etaht in the estimates of market value are managgsmestimates related to our future
manufacturing schedules, customer demand, techicalaand/or market obsolescence, possible altematies, and ultimate realization of
potential excess inventory. Unanticipated chamgelemand for our products may require a write dofvimventory that could materially affe
our operating results.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

Gooduwill represents the excess of the cost of guiaition over the fair value of the net assetau@egl. We account for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives atardance with relevant accounting guidance relaemodwill and other intangible assets,
which states that goodwill and intangible asseth widefinite useful lives should not be amortizidt instead tested for impairment at least
annually at the reporting unit level. Our polisytd perform this annual impairment test in thetloguarter, using a measurement date of
October 1st, of each fiscal year or more frequeifiitppairment indicators arise. Impairment indimat include, among other conditions, cash
flow deficits, a historical or anticipated declimerevenue or operating profit, adverse legal gutatory developments and a material decreas
in the fair value of some or all of the assets.

The guidance provides an option for an entity itst fassess qualitative factors to determine whetteeexistence of events or circumstances
leads to a determination that it is more likelyrtimt (that is, a likelihood of more than 50%) ttret fair value of a reporting unit is less tha
carrying amount. If, after assessing the totalftgwents or circumstances, an entity determinissriot more likely than not that the fair value
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amotmgn performing the two-step impairment test isag@ssary.

If we determine the two-step impairment test isassary, we are required to determine if it is appate to use the operating segment, as
defined under guidance for segment reporting, @sdporting unit, or one level below the operagagment, depending on whether certain
criteria are met. We have identified five reportingts that are required to be reviewed for impainin The five reporting units are aggregated
into two segments: the VIBE and Mechanical repgrtinits which are reported in our Data Storage segnand the MOCVD, MBE and ALD
reporting units which are reported in our LED & &osegment. In identifying the reporting units ngeraent considered the economic
characteristics of operating segments includingptioelucts and services provided, production prasgsgpes or classes of customer and
product distribution.
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If required, we perform this impairment test bysficomparing the fair value of our reporting umitsheir respective carrying amount. When
determining the estimated fair value of a reporting, we utilize a discounted future cash flow ggzh since reported quoted market prices
are not available for our reporting units. Devefapthe estimate of the discounted future cash flequires significant judgment and projecti

of future financial performance. The key assumiaosed in developing the discounted future cashsflare the projection of future revenues
and expenses, working capital requirements, rebgloavth rates and the weighted average cost dfalafn developing our financial
projections, we consider historical data, curratgrinal estimates and market growth trends. Chatogasy of these assumptions could
materially change the fair value of the reportimit.u/Ne reconcile the aggregate fair value of ajarting units to our adjusted market
capitalization as a supporting calculation. Theusidjd market capitalization is calculated by miytim the average share price of our commol
stock for the last ten trading days prior to theasugement date by the number of outstanding conghares and adding a control premium.

If the carrying value of the reporting units exceélee fair value we would then compare the impliaid ¥alue of our goodwill to the carrying
amount in order to determine the amount of the impent, if any.

Definite-Lived Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

Definite-lived intangible assets consist of purdthtechnology, customer-related intangible aspatents, trademarks, covenants not-to-
compete, software licenses and deferred finanaistsc Purchased technology consists of the coggiptary manufacturing technologies
associated with the products and offerings obtathesligh acquisition and are initially recordedaat value. Customer-related intangible
assets, patents, trademarks, covenants not-to-¢erapé software licenses that are obtained in guisition are initially recorded at fair value.
Other software licenses and deferred financingscaxst initially recorded at cost. Intangible asgétk definitive useful lives are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimatseful lives for periods up to 17 years.

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Begireciation is provided over the estimated udafas of the related assets using the
straight-line method for financial statement pugmsAmortization of leasehold improvements is coraguwsing the straight-line method over
the shorter of the remaining lease term or theneg&d useful lives of the improvements.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, angpbetgnt and intangible assets with definite usefidd, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdlrying amount of an asset may not be recoweréthpairment indicators include, among
other conditions, cash flow deficits, a historioalnticipated decline in revenue or operatingiprativerse legal or regulatory developments
and a material decrease in the fair value of sonadl of the assets. Assets are grouped at thedbleeel for which there are identifiable cash
flows that are largely independent of the cash $lgenerated by other asset groups. Recoverabilagsets to be held and used is measured |
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asstte@stimated undiscounted future cash flow expectde generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimatedsfcash flows, an impairment charge is recoghimethe amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value ofgketa

Accounting for Acquisition

Our growth strategy has included the acquisitiobusinesses. The purchase price of these acquisitias been determined after due diligenc
of the acquired business, market research, stcapdgining, and the forecasting of expected futeselts and synergies. Estimated future
results and expected synergies are subject to jadgas we integrate each acquisition and attenlpt/arage resources.
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The accounting for the acquisitions we have madgires that the assets and liabilities acquiredyelsas any contingent consideration that
may be part of the agreement, be recorded atrbgdective fair values at the date of acquisitidns requires management to make significan
estimates in determining the fair values, espaciaith respect to intangible assets, includingmates of expected cash flows, expected cost
savings and the appropriate weighted average €astpital. As a result of these significant judgnssio be made we often obtain the assist
of independent valuation firms. We complete thessmasments as soon as practical after the cloateg.dAny excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the identifiainds assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Pezseur footnotBusiness Combinationis
these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .

Cost Method of Accounting for Investments

Investee companies not accounted for under theotidation or the equity method of accounting arecamted for under the cost method of
accounting. Under this method, our share of theiegs or losses of such investee companies ar@clatded in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet or Statements of Operations. However, imgaitroharges are recognized in the ConsolidateerBatts of Operations. If circumstances
suggest that the value of the investee companguitasequently recovered, such recovery is not record

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

We believe the carrying amounts of our financiatinments, including cash and cash equivalentgunts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses, reflected in the consolidateahdial statements approximate fair value due to fert-term maturities. The fair value of
our debt, including current maturities, is estindatising a discounted cash flow analysis, baseti@edtimated current incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of securities.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Certain of our international subsidiaries operatiagilocal functional currencies. Foreign curredeyominated assets and liabilities are
translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rateff@teat the balance sheet date, and income anehsepaccounts and cash flow items are
translated at average monthly exchange rates dthegespective periods. Net exchange gains oesossulting from the translation of forei
financial statements and the effect of exchangesraih intercompany transactions of a long-termstmaent nature are recorded as a separate
component of equity in accumulated other comprekenscome. Any foreign currency gains or losséateal to transactions are included in
operating results.

Environmental Compliance and Remediat

Environmental compliance costs include ongoing mesiance, monitoring and similar costs. Such cast®apensed as incurred.
Environmental remediation costs are accrued wheim@mmental assessments and/or remedial effortpratgable and the cost can be
reasonably estimated.

Research and Development Cc

Research and development costs are charged tosexperincurred and include expenses for the dewelopof new technology and the
transition of technology into new products or seegi

Warranty Costs

Our warranties are typically valid for one yeamfrthe date of final acceptance. We estimate thes ¢bat may be incurred under the warranty
that we provide for our products. We record a ligbin the amount of such costs at the time tHateal revenue is recognized. Estimated
warranty costs are determined by analyzing spegificluct and historical configuration statisticsl aegional warranty support costs. Our
warranty obligation is affected by product failueges, material usage, and labor costs incurredrirecting product failures during the
warranty period. Unforeseen component failuresxoeptional component performance can also resulhémges to warranty costs. If actual
warranty costs differ substantially from our estiesa revisions to the estimated warranty liabiligguld be required.
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Income Taxe

We are required to estimate our income taxes ih e&the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thisqess involves estimating the actual cur
tax expense, together with assessing temporamgrdiites resulting from differing treatment of iteimistax and financial reporting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialitdities, which are included within our Congtdited Balance Sheets. The carrying value of
our deferred tax assets is adjusted by a partiahtian allowance to recognize the extent to whiahfuture tax benefits will be recognized ¢
more likely than not basis. Our net deferred tasetsconsist primarily of tax credit carry forwaedsl timing differences between the book an
tax treatment of inventory, acquired intangiblesdssnd other asset valuations. Realization ofthes deferred tax assets is dependent upon
our ability to generate future taxable income.

We record valuation allowances in order to redugedeferred tax assets to the amount expected tedtieed. In assessing the adequacy of
recorded valuation allowances, we consider a wadgfactors, including the scheduled reversalefedred tax liabilities, future taxable
income, and prudent and feasible tax planningegiias. Under the relevant accounting guidancegpfacuch as current and previous operatin
losses are given significantly greater weight ttrenoutlook for future profitability in determinirthe deferred tax asset carrying value.

Relevant accounting guidance addresses the detionrof how tax benefits claimed or expected telaéned on a tax return should be
recorded in the financial statements. Under sudtiagice, we must recognize the tax benefit fromrarertain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be sustd on examination by the taxing authorities, Hame the technical merits of the position. The
tax benefits recognized in the financial stateméwoi® such uncertain tax positions are measureddas the largest benefit that has a greatel
than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upoltimate resolution.

Advertising Expens

The cost of advertising is expensed as of the $lisving of each advertisement. We incurred $0/bomj $0.8 million and $1.4 million in
advertising expenses during 2013, 2012 and 20%pentively.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are costs that arereduo move, package and prepare our producthfpment and then to move the produci
the customer’s designated location. These costgaarerally comprised of payments to third-partypkrs. Shipping and handling costs are
included in cost of sales in our Consolidated Statets of Operations.

Equity-Based Compensation

We grant equity-based awards, such as stock opgintisestricted stock or restricted stock unitgeidain key employees to create a clear anc
meaningful alignment between compensation and Bb&ter return and to enable the employees to dpwaid maintain a stock ownership
position. While the majority of our equity awarfésture time-based vesting, performabhesed equity awards, which are awarded from tir
time to certain of our key executives, vest asretion of performance, and may also be subjedigéa¢cipient’s continued employment which
also acts as a significant retention incentive.

Equity-based compensation cost is measured atr#m: date, based on the fair value of the awardsanetognized as expense over the
employee requisite service period. In order to mmeitee the fair value of stock options on the ddtgrant, we apply the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Inherent in the model are assumpgti@tated to risk-free interest rate, dividenddjexpected stock-price volatility and option
life.

The risk-free rate assumed in valuing the optisrzised on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in efiethe time of grant for the expected term of
the option. The dividend yield assumption is basedur historical and future expectation of dividgrayouts. While the risk-free interest rate
and dividend yield are less subjective assumptitypscally based on objective data derived fromljusources, the expected stock-price
volatility and option life assumptions require g&deof judgment which results in more subjective@mting estimates.
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We use an expected stock-price volatility assunnpttiat is a combination of both historical volagilcalculated based on the daily closing
prices of our common stock over a period equahoeixpected term of the option and implied volstivhich utilizes market data of actively
traded options on our common stock, which are abthfrom public data sources. We believe that tbiihical volatility of the price of our
common stock over the expected term of the opSanstrong indicator of the expected future vatatdnd that implied volatility takes into
consideration market expectations of how futuretility will differ from historical volatility. Acordingly, we believe a combination of both
historical and implied volatility provides the bestimate of the future volatility of the markeiger of our common stock.

The expected option term, representing the peridisn@ that options granted are expected to betautiing, is estimated using a lattice-based
model incorporating historical post vest exercisé amployee termination behavior.

We estimate forfeitures using our historical expece, which is adjusted over the requisite semp@@d based on the extent to which actual
forfeitures differ or are expected to differ, frauch estimates. Because of the significant amdyotigment used in these calculations, it is
reasonably likely that circumstances may causestienate to change.

We settle the exercise of stock options with neisdyied shares.

With respect to grants of performance based awargsissess the probability that such performariterierwill be met in order to determine
the compensation expense. Consequently, the caapen expense is recognized strailyie-over the vesting period. If that assessmetie
probability of the performance condition being raeainges, we would recognize the impact of the oh@amgstimate in the period of the
change. As with the use of any estimate, and dtieetsignificant judgment used to derive thosengstes, actual results may vary.

We have elected to treat awards with only servareditions and with graded vesting as one award s€guently, the total compensation
expense is recognized straight-line over the enéigting period, so long as the compensation egstgnized at any date at least equals the
portion of the grant date fair value of the awdralttis vested at that date.

Negotiable Letters of Crec

For certain transactions, we request that our owsts provide us with a negotiable irrevocable taifecredit drawn on a reputable financial
institution. These irrevocable letters of cred# &ypically issued to mature, on average, for 8Qalays post documentation requirements, but
occasionally for longer. For a fee, one of our lsaodnfirms the reputation of the issuing institatand, at our option, monetizes these lette
credit on a non-recourse basis soon after theyrhecwgotiable. Once we monetize the letter of treith the confirming bank, we have no
further obligations or interest in the letter oédit and they are not included in our consoliddtaldnce sheets. The fees that we pay are
included in selling, general and administrativeenge and are not material.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhietaOperating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax LossTax Credit Carryforward Exist
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11. AZ)13-11 requires entities to present an unrecogrieebenefit, or a portion of an
unrecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a dedetax asset for a net operating loss carryforpamilar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward when settlement in this manner islabée under the tax law. This ASU is effective grestively for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibge2013. We are evaluating the potential impéthis adoption on our consolidated
financial statements.

Presentation of Financial Statemenin April 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07,éBentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205):
Liguidation Basis of Accounting.” The objective A8U 2013-07 is to clarify when an entity should lgpthe liquidation basis of accounting.
The update provides principles for the recognitiod measurement of assets and liabilities and nements for financial statements prepared
using the liquidation basis of accounting. This ASéffective prospectively for fiscal years, anterim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2013. We do not anticipatettfmadoption of this standard will have a matargdact on our consolidated financial
statements, absent any indications that liquidaggamminent.
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Paren’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjusnt:In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013®&arent’s Accounting for
the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Deredognof Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Asseithin a Foreign Entity or of an
Investment in a Foreign Enti. This new standard is intended to resolve divgisipractice regarding the release into net incoifre
cumulative translation adjustment (“CTA”") upon dawgnition of a subsidiary or group of assets withiforeign entity. ASU No. 2013-05 is
effective prospectively for fiscal years (and iimereporting periods within those years) beginrafigr December 15, 2013. We currently
anticipate that its adoption could have an impacbar consolidated financial statements, in thenxewéderecognition of a foreign subsidiary
2014 or subsequently. We cannot estimate the anud@iTA to be released into income from any pasmterecognition.

Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several LigbiArrangements for Which the Total Amount of@#igation Is Fixed at the Reporting
Date: In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting @&ats Update No. 2013-04)bligations Resulting from Joint and Several Likitlyi
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the @tion Is Fixed at the Reporting D" . ASU No. 2013-04 provides guidance for the
recognition, measurement, and disclosure of ohtigatresulting from joint and several liability angements for which the total amount of the
obligation within the scope of the guidance is dix& the reporting date, as the sum of the amdenteporting entity agreed to pay on the basi
of its arrangement among its co-obligors and amjtaxhal amount the reporting entity expects to paybehalf of its co-obligors. In addition,
ASU No. 2013-04 requires an entity to disclosertatire and amount of the obligation, as well asmififormation about the obligations. ASU
No. 201:-04 is effective for interim and annual periodsibegqg after December 15, 2013 and is to be apphktuspectively. We do not
anticipate that the adoption of this standard ale a material impact on our consolidated findrete&tements.

2. Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The following table sets forth basic and dilutetlineome (loss) per common share and the basichtedgaverage shares outstanding and
diluted weighted average shares outstandinglfousands, except per share data

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Net income (loss $ (42,269 $ 30,92¢ $ 127,98
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (1.09 $ 0.8C $ 3.28
Diluted $ (1.09 $ 0.7¢ $ 3.11
Basic weighted average shares outstan 38,80:" 38,47: 39,65¢
Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stamkards and units

and convertible det — 574 1,49
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 38,80" 39,05 41,15¢

Basic income (loss) per common share is computied) tise basic weighted average number of commoreshautstanding during the period.
Diluted income (loss) per common share is compusidg the basic weighted average number of comrhares and common equivalent
shares outstanding during the period. For the grded December 31, 2013, the effect of approxim&& million common equivalent shares
were excluded from the calculation of diluted rostsl per share because their inclusion would hage aati-dilutive due to the net loss
sustained during the period. Potentially dilutieewities attributable to outstanding stock optiand restricted stock of approximately 1.3
million, 1.3 million and 0.7 million common equiwalt shares during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 were excluded from
the calculation of diluted net income (loss) pearstbecause their inclusion would have been ahtirg.

During the second quarter of 2011 the entire ontstay principal balance of our convertible debt wasverted, with the principal amount paid
in cash and the conversion premium paid in sh3ites.convertible notes met the criteria for deteingrthe effect of the assumed conversion
using the treasury stock method of accountingesime had settled the principal amount of the nisiesish. Using the treasury stock metho
was determined that the impact of the assumed csiovefor the years ended December 31, 2011 haldtavd effect of 0.6 million shares.
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3. Discontinued Operations
CIGS Solar Systems Business

On July 28, 2011, we announced a plan to discoatour CIGS solar systems business. The resultparfitions for the CIGS solar systems
business have been recorded as discontinued apesddir all periods presented. During the year didlecember 31, 2011, total discontinued
operations related to the discontinued CIGS busimedude pre-tax charges totaling $69.8 milliohe¥e charges include an asset impairment
charge totaling $6.2 million, a goodwill write-aif $10.8 million, an inventory write-off totalind2$.0 million, charges to settle contracts
totaling $22.1 million, lease related charges tnga$1.4 million and personnel severance chargedirig $2.3 million.

Metrology

On August 15, 2010, we signed a definitive agredrteesell our Metrology business to Bruker. Theautessof operations for the Metrology
business have been recorded as discontinued apesddir all periods presented. The sale transactmsed on October 7, 2010, except for
assets located in China due to local restrictidiosal proceeds, which included a working capitglatinent of $1 million, totaled $230.4
million of which $7.2 million relates to the ass&t<China. During 2010, we recognized a pre-tax@ai disposal of $156.3 million and a pre-
tax deferred gain of $5.4 million related to theets in China. We recognized into income the aredeferred gain of $5.4 million during 2012
related to the completion of the sale of the asseBhina to Bruker. We also recognized a $1.4iamlgain ($1.1 million net of taxes) on the
sale of assets of this discontinued segment thed previously held for sale and sold during 2012.

Summary information related to discontinued operetiis as follows in thousands:

2012 2011
Solar Solar
Systems Metrology Total Systems Metrology Total
Net sales $ — % — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Net income (loss) fror
discontinued operatior $ 62 $ 4461 $ 4,39¢ $ (61,45) $ (1,069 $ (62,51%H

4. Fair Value Measurements

We have categorized our assets and liabilitiesrdszbat fair value based upon the fair value hi@marThe levels of fair value hierarchy are as
follows:

» Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjustedactive markets for identical assets or liabtitibat we have the ability to access.

« Level 2 inputs utilize other-than-quoted priced ti@ observable, either directly or indirectlyvee2 inputs include quoted prices for
similar assets and liabilities in active markets] aputs such as interest rates and yield cuhagsare observable at commonly quote
intervals.

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are typicaleld on our own assumptions, including situatiomsrevthere is little, if any,
market activity.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measuredhievmay fall into different levels of the fair ual hierarchy. In such cases, we categorize suc
assets or liabilities based on the lowest levaliripat is significant to the fair value measurehieiits entirety. Our assessment of the
significance of a particular input to the fair valmeasurement in its entirety requires judgmentcamgiders factors specific to the asset.
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Both observable and unobservable inputs may betosgetermine the fair value of positions that@essified within the Level 3 category. As
a result, the unrealized gains and losses for ags#tin the Level 3 category presented below nmajuide changes in fair value that were
attributable to both observable (e.g. changes irketanterest rates) and unobservable (e.g. chandgstorical company data) inputs.

The major categories of assets and liabilities mmegbon a recurring basis, at fair value, as ofdbgmer 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows (
thousandy:

December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
U.S. treasuries $ 130,97° $ — 3 — $ 130,97
Corporate det — 77,60 — 77,60
Government agency securiti — 61,01 — 61,01
Commercial pape — 11,947 — 11,947
Derivative instrumen — 907 — 907
Contingent consideratic — — (29,36¢) (29,36¢)

December 31, 2012 (1

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
U.S. treasuries $ 278,69¢ $ — % — % 278,69t
Government agency securiti — 123,05« — 123,05¢
Derivative instrumen — 24¢ — 24¢

(1) December 31, 2012 table has been conformed torgrgsar presentation.

Highly liquid investments with maturities of thre@nths or less when purchased may be classifiedstsequivalents. Such items may includ
liquid money market accounts, U.S. treasuries, govent agency securities and corporate debt. Nestments that are classified as cash
equivalents are carried at cost, which approximiiesalue. Accordingly, no gains or losses (izad/unrealized) have been incurred for cast
equivalents. All investments classified as avaédlolr-sale are recorded at fair value within shierta investments in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

In determining the fair value of our investmentsl &vels, through a third-party service providee, uge pricing information from pricing
services that value securities based on quotedeanprices in active markets and matrix pricing. Napricing is a mathematical valuation
technique that does not rely exclusively on qugtecks of specific investments, but on the investi'serelationship to other benchmarked
guoted securities. We have a process in placef@stment valuations to facilitate identificatiamdaresolution of potentially erroneous prices.
We review the information provided by the third{yaservice provider to record the fair value ofptsrtfolio.

Consistent with Level 1 measurement principles,. tieasuries are priced using active market poéédentical securities. Consistent with
Level 2 measurement principles, corporate debtegouent agency securities, commercial paper, andatige instruments are priced with
matrix pricing.

F-18




Table of Contents
Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contiraal)
December 31, 2013

A reconciliation of the amount in Level 3 is asldals (in thousands:

Level 3
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ —
Addition of contingent consideratic (33,539
Payment on contingent considerat 5,00(
Fair value adjustment of contingent consideration (829
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (29,369

We estimated the fair value of the contingent abrsition by applying various probabilities and disat factors to each of the various
performance milestones as further discussed inBusmess CombinationsThese fair value measurements are based onisautiinputs not
observable in the market and thus represent a lEr@asurement as defined in ASC 820. The disaates used ranged from 3.6% to 13.0%
for the purchase order related contingent paymeamisfrom 15.5% to 30.5% for the revenue and gramgjim related contingent payments.
These rates were determined based on the nattie aiilestone, the risks and uncertainties involaed the time period until the milestone
was measured.

We measure certain assets for fair value on a acuarring basis when there are indications of immpairt.

In 2013 and 2012 we measured certain assets camsigith Level 3 measurement principles using &onme approach based on a discounted
cash flow model in order to determine the amountgfairment, if any. In 2013, we evaluated certaimgible assets in our LED & Solar
segment for impairment. As a result of the evaturatie adjusted the carrying value by $0.9 millietated to tools that we had previously usec
in our laboratories held in Property, plant andipopent which we are holding for sale and by $0.Bioni related to an asset held in Other
assets with $1.2 million of adjustments recordetrgmirment in 2013. In 2012, we evaluated an dssetir Data Storage segment for
impairment. As a result of the evaluation we a@jdshe carrying value of the asset carried in Oélssets from $1.4 million to $0.1 million
with the $1.3 million adjustment recorded as impaint in 2012.

5. Business Combinations

On April 4, 2011, we purchased a privately-held pany which supplies certain components to one pobasinesses for $28.3 million in cash.
As a result of this purchase, we acquired $16.4anibf definitelived intangibles, of which $13.6 million relateal ¢ore technology, and $1¢
million of goodwill. The financial results of theecquisition are included in our LED & Solar segmasiof the acquisition date. We determined
that this acquisition does not constitute a matériainess combination and therefore we have mtwded pro forma financial information in
this report.

On October 1, 2013 (“the Acquisition Date”), Veammuired 100% of the outstanding common sharewvating interest of Synos

Technology, Inc. (“Synos”). The results of Synopkaations have been included in the consolidateahfiial statements since that date. Synos
is an early stage manufacturer of fast array scgnaiomic layer deposition (“FAST-ALD”) tools forl®D and other applications. As a result
of the acquisition, the Company has entered theTFAED market which is complimentary to the CompaniMOCVD LED offerings.
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The Acquisition Date fair value of the considerattotaled $102.3 million, net of cash acquired,chhtonsisted of the followingii

thousand9y:
Acquisition Date
(October 1, 2013

Cash (net of cash acquired) $ 71,48¢
Working capital adjustmel (2,695
Contingent consideration 33,53¢
Total $ 102,33:

As part of Veeco’s acquisition of Synos, we mayb#&gated to pay to the selling shareholders ofdSycertain contingent consideration. The
aggregate fair value of the contingent considenagimangement at the acquisition date was $33liomilThe contingency arrangements are
generally as follows:

*  Up to $40.0 million based on defined milestoned teethe receipt of certain purchase orders frostauers by certain dates through the
first quarter of 2014. The Company determined #ievialue of these contingent payments to be $@dll®n. Of this amount, $5.0
million was earned and paid in the fourth quarfe2@13. The second milestone pertaining to thigiogency is to be measured by March
31, 2014 and could result in either no paymengyanent of $17.5 million or a payment of $35 milliomhe difference between the amc
earned and the fair value recorded will be recoiddte statement of operations for the period dridarch 31, 2014. The outcome is
currently unknown.

*  Upto $75.0 million based on defined milestoned temeeting certain revenue and gross margintibtds based on full year 2014
results. The Company has determined the fair vafltleese contingent payments to be $9.2 milliore Tdir value of this contingency will
continued to be measured at each reporting perida&changes in fair value will be recorded in tteeshent of operations.

We estimated the fair value of the contingent abrsition by applying various probabilities and disat factors to each of the various
performance milestones. These fair value measursnaea based on significant inputs not observabthe market and thus represent a Le\
measurement as defined in ASC 820. The discouas teted ranged from 3.6% to 13.0% for the purcbeder related contingent payments
from 15.5% to 30.5% for the revenue and gross maejated contingent payments. These rates weeendigted based on the nature of the
milestone, the risks and uncertainties involved thedtime period until the milestone was measurée. determination of the various
probabilities and discount factors are highly satiye and require significant judgment and areueficed by a number of factors, including the
adoption of OLED technology and limited history.hWlé the use of OLED is expected to grow in therrigture, it is difficult to predict the ra

at which OLED will be adopted by the market andstimould impact the sales of our equipment.

As of December 31, 2013, the first milestone wdsea®d and we paid the former shareholders of S$Bdsmillion. In addition, the
recognized amount for the contingencies increage®DtB million as of December 31, 2013 as a resfuthanges in the fair value of contingent
consideration.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired, net of the cashracljaind liabilities assumed at the
Acquisition Date. Veeco utilized thirgarty valuations of the tangible and intangiblestésscquired as well as the contingent consideraliibe
amounts below are preliminary and are subject émgh (in thousands:

Acquisition Date

(October 1, 2013

Accounts receivable $ 1,52:
Inventory 38¢€
Other current asse 512
Property, plant, and equipme 1,917
Intangible assets 99,27(
Total identifiable assets acquired 103,60¢
Current liabilities 4,37(C
Estimated deferred tax liability, net 32,42¢
Total liabilities assumed 36,79¢
Net identifiable assets acquir 66,81:
Goodwill 35,52(
Net assets acquire $ 102,33.
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The $35.5 million of goodwill was assigned to tHeDL. & Solar segment. None of the goodwill is expddtebe deductible for income tax
purposes. As of December 31, 2013, there were anggs in the recognized amounts of goodwill resgifiom the acquisition of Synos.

The classes of intangible assets acquired andstireated weighted-average useful life of each degsesented in the table below (
thousandy:

Acquisition Date
(October 1, 2013’

Amount Average useful life
Technology $ 73,16( 14 years
In-process research and developrm 5,07C  To be determine
Customer relationshi 20,63( 8 years
Trademark and trade nar 14C 1 year
Non-compete agreement 27C 3 years
Intangible assets acquired $ 99,27(

We determined the estimated fair value of the ifiabte intangible assets based on various fadgtarisiding: cost, discounted cash flow,
income method, loss-of-revenue/income method aliefsfeom-royalty method in determining the purckagwice allocation.

Technology is being amortized on an accelerateis lsasisistent with the timing of the cash flowsiexpected to generate. Pursuant to the
accounting guidance, acquired in-process reseaithl@velopment is not amortized until such timé ascompleted or abandoned. Upon
completion, we will amortize the acquired amountiois useful life. As noted earlier, the fair valof the acquired assets is provisional
pending the final valuations for these assets.

We recognized $1.0 million of acquisition relatedis that were expensed in 2013. These costsd@uel@d in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in the line item entitled “Selling, gealeand administrative.”

The amounts of revenue and income (loss) from oaimg operations before income taxes of Synos dexun the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations from the acquisition da@etgber 1, 2013) to the period ending DecembeRB13 are as followsif thousands:

Revenue $ 40¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations beformme taxes $ (6,480

The following represents the pro forma Consolid&@tttements of Operations as if Synos had beeundadlin our consolidated results (
thousand9:

For the year ended December 3:

(unaudited)
2013 2012
Revenue $ 346,31¢ $ 522,02
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxe: $ (60,98) $ 16,84(

These amounts have been calculated after applyingazounting policies to material amounts and affjasting the results of Synos to reflect
the additional amortization that would have begpe@sed assuming the fair value adjustments togittlnassets had been applied on
January 1, 2012.
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6. Balance Sheet Information

Short-Term Investments

Available-for-sale securities consist of the follagy (in thousands:

December 31, 201.

Gains in Losses in
Accumulated Accumulated
Other Other

Amortized Comprehensive Comprehensive Estimated

Cost Income Income Fair Value
U.S. treasuries $ 130,95¢ $ 22 $ 1 $ 130,97
Government agency securiti 61,00« 9 — 61,01:
Corporate dek 77,582 55 (36) 77,60
Commercial paper 11,947 — — 11,947
Total available-for-sale securities $ 281,48¢ $ 86 $ @37 $ 281,53t

During the year ended December 31, 2013, salesnaarities of available-for-sale securities proddetal proceeds of $499.6 million. The
gross realized gains on these sales were $0.omfthir the year ended December 31, 2013. For parpbdetermining gross realized gains, the
cost of securities sold is based on specific idieation. The change in the net unrealized holdjam on available-for-sale securities was
minimal for the year ended December 31, 2013, @sdleen included in accumulated other compreheimsitoee. The tax impact on the
unrealized gains, which is excluded from the tallleve, was less than $0.1 million.

December 31, 201

Gains in Losses in
Accumulated Accumulated
Other Other

Amortized Comprehensive Comprehensive Estimated

Cost Income Income Fair Value
U.S. treasuries $ 184,10. $ 76 $ — % 184,17¢
Government agency securities 8,05¢ — — 8,05¢
Total available-for-sale securities $ 192,15¢ $ 76 $ — $ 192,23:

During the year ended December 31, 2012, salesnaiakities of available-for-sale securities proddetal proceeds of $244.9 million. The
gross realized gains on these sales were miniméhéoyear ended December 31, 2012. For purpodetefmining gross realized gains, the
cost of securities sold is based on specific ifieation. The change in the net unrealized holdjag on available-for-sale securities amounte
to $0.1 million for the year ended December 31,2@hd has been included in accumulated other celmepisive income. The tax impact on
the unrealized gains, which is excluded from thxetabove, was minimal.
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Available-for-sale securities in a loss positioDacember 31, 2013 are as followia (housandy:

Less than 12 months Total
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value Losses Fair value Losses
Corporate debt $ 37,65 $ (36) $ 37,65¢ $ (36)
U.S. treasuries 29,06¢ (1) 29,06¢ (1)
Total $ 66,72. $ (37 $ 66,72: $ (37)

As of December 31, 2013 we had $66.7 million inrsherm investments that had an aggregate unrebl@evalue loss of less than $0.1
million none of which had been in an unrealizedIpssition for 12 months or longer. As of Deceniier2012 we did not hold any short-term
investments that were in a loss position.

Contractual maturities of available-for-sale setiegias of December 31, 2013 are as followstfiousand$:

Estimated

Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 196,01!
Due in -2 years 64,15¢
Due in 2-3 years 21,36%
Total investments in securities $ 281,53¢

Actual maturities may differ from contractual matigs because some borrowers have the right tacaliepay obligations with or without call
or prepayment penalties.

Restricted Cas

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, restricted cashisted of $2.7 million and $2.0 million, respeety, which serves as collateral for bank
guarantees that provide financial assurance tleaCtrmpany will fulfill certain customer obligatianbhis cash is held in custody by the issuing
bank, and is restricted as to withdrawal or usdenthie related bank guarantees are outstanding.

Accounts Receivable, N

Accounts receivable are shown net of the allowdacdoubtful accounts of $2.4 million and $0.5 moifl as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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Inventories (in thousand:

December 31

2013 2012

Materials $ 34,30. $ 36,52

Work in proces: 12,90( 13,36:

Finished goods 12,52¢ 9,921

$ 59,72t $ 59,801
Property, Plant and Equipment (in thousan
December 31 Estimated
2013 2012 Useful Lives

Land $ 12,53t $ 12,53¢
Building and improvement 52,05( 49,49¢ 10-40 years
Machinery and equipme 110,22¢ 110,15( 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 5,88¢ 5,671 3-7 years
Gross property, plant and equipment at cost 180,70: 177,86l
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 91,56 79,55¢
Net property, plant and equipme $ 89,13¢ $ 98,30:

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid depreciation expense was $12.9 million, $11/8aniand $8.2 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $7.2 million ofiddbat we previously used in our laboratoriesiedrin machinery and equipment which
we are holding for sale. These tools are the sgp®df tools we sell to our customers in the ordir@urse of our business. In addition, dui
the year ended December 31, 2013, we convertedadd3.7 million of tools that we had previousbed in our laboratories as Veeco
Certified Equipment at an aggregate selling pric704 million which is included in revenue. Duri@§13, we recorded asset impairment
charges in LED & Solar of $0.9 million related tertin tools used in our laboratories carried irchir@ery and equipment which we are
holding for sale.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with the relevant accounting guidaalzed to goodwill and other intangible assets canducted our annual impairment test of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets idgrthe fourth quarters of 2013 and 2012, usingoBet 1st as our measurement date as
described in our footnoteescription of Business and Significant AccounBadjcies.Based upon the results of the qualitative assedswesn
determined that it was not more likely than not ti@odwill or our indefinite-lived intangible assetere impaired. Therefore, we determined
that no impairment of goodwill and indefinite-livattangible asset existed as of October 1, 20120l?, we determined not to perform the
optional qualitative assessment and performed tepr 5 assessment utilizing discounted future dastsfand a reconciliation to our market
capitalization. Based on our assessment we detechtirat there was no impairment of our goodwilbor indefinite-lived assets as of

October 1, 2012.

Changes in our goodwill are as followm thousands:

December 31

2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 55,82¢ $ 55,82¢
Acquisition (sedBusiness Combinations 35,52( —
Ending balance $ 91,34¢ $ 55,82¢
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Intangible Asset

As of December 31, 2013, we had $8.0 million ofefiwite-lived intangible assets consisting of tnadeks, tradenames and in-process resear
and development (“IPR&D”). Pursuant to acquisitgaridance, IPR&D is carried as an indefinite livatangible until abandonment or
completion. As of December 31, 2012, we had $2I8amiof indefinite-lived intangible assets congist of trademarks and tradenames. These
intangibles are included in the accompanying Cadat#d Balance Sheets in the caption intangibletaseet.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Other Total Other Total
Purchased intangible intangible Purchased intangible intangible
(in thousands) technology assets assets technology assets assets
Gross intangible asse $ 187,47¢ $ 40,67 $ 228,15! $ 109,24t $ 19,63 $ 128,88:
Less accumulated amortization (97,529 (15,917 (113,43) (93,436) (14,477 (107,909
Intangible assets, net $ 89,95: $ 24,76: $ 114,71t $ 15,81: $ 5162 $ 20,97«

The estimated aggregate amortization expense amgible assets with definite useful lives for eatkthe next five fiscal years is as follows
(in thousands:

2014 $ 11,56¢
2015 19,37¢
2016 18,49¢
2017 15,87¢
2018 12,24
Other Assets
December 31

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Cost method investme $ 16,88 $ 14,49

Income taxes receivab 21,12¢ —

Other 714 2,28

$ 38,72t % 16,78!

Cost Method Investment

On September 28, 2010, we completed a $3 millisastment in a rapidly developing organic light ¢img diode (also known as OLED)
equipment company (the “Investment”). We investecdditional $10.3 million and $1.2 million in thevestment during 2012 and 2011,
respectively. In 2013, we invested an additiona#i$gillion in the Investment in the form of bridgetes bearing 4% interest. The bridge note:
are payable in equity at the time of a liquidityeatvor a qualifying equity investment round, othiserthey are payable in cash in June 2014.
As of December 31, 2013, we have a 15.4% ownerditipe preferred shares, and effectively hold &%lownership interest of the total
company. Since we do not exert significant inflleeona the Investment, this investment is treateceutite cost method in accordance with
applicable accounting guidance. This investmergésrded in other assets in our Consolidated Bal&meets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012.
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Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilit

December 31

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Payroll and related benefi $ 11,02 $ 14,58
Sales, use and other ta 5,402 6,48(
Contingent consideratic 20,09¢ —
Warranty 5,662 4,94;
Restructuring liability 53: 1,87t
Other 8,36¢ 13,52:

$ 51,08: $ 41,40:

Customer deposits and deferred revenue

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had custoeadits of $27.5 million and $32.7 million, respeelly recorded as a component of
customer deposits and deferred revenue.

Accrued Warrant

Typically, we provide our customers a one year rfecturer’s warranty from the date of final accegton the products they purchase from
us. We estimate the costs that may be incurredrihdevarranty we provide for our products and ggize a liability in the amount of such
costs at the time the related revenue is recognizactors that affect our warranty liability inckigroduct failure rates, material usage and |
costs incurred in correcting product failures dgrihe warranty period. Changes in our warrantyilitgtduring the year are as follows:

December 31

2013 2012
Balance as of the beginning of year $ 494: $ 8,731
Warranties issued during the ye 5,291 3,56:
Settlements made during the y: (5,580) (7,060
Changes in estimate during the period 1,00¢ (292)
Balance as of the end of year $ 5,66z $ 4,942

Other Liabilities

December 31

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Contingent consideratic $ 9,27C $ —
Income taxes payab — 3,98¢
Other 37¢ 544

$ 9,64¢ $ 4,53(
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incc

The components of accumulated other comprehensigarie are:

As of December 31, 201 Gross Taxes Net
Translation adjustmen $ 571¢ $ (392) $ 5,32¢
Minimum pension liability (1,160 424 (73€)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 49 (18) 31
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 4,607 $ 14 $ 4,621
As of December 31, 201 Gross Taxes Net
Translation adjustmen $ 7,040 $ (339 $ 6,701
Minimum pension liability (1,285 51C (77%)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 76 (29) 47
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 5831 $ 14z 5,97
7. Debt

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2013, consistésmbrtgage note payable, which is secured byindetad and buildings with carrying
amounts aggregating approximately $4.7 million $Ad million as of December 31, 2013 and DecemefB812, respectively. The mortgage
note payable ($2.1 million as of December 31, 284@ $2.4 million as of December 31, 2012) beaerést at an annual rate of 7.91%, with
the final payment due on January 1, 2020. We estithe fair market value of this note as of Decen®ie 2013 and 2012 was approximately
$2.3 million and $2.6 million, respectively.

Maturity of Lon¢Term Debt

Long-term debt matures as follows(thousands:

2014 $ 29C
2015 314
2016 34C
2017 36¢
2018 39¢
Thereafter 427
2,13

Less current portion 29C
$ 1,84,

Convertible Notes

In 2011, we retired our convertible notes which evigitially convertible into 36.7277 shares of coomstock per $1,000 principal amount of
notes (equivalent to a conversion price of $27 &3ghare or a premium of 38% over the closing ntgrkee for Veeco’s common stock on
April 16, 2007). We paid interest on these noted\pril 15 and October 15 of each year. The notesewasecured and were effectively
subordinated to all of our senior and secured itetbiess and to all indebtedness and other liasligf our subsidiaries.
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During the first quarter of 2011, at the optiortted holders, $7.5 million of notes were tendereccmversion at a price of $45.95 per share in
a net share settlement. We paid the principal atnoiu$7.5 million in cash and issued 111,318 shafesur common stock. We recorded a los:
on extinguishment totaling $0.3 million relatedhese transactions.

During the second quarter of 2011, we issued aaati redemption on the remaining outstanding fpeddalance of notes outstanding. As a
result, at the option of the holders, the notesavwendered for conversion at a price of $50.5%hare, calculated as defined in the indenture
relating to the notes, in a net share settlemesta esult, we paid the principal amount of $98illion in cash and issued 1,660,095 shares of
our common stock. We recorded a loss on extinguistirtotaling $3.0 million related to these tranisans.

Certain accounting guidance requires a portioroofertible debt to be allocated to equity. Thisdguice requires issuers of convertible debt
that can be settled in cash to separately accouifi.t. bifurcate) a portion of the debt associated with¢bnversion feature and reclassify this
portion to equity. The liability portion, which regsents the fair value of the debt without the eosion feature, is accreted to its face value
over the life of the debt using the effective is&rmethod by amortizing the discount betweendle &mount and the fair value. The
amortization is recorded as interest expense. @uwartible notes were subject to this accountingance. This additional interest expense dic
not require the use of cash.

The components of interest expense recorded onafes were as followsirf thousands:

For the year ended
December 31

2011
Contractual interest $ 2,02t
Accretion of the discount on the notes 1,26(
Total interest expense on the notes $ 3,28¢
Effective interest rate 6.7%

8. Equity Compensation Plans and Equity
Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans

We have several stock option and restricted stéenksp In connection with our acquisition of Synafinology, Inc. on October 1, 2013, the
Board of Directors granted equity awards to thedSyemployees. Pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rulesdbéy awards were granted under our
2013 Inducement Stock Incentive Plan (the “Inducein®an”), which the Board of Directors adoptedédilitate the granting of equity awards
as an inducement to these employees to commendeyergnt with us. We issued 124,500 stock optiords & 000 restricted stock units
under this plan. The stock options will vest ovéht@e year period and have a 10-year term anceigcted stock units will vest over a two or
four year period. As of December 31, 2013, the trdoent Plan was effectively merged into the 20b@ISincentive Plan (as amended to d
the “2010 Plan”), and is therefore considered actime plan with no further shares available fdufa grant. As of December 31, 2013, there
are 124,500 options outstanding under the Inducemian.

On April 1, 2010, our Board of Directors, and onyMat, 2010, our shareholders, approved the 201@ FPlze 2010 Plan replaced the 2000
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (the “2000 Plas’the Compang’active stock plan. Our employees, directors amgultants are eligible
receive awards under the 2010 Plan. The 2010 RIanits the granting of a variety of awards, inchgdboth non-qualified and incentive stock
options, share appreciation rights, restrictedeshaestricted share units and dividend equivalghts. We are authorized to issue up to
6,750,000 shares under the 2010 Plan, includiregdditional 3,250,000 shares (including up to 2,006,shares of Common Stock available
for issuance under the 2010 Plan and up to 255%086es underlying awards granted under the InduteRian) that were approved by the
shareholders on December 10, 2013. Option awaedgearerally granted with an exercise price equtiecalosing price of our stock on the
trading day prior to the date of grant; those aptwards generally vest over a 3 year period amd ha/ or 10-year term. Restricted share
awards generally vest overSlyears. Certain option and share awards providadcelerated vesting if there is a change in obras defined i
the 2010 Plan. As of December 31, 2013, there 61092 options outstanding under the 2010 Plan.
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The 2000 Plan was approved by our Board of Dirscaoid shareholders in May 2000. The 2000 Plan gesvior the grant to officers and key
employees of stock awards, either in the form diooys to purchase shares of our common stock trictesl stock awards. Stock awards
granted pursuant to the 2000 Plan expire afterrsggars and generally vest over a two-year to yiear period following the grant date. In
addition, the 2000 Plan provides for automatic ahiguants of restricted stock to each member ofBmard of Directors who is not an
employee. As of December 31, 2013, there are 727p%ons outstanding under the 2000 Plan.

Equity-Based Compensation Expense, Stock Option andi®edtstock Activity

Equity-based compensation cost is measured atr#m date, based on the fair value of the award j&necognized as expense over the
employee requisite service period . We recordettggompensation expense of $13.1 million, $14iBon and $12.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respsctitel did not capitalize any equity compensatiotheyears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we disuoed our CIGS solar systems business and as l tlesequity-based compensation
expense related to each CIGS solar systems busnmgdsyee has been classified as discontinued tipesan determining the consolidated
results of operations for the years ended Dece®ihe?2011. For the year ended December 31, 201brtistied operations included
compensation expense of $0.7 million.

As of December 31, 2013, the total unrecognizedpmameation cost related to nonvested stock awamdisgiion awards expected to vest is
$33.2 million and $12.3 million, respectively, ahe related weighted average period over which éxipected that such unrecognized
compensation costs will be recognized is approxiga8.1 years and 2.2 years for the nonvested staekds and for option awards,
respectively.

The fair value of each option granted during thargeended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, weasaést on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the followi assumptions:

For the year ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011
Weighted-average expected stock-price volatility 48% 5% 55%
Weightec-average expected option i 5 year: 5 year: 4 year
Average ris-free interest rat 1.27% 0.7(% 1.4(%
Average dividend yieli 0% 0% 0%

A summary of our restricted stock awards includiasfricted stock units as of December 31, 2013dsgnted below:

Weighted-
Average
Shares Grant-Date
(00C's) Fair Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( 69: $ 36.11
Grantec 79¢ 33.1¢
Vested (207) 32.4¢
Forfeited (including cancelled awards) (12¢6) 34.3¢
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( 1,15¢ ¢ 34.9:
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, we grat@&cb83 shares of restricted common stock andatest stock units to key employees,
which generally vest over a four year period. Ideld in this grant were 16,165 shares of restrictedmon stock granted to the non-employee
members of the Board of Directors, which vest dlierlesser of one year or at the time of the nertial meeting. The vested shares include
the impact of 71,342 shares of restricted stoclclviarere cancelled in 2013 due to employees elettimgceive fewer shares in lieu of paying
withholding taxes. The total fair value of shatesttvested during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $7.9 million, $5.4
million and $9.7 million, respectively.

A summary of our stock option plans as of the ywated December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Weightec- Remaining
Average Aggregate Contractual
Shares Exercise Intrinsic Life
(00C's) Price Value (00C's) (in years)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 232: % 28.6:
Grantec 53¢ 32.6¢
Exercisec (249 14.7¢
Forfeited (including cancelled options) (119 35.22
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 259 $ 299¢ $ 14,27 6.5
Options exercisable as of December 31, 2013 1567 ¢ 27.1¢ $ 13.20¢ 4.7

The weighted-average grant date fair value of stptions granted for the years ended December@13,2012 and 2011 was $13.47, $15.56
and $21.90 per option, respectively. The totalrnistc value of stock options exercised during tearg ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 was $2.5 million, $6.8 million and $22.8 naifl respectively.

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding as of December 31, 2013:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number Weighteco-Average Weightec- Number Weighted-

Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Average

December 31 Contractual Life Exercise December 31 Exercise

Range of Exercise Price 2013 (000s (in years) Price 2013 (000s Price

$8.82- 16.37 432 24 $ 10.9¢ 43z $ 10.9¢
17.48- 26.69 29¢€ 2.2 19.8¢ 27¢ 19.5¢
28.60- 42.96 1,601 8.2 33.4: 674 34.2i
44.09 - 51.70 26¢ 7.4 51.0z 183 50.9¢
2,59¢ 6. $ 29.9¢ 1567 $ 27.1¢

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance
As of December 31, 2013, we have 5,856,268 shaseswed for future issuance upon exercise of siptikns and grants of restricted stock.
Preferred Stocl

Our Board of Directors has authority under our {fieate of Incorporation to issue shares of prafdrstock with voting and economic rights to
be determined by the Board of Directors.
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Treasury Stock

On August 24, 2010, our Board of Directors auttemtithe repurchase of up to $200 million of our camrstock. All funds for this repurchase
program were exhausted as of August 19, 2011. Rbpses were made from time to time on the openeharlaccordance with applicable
federal securities laws. During 2011, we purchak&680,228 shares for $162 million (including trast&m costs) under the program at an
average cost of $38.96 per share. During 2010,mwehased 1,118,600 shares for $38 million (inclgdmansaction costs) under the progra
an average cost of $34.06 per share. This stoekekase is included as treasury stock in the Cateteld Balance Sheet as of December 31,
2011. During the year ended December 31, 2012 aneedled and retired the 5,278,828 shares of treasock we purchased under this
repurchase program. As a result of this transagctienrecorded a reduction in treasury stock of $20fillion and a corresponding reduction of
$200.1 million and $0.1 million in retained earrsregnd common stock, respectively.

9. Income Taxes

Our income (loss) from continuing operations befamme taxes in the accompanying Consolidate@Siants of Operations consists arf (
thousandy:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Domestic $ (84,94) $ 5811 $ 230,20:-
Foreign 13,73 32,37t 41,88:
$ (71210 $ 38,18 $ 272,08(

Significant components of the provision (benefit) income taxes from continuing operations aregrexi below {n thousands:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ (21,027 $ 2,51t % 59,92:
Foreign 3,921 7,57¢ 10,71«
State and local 14¢ (317) 80&
Total current provision (benefit) for income taxes (16,957 9,774 71,44(
Deferred:
Federal (11,589 (482) 10,45¢
Foreign (462) 727 (1,079
State and local 57 1,63¢ 765
Total deferred provision (benefit) for income taxes (11,999 1,88: 10,14
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (28,94) $ 11,657 $ 81,58/

The following is a reconciliation of the income tapovision (benefit) computed using the Federalistay rate to our actual income tax
provision (in thousands:
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Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Income tax provision (benefit) at U.S. statutoriesa $ (24,92) % 13,36t $ 95,23:
State income tax expense (benefit), net of federphct (1,559 (89 1,61¢
Nondeductible expens: 19t 622 (749
Domestic production activities deducti 1,55¢ (489) (4,587
Nondeductible compensatit 11 20t 841
Research and development tax cn (3,15)) (3,019 (4,675
Net change in valuation allowan 2,42( 2,94: 121
Change in accrual for unrecognized tax ben 577 53¢ 824
Foreign tax rate differenti (4,27%) (2,387) (5,22%)
Other 19¢ (34) (1,819
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (28,94) $ 11,65 $ 81,58¢

On January 2, 2013, the American Taxpayer Reli¢foh@012 was signed into law, and this legislatietroactively extended the research anc
development tax credit for 2 years, from Januard01L2 through December 31, 2013. Income tax befoef2013 includes $1.9 million for the
entire benefit of the research and developmentitadit attributable to 2012.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we determinedt thie may not meet the criteria required to recaigertain incentive tax rate pursuant to a
negotiated tax holiday in one foreign jurisdictiddthough we are continuing to negotiate the cigtdor the incentive, for financial reporting
purposes we have recorded additional tax provisiéi#9.9 million and $4.0 million in 2013 and 201&spectively, totaling $4.9 million whic
represents the cumulative effect of calculatingtéxeprovision using the incentive tax rate as careg to the foreign country’statutory rate.
we successfully renegotiate the incentive critehis, additional tax provision could be reverse dsture benefit in the period in which the
successful negotiations are finalized.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying anmohissets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢arpurposes.

On October 1, 2013, we acquired 100% of Synosal taitstanding stock. In connection with the actjois, we recorded a $32.4 million
deferred tax liability related to the differencevween the financial reporting amount and the tesishaf the assets acquired.

During 2012, we recorded a current tax benefitbi $nillion related to equity-based compensatioitivivas a credit to additional paid in
capital. We did not record any tax benefits reldatedquity-based compensation during 2013. Weasddit $0.5 million to additional paid-in
capital when the research and development crediteealized for financial reporting purposes.
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Significant components of our deferred tax assedisliabilities are as followsit thousand3:

December 31

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Inventory valuatior $ 6,98: $ 6,38¢
Domestic net operating loss carry forwa 5,58¢ 1,14¢
Tax credit carry forward 12,56¢ 4,14~
Foreign net operating loss carry forwa 821 —
Warranty and installation accrus 3,00z 2,17¢
Equity compensatio 10,63¢ 9,11«
Other accrual 2,55¢ 3,27(
Other 1,16( 76C
Total deferred tax assets 43,31: 26,99:
Valuation allowance (7,753) (4,70¢)
Net deferred tax assets 35,55¢ 22,28t
Deferred tax liabilities
Purchased intangible ass 45,20¢ 9,97:
Undistributed earning 1,735 1,09t
Depreciation 4,711 7,014
Total deferred tax liabilities 51,65¢ 18,08
Net deferred taxe $ (16,099 $ 4,20¢

No provision has been made as of December 31, 201Mited States or additional foreign withholditaxes on approximately $101.0 milli
of undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiafecause it is the present intention of managetm@ermanently reinvest the undistributed
earnings of our foreign subsidiaries in China, 8dbrea, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan. As itusiotention to reinvest those earnings
permanently, it is not practicable to estimateahmunt of tax that might be payable if they weraiteed. In the fourth quarter of 2013, we
changed our assertion relating to Japan and sunoiga will no longer be permanently reinvesteddolsn the future liquidation of our
Japanese entity. We have provided deferred incarestand future withholding taxes on the earnihgswe anticipate will be remitted.

As of December 31, 2013, we have credit carry fodsaf approximately $12.6 million for financialp@rting purposes, consisting primarily
foreign tax credits, which expire between 2022 2083, federal research and development creditshadipire between 2031 and 2033, and
various state tax credits which expire at varioaes through 2028.

Our valuation allowance of approximately $7.8 miflias of December 31, 2013 increased by approxiyn®80 million during the year then
ended. The increase relates primarily to statd@eal deferred tax assets of $1.6 million and fgmetiax attributes of $1.4 million for which we
could not conclude were realizable on a more-likbpn-not basis.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follown thousandy:

December 31

2013 2012
Beginning balance as of December 31 $ 581¢ % 4,74¢
Additions for tax positions related to current y 324 43t
Reductions for tax positions related to current — —
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 477 742
Reductions for tax positions related to prior ye (229 (59)
Reductions due to the lapse of the applicable tetatulimitations — (48)
Settlements (167) —
Ending balance as of December 31 $ 6,22¢ $ 5,81¢

We do not anticipate that our uncertain tax positidll change significantly within the next twelweonths subject to the completion of our
ongoing federal tax audit and any resultant setlgm

Of the amounts reflected in the table above assafeinber 31, 2013, the entire amount if recognizedldvreduce our effective tax rate. It is
our policy to recognize interest and penaltiesteeldo income tax matters in income tax expense.tdtal accrual for interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits was approxim&0.8 million and $0.5 million as of December, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We or one of our subsidiaries file income tax nesun the United States federal jurisdiction andouss state, local and foreign jurisdictions.
All material federal income tax matters have beamctuded for years through 2006 subject to subsgqu#ization of net operating losses
generated in such years. Our 2010 federal taxirésuzurrently under examination. All material stahd local income tax matters have been
reviewed through 2008 with one state jurisdictionrently under examination for open tax years betw2007 and 2011. The majority of our
foreign jurisdictions have been reviewed througB2Principally all of our foreign jurisdictionsmain open with respect to the 2010 through
2013 tax years.

10. Commitments and Contingencies and Other Matter
Restructuring and Other Charg

During 2011 through 2013, in response to challemgusiness conditions, we initiated activitieséduce and contain spending, including
reducing our workforce, consultants and discretipmxpenses.

In conjunction with these activities, we recognizestructuring charges of approximately $1.5 mil)i#3.8 million and $1.3 million during the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctasghe. During the years ended December 31, 2012011, we also recorded invent
write-offs of $1.0 million related to a discontirduproduct line in our Data Storage segment and $dll®n related to a discontinued product
line in our LED & Solar segment, respectively. Tdh@sventory write-offs are included in cost of saile the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Restructuring expense for the years ended Dece®iheé¥013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows thousand$:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Personnel severance and related costs $ 1,48t % 3,04C $ 1,28¢
Equity compensation and related cc — 414 —
Lease-related and other — 35¢ —

$ 1,48 % 3,81 $ 1,28¢
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Personnel Severance and Related C

During 2013, we recorded $1.5 million in persors@lerance and related costs resulting from theuctating of one of our international sales
offices and the consolidation of certain salesjri®ss and administrative functions. During 2012 reerded $3.0 million in personnel
severance and related costs resulting from a heatlceduction of 52 employees. During 2011, we réed $1.3 million in personnel
severance and related costs related to a compaayeuganization resulting in a headcount reduatfodb employees. These reductions in
workforce included executives, management, admatish, sales and service personnel and manufagterployees’ companywide.
Leas+Related and Other

During 2012, we recorded $0.4 million in other asated costs resulting from a headcount reductfdB2employees. These charges primarily
consist of job placement services, consulting @hacation expenses, as well as duplicate wagesraatduring the transition period.

The following is a reconciliation of the liabilifpr the 2013, 2012 and 2011 restructuring chargesigh December 31, 2013(thousandy:

LED & Solar Data Storage Unallocated Total

Short-term liability

Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ — $ 17¢  $ 53¢ $ 714
Personnel severance and related costs 672 51 311 1,03¢
Personnel severance and related costs 874 1,68¢ 13E 2,69¢
Personnel severance and related costs 1,017 41C 58 1,48¢
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 201 — 58 — 58
Cash payments 20: (13¢) (159 (559 (850)
Cash payments 20: (960) (504) (310 (1,779
Cash payments 2013 (1,287 (1,36¢) (177) (2,827
Balance as of December 31, 20: $ 182 % 35C $ — $ 532
Long-term liability

Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ — $ 58 $ — $ 58
Short-term/long-term reclassification 2011 — (58) — (58)
Balance as of December 31, 20: $ — 3% — 3 — 3% —

Minimum Lease Commitmer

Minimum lease commitments as of December 31, 208 property and equipment under operating leaseeagents (exclusive of renewal
options) are payable as followi(thousandy:

2014 $ 3,07¢
2015 2,091
2016 1,327
2017 1,052
2018 53€

$ 8,082

Rent amounted to $2.9 million, $3.5 million and%illion in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyatidition, we are obligated under such
leases for certain other expenses, including i€ate taxes and insurance.
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Environmental Remediatic

We are aware that petroleum hydrocarbon contanoinditas been detected in the soil at the site atititf formerly leased by us in Santa
Barbara, California. We have been indemnified for Babilities we may incur which arise from envimental contamination at the site. Even
without consideration of such indemnification, werbt believe that any material loss or expengedabable in connection with any such
liabilities. The former owner of the land and binlglin Santa Barbara, California in which our fometrology operations were located,
which business (sold to Bruker on October 7, 20083, disclosed that there are hazardous substaresnt in the ground under the building.
Management believes that the comprehensive indaatidn clause that was part of the purchase contedating to the purchase of such land
provides adequate protection against any envirotah&ssues that may arise. We have provided Briridemnification as part of the sale.

Litigation

Veeco and certain other parties were named asdefiénin a lawsuit filed on April 25, 2013 in thep@rior Court of California, County of
Sonoma. The plaintiff in the lawsuit, Patrick Cadbseeks unspecified damages and asserts claitigetsaffered burns and other injuries
while he was cleaning a molecular beam epitaxyesystlleged to have been manufactured by Veecolalmuit alleges, among other things,
that the molecular beam epitaxy system was defeetind that Veeco failed to adequately warn of titertial risks of the system. Veeco
believes this lawsuit is without merit and intendslefend vigorously against the claims. Veeaaniable to predict the outcome of this action
or to reasonably estimate the possible loss orerafdpss, if any, arising from the claims assettestein. The Company believes that, in the
event of any recovery by the plaintiff from Veesach recovery would be fully covered by Veeco’sinasce.

We are involved in various other legal proceediagsing in the normal course of our business. Waatdelieve that the ultimate resolutior
these matters will have a material adverse effeaiw consolidated financial position, results pérations or cash flows.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our business depends in large part upon the capifenditures of our top ten customers, which agtsalifor 69% and 77% of total accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, régplyc Of such, LED & Solar and Data Storage custos accounted for approximately
30% and 39%, and 56% and 21%, respectively, of émtsounts receivable as of December 31, 2013 amd.2

Customers who accounted for more than 10% of ogreggte accounts receivable or net sales arelawol

Accounts Receivable Net Sales for the year ende
December 31 December 31
Customer Segment 2013 2012 2013 2012 2011
Customer A Data Storag: 23% 16% * 11% *
Customer E Data Storag: 11% * * * *
Customer C LED & Solar 10% 1€% 14% * *
Customer C LED & Solar * * * * 11%
Customer E LED & Solar * * * * 12%

* Less than 10% of aggregate accounts receivahiesales.
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We manufacture and sell our products to companiéiffierent geographic locations. In certain ins&8) we require deposits for a portion of
the sales price in advance of shipment. We perfmgriodic credit evaluations of our customers’ ficiahcondition and, where appropriate,
require that letters of credit be provided on darfareign sales arrangements. Receivables gepenaldue within 30-90 days, other than
receivables generated from customers in Japan vgagmaent terms generally range from 60-150 days.n@uaccounts receivable balance is
concentrated in the following geographic locati¢msthousands:

December 31

2013 2012
China $ 484t % 28,13
Singapore 3,192 7,26¢
Taiwan B5Z 6,39(
Other 6,162 3,85¢
Asia Pacific 14,75: 45,64
Americas 7,52¢ 13,917
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,54t 3,611

$ 23,82: $ 63,16¢

Suppliers

We currently outsource certain functions to thiedtjes, including the manufacture of all or substdly all of our new MOCVD systems, Data
Storage systems and ion sources. We primarilyaelgeveral suppliers for the manufacturing of ttstems. We plan to maintain some leve
of internal manufacturing capability for these sys$. The failure of our present suppliers to meeit tontractual obligations under our supply
arrangements and our inability to make alternagivangements or resume the manufacture of thetensysurselves could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, profitability, céalvs and relationships with our customers.

In addition, certain of the components and sub+ab$ies included in our products are obtained frosingle source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our inability to develop alternative sms, if necessary, could result in a prolongeeriaption in supply or a significant increase in
the price of one or more components, which coulceeskly affect our operating results.

Purchase Commitmen

As of December 31, 2013, we had purchase commismetaling $60.3 million all of which come due wiittone year. We have $9.4 million
offsetting supplier deposits against these purchasenitments as of December 31, 2013.

Lines of Credit and Guarante:

As of December 31, 2013, we had letter of credit bank guarantees issued by a bank on our behafexted. We had letters of credit
outstanding of $0.6 million and bank guaranteestanting of $5.9 million, of which, $2.7 million t®llateralized against cash that is restri
from use. As of December 31, 2013, we had $40.4omibf unused lines of credit available. The lofecredit is available to draw upon to
cover performance bonds as required by our custamer

11. Foreign Operations, Geographic Area and ProducSegment Information

Net sales which are attributed to the geograpluation in which the customer facility is locatedldanc-lived tangible assets related to
operations in the United States and other foremmtries as of and for the years ended Decembe&2@®B, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (
thousand9:
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Net Sales to Unaffiliated

Customers Long-Lived Tangible Assets
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Americas (1) $ 57,60¢ $ 83,317 $ 100,63 $ 66,00 $ 74,497 $ 67,78¢
Europe, Middle East and Africa ( 21,94: 41,70¢ 57,61% 95 36 203
Asia Pacific (1) 252,19¢ 390,99! 820,88 23,04: 23,76¢ 20,41

$ 331,74¢ $ 516,02( $ 979,13 $ 89,13¢ $ 98,30: $ 88,40¢

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2013, net salasstomers in China were 44.8% of total netssdter the year ended December 31, 2
net sales to customers in China and Taiwan we@42nd 11.4% of total net sales, respectively.tkeryear ended December 31, 2011, net
sales to customers in China were 66.4% of totabakss. No other country in Europe, Middle East, Africa (‘EMEA”) and Asia Pacific
(“APAC™) accounted for more than 10% of our netesafor the years presented. A minimal amount,tless 1%, of sales included within the
Americas caption above have been derived from atfggons outside of the United States.

We have five identified reporting units that we egggate into two reportable segments: the VIBE amaanical reporting units which are
reported in our Data Storage segment; and the MOQWBE and ALD reporting units are reported in ol & Solar segment. We manage
the business, review operating results and asseksipance, as well as allocate resources, basau ayr reporting units that reflect the
market focus of each business. The LED & Solar ssgroonsists of metal organic chemical vapor dejpos{(*MOCVD"”) systems, molecular
beam epitaxy (“MBE”) systems, thermal depositioarses and other types of deposition systems asaselewly acquired atomic layer
deposition (“ALD”) technology. These systems aren@rrily sold to customers in the LED, OLED and satalustries, as well as to scientific
research customers. This segment has product ¢gieweld and marketing sites in Somerset, New JePmyghkeepsie, New York, St. Paul,
Minnesota, Fremont, California, and Korea. Durifdd. 2 we discontinued our CIGS solar systems busitesated in Tewksbury,
Massachusetts and Clifton Park, New York. The Htaage segment consists of the ion beam etciidam deposition, diamond-like carbon,
physical vapor deposition, and dicing and slicingdoicts sold primarily to customers in the dataegje industry. This segment has product
development and marketing sites in Plainview, Newky Ft. Collins, Colorado and Camarillo, Califani

We evaluate the performance of our reportable satpriEsed on income (loss) from operations befdezdst, income taxes, amortization and
certain items (“segment profit (loss)”), which etprimary indicator used to plan and forecastreuperiods. The presentation of this financial
measure facilitates meaningful comparison withpperiods, as management believes segment pradi)(Feports baseline performance and
thus provides useful information. Certain itemdude restructuring expenses, asset impairment eBangventory write-offs, equity-based
compensation expense and other non-recurring it€hesaccounting policies of the reportable segmargghe same as those described in the
summary of critical accounting policies.

The following tables present certain data pertgnmour reportable product segments and a recatioii of segment profit (loss) to income
(loss) from continuing operations, before incomestafor the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@&hH and goodwill and total assets as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):
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Year ended December 31, 2013

Net sales

Segment loss

Interest income (expense), |

Amortization

Equity-based compensatic

Restructuring

Asset impairment char¢

Changes in contingent consideration

Income (loss) from continuing operations beformme taxes

Year ended December 31, 201

Net sales

Segment profit (loss)

Interest income (expense), |

Amortization

Equity-based compensatic

Restructuring

Asset impairment char¢

Other

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes

Year ended December 31, 2011
Net sales

Segment profit (loss)

Interest income (expense), |
Amortization

Equity-based compensatic
Restructuring

Asset impairment char¢

Other

Loss on extinguishment of debt
Income (loss) from continuing operations befor@me taxes

Data

LED & Solar Storage Unallocated Total
$ 249,74. $ 82,007 $ — 3 331,74¢
$ (26,362 $ (671 $ (22,589 $ (49,627
— — 60z 60z
(4,239 (1,294 — (5,527)
(5,126 (1,709 (6,307 (13,130
(1,017 (410 (59 (1,485
(1,179 (46) — (1,220
(829) — — (829)
$ (38,74) $ (4,129 % (28,345 % (71,210
$ 363,18: $ 152,83¢ $ — $ 516,02(
$ 41,60: $ 25,41 $ (4,919$ 62,09¢
— 974 974
(3,586 (1,329 — (4,909
(5,400 (1,920 (6,539 (13,85/)
(1,239 (2,529 (59 (3,819
— (1,335 — (1,335
— (976) — (976)
$ 31,38 $ 17,34( $ (10,539 $ 38,18¢
$ 827,79° $ 151,33t $ — $ 979,13!
$ 267,05¢ $ 38,35¢ $ (8,987) % 296,43
— — (824) (824)
(3,227 (1,429 (83 (4,739
(3,479 (1,45¢) (7,876) (12,807
(204) (12) (1,079 (1,28¢)
(584) — — (584)
(75¢) — — (75¢€)
— — (3,349 (3,349
$ 258,81. $ 35,46¢ $ (22,19) $ 272,08¢

Unallocated assets are comprised principally ol gasl cash equivalents and short-term investmem$ Becember 31, 2013 and 2012.
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LED & Solar Data Storage Unallocated Total
As of December 31, 2013
Goodwill $ 91,34¢ $ — $ — $ 91,34¢
Total asset $ 359,46: $ 3791( $ 550,59! $ 947,96¢
As of December 31, 2012
Goodwill $ 55,82¢ $ — 8 — 8 55,82¢
Total asset $ 276,35: $ 38,66 $ 622,28{ $ 937,30
Other Segment Datair{ thousand$:
Year ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Depreciation and amortization expen

LED & Solar $ 14,36¢ $ 12,02( $ 8,32(

Data Storag: 2,901 3,00¢ 3,24¢

Unallocated 1,158 1,164 1,327

Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 18,42 $ 16,19: $ 12,89:
Expenditures for lor-lived assets

LED & Solar $ 6,79¢ $ 20,27¢ $ 56,14:

Data Storag 1,271 3,341 2,708

Unallocated 1,10¢ 1,37¢ 1,52(

Total expenditures for long-lived assets $ 9,17t $ 2499 $ 60,36¢

12. Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to minimilze impact of foreign exchange rate changes aniregg and cash flows. In the normal
course of business, our operations are exposéddidtions in foreign exchange rates. In ordeettuce the effect of fluctuating foreign
currencies on short-term foreign currency-denoneid@tercompany transactions and other known fareigrency exposures, we enter into
monthly forward contracts. We do not use derivafimancial instruments for trading or speculativegmses. Our forward contracts are not
expected to subject us to material risks due th&xge rate movements because gains and lossessancibntracts are intended to offset
exchange gains and losses on the underlying aamseétéabilities. The forward contracts are markestiarket through earnings. We conduct
derivative transactions with highly rated finandratitutions in an effort to mitigate any mategalunterparty risk.

As of December 31, 201

Fair Maturity Notional
(in thousands) Component of Value Dates Amount
Not Designated as Hedges under ASC
Foreign currency exchange forwai Prepaid and other current ass 1 January 201 4,70(
Foreign currency collar Prepaid and other current ass 90€ October 201 34,06¢
Total Derivative Instruments $ 907 $ 38,76
As of December 31, 201
Fair Maturity Notional
(in thousands) Component of Value Dates Amount
Not Designated as Hedges under ASC
Foreign currency exchange forwards  Prepaid and other current ass 24¢  January 201 9,59(
Total Derivative Instruments $ 24¢ $ 9,59(
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Amount of realized net gain (loss
and changes in the fair value o

Location of realized net gain derivatives for the year endec
(loss) and changes in the fai December 31
(in thousands) value of derivatives 2013 2012 2011
Foreign currency exchange forwal Other, ne $ 248 $ 338 % 55%
Foreign currency colle Other, ne $ 90€¢ $ — 3 —

These contracts were valued using market quotdgeisecondary market for similar instruments (falue Level 2, please see our footnote
Fair Value Measuremen).

The weighted average notional amount of derivatimetracts outstanding during the year ended DeceBihe2013 and 2012 was
approximately $5.2 million and $3.5 million, respeely

13. Retirement Plans

We maintain a defined contribution benefit plan em8ection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.a8inall of our domestic full-time
employees are eligible to participate in this pldnder the plan during 2011, we provided matchiogtigbutions of fifty cents for every dollar
employees contribute up to a maximum of $3,000iru2012, we provided matching contributions dfyfiéents for every dollar employees
contribute, up to the lesser of 3% of the employedigible compensation or $7,500. During 2013 pnavided a matching contributions of fi
cents for every dollar employees contribute, ughtolesser of 3% of the employee’s eligible compéne or $7,650. Generally, the plan calls
for vesting of Company contributions over the alifive years of a participast’employment. We maintain a similar type of contiibn plan a
one of our foreign subsidiaries. Our contributibmshese plans in 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $21Bmi$2.5 million and $2.1 million,
respectively.

We acquired a defined benefit plan on May 5, 20@@ had been frozen as of September 30, 1991. tfeefubenefits since September 30, 1
accrued to any participant. The benefit that pgudicts are entitled to receive as of their norretitement date is their accrued benefit as of
September 30, 1991. In connection with the freepintpe Plan as of September 30, 1991, all paditip became fully vested in their benefit.
The Plan is subject to the provisions of the EmpdoRetirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISAThis plan has a plan year end of
September 30. There are 110 participants in te @b of September 30, 2013. The plan is fundaddordance with ERISA guidelines and
has $1.6 million in contract assets as of Septerd®ge2013.

14. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unawlited)

The following table presents selected unauditegrfoial data for each fiscal quarter of 2013 and22@lthough unaudited, this information F
been prepared on a basis consistent with our al@ibmsolidated Financial Statements and, in theiopiof our management, reflects all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurringuatinents) that we consider necessary for a fasgmtation of this information in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States. Such quarterly resuéishot necessarily indicative of future
results of operations.
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Fiscal 2013 (unaudited’ Fiscal 2012 (unaudited’
(in thousands, except per share datz Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Net sale: $ 61,78 $ 9743t $ 9932 $ 7320¢ $ 139,90 $ 136,54 $ 132,71! $ 106,84
Gross profit 22,55: 34,64( 30,30¢ 15,64 65,26¢ 61,25« 49,88 38,727
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net abime
taxes (20,077) (4,087 (6,02¢) (22,08Y) 16,46: 11,01 7,69¢ (8,647
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehcbme
taxes — — — — (50) 807 4,05¢ (419
Net income (loss $ (1007)$ (408) % (60208 (22,089 1641: $ 1181 $ 11,750 $ (9,059
Income (loss) per common sha
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 0.26) $ 0.10) % (0.16) $ 0.57) $ 04: $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2C $ (0.29)
Discontinued operations — — — — — 0.0z 0.1C (0.07)
Income (loss $ (0.20 $ 010 $ 0.10 $ (057 $ 04: $ 031 $ 0.3C $ (0.29
Diluted :
Continuing operation $ (0.2¢) $ 0.1 % (0.1¢) $ 0.57) % 04z $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2C $ (0.22)
Discontinued operatior — — — — — 0.0z 0.1C (0.07)
Income (loss $ (0.26) $ (0.1 $ (0.16) $ (0.579) $ 04z $ 03C $ 03C $ (0.2%)
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 38,71¢ 38,76¢ 38,84 38,90« 38,26! 38,37( 38,57 38,69¢
Diluted 38,71¢ 38,76+ 38,84: 38,90 38,861 38,98¢ 39,16¢ 38,69¢

A variety of factors influence the level of our setes in a particular quarter including econonoieditions in the LED, solar, data storage and
semiconductor industries, the timing of significanders, shipment delays, specific feature requmstaistomers, the introduction of new
products by us and our competitors, productionguality problems, changes in material costs, disoagn sources of supply, seasonal
patterns of capital spending by customers, intéagion and application of accounting principles ather factors, many of which are beyond
our control. In addition, we derive a substanti@itipn of our revenues from the sale of producthwiselling price of up to $8.0 million. As a
result, the timing of recognition of revenue froreiagle transaction could have a significant imgacbur net sales and operating results in ar
given quarter.

Synos Acquisition

On October 1, 2013 (“the Acquisition Date”), Veemmuired 100% of the outstanding common sharewatinng interest of Synos. The results
of Synos’ operations have been included in the aodeted financial statements since that date. Syman early stage manufacturer of fast
array scanning atomic layer deposition (“FAST-ALDSpls for OLED and other applications. As a resiithe acquisition, the Company has
entered the FAST-ALD market which is complimentaryhe Company’s MOCVD LED offerings.

Metrology Divestiture

On August 15, 2010, we signed a definitive agredrteesell our Metrology business to Bruker compmigsour entire Metrology reporting
segment for $229.4 million. Accordingly, Metrologydperating results are accounted for as discaedimperations in determining the
consolidated results of operations. The sale taimsaclosed on October 7, 2010, except for adeetded in China due to local restrictions.
Total proceeds, which included a working capitguatinent of $1 million, totaled $230.4 million otweh $7.2 million relates to the assets in
China. As part of our agreement with Bruker,

F-42




Table of Contents

Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contiraal)
December 31, 2013

$22.9 million of proceeds was held in escrow and restricted from use for one year following thesahg date of the transaction to secure
certain specified losses arising out of breachesmfesentations, warranties and covenants we indbe stock purchase agreement and re
documents. The restriction relating to the escropredeeds was released on October 6, 2011. A®pHre sale we incurred transaction costs,
which consisted of investment banking fees and  liegss, totaling $5.2 million. During the fourthayter of 2010, we recognized a pre-tax gair
on disposal of $156.3 million and a pre-tax defégain of $5.4 million related to the assets inn@hi We recognized into income the pre-tax
deferred gain of $5.4 million during the third quearof 2012 related to the completion of the sdlihe assets in China to Bruker.

Other Quarterly Items

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded aspairment charges in LED & Solar of $0.9 millicglated to certain tools previously used
in our laboratories carried in property, plant &ogiipment which we are holding for sale and $0.8onirelated to another asset carried in
other assets. During the fourth quarter of 2012reeerded an asset impairment charge of $1.3 mititated to a particular asset in our Data
Storage segment.

During 2012, we took measures to improve profitghilncluding a reduction in discretionary expensealignment of our senior managemen
team and consolidation of certain sales, businedsdministrative functions. As a result of thestoas, we recorded a $3.8 million
restructuring charge consisting of $3.0 milliorpersonnel severance and related costs, $0.4 miliequity compensation and related costs
and $0.4 million in other severance costs resuliiam a headcount reduction of 52 employees. Werdsd $2.0 million of these charges in
the third quarter of 2012 and $1.8 million of thebarges in the fourth quarter of 2012 with theahaé recorded in the first quarter of 2012.

As a result of the delay in filing our Form 10-Q faeptember 30, 2012 (“Q3 10-Q"), we were requtedvaluate the impact of events and
circumstances occurring through the date of thegfibf the Q3 133. After considering declines in systems shipmants parts usage occurri
though the date of the filing of the Q3 10-Q, wéetmined that an increase in our reserve for slawing and obsolete inventory was
warranted and resulted in us recording a totalgdhaf $7.2 million to cost of sales in the thirchgier of 2012. The evaluation resulted in
relatively lower provisions for inventory resen@ser the first three quarters of 2013. We recoraéd.8 million charge to cost of sales for
inventory write downs in the fourth quarter of 2ah2at related to a terminated program. The effadhe comparative statements above was t
reduce gross profit for September 30, 2012 comptaredl other periods presented.

Out of Period Adjustment

We identified net cumulative errors which overstateamulative net income from continuing operatidtmeugh December 31, 2011 by $0.6
million and net cumulative errors that understatetincome from continuing operations in the sixwthgperiod ended June 30, 2012 by $1.1
million. As a result, in the third quarter of 2012 recorded adjustments to correct all prior griesulting in an increase in income from
continuing operations of $0.5 million.
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Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in thousands)

COL. A COL. B COL.C COL. D COL. E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Deducted from asset accour
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 49z 1,94¢ $ — — 3 2,43¢
Valuation allowance in net deferred tax assets 4,70¢ 2,42( 62¢ — 7,752
$ 5,20( 4366 $ 62F — 3 10,19:
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 46¢ 196 $ — 1749 $ 49z
Valuation allowance in net deferred tax assets 1,76¢ 2,94: — — 4,70¢
$ 2,23: 3,141  $ — (174 $ 5,20(
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 512 — % — 44) $ 46¢
Valuation allowance in net deferred tax assets 1,64¢ — — 121 1,76¢
$ 2,15¢ —  $ — 77 $ 2,23¢
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “ Agreement) is entered into as of this 18 day of SeptemB6d,3, by and
among (i) Veeco Instruments Inc., a Delaware caton (“ Parent), (i) Veeco Wyoming Inc., a Delaware corporatiand a (directly or
indirectly) wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent_(* Mer Sub’), (iii) Synos Technology, Inc., a Delaware coragtion (the “ Company),

(iv) llsong Lee, Sang-In Lee and Daniel C. Rubiacfea “_Significant Stockholdérand collectively the * Significant Stockholdebsand

(v) Shareholder Representative Services LLC, ar@dmlimited liability company solely in its capgcas Stockholders’ Representative (as
defined herein). Parent, Merger Sub, the ComptireySignificant Stockholders and the StockholdBepresentative are referred to herein
individually as a “ Party and collectively as the * Partie’s Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defimerein have the meanings given
to such terms as set forth_in Appendihéreto.

WHEREAS , the respective Boards of Directors of Merger 8nt the Company deem it advisable and in the heseists of such
corporations and their respective stockholdersiMeter Sub be merged with and into the Companly thié Company being the surviving
corporation (the * Mergel), upon the terms and subject to the conditiorigarh in this Agreement;

WHEREAS , such Boards of Directors have approved the Memesuant to which among other things, and sulbfettte terms and
conditions of this Agreement, all of the issued aotstanding capital stock of the Company and jatiloms, warrants and other rights to acquire
or receive any shares of capital stock of the Camshall be converted into the right to receive Merger Consideration set forth herein;

WHEREAS , concurrently with the execution and deliverytugtAgreement, and as a material inducement tonParel Merger Sub
to enter into this Agreement, (i) each of the eryipérs identified on Appendix-B (the “ Key Signing Employe€$ shall have entered into an
employment arrangement with Parent or a subsidieseof to be effective as of the Closing Dated@fined below) pursuant to his or her
execution of an offer letter, a non-disclosure agrent and a non-competition and remiicitation agreement in forms provided to the @army
by Parent (such offer letters and agreements, Key*Employee Agreementy, (ii) each of the stakeholders of the Compargnitified on
Appendix B-2 shall have entered into a non-comjoetibnd non-solicitation agreement in forms prodite the Company by Parent (such
agreements, the * Key Stakeholder AgreemBntand (iii) each Person who may receive any payand/or benefits referred to in
Section 6.12(e) hereof has executed and deliverdtetCompany a 280G Waiver, substantially in trenfattached hereto as Exhibit(&“
280G Waiver’;

WHEREAS , approval of the principal terms of the Mergeruiegs the Requisite Vote, and immediately afterekecution and
delivery hereof, the Company shall submit this Agnent and the Merger to the Stockholders for apgroy written consent in lieu of a spe:
meeting of the Stockholders pursuant to the aplplécprovisions of the DGCL; and

WHEREAS , the Company, on the one hand, and Parent andev8ig, on the other hand, desire to make cempiresentations,
warranties, covenants and other agreements in cbanavith the Merger and also to prescribe varicoisditions to the Merger.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the premises and the mutt@hses herein made, and in consideration of the
representations, warranties, and covenants heoailaioed, the Parties agree as follows:
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ARTICLE |
THE MERGER

1.1 The Merger. At the Effective Time (as defined in Section)laBd subject to and upon the terms and conditbtisis
Agreement and the DGCL, (i) Merger Sub shall mevgh and into the Company, and the separate compavastence of Merger Sub shall
thereupon cease, (ii) the Company shall be the\dngvcorporation in the Merger (sometimes herdigrafeferred to as the_* Surviving
Corporation”) and shall continue to be governed by the DGCh &girectly or indirectly) wholly owned subsidiao§ Parent, and (iii) the
separate existence of the Company with all ofstsets, property rights, privileges, immunities, posvand franchises shall continue unaffectec
by the Merger.

1.2 Effective Time. As promptly as practicable after the satisfattio waiver of the conditions set forth in Articlel and VIl
(other than those conditions that by their natuecta be satisfied at the Closing, but subjech&datisfaction or waiver of such conditions),
no earlier than October 1, 2013, the Parties hestedti cause the Merger to be consummated byli(ipfa certificate of merger (theCertificate
of Merger”) in such form as is required by, and executeddoordance with, the relevant provisions of the DG&hich Certificate of Merger
shall be substantially in the form attached heast&xhibit B, and (ii) making such other filings and takinglswther actions as may be
required by Law to make the Merger effective heatar. The Merger shall become effective at suatle @nd time as the Certificate of Merger
is accepted for filing by with the Secretary oft8taf the State of Delaware or at such later datetine as may be permitted or required by th
DGCL and specified in the Certificate of Mergerrhytual agreement of Parent, Merger Sub and the @oynfihe date and time the Merger
becomes effective being the * Effective Tif)e

1.3 Effect of the Merger At the Effective Time, the effect of the Mergall be as provided in this Agreement, in the
Certificate of Merger and in the applicable proweis of the DGCL. Without limiting the generalitf/tbe foregoing, and subject thereto, at the
Effective Time all the assets, property, rightsyifgges, immunities, powers and franchises of ezfdhe Company and Merger Sub shall vest
in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, ligtles and duties of each of the Company and MeSgdr shall become the debts, liabilities and
duties of the Surviving Corporation.

1.4 Certificate of Incorporation; Bylaws At the Effective Time and without any furthetiao on the part of the Patrties, (i) the
certificate of incorporation of the Merger Sub $tha& amended so as to be in the form attacheddaseExhibit Cand (ii) the bylaws of the
Merger Sub in effect immediately prior to the Effee Time shall be the bylaws of the Surviving Gangttion, until thereafter amended or
repealed in accordance with their terms, as praligtethe Surviving Corporation’s certificate otorporation and as provided by Law.

15 Directors and Officers The directors of Merger Sub immediately priothe Effective Time shall be the initial directafs
the Surviving Corporation, each to hold office atardance with the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation
until their respective successors are duly eleoteappointed and qualified or until their earlieath, resignation or removal in accordance witl
the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of Berviving Corporation. The officers of Merger Sabmediately prior to the Effective Time
shall be the initial officers of the Surviving Comation.

1.6 Effect of Merger on Capital Stock

(a) The aggregate maximum consideration (the “ Merg@rsitieratiorf) to be paid in exchange for the acquisition by
Parent and Merger Sub of all outstanding Compangksand all outstanding unexpired and unexerciggids that have vested prior to
Closing or that will vest in




connection with Closing, warrants or other riglatsitquire or receive any vested Company Stockyif and for the other covenants of the
Company provided in this Agreement shall be, suligpadjustment as provided herein, an amount equ@l the Closing Amount, plu@) the
Initial Order Cash Consideration (if any), plii§ the Performance Amount (if any), pl(is) such portion of the Escrow Amount (if any)
actually distributed to the Participating Holdetsguant to the terms herein, plus (v) the Posti@fpadjustment (if any) payable to the
Participating Holders pursuant to the terms hefean.the avoidance of doubt and notwithstandingtaing herein to the contrary, the Payme
Administrator shall not be responsible for procegsiny payments to be made at Closing, includirthawuit limitation the Closing Amount, but
shall only be responsible for processing the ptistieg payments expressly ascribed to it hereufweich in no event shall include any
amounts subject to wage or payroll tax withholding)

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrestmat the Effective Time, by virtue of the Mergard without an
action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub, the hradflany shares of Company Stock or Merger Sub Com8tock, each share of Company
Stock (excluding any Restricted Shares to be exgddpursuant to Section 1.9(c)) issued and outstgrichmediately prior to the Effective
Time shall automatically cease to be outstandirnydmall be canceled and retired and shall ceasgisband will be converted automatically
following the surrender of the certificate repragemsuch shares of Company Stock in the mannariged in Section 1.14, into the right to
receive, that portion, if any, of the Merger Comsation, without interest, as set forth below:

() each share of Series A Preferred Stock issued atstaoding immediately prior to the Effective Time
(excluding any shares of Series A Preferred Stodletcanceled pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iii) amd@issenting Shares as defined in and to
the extent provided in Section 1.15) shall be ckatcand converted automatically into the rightdogaive (A) an amount in cash, without
interest, equal to the Series A Per Share Closimguxt, plugB) the contingent right to receive, in accordanit Section 1.7 hereof, an
amount equal to the Pro Rata Initial Order Cashs@amation (if any), plugC) the contingent right to receive, in accordawié Section 1.8
hereof, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Performamzaint (if any), plugD) an amount in cash, without interest, equah®sgroduct of
(x) the Pro Rata Share multiplied by (y) any pratseer distributions of the Escrow Amount (if, wheemd to the extent distributed to the
Participating Holders pursuant to the terms hergih)s (E) an amount in cash, without interest,aétuthe product of (x) the Pro Rata Share
multiplied by (y) the Post-Closing Adjustment (ifhen and to the extent distributed to the PartiaigaHolders pursuant to the terms herein);
provided, however, that, notwithstanding anything in this Agreeminthe contrary, upon allocation of Merger Considien (including, for
the avoidance of doubt, the Pro Rata Share of sleeoly Amount and Post{osing Adjustment, as applicable, initially allbdato each share
Series A Preferred Stock, whether or not actuatifributed to the Participating Holders) in the aggte equal to $21.00 per share of Series £
Preferred Stock, no holder of shares of SeriesefidPted Stock may receive any further distributiohMerger Consideration in respect of s
shares; providedfurther, that any funds that remain undistributed follogvapplication of the immediately preceding pro\ite “ Series A
Overflow Funds' and together with the Warrant Overflow Funds, ‘ti@@verflow Funds’) shall be distributed in accordance with Sectlo@(b)
(ii) below.

(i) each share of Company Common Stock issued andandisy immediately prior to the Effective Time
(excluding any shares of Company Common Stock tcalbeeled pursuant to Section 1.6(b)(iii) and amssénting Shares as defined in and to
the extent provided in Section 1.16) shall be cketcand converted automatically into the rightdoaive: (A) an amount in cash, without
interest, equal to the Common Per Share Closingux@lus(B) the contingent right to receive, in accordawith Section 1.7 hereof, an
amount equal to the Pro Rata Initial Order Cashs@amation (if any), plug§C) the contingent right to receive, in accordawith Section 1.8
hereof, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Performamzaint (if any), plugD) an amount in cash, without interest, equah®groduct of
(x) the Pro Rata Share multiplied by (y) any praiseer distributions of the
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Escrow Amount (if, when and to the extent distrézlito the Stockholders pursuant to the terms heqgls(E) an amount in cash, without
interest, equal to the product of (x) the Pro R&ttare multiplied by (y) the Post-Closing Adjustm@htwhen and to the extent distributed to
the Participating Holders pursuant to the termeingrplus(F) an amount in cash, without interest, equah#product of (x) the Capped Pro
Rata Share multiplied by (y) the amount of the Glger Funds;

(iii) each share of Company Stock, if any, held by then@my as treasury stock immediately prior to the
Effective Time, shall be canceled and extinguisivé#tout any conversion thereof, and no paymentstribdution shall be made with respect
thereto;

(iv) each share of Merger Sub Common Stock issued asthading immediately prior to the Effective Time
shall be automatically converted into one (1) vglidsued, fully paid and nonassessable sharerafroan stock, $0.01 par value per share, of
the Surviving Corporation, and all of such shaassgonverted, shall thereafter constitute all efilsued and outstanding capital stock of the
Surviving Corporation; and

(v) each share certificate of Merger Sub evidencingesahtip of any shares of Merger Sub Common Stock
shall continue to evidence ownership of such shaireapital stock of the Surviving Corporation; and

(vi) each share of Company Stock converted pursuatadses (i) and (ii) of this Section 1.6(b) shall
automatically cease to be outstanding and shalbbeeled and retired and shall cease to exist actul leolder of a certificate representing any
such share of Company Stock shall cease to havagirtg with respect thereto, except the rightetoeive such holder’s respective portion of
the Merger Consideration and all payments purstatiitis Section 1.6 shall be made in accordancle thié Certificate of Incorporation.

1.7 Initial Order Cash Consideration

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrestmeach Participating Holder shall be eligible¢oeive Initial
Order Cash Consideration (as defined below), if @mlgl to the extent earned, as set out in thisiGedt7.

(b) Subject to Section 1.7(c), the amount of the Ihieder Cash Consideration that may become paysitak be equs
to (i) Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000), upon repeby the Company, Parent or any of their respechiffiliates of the first Purchase Order on
or before December 31, 2013 for a single-chambet §G/H tool; provided that such portion of Inlt@rder Cash Consideration shall be
payable on the Closing Date if such Purchase Qsdeceived by the Company prior to the Closinge)ét) Seventeen Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($17,500,000), upon receipt byGbmpany, Parent or any of their respective Affdgof one or more Purchase Orders (for
the avoidance of doubt, not to include the sindiarsber pilot 6G/H tool that would qualify for paymieinder Section 1.7(b)(i) hereof) on or
before March 31, 2014 for an aggregate of fivepf@duction chambers, and (iii) Seventeen MilliomeFHundred Thousand Dollars
($17,500,000), upon receipt of one or more Purckasers on or before March 31, 2014 for an aggeegéfive (5) production chambers in
addition to those production chambers describekiction 1.7(b)(ii) (each such amounts, if any,“th@tial Order Cash Consideratidi.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each payment ofahiDrder Cash Consideration shall be reduced bgnaount equal to the aggregate Purc
Order Bonus Amount (as defined in the RetentiomPayable in connection with such payment to aitiEipants pursuant to the Retention
Plan.

(c) If any Purchase Order referenced in Section 1.7(b):
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() provides for a prepayment or a deposit by the Pessbmitting such Purchase Order of an amountgreat
than or equal to thirty percent (30%) of the aggteg@amount payable to the Company, Parent or atheofrespective Affiliates in respect of
the chambers specified in such Purchase Ordem®srall distribute to the Payments Administratorflirther distribution to the Participating
Holders the applicable Initial Order Cash Consitienspayable by Parent in respect of such Purcader in accordance with Section 1.7
(d) no later than five (5) business days afteripgd®y the Company, Parent or any of their respechiffiliates of such Purchase Order; or

(i) provides for no prepayment or deposit or a prepayroedeposit by the Person submitting such Puechas
Order of an amount less than thirty percent (304h® aggregate amount payable to the CompanynParany of their respective Affiliates
in respect of the chambers specified in such Pgeclader, Parent shall distribute to the PaymedtsiAistrator for further distribution to the
Participating Holders the applicable Initial Ordzash Consideration payable by Parent in respesiaf Purchase Order in accordance with
Section 1.7(d) no later than five (5) business ddier the Company, Parent or any of their respediifiliates is permitted under the terms of
such Purchase Order to submit an invoice with &spethe shipment in full to the customer of thembers specified in such Purchase Order

(d) Within five (5) business days after receipt of s&ehichase Order or ability to submit an invoicehwispect to suc
Purchase Order, as applicable, in each case, subjére payment provisions in Section 1.9, Paséatl deposit, in each case in accordance
with an Allocation Certificate received by Parerithwespect to such payment, (i) with the Payméwhsinistrator an amount of cash equal to
the portion of the Initial Order Cash Considerafi@yable to Participating Holders for whom the papbof such Initial Order Cash
Consideration is not subject to wage or payroliéthholding; and (ii) with the Surviving Corporati’s (or other Affiliate’'s) payroll agent an
amount of cash equal to the Initial Order Cash @lmmation payable to the Participants and to Fpgting Holders for whom the payment of
Initial Order Cash Consideration is subject to wagpayroll tax withholding; provided, that to tBgtent any such payment of Initial Order
Cash Consideration is payable on the Closing Datsyant to Section 1.7(b), Parent shall make sagmpnts directly to the Participating
Holders in accordance with an Allocation Certifeeéd be provided by the Company to Parent (with@ydo the Stockholderf®epresentative

1.8 Performance Payment

€) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrestmeach Participating Holder shall be eligibledoeive
Performance Payment (as defined below), if and tithe extent earned, as set out in this Secti®n 1

(b) The amount of the Performance Payment that maynbegayable shall be equal to the sum of (i) “ Eaui Cash
Consideratiori calculated as follows: (A) the amount, if any, blyigh the Company Revenue for the twelve month pepeginning January
2014 and ending December 31, 2014 (the “ Perform&eriod’) exceeds Seventy Five Million Dollars ($75,000ponultipliedby (B) the
Applicable Percentage, providetowever, that in no event shall the Earn-Out Cash Conatédar be greater than Sixty Five Million Dollars
($65,000,000), pluéi) “ Bonus EarrOut Cash Consideratidrin the amount of an additional Ten Million Dol&($10,000,000), only if
Company Revenue during the Performance Period dgcB&o Hundred Million ($200,000,000) (any amouhBonus Earn-Out Cash
Consideration and Earn-Out Cash Considerationthegethe “ Performance PayméntNotwithstanding the foregoing, the Performance
Payment shall be reduced by an amount equal tagheegate Earn-Out Bonus Amount (as defined irRigtention Plan) payable to all
Participants pursuant to the Retention Plan.




(c) Definitions:

0] The “ Applicable Percentadeshall be equal to (A) 0% if the Company Gross §larfor the Performance
Period is less than or equal to 31.0%, (B) 100%hafCompany Gross Margin for the Performance Pésiggeater than or equal to 36.0%, and
(C) for all values of the Company Gross Margintfoe Performance Period greater than 31.0% andHass36.0%, the quotient obtained by
dividing (1) the difference between the CompanysSrilargin for the Performance Period and 31.092p%%.

(i) “ Company Gross Margithishall mean Company Revenue less cost of goods(defined as materials,
warranty expense, test, installation and directufeaturing costs (excluding non-direct allocatedrges)). For the avoidance of doubt, cost of
goods sold for purposes of determining Company &kbargin shall include the allocation of Parentysigal resources working directly with
the divisional management.

(iii) “ Company Revenuéshall mean revenue calculated in accordance Rétient’'s revenue recognition
policy (as reported in Parent’s 10K filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on Februar@@2), plus any deferred revenue as of
December 31, 2014 for shipments that were madérmoited in calendar year 2014 in accordance vhighterms of the purchase orders
evidencing such shipments.

(d) Beginning with the calendar quarter ending MarchZiiL4 through the calendar quarter ending Septe8the014
within thirty (30) days following the end of eachagter Parent shall provide to the StockholdergrBsentative quarterly written reports
indicating the Company Gross Margin and the Compenenue for such quarter (the “ Quarterly Regdrt&/Vithin thirty (30) days after
receipt of a Quarterly Report, if the StockholddRgpresentative requests a meeting with represesgaif Parent to discuss such report, Parel
shall make available for such a meeting thosesafxecutive officers who are responsible for thaliegble activities set forth in such Quarte
Report. On or before February 15, 2015, the Pafeait cause to be prepared a statement (the bireshce Statemeri that shall set forth tf
amount of the Performance Payment, if any, anaahaulation thereof, including the Company Grossditaand the Company Revenue, in
each case for the Performance Period, and shaledsluch Performance Statement to the StockhdlBesresentative.

(e) If the Stockholders’ Representative disputes anguarhset forth in the Performance Statement, tbekBblders’
Representative will notify Parent in writing of adisagreement the Stockholders’ Representativevitaghe Performance Statement within
thirty (30) days of receipt of the Performance &tant. Any such natification shall specify in r@aable detail those items, components,
amounts or calculations as to which the StockheldRepresentative disagrees. In the event thabtbekholders’ Representative does not
notify Parent of such disagreement during suclytii@0) day period or if Parent receives a writterice from the StockholderRepresentativ
irrevocably accepting the calculation of the Parfance Payment set forth in the Performance StatethenPerformance Statement shall be
deemed accepted by the Stockholders’ Representaityshall be final and binding on all Parties tr@Participating Holders shall have no
further rights to disagree therewith, and withivefi(5) business days after such acceptance, subjée payment provisions in Section 1.9 in
the case of payments to holders of Company Optaent shall deposit by wire transfer in immedyaéeailable funds, pursuant to an
Allocation Certificate received by Parent with respto such payment: (i) with the Payments Admiatst an amount of cash equal to the
portion of the Performance Payment payable to é&pating Holders for whom the payment of the Perfance Payment is not subject to wage
or payroll tax withholding; and (ii) with the Suwitng Corporation’s (or other Affiliats) payroll agent an amount of cash equal to théqoof
the Performance Payment




payable to the Participants and to Participatingdels for whom the payment of the Performance Payisesubject to wage or payroll tax
withholding.

) In the event that the Stockholders’ Representatiadl notify Parent of any disagreement the Stolddrs’
Representative has with the Performance Statemestiant to Section 1.8(e), then within a furtheiqakof ten (10) days from the date Parent
receives such dispute notice from the StockholdRegresentative, the Parties will attempt to resatvgood faith any disputed items and suct
resolution and any required adjustments resultiegetfrom shall be final and binding on the Partiksthe event that Parent and the
Stockholders’ Representative shall be unable teeagpon a joint determination of the Performanege®tent within ten (10) days from the
date Parent receives such dispute notice from tihekBolders’'Representative, then within five (5) days aftereRpiration of such ten (10) d
period, Parent and the Stockholders’ Representalia#t submit the dispute to the Accounting FirRarent and the Stockholders’
Representative shall request that the Accounting Fénder its determination prior to the expiratodrihirty (30) days after the dispute is
submitted to it, and such determination and anyired adjustments resulting therefrom shall bel famal binding on all the Parties hereto. -
Accounting Firm shall be acting as an arbitratat ant as an auditor and shall decide only thosesas to which the Parties are not in
agreement. The fees and expenses of the Accouritimgshall be allocated to be paid by Parent anth® Stockholders’ Representative (on
behalf of the Participating Holders), respectivélgsed upon the percentage which the portion ofotta amount contested and not awarded tc
such party bears to the total amount contestedet@smined by the Accounting Firm.

(9) Parent shall maintain a system of accounting recauich allows Parent to calculate Company GrosgyMaand
Company Revenue and notwithstanding any integratidghe Companyg operations with and into Parent, its currentanfifture Affiliates an
their respective operations or any reorganizatiootioer transaction or series of transactions &fteby Parent after the Closing. Nothing in
this Agreement creates a fiduciary duty on the pRarent or any of Parent’s Affiliates to any &tieolder in respect of the Performance
Payment.

(h) From the Closing Date until December 31, 2014, iaskall, and shall cause the Surviving Corporagind their
respective Affiliates (i) not to remove Key Emplege from the Surviving Corporation (except in thses of a termination for Cause), (ii) not to
impose allocated corporate spend (provided howehisrshall not prohibit charges for the actualenges of Parerstpplied resources worki
directly with the divisional management) and (@perate the Surviving Corporation in a commerciedigsonable manner and shall not take
action to intentionally reduce or hinder the acbiment of any Initial Order Cash Consideration afd®smance Payment.

0] Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisr&gment, in the event that on or prior to Decendie2014, (i) a
Change of Control of Parent or the Surviving Cogpien occurs; (ii) Parent or the Surviving Corpamatcommences any proceeding in
bankruptcy or for dissolution, liquidation, windingp, or other relief under state or federal bantaypaws (a “Bankruptcy Proceeding”); (iii) a
Bankruptcy Proceeding is commenced against Parghedurviving Corporation, or a receiver or tegsis appointed for Parent or the
Surviving Corporation or a substantial part of thespective property, and such proceeding or aypmeint is not dismissed or discharged
within sixty (60) days after its commencement; @grent or the Surviving Corporation is unableotoadmits in writing its inability to, pay its
debts when they become due; (v) Parent or the @ngviCorporation makes an assignment for the beog&tireditors, or petitions or applies to
any tribunal for the appointment of a custodiangieer or trustee for it or a substantial portidrit®assets or has a receiver, custodian or
trustee appointed for all or a substantial portibits assets, or (vi) Parent or the Surviving @ogpion takes any action effectuating, approving
or consenting to any of the foregoing, then in ezade, 100% of the unpaid Initial Order Cash Casition and Performance Payments shall
become due and payable




immediately upon the occurrence of any such everihe extent not previously paid. “Change of Coliitshall mean (i) a merger or
consolidation of Parent or the Surviving Corponatiioto or with any Person in a transaction or seoierelated transactions that results in more
than 50% of the voting securities of Parent, thesi8ing Corporation or the surviving, resulting parent entity in such transaction or series of
related transactions that are outstanding immdgliafeer the consummation thereof being benefigialvned by Persons other than those
Persons that (individually or collectively) benédity owned such voting securities of Parent or$ueviving Corporation, as applicable,
immediately prior to the consummation thereof;igra sale or other disposition of a material amarfrthe assets or voting securities of Paren
or the Surviving Corporation.

1.9 Stock Options and Restricted Shares

€) The Company shall take all actions necessary teigechat at the Effective Time each Company Optiat has
vested prior to Closing or that will vest in contiec with Closing and that is outstanding, unex@sdiand unexpired immediately prior to the
Effective Time shall be cancelled and converted ard represent the right to receive: (A) an amgunash, without interest, equal to the
Common Per Share Closing Amount, minus the exepsise per share attributable to such Company @pptus(B) the contingent right to
receive, in accordance with Section 1.7 hereofranunt equal to the Pro Rata Initial Order CashsiZtemation (if any), plugC) the continger
right to receive, in accordance with Section 1.8b& an amount equal to the Pro Rata Performameeut (if any)_plugD) an amount in
cash, without interest, equal to the product otle€) Pro Rata Share multiplied by (y) any procewddistributions of the Escrow Amount (if,
when and to the extent distributed to the ParttaigaHolders pursuant to the terms herein), plysaftamount in cash, without interest, equal
to the product of (x) the Pro Rata Share multipbgdy) the Post-Closing Adjustment (if, when andhe extent distributed to the Participating
Holders pursuant to the terms herein), plus (FRarapunt in cash, without interest, equal to the pevof (x) the Capped Pro Rata Share
multiplied by (y) the amount of the Overflow Fungsovided, that, if the exercise price per share attributableuch Company Option is
equal to or greater than the maximum amount thalddoe paid pursuant to (A), (B), (C) and (D) abauith respect to such Company Option,
such Company Option shall be canceled without @s @ayment being made in respect thereof and wiidmoy right to receive any payment
pursuant to clauses (B), (C) or (D) above. Allpaynts made pursuant to clauses (B), (C), (D), (EFpabove will be made in compliance
with Section 409A of the Code.

(b) At the Effective Time, all restrictions with respéc Company Common Stock granted under a Compaogk®lar
that is outstanding immediately prior to the EffeetTime (the “ Restricted SharBsshall lapse and the Restricted Shares shalllbhe ested
automatically and without any action on the parhef holder thereof, and the holder thereof shalrbated as a holder of Company Common
Stock for purposes of this Agreement, includingt®acl.6.

(c) At the Effective Time, all Company Options and Riettd Shares, whether or not vested or exercisahbdl no
longer be outstanding and shall automatically cémsaist, and each holder of a Company OptionRestricted Share shall cease to have any
rights with respect thereto, except the right teiee the consideration specified in this Secti¢h 1

(d) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company will ta&baction necessary to effect the provisions & 8ection 1.9,
including, but not limited to, adopting all resaarts, giving all notices, obtaining consents framete holder of Company Options and Restri
Shares and taking any other actions which are sapesr appropriate to effectuate the transactomsemplated by this Section 1.9. Any
notices, consents or other communications to hsldeCompany Options and Restricted Shares wiliisect to the review and approval of
Parent. Any amount paid pursuant to this Secti®rshall be subject to any applicable Taxes reduivébe withheld with respect to such
payment, and any such




payments to employees or former employees of threg@ay or any of the Company’s Subsidiaries thastitute “wages” or other
compensation for services for which any Tax withlg is required shall be processed through thef2aryls or such Subsidiary’s payroll
processing service or system.

1.10 Warrants. The Company shall take all actions necessapydeide that at the Effective Time each Series Arifat that is
outstanding, unexercised and unexpired immedigedy to the Effective Time, shall be acceleratediil, cancelled and converted into and
represent the right to receive (A) an amount irhcasthout interest, equal to the Series A Per 8iosing Amount, minus the exercise price
per share attributable to such Series A Warrant () the contingent right to receive, in accordanitt Section 1.7 hereof, an amount equal
to the Pro Rata Initial Order Cash Consideratibarfy), plus(C) the contingent right to receive, in accordawi@ Section 1.8 hereof, an
amount equal to the Pro Rata Performance Amouahgij, plugD) an amount in cash, without interest, equahtgroduct of (x) the Pro Re
Share multiplied by (y) any proceeds or distribnsi@f the Escrow Amount (if, when and to the extistributed to the Participating Holders
pursuant to the terms herein), plus (E) an amauoash, without interest, equal to the producidttie Pro Rata Share multiplied by (y) the
Post-Closing Adjustment (if, when and to the extistributed to the Participating Holders pursuarthe terms herein); providedhowever,
that, notwithstanding anything in this Agreementtte contrary, upon allocation of Merger Considera(including, for the avoidance of
doubt, the Pro Rata Share of the Escrow AmountlaadPost-Closing Adjustment, as applicable, iditiallocable to each share of Series A
Preferred Stock for which such Series A Warrantl sfeasdeemed to be exercised, whether or not dgtdatributed to the Participating
Holders) in the aggregate equal to $21.00 per sife®eries A Preferred Stock for which such Sefid¥arrant shall be deemed to be
exercised, no holder of shares of Series A Pradeé®teck may receive any further distributions ispect of such shares (the “ Warrant
Overflow Funds)); provided, further, that any Warrant Overflow Funds resulting frora &ipplication of the immediately preceding proviso
shall be distributed in accordance with Sectior{td)(@) above. Any amount paid pursuant to thistim 1.10 in respect of Series A Warrants
shall be subject to any applicable Taxes requindaktwithheld with respect to such payment.

1.11 Escrow.

(a) On or prior to the Closing Date, the Stockhold&spresentative, the Parent and Branch Banking amst T
Company (the “ Escrow Agefit shall enter into an escrow agreement in substiynthe form attached hereto as Exhibi{tbe “ Escrow

Adreement).

(b) Parent shall withhold Seven Million Dollars ($7,0000) (the “ Initial Escrow Amouri) from the Merger
Consideration to be paid at Closing and deposit sucount into escrow pursuant to the terms of $erdiv Agreement.

(c) Parent shall withhold an amount up to ten percEdf4) of any Initial Order Cash Consideration orf@@nance
Payment that may become payable (the “ Additiorsar&wed Fund® and deposit such amounts in to escrow pursuatite terms of the
Escrow Agreement such that, when added to thaliiscrow Amount, such amounts bring the total fudeposited into escrow to a total of
Nine Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (£#80,000) (th¢* Escrow Amount’).

(d) The Escrow Amount shall be deposited in an intebesring escrow account, pursuant to the termseoEscrow
Agreement. Pursuant to and subject to the termisanditions of the Escrow Agreement, the EscrowoAnt shall be held in escrow until
receipt by the Escrow Agent of joint written insttions from the Parent and the Stockholders’ Repradive (directing the Escrow Agent to
release funds either to Parent or to the Paymeditsiristrator for further distribution to the Paipiating Holders) or as otherwise provided in
the Escrow Agreement. Pursuant to and subjetteto t




terms and conditions of the Escrow Agreement, thedwv Amount shall be held in escrow until the dhtd is twelve (12) months after the
Closing Date.

(e) Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreementtte contrary, (i) the Parent shall be treatedrfoome Tax
purposes as the beneficial owner of the Escrow Arhand all earnings thereon until such time assaroh funds are distributed pursuant to th
Escrow Agreement, and (i) until distributed, sdiehds shall secure the payment of (a) the purcpase adjustments, if any, pursuant to
Section 1.12 and (b) the indemnity obligationshaf Participating Holders pursuant to ARTICLE IX.

1.12 Adjustments to Merger Consideration

€) At least three (3) business days prior to the @ipsthe Company shall deliver to Parent: (i) théristed Balance
Sheet; and (ii) the Statement of Estimated Clokiagilities.

(b) No later than three (3) days prior to the Closiraged the Company shall provide to Parent (withaydo the
Stockholders’ Representative) the following infotima as of immediately prior to the Effective Tin{®:the names, addresses of each holder
(each a “ Holdef) of Company Stock, Company Options or Series AriAfats, (ii) the type and number of shares of Camtock held by
each such Holder, (iii) the number of Company Qutibeld by each such Holder, (iv) the number of Samy Stock subject to each Series A
Warrant held by each such Holder and (v) such attiermation Parent may reasonably request. Nar liian two (2) business days prior to
the Closing, Parent and the Company shall agree aglow of funds memorandum (and provide a cogyehbf to the Stockholders’
Representative) which shall set forth all paymeetgiired to be made by or on behalf of all Pauiethe Closing (which shall include, without
limitation, provision for the payment of any Indethess and any Non-Ordinary Course Liabilitiegluding for each such payment an
identification of the payor, the payee, the amamt the wire transfer information.

1.13 PostClosing Adjustment

@) Within thirty (30) days following the Closing Datearent shall furnish the Stockholders’ Represamtatith the
Final Balance Sheet and the Statement of Closiabilifies.

(b) The Stockholders’ Representative shall have a garidwenty (20) days after receipt of the FinaldB&e Sheet to
notify Parent of its election to review, at the empe of the Participating Holders, the computatsmidorth in the Final Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Closing Liabilities. Prior to the asfdsuch twenty (20) day period, the Stockhold&spresentative shall notify Parent in writing
of any disagreement the Stockholders’ Represeetathas with the Final Balance Sheet or the Stateofddliosing Liabilities (a “ Noticé).

Any such Notice shall specify in reasonable detaike items, components, amounts or calculatiots akich the Stockholders’
Representative disagrees, the Stockholders’ Rapase’s alternative items, components, amountsatgulations and the basis therefor, and
attach any relevant supporting documentation.hénelvent a Notice is not provided to Parent byStuekholders’ Representative during such
twenty (20) day period, the Final Balance SheettherdStatement of Closing Liabilities, and the PFOlstsing Adjustment resulting therefrom,
shall be deemed accepted by the Stockholders’ Reptative and final and binding on the Partiestbeard the Participating Holders shall
have no further right to disagree therewith. la ¢ivent that the Stockholders’ Representative ghallide a timely and valid Notice to Parent
during such twenty (20) day period, Parent and3teekholders’ Representative shall promptly (andrig event within thirty (30) days
following the date upon which the Stockholders’ Resentative delivers such Notice), attempt to naajaint determination of the Post-Closing
Adjustments and such determination and any reqaidfgstments resulting therefrom shall be final Bimdling on the Parties hereto.
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(c) In the event the Stockholders’ Representative ardr® shall be unable to agree upon a joint detextioin of the
Post-Closing Adjustments within thirty (30) dayseafdelivery by the Stockholders’ RepresentativéhefNotice (or any mutually agreed upon
extension of such period), then Parent and thekBtdders’ Representative shall promptly submitdispute to the Accounting Firm to make a
final and binding determination of only those itemmemponents, amounts or calculations of Mergers@amation, Final Net Working Capital
and Final Closing Liabilities as to which the Stholders’Representative has disagreed in the Notice vadidtytimely delivered and contint
to disagree. The Accounting Firm shall not assigralue to any item greater than the greatest vfaluguch item claimed by Parent on the
Final Balance Sheet or the Stockholders’ Repretieatan the Notice, or less than the smallest védueuch item claimed by Parent on the
Final Balance Sheet or the Stockholders’ Repretieatan the Notice. The Accounting Firm shall ln#ireg as an arbitrator and not as an
auditor and shall decide only those issues as tohithe Parties are not in agreement. Parentten&tockholdersRepresentative shall requ
that the Accounting Firm render its determinatioiopto the expiration of thirty (30) days afteetdispute is submitted and such determinatio
and any required adjustments resulting therefroafl ble final and binding on all the Parties hereite fees and expenses of the Accounting
Firm shall be allocated to be paid by Parent antth®iStockholders’ Representative (on behalf ofthdicipating Holders), respectively, based
upon the percentage which the portion of the @mtabunt contested and not awarded to such partg be#ine total amount contested, as
determined by the Accounting Firm.

(d) If the Final Net Working Capital as finally detemmed in accordance with the provisions of this Secfi.13 is less
than the Estimated Net Working Capital, then Pasbatl have the right to offset the amount theesg#inst any portion of the Merger
Consideration owed to the Participating Holdersafaadjustment to the Merger Consideration), inclgidwithout limitation, the Escrow
Amount, and any interest accrued thereon. If thalmMet Working Capital as finally determined iccardance with the provisions of this
Section 1.13 is greater than the Estimated Net Wgrkapital, within five (5) business days afteclsaetermination, subject to the payment
provisions in Section 1.9 in the case of paymemtsolders of Company Options, Parent shall defysitire transfer in immediately available
funds, pursuant to an Allocation Certificate reeeivoy Parent with respect to such payment: (i) wighPayments Administrator an amount of
cash equal to the portion of the amount thereofpkeyto Participating Holders for whom the paynwrguch amount is not subject to wage or
payroll tax withholding; and (ii) with the SurviwinCorporation’s (or other Affiliate’s) payroll agean amount of cash equal to the portion of
the amount thereof payable to the Participatingdelis for whom such payment is subject to wage wrglidax withholding.

(e) If the Indebtedness and/or the Non-Ordinary Courabilities determined pursuant to this Section3lekceed the
Indebtedness and/or the Non-Ordinary Course Li#slirespectively, set forth on the Estimated @ip8alance Sheet, then Parent shall have
the right to offset the amount thereof against porgion of the Merger Consideration owed to thetiBigating Holders (as an adjustment to the
Merger Consideration), including, without limitatiothe Escrow Amount, and any interest accruecktiver If the Indebtedness and/or the Non
Ordinary Course Liabilities determined pursuarnthie Section 1.13 are less than the Indebtednesrathe Non-Ordinary Course Liabilities,
respectively, set forth on the Estimated ClosintaBee Sheet, within five (5) business days aftehsietermination, subject to the payment
provisions in Section 1.9 in the case of paymemtsolders of Company Options, Parent shall defysitire transfer in immediately available
funds, pursuant to an Allocation Certificate reegiby Parent with respect to such payment: (i) #ithPayments Administrator an amount of
cash equal to the portion of the amount of suchlsamayable to Participating Holders for whom pagment of such amount is not subject to
wage or payroll tax withholding; and (i) with ti8urviving Corporation’s (or other Affiliate’s) paglt agent an amount of cash equal to the
portion of such surplus payable to the Particigatiolders for whom such payment is subject to wargeayroll tax withholding.
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() Parent and the Stockholders’ Representative sfiadtehenetresult of the adjustments described in Section3 1.1
(d) and (e), which shall be referred to collectyva$ the “ Pos€losing Adjustment”

1.14 Surrender of Certificates

(a) Exchange Proceduresdlif (i) at least three (3) business days priothi Closing Date Parent has received the
following from any Participating Holder: (x) a plogopy or facsimile of each certificate or certifies that immediately prior to the Effective
Time represented outstanding shares of Compank &dee exchanged pursuant to Section 1.6 (thertifitates”) held by such Participating
Holder, if any, (y) a photocopy or facsimile ofedtér of transmittal in the form attached heret@&siibit E (the “ Letter of Transmittdl), duly
completed and validly executed in accordance vhighinstructions thereto, and (z) a photocopy asifaite of such other documents as may be
reasonably required pursuant to the instructiohgosth in the Letter of Transmittal, and (ii) imenection with the Closing, Parent receives an
original Certificate or Certificates held by sucarfitipating Holder, if any, a duly executed LetbéTransmittal, and such other documents as
may be reasonably required pursuant to the ingtnein the Letter of Transmittal, then on the @GigsDate in accordance with such Letter of
Transmittal, Parent shall deliver: (x) to any s&rticipating Holder for whom the payment of Mer@emsideration is not subject to wage or
payroll tax withholding in exchange therefor th@ligable the Merger Consideration payable at Cipsinaccordance with the terms hereof;
and (y) to the Surviving Corporation’s (or otheffifdite’s) payroll agent an amount of cash equaht® portion of applicable Merger
Consideration payable at the Closing to the Padtaig Holders for whom such payment is subjeetage or payroll tax withholding, and any
Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be ctatte If Parent has received such materials fropnsarch Participating Holder later than three
(3) business days prior to the Closing Date, theeft shall deliver to such Participating Holdeexthange therefor the applicable Merger
Consideration no later than three (3) business dfigs such receipt or three (3) business days tiféedate on which such Merger
Consideration is otherwise due hereunder in acomalavith the terms hereof, whichever is later. iNerest shall be paid or accrued on any
Merger Consideration. Until so surrendered, eagttifate shall, after the Effective Time, repnestor all purposes only the right to receive
the applicable Merger Consideration in respechefdhares of Company Stock represented by suclii€eet Any Participating Holder who
has not complied with this Agreement shall be katito look only to Parent (subject to abandonegberty, escheat or other similar Laws) c
as a general creditor thereof with respect to piptieable Merger Consideration payable in respésuoh shares of Company Stock, without
any interest thereon. Parent shall provide thekbtmiders’ Representative and the Payments Admai@tupon reasonable request with (i) a
list (updated prior to each post-closing paymehglioParticipating Holders that have properly greted all of the above-required transmittal
information and documents and are eligible to reedlerger Consideration and (ii) copies of all streimsmittal documents (including paymn
information) and tax documents in Parent’s poseassi

(b) No Liability . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tAigreement, none of Parent, Merger Sub or the
Surviving Corporation shall be liable to a holdéadCertificate for any applicable Merger Considieraor any other amount due that was
properly delivered to a public official pursuantaioy applicable abandoned property, escheat otagitraw.

(c) Withholding of Tax. Parent, the Company, the Payments Administeatdrthe Escrow Agent will be entitled to
deduct and withhold from the consideration otheewiayable pursuant to this Agreement to any Ppatitig Holder such amounts as are
reasonably determined by Parent, the Company deadlyenents Administrator to be required to be desthand withheld with respect to the
making of such payment under the Code or any piavisf U.S. federal, state, local or non-U.S. Taxl To the extent that amounts are so
withheld and remitted to the appropriate Taxinghfuity, such
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withheld amounts will be treated for all purposéshés Agreement as having been paid to the Pagtoig Holder in respect of whom such
deduction, withholding and remittance were madareft and the Escrow Agent will use commercialpsanable efforts to reduce or elimin
any required backup withholding under Section 3d0he Code by requesting Form W-9 or the approgisaries of Form W-8, as applicable
from the Participating Holders, and shall providgies of such documents to the Payments Administtadon reasonable request.

(d) Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificatedn the event any Certificates shall have besh kiolen or destroyed, Parent
shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen strdged Certificates, upon the making of an affilaf’that fact by the holder thereof, the
applicable Merger Consideration; provideliowever, that Parent may, in its discretion and as a d¢mmdprecedent to the issuance thereof,
require the holder of such lost, stolen or destio@ertificates to indemnify and hold harmless Pafiem and against any losses in connection
therewith (but, for the avoidance of doubt, may neofuire a bond).

1.15 No Further Ownership Rights in Company Stockhe applicable portion of Merger Consideratissuied upon the surrender
for exchange of Company Stock in accordance wighte¢hms of this Article | shall be deemed to hagerbissued in full satisfaction of all rig
pertaining to such Company Stock. At the Effecliime, the share transfer books of the Companyl beatlosed, and thereafter there shall be
no further registration or transfers of shares ofm@any Stock on the records of the Surviving Caapon.

1.16 Dissenting Shares Any holder of shares of Company Stock issuedartstanding immediately prior to the Effective Bm
with respect to which dissenters’ rights, if ange available by reason of the Merger pursuantecatbplicable provisions of the DGCL who has
not voted in favor of the Merger or consented tteie writing and who complies with the applicapl®visions of the DGCL (“ Dissenting
Shares) shall not be entitled to receive any portiortteé Merger Consideration pursuant to this Artiglerlless such holder fails to perfect,
effectively withdraws or loses its dissenters’ tgghinder the DGCL. Such holder shall be entitledetive only such rights as are granted
under the applicable provisions of the DGCL. If augh holder fails to perfect, effectively withdmar loses such dissenters’ rights under the
DGCL, such Dissenting Shares shall thereupon bmdéd¢o have been converted as of the Effective Timueethe right to receive the Merger
Consideration to which such shares of Company Stoelentitled pursuant to this Article I, withoatérest. The Company shall give Parent
prompt notice of any demands for appraisal purstatite applicable provisions of the DGCL receibgdhe Company, withdrawals of any
such demands and any other documents or instrumengived by the Company in connection therewitlieRt shall have the right to
participate in and direct all negotiations and pestings with respect to any such demands. The Qongdwll not, except with the prior writt
consent of Parent, make any payment with respeot tettle or offer to settle, any such demandsageee to do any of the foregoing. Any
payments made with respect to Dissenting Shardkstehmade solely by the Surviving Corporation, awadfunds or other property have been
or shall be provided by Parent, Merger Sub or diyavent’s Affiliates for such payment.

1.17 Further Action. If at any time after the Effective Time the Sumg Corporation shall consider or be advised drat deeds,
bills of sale, assignments or assurances or argr attts or things are necessary, desirable or p(gfde vest, perfect or confirm, of record or
otherwise, in the Surviving Corporation its rigtitle or interest in, to or under any of the righisivileges, powers, franchises, properties or
assets of either the Company or Merger Sub, ooffi¢rwise to carry out the purposes of this Agremtinthe Surviving Corporation and its
proper officers and directors or their designeesl &fe authorized to execute and deliver, in thm@and on behalf of either the Company or
Merger Sub, all such deeds, bills of sale, assignsn@nd assurances and do, in the name and orf bétted Company or Merger Sub, all such
other acts and things necessary, desirable or ptopest, perfect or confirm its
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rights, title or interest in, to or under any oétlights, privileges, powers, franchises, propsmieassets of the Company or Merger Sub, as
applicable, and otherwise to carry out the purpo$éisis Agreement.

ARTICLE II
CLOSING

2.1 Time and Place of the ClosingThe Closing shall take place by remote excharfigimcuments, unless another method or
place is agreed to in writing by the Parties, assas practicable following the satisfaction orweaiof the conditions set forth in Articles VII
and VIII hereof and in any event within three (8simess days thereafter (but no earlier than Octbp2013), or on such other date as Parent,
Merger Sub and the Company may mutually determine.

2.2 Deliveries. At the time of the Closing, (i) the Company vad#liver to Parent the various certificates, instents, and
documents referred to in Section 6.11 below, aindPérent and the Merger Sub will deliver to thex@any the certificates, instruments and
documents referred to in Section 7.4 below.

2.3 StockholdersRepresentative

€) Each Participating Holder, by virtue of the adoptad this Agreement and approval of the Mergerhsy t
Participating Holders (regardless of whether orailbParticipating Holders vote in favor of or censto the adoption of this Agreement and
approval of the Merger and the transactions conlzteg hereby, and regardless of whether at a nggetim an action by written consent in
lieu thereof), designates Shareholder Represeat&tvvices LLC (the “ StockholdéiRepresentativ®) as his, her or its representative for
purposes of this Agreement. The Participating ldiddand their respective successors shall be deentede approved, and shall be bounc
any and all actions taken by the Stockholders’ Begmtative on their behalf under or otherwise iredab this Agreement and the other
documents contemplated hereby and the transaatamiemplated hereunder and thereunder as if suinaevere expressly ratified and
confirmed by each of them in writing. In the evany Stockholders’ Representative is unable or lingito serve or shall resign, a successor
Stockholders’ Representative shall be selectediéynolders of a majority of the shares of Compaosn@on Stock outstanding immediately
prior to the Closing. A Stockholders’ Representatnay not resign, except upon 30 days prior writtetice to Parent and Merger Sub. In the
event of a notice of proposed resignation, or asthl disability or other replacement of a Stocilbd’ Representative, a successor shall be
appointed effective immediately thereafter (andhimcase of a death of a Stockholders’ Represemtéite successor shall be deemed to be tt
executor or other representative of such StockinsldRepresentative’s estate) and Parent and M&ugkershall be notified promptly of such
appointment by the successor Stockholders’ Reprathezn No replacement of any Stockholders’ Repmégtive shall be effective against
Parent or Merger Sub until (i) the proposed suareSgckholders’ Representative assumes in wralhgbligations of the original
Stockholders’ Representative under this Agreemedt(& Parent and Merger Sub have consented tpriby@osed successor Stockholders’
Representative (such consent not to be unreasondthlyeld or delayed). Each successor Stockhol@apresentative shall have all the
power, rights, authority and privileges hereby eordd upon the original Stockholders’ Represergativ

(b) Parent and Merger Sub shall be entitled to relynuigroy actions, communication or writings takenggiwr execute
by the Stockholders’ Representative on behalf efRharticipating Holders. After the Closing, alhmmunications or writings to be sent to the
Participating Holders pursuant to this Agreemeny i@ addressed to the Stockholders’ Representaideany communication or writing so
sent shall be deemed notice to all of the Stocldrsltiereunder. The
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adoption and approval of this Agreement by the édaf the Company Stock shall constitute the aureled agreement of each of the
Stockholders that the Stockholders’ Representadiagithorized to accept deliveries, including antiae, on behalf of each holder of Company
Stock pursuant hereto.

(c) The Stockholders’ Representative is hereby appoiatel constituted the true and lawful attorneyaaotfof each
Participating Holder, with full power of substitati in such holder’s name and on such holder’s hébaict according to the terms of this
Agreement and the other documents contemplatedyhé@reghe absolute discretion of the Stockhold&spresentative; and in general to do all
things and to perform all acts including, withamitation, executing and delivering all agreementstificates, receipts, instructions, notices
and other instruments contemplated by or deemedainle in connection with this Agreement and theeptlocuments contemplated hereby,
including without limitation Article I1X hereof. Tk power of attorney and all authority hereby cormde is granted in consideration of the
mutual covenants and agreements made herein, alidshrrevocable and shall not be terminatedmy act of any Participating Holder or
operation of law, whether by such holder’s deattisability or by any other event.

(d) The Stockholders’ Representative hereby agreesri@ ®s the Stockholders’ Representative in acocomdwith the
applicable terms hereof and to be bound by suchster

(e) The Stockholders’ Representative will incur no i of any kind with respect to any action or arsion by the
Stockholders’ Representative in connection withSkeckholders’ Representative’s services pursuatitis Agreement, the Escrow Agreement
and that certain Acquiom M&A Payments Agreemeng (tAcquiom Payments Agreeméitto be entered into at or prior to Closing by and
among Acquiom Administration LLC (the_* Paymentsmidistrator”), the Stockholders’ Representative and the Compaxcept in the event
of liability directly resulting from the Stockholdg Representative’s gross negligence or willfusaginduct. The Participating Holders will
severally (based on each Participating Holder'sHata Proportion but not jointly indemnify, defesad hold harmless the Stockholders’
Representative from and against any and all lo$isédjties, damages, claims, penalties, finesfditures, actions, fees, costs and expenses
(including the fees and expenses of counsel andresxpnd their staffs and all expense of docuneeration, duplication and shipment)
(collectively, “ Representative Loss8sarising out of or in connection with the Stocktiers’ Representative’s execution and performarice o
this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the AaguRayments Agreement, in each case as such Re@t@sehoss is suffered or incurre
provided, that in the event that any such ReprasignstLoss is finally adjudicated to have beendallyecaused by the gross negligence or
willful misconduct of the Stockholders’ Represeivatthe Stockholders’ Representative will reimleuttse Participating Holders the amount of
such indemnified Representative Loss to the exttributable to such gross negligence or willfusatinduct. If not paid directly to the
Stockholders’ Representative by the Participatiodders, any such Representative Losses may beewmbby the Stockholders’
Representative (i) first, from the funds in the Empe Fund, (ii) second, solely to the extent theairing funds available to the Stockholders’
Representative in the Expense Fund are insufficieoth either (A) the amounts in the Escrow Funduath time as remaining amounts would
otherwise be distributable to the Participatingdéos or (B) any future contingent consideratiostath time as any such amounts would
otherwise be distributable to the Participatingddos, and (iii) third, solely to the extent the eening funds in the Expense Fund are
insufficient and there are insufficient funds imnaddly available to the Stockholders’ Represenéaffem the Escrow Fund and/or contingent
consideration, from the Participating Holders diyg@rovided, that while this section allows thi&holders’ Representative to be paid from
the Expense Fund, the Escrow Fund and any othatefgbntingent consideration, this does not (iunexthe Stockholders’ Representative to
wait for future releases of funds from the Escramdf or future payments of contingent consideraliefore recovering directly from the
Participating Holders, (ii) relieve the ParticipatiHolders from their obligation to promptly paycBuRepresentative Losses as they are suf
or incurred, or (iii) prevent the
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Stockholders’ Representative from seeking any réesealvailable to it at law or otherwise. In no eéwsill the Stockholders’ Representative be
required to advance its own funds on behalf ofRa#icipating Holders or otherwise. The ParticipgtHolders acknowledge and agree that th
limitations set forth in Section 9.5 are not apgtile to the indemnification provided in this Sestih3(e), and that the foregoing indemnities
will survive the resignation or removal of the Stholders’ Representative or the termination of thggeement.

() Upon the Closing, the Company will wire to the $toalders’ Representative an aggregate amount oR26GH00
(the “ Expense Fung. The Participating Holders will not receive aimgerest or earnings on the Expense Fund and icebly transfer and
assign to the Stockholders’ Representative any oshiferight that they may otherwise have had in sugh interest or earnings. Within five
(5) business days after the completion of the Stoltlers’ Representative’s responsibilities under Agreement subject to the payment
provisions in Section 1.9 in the case of paymemtsolders of Company Options, the StockholdBepresentative shall deposit by wire tran
in immediately available funds, pursuant to an &dition Certificate: (i) with the Payments Admingbr an amount of cash equal to the pot
of the then balance of the Expense Fund payabattcipating Holders for whom the payment of tladahce of the Expense Fund is not
subject to wage or payroll tax withholding; and (ith the Surviving Corporation’s (or other Affilie’s (at the direction of Parent)) payroll
agent an amount of cash equal to the portion ofttee remaining balance of the Expense Fund payalftarticipating Holders for whom the
payment of the balance of the Expense Fund is sutgjevage or payroll tax withholding. For tax poses, the Expense Fund will be treated a
having been received and voluntarily set asidehbyRarticipating Holders at the time of Closing ahdll be subject to wage withholding as if
paid to such Participating Holders on the Closirageto the extent wage withholding is requireddw;lprovided, that notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, neither the Stobtlérs’ Representative nor the Payments Administrsttall be responsible for any wage
withholding or related calculations or determinatio

ARTICLE Ill
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES RELATING TO
THE COMPANY

As a material inducement to Parent and Merger 8@nter into this Agreement and to consummater#iresactions contemplated
hereby, the Company represents and warrants totPand to Merger Sub, as of the date hereof amd #he Closing, except as set forth on the
Disclosure Schedule, as follows:

3.1 Organization, Corporate Power and Records

(a) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is dulamized, validly existing and in good standing urttie laws of
the jurisdiction of its organization. The Compamgd each of its Subsidiaries is qualified or reget to do business and in good standing in
each of the states and jurisdictions set forth dme8ule 3.Jand each other jurisdiction where the charactéoaation of its assets or its
properties owned, leased or operated by it, onttare of its activities makes such qualificatiomenistration necessary. Each of the Com|
and its Subsidiaries has full corporate power antiaity and all licenses, permits and authorizetinecessary to own and operate its
properties, to conduct its business as now conduate as presently proposed to be conducted, gmertorm its obligations under any
Significant Contracts.

(b) The Company has provided Parent with true, comrdtcomplete copies of the share records and mirogiks of
the Company and each of its Subsidiaries. The mibabks of the
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Company contain a complete and accurate summaaly wieetings of directors or stockholders or actibyg written consent since the time of
incorporation of the Company. Neither the Compaarany of its Subsidiaries has taken any corpaetien without the approval or
ratification of the board of directors or stockheaisl where such action required the approval obtaed of directors or stockholders under the
DGCL or other applicable Law. The share ledgestmre records of the Company accurately reflettsamsactions involving the capital stock
of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries. Neittie Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is ifaalke under or in violation of any provision
of its certificate of incorporation or bylaws, dher applicable organizational document, or angltg®n adopted by the Company’s
stockholders or board of directors. Neither thenPany nor any of its Subsidiaries has conductedbasyness under or otherwise used, for
purpose or in any jurisdiction, any fictitious ngragssumed name, trade name or other name.

3.2 Authority for Agreement The Company has full power, authority and leggtit to enter into and, upon receipt of the
Requisite Vote, perform its obligations under thggeement and the other documents contemplatedyévenvhich the Company is or will be
a party and to consummate the transactions consgetphereby and thereby. As of the date of thie&ent, the board of directors of the
Company has (i) unanimously approved the Merg&s ,Areement and the other documents contemplaszbli and the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby and authorizedx&eution, delivery and performance of this Agreenaad the other documents
contemplated hereby and the consummation of thsaciions contemplated hereby and thereby, (iglved to recommend approval and
adoption by the Stockholders of the Merger, thise®gnent and the other documents contemplated harebthe transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby and (iii) not withdrawn or maifsuch approval or resolution to recommend. Uaeipt of the Requisite Vote, no other
corporate proceedings on the part of the Companynonediately following the execution and deliverfythis Agreement, any Stockholder are,
or will be, necessary to approve and authorizeeteeution, delivery and performance of this Agreenaad the other documents contemplate
hereby and the consummation of the transactionteogrlated hereby and thereby. This Agreement la@ether documents contemplated
hereby have been duly executed and delivered b dmepany and are legal, valid and binding obligatiof the Company, enforceable agains
the Company in accordance with their respectiveaseexcept as enforceability may be limited by elle bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or other similar lawkeefing the enforcement of creditors’ rights in geal. The Requisite Vote is the only vote of
Stockholders necessary to approve and authorizelénger, this Agreement and the other documentteooplated hereby and the other
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

3.3 No Violation to Result Except as set forth on Schedule 33e execution, delivery and performance by then@any of thi:
Agreement and the other documents contemplatedreared the consummation by the Company of the aictitns contemplated hereby and
thereby and the fulfillment by the Company of tharis hereof and thereof, do not and will not, diyear indirectly (with or without notice or
lapse of time): (i) violate, breach, conflict witonstitute a default under, accelerate or pethmiticceleration of the performance required by
(x) any of the terms of the Certificate of Incorgtion or Bylaws of the Company or any resolutiongdd by the board of directors of the
Company or the Stockholders, or (y) any Signific@ontract, or (z) any law, judgment, decree, ordede, regulation, permit, license or other
legal requirement of any Government Authority apgile to the Company or any of its Subsidiariésgi{ve any Person the right to declare a
default, exercise any remedy or accelerate thepeence or maturity under any such Significant @aoitor cancel, terminate or modify any
such Significant Contract; (iii) give any Governméuthority or other Person the right to challeraggy of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement; (iv) give any Government Authotlg right to revoke, withdraw, suspend, canceinibeate or modify, any permit or license
that is held by the Company or any of its Subsidgror (v) result in the creation or impositionasfy Encumbrance upon the Company Stock
or any of the properties or assets of the Comp®tper than as set forth on Schedule, 318 notice to, filing with, or consent of, any Bem is
necessary in connection

17




with, and no “change of control” provision is triggd by, the approval, adoption, execution, dejiwerperformance by the Company of this
Agreement and the other documents contemplatedbherehe consummation by the Company of the tretisas contemplated hereby or
thereby.

3.4 Capitalization

(a) The authorized capital stock of the Company cosisiglely of: (i) 8,000,000 shares of Company Comiatatk, of
which 5,127,484 shares have been issued and astawding (44,528 shares of which are subject ighd of repurchase in favor of the
Company), (ii) 2,164,286 shares of Preferred Stotlhich 2,164,286 shares have been designatéelsSeiPreferred Stock, 2,142,857 share:
of which are issued and outstanding as of the afateis Agreement. Except for the foregoing, nleestshares of capital stock of the Company
have been issued or are outstanding as of theofiies Agreement. There are no shares of the Gmiyip capital stock held in the Company’s
treasury. Schedule 3.4(a) sets forth the nam#sedbtockholders, the addresses of the Stockhataelshe number of shares of Company
Stock owned of record and beneficially by each lgtolder, in each case, as of the date of this Agesg. All of the issued and outstanding
shares of capital stock of the Company and ahefissued and outstanding ownership interestseo€ttimpany’s Subsidiaries have been duly
authorized and validly issued, and are fully paid aon-assessable. Except as set forth on Sch2difs, no restrictions on transfer,
repurchase option, preemptive rights or rightdrst fefusal exist with respect to any shares pitahstock of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, and no such rights arise by virtueran connection with the transactions contempldtereby.

(b) Schedule 3.4(bkets forth a true, accurate and complete lisf #seodate of this Agreement setting forth the narf
each holder of outstanding Company Options andrRR&est Shares, the date of grant of each grantof@ny Options or Restricted Shares to
such holder, the number of shares of Company Confback covered by such grant, the exercise pricedch such grant of Company
Options Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4(@re are no issued or outstanding shares ofatapock of the Company that are restricted or
subject to repurchase or substantial risk of faufei. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4tbgre is no: (i) outstanding subscription, option
call, warrant or right (whether or not currentlyeesisable) issued by the Company to acquire omsedsue, or otherwise relating to, any shi
of the capital stock or other securities of the @any; (ii) outstanding security, instrument or galion that is or may become convertible into
or exchangeable for any shares of the capital stockher securities of the Company (including heitt limitation, any convertible debt); or
(iii) Contract under which the Company is or worgéisonably be expected to become obligated toisetherwise issue any shares of its
capital stock or any other securities. There areutstanding share appreciation, phantom sharefit participation or other similar rights wi
respect to the Company. The Company Stock Pldreisnly option, equity incentive or similar plawolving the purchase of Company
securities that is (or has ever been) in effect.

(c) Except as set forth an Schedule 3.4(t)ere are no proxies, voting rights, stockholdgneements or other
agreements or understandings of which the Compmaayparty with respect to the voting or transfethef capital stock of the Company. All
shares of Company Stock, all Company Options, &ileS A Warrants and all other securities of thenBany and each of its Subsidiaries have
been issued in compliance with (i) all applicatdddral and state securities laws and other appdidagal requirements, and (ii) any pre-
emptive rights, rights of first refusal or othequirements set forth in applicable Contracts. Ahgres of capital stock or other securities
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise reacquiredeb@ampany were validly reacquired in compliancéhnit) the applicable provisions of the
DGCL, if applicable, and all other applicable Lawsad (B) any requirements set forth in applicabbat@acts. The Company is not obligate
redeem or otherwise acquire any of its outstandirages of capital stock.
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(d) Schedule 3.4(dkets forth a list of the Company’s SubsidiariEsr each of the Company’s Subsidiaries, Schedule
3.4(d) sets forth: (i) the authorized capital stock, i@ number of shares of each class of capitakst@t have been issued and are
outstanding, (iii) the number of shares of captatk held in such Subsidiary’s treasury; (iv) tiaenes of the stockholders of such Subsidiary;
and (v) the addresses of such stockholders in tesjrective states of legal residence and the nuaflshares of each class of capital stock of
such Subsidiary owned of record and beneficiallghgh such stockholder. Except as set forth oedidh 3.4(d) all of the Company’s
Subsidiaries are wholly owned by the Company. Bkes set forth on Schedule 3.4(aeither the Company nor or any of its Subsid&has
any direct or indirect debt, equity or other inveent or interest in any Person or any joint ventideither the Company nor or any of its
Subsidiaries has any commitments to contribut@eoctpital of, make loans to or share losses gfPanson (either pursuant to a written
Contract or a Contract in the process of being tiatgpal).

3.5 Financial Statements

€)) Schedule 3.5(a)ncludes true, complete and correct copies dh@)Year-End Financials and (ii) the Interim
Financials. Each of the Financial Statements (uliclg in all cases the notes thereto, if any) isstgient with the Company’s books and
records, free from material misstatement, whethertd fraud or error, presents fairly the Comparayid each of its Subsidiary’ financial
condition and results of operations as of the tiare for the periods referred to therein, and leestprepared in accordance with GAAP.
During the periods covered by the Financial Stateémand since the Balance Sheet Date, there hasloematerial change in the Company’s
or any of its Subsidiaries’ accounting policiescc&pt as disclosed therein or_in Schedule 3.5@kto, there are no material, special or non-
recurring items of income or expense during théoplsrcovered by the Financial Statements and tlemba sheets included in the Financial
Statements do not reflect any write-up or revatuaincreasing the book value of any assets. Akmees recognized by the Company have
been recognized in accordance with GAAP. There teen no transactions involving the businessefCttmpany which properly should
have been set forth in the Financial Statementsadrich have not been accurately so set forth. @dee3.5(a)sets forth a list of any off-
balance sheet financing arrangements of the Comaagyany non-operating assets, prepaid items gousids. The Company’s accounting
firm has not informed the Company that it has amyamal questions, challenges or disagreementsdieggor pertaining to the Company’s
accounting policies or practices. The Companyrhade available to Parent copies of each managdattartor other letter delivered to the
Company by its accounting firm in connection witle tFinancial Statements or relating to any revigwuch accounting firm of the internal
controls of the Company.

(b) Schedule 3.5(bprovides an accurate and complete breakdown and afall accounts receivable, notes receiv.
and other receivables of the Company and eacls &ubsidiaries as of the Balance Sheet Date. Exaseget forth in Schedule 3.5(3ll
existing accounts receivable of the Company antl e&its Subsidiaries (including those accounteneable reflected on the Balance Sheet or
arising since the Balance Sheet Date that havgatdieen collected) (i) represent valid obligasioficustomers of the Company or its
Subsidiary, as the case may be, arising from bioleatfansactions entered into in the ordinary cewfdbusiness, and (ii) are current and, to th
knowledge of, the Company, there is no reason peebthat such accounts receivable will not beectdld in full, without any counterclaim or
set off, when due (and in no event later than (@enonths after the Closing Date).

(c) The accounts, books and records of the Companytadibsidiaries: (i) have recorded therein thelteof
operations and the assets and liabilities of the@amy, required to be reflected under GAAP andafi) free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and have been miagddn accordance with prudent business practioesall applicable Laws. The Company
and each of its Subsidiaries maintain a systent@fenting and internal controls and
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procedures as are necessary to ensure that @ptons are executed with management'’s authasizgii) transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the applicahkntial statements and to maintain accountabiityassets; (iii) access to assets is permittec
only in accordance with management’s authorizatod (iv) material information regarding the Comypaits Subsidiaries, and its and their
financial condition is accumulated and communicatechanagement, including the appropriate prinogxaicutive and financial officers.

There are no deficiencies or weaknesses in thgulesioperation of internal controls over finanegporting that would reasonably be expe

to adversely affect the Company’s or its Subsidiirability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial information, and there is no
fraud, whether or not material, that involves mamagnt or, to the knowledge of the Company, othgrleyees who have a significant role in
the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ internal corgrahd the Company has provided to Parent copiasyoivritten materials relating to the
foregoing.

3.6 Liabilities . There are no Liabilities of the Company or ahjtoSubsidiaries that would be required by GAARE
reflected or reserved on a balance sheet other(ihabilities reflected on the Balance Sheet antl previously paid or discharged and
(ii) Liabilities and performance obligations undaontracts. Neither the Company nor any of its &lidses is a guarantor or otherwise liable
for any Liabilities of any other Person other tiegndlorsements for collection in the ordinary cowfseusiness consistent with past practice.
Schedule 3.@rovides an accurate and complete breakdown amd agi of the Balance Sheet Date of all accountatpayf the Company and
its Subsidiaries.

3.7 Adverse Changes Except as set forth on Schedule 3fdm December 31, 2012 until the Date of this égmnent, each of
the Company and its Subsidiaries have operatedrémective businesses in the ordinary coursecansistent with past practice and neither
the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has: ffesed a Material Adverse Effect or any effect, mver change which individually or in the
aggregate would reasonably be expected to haveerislaAdverse Effect on the Company or any oStdsidiaries; (ii) suffered any theft,
damage, destruction, or casualty loss in exce$29000, or suffered any interruption in the usthefCompany’s or its Subsidiaries’ assets ol
business (whether or not covered by insuranceffered any destruction of its books and recoriii$;declared, set aside or paid any dividend
(whether in cash, shares or property) with resfzeany capital stock of the Company or its Subsiegaor repurchased or redeemed any capit:
stock of the Company or its Subsidiaries; (iv) geanany current or former director, officer, emmeyor consultant of the Company or its
Subsidiaries any bonus opportunity or increas@impensation or benefits; (v) made any capital ediperes that aggregate in excess of
$100,000; or (vi) committed or agreed to any offtvegoing set forth in (i) through (v) above.

3.8 Company Plans

(a) Schedule 3.8(a)(ixontains a true, correct and complete list of gaatsion, profit-sharing, savings, retirement,
employment, collective bargaining, consulting, samee pay, termination, executive compensatioreritice compensation, deferred
compensation, bonus, share purchase, stock opti@mtom shares or other equity-based compensatiange-in-control, retention, salary
continuation, vacation, sick leave, disability, thelaenefit, group insurance, hospitalization, mabmcluding policies for chiropractic and non-
traditional health and welfare), dental, visiofe (including all individual life insurance poliges to which the Company is the owner, the
beneficiary or both), Code Section 125 “cafetedrn”flexible” benefit, employee loan, educationakstance or fringe plan, relocation,
program, policy, practice, agreement or arrangenvemether written or oral, formal or informal, inding each such “employee benefit plan”
within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA, anHestsuch employee benefit plan, program, policgctice, agreement, or arrangement,
whether or not subject to ERISA (including any fingdmechanism therefor now in effect or requirethia future as a result of the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise) (gemwhich any current or
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former employee, director, consultant or indepehdentractor of the Company or and ERISA Affilidtas any present or future right to
benefits and (ii) that is maintained, sponsoredamtributed to by the Company or any ERISA Affiiabr which the Company or any ERISA
Affiliate has any obligation to maintain, sponsorcontribute, or (iii) with respect to which the @pany or any ERISA Affiliate has any direct
or indirect liability, whether contingent or othese (each, a “* Company Plan

(b) The Company has provided to Parent with respeehth applicable Company Plan correct and comptgies of:
(i) a copy of the annual report (if required un8&ISA) with respect to each such Company Plantiedast three (3) years (including all
schedules and attachments); (i) a copy of the sammlan description, together with each summamnaferial modification required under
ERISA with respect to such Company Plan; (iii)wetand complete copy of each written Company Rfarhuding all amendments not
incorporated into the documentation for each suah)p(iv) all trust agreements, insurance congiaghd similar instruments with respect to
each funded or insured Company Plan; (v) copiedl afondiscrimination and top-heavy testing repfotsthe last three (3) plan years with
respect to each Company Plan that is subject tdisommination and/or top-heavy testing; (vi) anyeéstment management agreements,
administrative services contracts or similar agreetsthat are in effect as of the date hereofingldb the ongoing administration and
investment of any Company Plan; (vii) all non-roeticorrespondence to or from any governmental agenany participant or beneficiary
relating to any Company Plan; and (viii) the mestemt determination letter, if any, from the IR6day Company Plan that is intended to
qualify under Section 401(a) of the Code; and (xpecounting documenting in reasonable detail kbetions, balances and activity in each
Company Employee'’s flexible spending account framihception of the current plan year through Atgls 2013.

(c) No Company Plan is, and neither the Company noERISA Affiliate thereof currently maintains, coittintes to
or participates in, nor does the Company or any32RAffiliate have any obligation to maintain, cabtite to or otherwise participate in, or
have any liability or other obligation (whether aged, absolute, contingent or otherwise) under,(@riynultiemployer plan” (within the
meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA), (ii) “multipanployer plan” (within the meaning of Section 4)3{tthe Code), (iii) “multiple employer
welfare arrangement” (within the meaning of SecB8¢40) of ERISA), (iv) plan that is subject to thevisions of Title IV of ERISA or
Section 412 of the Code; or (v) a “funded welfalenp within the meaning of Section 419 of the Coddo Company Plan is maintained
through a human resources and benefits outsouetitity, professional employer organization, or otimilar vendor or provider.

(d) The Company has never sponsored, maintained, astemiad, contributed to, had any obligation to dbate to, or
incurred any other liability under or with respeztany Company Plan or otherwise which providesnay provide in the future, health, life,
welfare or other coverage or benefits for or tarfer directors, officers or employees (or any spaudermer spouse or other dependent
thereof), other than benefits required by Sect@®B0B of the Code, Part 6 of Title | of ERISA, omdlar provisions of state law.

(e) Each Company Plan (and each related trust, insaremmtract or fund) has been maintained, funded and
administered in all material respects in accordavitie its governing instruments and all applicalales including ERISA and the Code. All
payments by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate #wdrrequired by any Company Plan, by any colledbasgaining agreement or by
applicable law (including all employee and emplog@ntributions, insurance premiums, or intercompetmrges) have been timely made. All
unpaid amounts attributable to any such Company flaany period prior to the Closing Date haverbeewill be accrued on the Company’s
consolidated Financial Statements in accordande @RAP and, except to the extent of such accriladésCompany has no Liability arising
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out of or in connection with the form or operatimithe Company Plans or benefits accrued thereumder prior to the Closing Date.

® Each Company Plan intended to qualify under Seetitii(a) of the Code and each trust intended tafguaider
Section 501(a) of the Code is so qualified anddither received and is entitled to rely upon a fabte determination letter or opinion letter
from the IRS with respect to such Company Plamass tqualified status under the Code, and, tcktimvledge of the Company, nothing has
occurred that could reasonably be expected to adieaffect such determination or opinion. All ardments required to maintain each such
Company Plan’s compliance with applicable law, uiithg the Economic Growth and Tax Relief RecontdiaAct of 2001 and subsequent
legislation or administrative requirements whickdaubsequently become effective through the dateofi, have been timely adopted and
implemented. No Company Plan currently holds dhiwithe past five years has held securities ofGbmpany or any ERISA Affiliate. No
Company Plan has ever been merged with or acc€dd Section 414(1) transfers from another empl@@esion benefit plan (within the
meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA).

(9) All reports, forms and other documents requiredddiled with any Government Authority or furnishied
employees with respect to any Company Plan (innlydummary plan descriptions, Forms 5500 and sugnararual reports) have been tim
filed or furnished and are accurate in all mateeapects.

(h) With respect to each applicable Company Plan,q(inon-exempt “prohibited transaction,” within theaming of
Section 4975 of the Code or Section 406 of ERISE, tccurred; (i) there are no actions, suits aint pending, or, to the knowledge of the
Company, threatened or reasonably anticipated (thla@ routine claims for benefits) against anyhsGompany Plan or fiduciary thereto or
against the assets of any such Company Planth@ie are no audits, inquiries or proceedings pendr, to the knowledge of the Company,
threatened by any governmental authority with resfieany Company Plan; (iv) no matters are culygregnding with respect to any Company
Plan under the Employee Plans Compliance Resol@ystem maintained by the IRS or any similar prograaintained by any other
Government Authority; and (v) there has been nadhef fiduciary duty (including violations undeaui?4 of Title | of ERISA) which has
resulted or could reasonably be expected to resuiability to the Company or its employees.

0] Benefits under each Company Plan that is an “ene@ayelfare benefit planizjthin the meaning of Section 3(1)
ERISA, with the exception of any medical expensmbeirsement arrangements subject to Sections 193 2% of the Code) are provided
exclusively through insurance contracts or politsssied by an insurance company, health maintenangemization, or similar organization
unrelated to the Company or any of its ERISA Adtiés, the premiums for which are paid directlylmy €Company or its ERISA Affiliates from
its general assets or partly from its general asmed partly from contributions by its employe&k insurance policy or contract relating to any
such Company Plan requires or permits retroactigeease in premiums or payments due thereunder.

@) The consummation of the transactions contemplagatiib Agreement will not, either alone or in comdgion with
another event (where such event would not alone haweffect described in this sentence), conflitt wr result in any violation of or default
under (with or without notice or lapse of time bath), or give rise to a right of termination, caltation, modification or acceleration of any
obligation of the Company or any of its Subsidiame loss of any benefit under any Company Plast or loan that will or may result in any
payment by the Company or any of its Subsidianidsether of severance pay or otherwise), requirdifig) acceleration, forgiveness of
indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase imefits or obligation of the Company or any of itgSidiaries to fund benefits with respect to
any employee, officer, director, stockholder orestbervice
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provider of the Company (whether current, formeratired) or their beneficiaries, or any other miatdiability for the Company or Parent.

(k) Each Company Plan can be amended, terminated emasfe discontinued after the Effective Time in@dance
with its terms, with no more than thirty (30) dadvance notice without liability to Company or Rargexcept for benefits protected under
Section 411(d) of the Code or Section 204(g) of &#Rand other than ordinary administration expemgaisally incurred in a termination
event). None of the Company Plans will be subjieeiny surrender fees, market value adjustmengraef sales charges, commissions, or
other fees or charges upon termination other thamormal and reasonable administrative fees agsocivith their amendment, transfer or
termination. The Company may, without cost, withwditheir employees, directors, officers and comasiit from any employee benefit plan in
which the Company is a participating employer ofchitthe Company does not sponsor.

)] Each Company Plan, employment agreement, or othgract, plan, program, agreement, or arrangerhanig a
“nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (withire tmeaning of Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) reentoperated in good faith compliance
with Section 409A of the Code, its Treasury regata, and any administrative guidance relatingetegrand no additional Tax under
Section 409A(a)(1)(B) of the Code has been oraseaably expected to be incurred by a participaany such Company Plan, employment
agreement, or other contract, plan, program, ageagror arrangement. The Company is not a partgrtotherwise obligated under, any
contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that gesvior the gross-up of Taxes imposed by Secti@\&)(1)(B) of the Code. No Company
Option or other right to acquire Company Commonr&ar other equity of the Company (i) has an égerngrice that was less than the fair
market value of the underlying equity securitiefithe date such Company Option or other right grasited, (ii) has any feature for the
deferral of compensation other than the deferrakobgnition of income until the later of exercifadisposition of such Company Option or
right, or (iii) has been granted after DecemberZB}7, with respect to any class of capital stddke Company that is not “service recipient
stock” (within the meaning of applicable regulasamder Section 409A of the Code).

(m) Neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate sporssanaintains or contributes to, or is obligateddatribute to,
any material employment, severance or similar e@ttr arrangement (whether or not written) or enagerial plan, policy, fund, program or
arrangement or contract, including multiemployemplretirement savings, superannuation, pensioeraece, employment, change-in-control,
fringe benefit, bonus, incentive, deferred compBasand any other employee benefit plan, agreenpeagram, policy or other arrangement
that is maintained outside the United States piilgnfor the benefit of Persons substantially alildiom are “nonresident aliens” within the
meaning of Section 4(b)(4) of ERISA.

(n) Neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has gfgn or commitment to adopt, establish or enter &my new
Company Plan, to modify any Company Plan (excefitécextent required by law or to conform any sGompany Plan to the requirements of
any Applicable Law, in each case as previouslyldssl to Parent in writing, or as required by thigeement).

3.9 Employee Matters

€) Schedule 3.9(a)(irontains a complete and correct list of all empksy/of the Company and each of its Subsidiarie
their respective titles as of the date hereof {tBempany Employee¥, the calendar year 2012 and 2013 compensati@hgygayable to each
such employee, the date of employment of each sogiloyee and the accrued vacation time and sicleleaother paid time off of each such
employee. Except as set forth.on Schedule 3.§(aj{) the terms of employment or
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engagement of all directors, officers, Company Eipgés, agents, consultants and professional adw$éine Company and each of its
Subsidiaries are such that their employment or gag&nt may be terminated at will with notice giegrmny time and without Liability for
payment of compensation or damages (other thawichdils working outside of the United States, wHatewill” employment is not
recognized), (ii) there are no severance paymehishware or could become payable by the Compamnpof its Subsidiaries to any such
person under the terms of any oral or written agere or commitment, (iii) there are no other agreets, contracts or commitments, oral or
written, including with respect to hiring bonusespcation payments, immigration assistance, reterggrrangements or commitments, or
transaction bonus or incentive agreements, bettlee@ompany or any of its Subsidiaries and any pechkon, (iv) except as set forth on
Schedule 3.9(a)(iii)and except for employees Parent has notified tragainy that it does not intend to retain, no exeeudfficer or material
number of management level or senior technical eygas of the Company or any of its Subsidiariesnotiied the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries has notified the Company of any ptarterminate his, her or their employment or relaship with the Company and (v) there are
no agreements between any Company Employee anotlaayPerson which would restrict, in any mannechsPerson’s ability to perform
services for the Company, any of its SubsidiarreBarent or the right of any of them to competdnaity Person or the right of any of them to
sell to or purchase from any other Person. Sclee8l@i(a)(iv) contains a complete and correct list of (A) anypkyees who were hired with
the assistance of an agency, search or recruitimgfér which any fee is owed, (B) the agencies Wmhose made placements of employees with
the Company since January 1, 2012, and (C) anyceggethat may currently be working on behalf of @@mpany. Copies of any agreements
with agencies relating to placements of employeidfs the Company made since January 1, 2012 anérduemployee searches have been
made available to Parent.

(b) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesiid)as ever been, bound by or subject to (and nbitg assets ¢
properties are bound by or subject to) any arramgenvith any labor union or other collective bangag representative. To the Knowledge of
the Company, no employee of the Company or ants@ubsidiaries is or has ever been representadypiabor union or covered by any
collective bargaining agreement while employedhi®sy€ompany and, to the knowledge of the Companyganpaign to establish such
representation is in progress. With respect tdbmnpany, there is no pending or threatened {Restslowdown, picketing, work stoppage or
employee grievance process, (ii) material chargeygnce proceeding or other claim against or ¢sifigcthe Company relating to the alleged
violation of any law pertaining to labor relatiooisemployment matters, including any charge or dainpfiled by an employee or union with
the National Labor Relations Board, the Equal Emplent Opportunity Commission or any comparable Guwent Authority, (iii) union
organizational activity or other labor or employrmdispute against or affecting the Company, or gpplication for certification of a collective
bargaining agent.

(c) Except as set forth an Schedule 3.9(¢)éxach of the Company and its Subsidiaries is asdieen in compliance in
all material respects with all applicable Laws extpng employment and employment practices, temdscanditions of employment, and
wages and hours, including, without limitation, augch laws regarding employment documentation, lezjaployment opportunities, fair
employment practices, plant closings and mass fayséxual harassment, retaliation, discriminabiased on sex, race, disability, health statu
pregnancy, religion, national origin, age, genetformation, family medical history, whistleblowiray other tortious conduct, workers’
compensation, family and medical leave, the ImntignreReform and Control Act, and occupational safetd health requirements, and neithe
the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has engamgedy unfair labor practice. Neither the Company any of its Subsidiaries is, or has ¢
been, liable for the payment of any compensatiamabes, Taxes, fines, penalties or other amoumtgever designated, for failure to comply
with any of the foregoing. All Persons classiflsdthe Company or any of its Subsidiaries as inddpet contractors or consultants do satisfy
and have satisfied the requirements of
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Law to be so classified. Schedule 3.9(c)&8ts forth a list of all contractors and consutiaand opposite their names lists the time peréads$
contractor or consultant has been providing sesvidéo individual who has performed services foooibehalf of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries and who has been treated by the Conmgraamy of its Subsidiaries as an independentraotdr, is classifiable as a “leased
employee” within the meaning of Section 414(n)(2)he Code with respect to the Company or suclsdbubsidiaries.

(d) No third party has asserted a claim against thep@omy, or, to the knowledge of the Company, hasoreés claim
that any person employed by the Company or anis@ubsidiaries has (i) violated any of the termsamditions of his employment, non-
competition, non-solicitation or non-disclosureegment with such third party, (ii) disclosed ofizdid any trade secret or proprietary
information or documentation of such third party(io) interfered in the employment relationshipttveen such third party and any of its
present or former employees. No person employetidfompany or any of its Subsidiaries, to thewkedge of the Company, has disclosed
or used or has proposed to disclose or use ang seatet or any information or documentation pegpry to any former employer or violated
any confidential relationship which such person haye had with any third party, in connection vitie development, manufacture or sale of
any Product or proposed Product or the developmestle of any service or proposed service of the@ny or any of its Subsidiaries.

(e) Schedule 3.9(elists all the Company Employees who are curremtiyeave relating to work-related injuries and/or
receiving disability benefits under any CompanynPla

3.10 Taxes.

€) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has (iletias had filed on its behalf) on a timely badisnaterial, and,
to the knowledge of the Company, all other Tax Retuhat it is required to have filed. Neither @@mpany nor any of its Subsidiaries has
requested or obtained any extension of time witVtiich to file any Tax Return, which Tax Return Imas since been filed. All Tax Returns
filed by the Company and each of its Subsidiariesraie, correct and complete in all material respand, to the knowledge of the Company,
there are no other inaccuracies that would be reddp expected to have a material negative effedither future Tax obligations of the
Company or its Subsidiaries or Tax compliance lgyGompany and its Subsidiaries after the Closintg DBleither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has ever participated in a “Tax anyfie@stsimilar program offered by any Taxing Authigrio avoid the assessment of any Tax.

(b) All Taxes required to have been paid by the Compargny of its Subsidiaries (whether or not showrany Tax
Return) have been paid on a timely basis. NeitheeCompany nor any of its Subsidiaries has anbilifya for Taxes not yet required to have
been paid, other than Liabilities for Taxes re#econ the Balance Sheet or incurred in the ordinatyse of business since the Balance Shee
Date. There are no Encumbrances on any of thésasfséne Company or any of its Subsidiaries thasain connection with any failure (or
alleged failure) timely to pay any Tax.

(c) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has cexhhi all respects with all applicable Laws relgtin
withholding and collection of Taxes and informati@porting with respect to such Taxes, and has$jimvihe time and manner prescribed by
Law, withheld or collected from employee wages atitbr payments and paid over to the proper Taxiathérity all such withheld or collect
amounts required to have been paid. To the knowledghe Company, the records of the Company anflubsidiaries contain all information
and documents reasonably expected to be necessemynply in all material respects with applicabkexTnformation reporting and Tax
withholding requirements under applicable Laws sich records reasonably required to identify withcsficity all accounts subject to backup
withholding under Section 3406 of the Code. Eddihe Company and its Subsidiaries has
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complied in all material respects with all sales Tasale certificate exemption requirements forollthe Company or any of its Subsidiaries
has either claimed such an exemption or not c@tkstles Tax from another Person in reliance amrehpse for resale exemption.

(d) No written claim has ever been received by the Gompr any of its Subsidiaries from a Taxing Auttyofor a
jurisdiction where neither the Company nor anyt®fSubsidiaries files Tax Returns that the Compargny of its Subsidiaries is or may
subject to taxation by that jurisdiction or hasofatigation to file Tax Returns, in each case wibhpect to any Tax of a type for which such
entity did not file a Tax Return with, or pay Tarposed by, such jurisdiction of such type for thestrrecently ended taxable period for which
such a Tax payment or Tax Return was due. Neitiee€ompany nor any of its Subsidiaries has comduattivities in any jurisdiction which
will require the Company or any of its Subsidiatiepay Tax or file any Tax Return in such juridiin of a type that was not required to have
been paid or filed by it in the most recently engeglvious taxable period for which such type of BaXxax Return would be due (as reflected
in Schedule 3.10(8)

(e) Schedule 3.10(e)dentifies all types of Tax Returns relating taame, franchise, property, sales and use and valu
added Tax (by type of Tax and jurisdiction) tha @ompany or any of its Subsidiaries has filed taedtaxable period covered by each such
Tax Return, and identifies those Tax Returns oioplsrthat have been audited or are currently th@stiof an audit by a Taxing Authority, &
all such income Tax Returns of the Company an8utssidiaries as to which the statute of limitatiorsassessments against the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries of additional Tax for thaable period covered thereby has not yet expired.Company and its Subsidiaries have
provided or made available to Parent complete andrate copies of all of the following material§:all income Tax Returns and other
material tax Returns filed by the Company or anitoSubsidiaries; (ii) all examination reportsatéig to Taxes or Tax Returns of the
Company and its Subsidiaries; (iii) all statemaft$axes assessed against or agreed to by the @gropany of its Subsidiaries that were not
shown on Tax Returns filed by the Company or anysaBubsidiaries before such assessment or agreeme all related correspondence;

(iv) all written rulings from, and written agreemtenvith, any Taxing Authority relating to Taxestbé Company or any of its Subsidiaries;

(v) all elections relating to Taxes of the Companyny of its Subsidiaries which would have contigueffect in the determination of Tax or
preparation of any Tax Return of the Company or@friys Subsidiaries for any taxable period for gtha Tax Return has not yet been filed or
Tax paid (other than elections that are includeoriapparent from Tax Returns referred to in clgi)sgbove); (vi) any request for issuance of
any ruling from a Tax Authority on behalf of thei@pany or any Subsidiary since formation (regardéésghether the requested ruling was
issued) and (vii) to the extent reasonably requeistevriting by Parent, any other document relatmd axes or Tax Returns of the Compan
any of its Subsidiaries (other than documentstti@Company has advised Parent in writing that itnable to provide or for which less than
three (3) business days have elapsed since thefstieh request).

) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesehgzermanent establishment” in any country othantthe
country under the Laws of which it is organizedgash term is defined in any applicable Tax treatgonvention between the relevant countn
of organization and such other country) and hastiarwise engaged in activity that is reasonakbly to have exposed it to the taxing
jurisdiction of any such other country with respict material Tax Liability. The Company and e&eibsidiary is in material compliance w
the terms and conditions of any existing Tax exéongtgranted by, Tax agreements with or Tax ordéeny Taxing Authority to which it
may be subject, and, to the knowledge of the Comphe consummation of the Merger is not expeabdaktinconsistent with continued
compliance with the terms and conditions of anyhseixemptions, agreements or orders.

Any and all transactions between or among the Compaany of its Subsidiaries on the one hand anydogher
controlled Persons (within the meaning of Secti82 df the
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Code) have at all times occurred on arm’s-lengtimée as if between and among unrelated partieg. Cldmpany and each of its Subsidiaries
has properly and in a timely manner documented material respects its transfer pricing methodglin compliance with Section 6662

(e) (and any related sections) of the Code, thastng regulations promulgated thereunder and ampacable provisions of U.S. state, local,
or non-U.S. Tax law.

(h) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesamyr Person on behalf of the Company or any itsfidries ha
waived any statute of limitations or agreed to axrtension of time that has continuing effect wihpect to assessment or collection of any
for which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries/rha held liable. There is not currently in effaoly power of attorney authorizing any
Person to act on behalf of the Company or anysdbitbsidiaries or receive information relatingite Company or any of its Subsidiaries, with
respect to any Tax matter (other than authorizattorcontact Tax Return preparers included in TatuRs previously filed by the Company
any of its Subsidiaries). There is no audit or ofPceeding presently pending or threatened itingr{or to the Company’s knowledge,
otherwise) with regard to any Tax Liability or TReturn of the Company or any of its Subsidiari€s.the knowledge of the Company, there
are no existing circumstances that reasonably maxpected to result in the assertion of a mateldain for unsatisfied Tax obligations
against the Company or its Subsidiaries by anyigaRiuthority with respect to any taxable periocportion thereof ending on or before the
Closing Date for which Tax Returns are requiretdoe been filed or Tax is required to have beed paiithheld or collected by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

0] Except as disclosed on Schedule 3.10éixd except for payments of benefits that are lgay@ an individual that
has signed a 280G Waiver, neither the Company mpofits Subsidiaries has or have made or becdstigated to make, or will as a result of
any event connected directly or indirectly with drgnsaction contemplated herein become obligatedake, any “excess parachute payment’
as defined in Section 280G of the Code (withouarddo Subsection (b)(4) thereof) and no amouritdbald be received (whether in cash or
property or the vesting of property), as a resithe consummation of the transactions contemplagzdin or any other event, by any
employee, officer, director, stockholder or othenvice provider of the Company or any of its Sulasids under any Company Plan or
otherwise would not be deductible by reason ofiBr@80G of the Code or would be subject to ansextax under Section 4999 of the Code.
There is no written or unwritten agreement, plargregement or other contract by which the Compargng of its Subsidiaries is bound to
compensate or provide a Tax gross-up payment fpimatividual for excise taxes paid pursuant to ®ect999 of the Code. Schedule 3.10(i)
identifies each “disqualified individual” as dedithin Section 280G of the Code (each_a “ PoteRti@hchute Recipiefit to whom the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries has made angnpais or provided any benefit, or who is a partgriagreement that could obligate the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to make any mgatror provide any benefit, that alone or togettoerd constitute a “parachute payment”
within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code.

) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesrhade or agreed to make, has requested permissioake, or i
required to make, any change in method of accogmirviously used by it in any Tax Return filedibwhich change in method would requ
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to makedimstment to its income pursuant to Section 48&{ahe Code (or any similar provision) on
any Tax Return for any taxable period ending oafter the Closing Date for which the Company or ahits Subsidiaries has not yet filed a
Tax Return; nor has the Company or any of its Sli@ses received any written notice (or to the kiemge of the Company, any other notice)
that a Taxing Authority proposes to require a cleaimgmethod of accounting used in any Tax Returitiwhas been filed by the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries.
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() Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariestaksn any action not in accordance with past pathat would
have the effect of deferring a material measur€aof from a period (or portion thereof) ending orbefore the Closing Date to a taxable pe
(or portion thereof) beginning after the Closing@®aNeither the Company nor any of its Subsidsahas material deferred income or Tax
Liability arising out of any transaction, exceptthe extent adequately reserved for on its Bal&fmet, including without limitation, (i) the
disposition of any property in a transaction ac¢edrior under the installment method pursuant wiSe 453 of the Code, (ii) the use of the
long-term contract method of accounting or (iiig tteceipt of any prepaid amount on or before thusi@l Date (other than receipts after the
Balance Sheet Date in the ordinary course of basinensistent with prior practice as reflecteddserves on the Balance Sheet for Taxes
related to prepayments of a similar type).

)] Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesbeen a United States real property holding cotfmravithin
the meaning of Section 897(c)(2) of the Code attamg during the preceding five (5) years.

(m) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries mrty to any safe harbor lease within the meaoirggction 168
(f)(8) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, asffact before amendment by the Tax Equity and FiReaponsibility Act of 1982. No
property owned by the Company or any of its Sulasiés is (i) “tax-exempt use propertyithin the meaning of Section 168(h)(1) of the Cc
(i) “tax-exempt bond financed property” within tiheeaning of Section 168(g) of the Code, (iii) a&rtathe Company, used predominately
outside the United States within the meaning otiBed 68(g)(1)(A) of the Code, or as to any Sulasigi used outside the country under the
Laws of which it was organized. None of the Companany of its Subsidiaries is a party to any agrent under which it is treated as a lessc
or lessee of “limited use property” within the meanof Rev. Proc. 2001-28. None of the outstandiigbtedness of the Company or its
Subsidiaries constitutes indebtedness with regpeaghich any interest deductions may be disalloweder Sections 163(i), 163(j), 163(I) or
279 of the Code or under any other applicable Laws.

(n) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariestiesen either a “distributing corporation” or a “tatled
corporation” within the meaning of Section 355(30&) of the Code in a distribution qualifying (ontended to qualify) under Section 355 of
the Code (or so much of Section 356 as relategttidh 355).

(0) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiarieséhas been subject to (i) the dual consolidated fwrovisions of
the Section 1503(d) of the Code, (ii) the overatefgn loss provisions of Section 904(f) of the €al (iii) the recharacterization provisions of
Section 952(c)(2) of the Code.

(p) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sect®h0 to the contrary, no representation is beiagerby the
Company with respect to the amount of or the alsdilg to use any net operating losses, any Taxliti@rryovers (including any VAT credit
any income Tax basis or other Tax attributes ofCbenpany or any of its Subsidiaries other thanasgntations being made as to the
knowledge of the Company. For the avoidance obtaw representation is being made as to whethenat operating losses of the Comp
or any of its Subsidiaries are subject to limitationder Sections 269, 382, 383, 384 or 1502 o€ibte, or comparable provisions of state, |
or non-U.S. Tax Law.

() Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesgaticipated in, or cooperated with, an internadidboycott
within the meaning of Section 999 of the Code.
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(n Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries mathe past ten (10) years, acquired assets &moother Person
(or was treated or required to be treated for Tiap@ses as acquiring assets of a Person by redsbamge in Tax status of such Person) in a
transaction in which the federal income Tax basigtie acquired assets (other than cash) is retjtorbave been determined, in whole or in
part, by reference to the Tax basis of the acquassets in the hands of such transferring Person.

(s) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiarieséhees been a party to any Tax allocation, Taxisgaindemnity
or similar agreement or arrangement, other tharsani agreements or arrangements to which onlZtimepany and any of its Subsidiaries
parties, under which the Company or any of its &lilnses may be held liable to another Person speet of Taxes payable by such Person
(including any agreement by which the Company grafrits Subsidiaries has agreed to allocate Tabillties computed on a consolidated,
combined, unitary or similar basis among entittesagreed to indemnify any other Person againstLTahilities). For the purposes of this
Section 3.10(s), commercially reasonable agreenpentgding for the allocation or payment of reabperty Taxes attributable to real property
leased or occupied by the Company or any of itsiiisries and commercially reasonable agreementhéaallocation of payment of personal
property Taxes, sales or use Taxes or value addeesTwith respect to personal property leased,, wseaed or sold by the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of busir{gSsscluded Tax Sharing Agreements”) shall be disreled.

® Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiarie$&3 ever been a member of an “affiliated grougthiw the
meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Code) or singlaup of entities, other than the affiliated grafpvhich the Company is the common
parent, with which the Company or any of its Suiasids joined, or was or may be required to joar,dny taxable period in making a
consolidated federal income Tax Return or other Raturn in which Tax Liability was or would be couted on a consolidated, combined,
unitary or similar basis, and (ii) has ever haélationship to any other Person (other than aicglship between the Company and its
Subsidiaries) that would cause it to be liableTrares owed by any other Person (other than asa paguired to effect Tax withholding from
payments to another Person), including, withouitétion, Tax payable by reason of transferee lighibperation of Law or Treasury
Regulation Section 1.1502-6(a) (or any predecesssuccessor thereof or any analogous or similavigion under Law).

(u) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiarie$s(g party to any joint venture, partnership ¢reotagreement or
arrangement that is treated or required to beedeas a partnership for federal income Tax purpasdgii) owns any interest in an entity that
either is treated as an entity disregarded as atpfiom its owner for U.S. federal Tax purposes@n entity as to which an election pursuant
to Treasury Regulation Section 301.7701-3 has beste.

(v) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariestiesen a beneficiary or has otherwise participatezhy
“reportable transaction” within the meaning of T8egy Regulation Section 1.6011-4(b)(1) that willrbquired to be disclosed under Treasury
Regulation Section 1.6011-4 on a Tax Return nofilet by the Company. No Tax Return filed by orlmehalf of the Company has contained
a disclosure statement under Section 6662 of thie Qar any similar provision of Law) (other thaatsiments included in or apparent from
Returns provided or made available to Parent putsieaSection 3.10(e)).

(w) To the extent that the Company or and of its Sudseas has applied for, received and used aid gcaby a
Government Authority, in whatever form, in the matof Tax incentives or benefits that are not gelheavailable to all similarly situated
taxpayers without specific application, such aidwasgailed of only in accordance with applicable Eaamd in compliance with all
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regulatory orders, conditions and impositions. ti@knowledge of the Company, no such aid willdeuired to be unwound, repaid or
discontinued as a result of the consummation oftbeger or any other existing circumstance.

3.11 Property.

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.11 (@ither the Company nor any of its Subsidiarigag) or has ever owned,
any real property. Schedule 3.11(@ts forth an accurate and complete list of all peoperty leased by the Company or any of itssklidries
or to which the Company or any of its Subsidiares/ have any leasehold rights (collectively, tH&tilities”). True, complete and correct
copies of all leases of real property listed ongsicte 3.11(a)have been made available to Parent. Neither gmep@ny nor any of its
Subsidiaries have subleased any portion of thdiftegi All leases set forth on Schedule 3.11& in full force and effect and constitute valid
and binding agreements of the Company and the ptu¢y or parties thereto in accordance with thespective terms, except as enforceability
may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolveneprganization, moratorium or other similar laaffecting the enforcement of creditors’
rights in general and general principles of equity.

(b) Schedule 3.11(b¥kets forth an accurate list of all owned and ldgmssonal property included on the Balance Shet
(i) as of the Balance Sheet Date, or (ii) acqusiede the Balance Sheet Date, in the case of difigrvalued in excess of $20,000. True,
complete and correct copies of all leases of palgmoperty and equipment listed on Schedule 3)1héve been delivered to Parent. All of
the personal property listed on Schedule 3.11¢hh good working order and condition, ordinargar and tear excepted. All personal prop
necessary for the conduct of the business by tmep@ay or any of its Subsidiaries is either ownedh®yCompany, its Subsidiary, or leased
under an agreement listed on Schedule 3.11(b)

(c) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has gnddraarketable title to its owned tangible assetg &nd clear
any and all Encumbrances, and such assets, tagjethés, are adequate and sufficient for the operatf their respective businesses as
currently conducted.

3.12 Contracts

€) Schedule 3.12(a}ets forth an accurate and complete list of eaghif®@ant Contract. No Significant Contract has
been breached or canceled by the other party,len@ompany has no knowledge of any anticipatedchrbg any other party to any Signific
Contract (with or without notice or lapse of timélhe Company or its Subsidiary has performecdhalldbligations required to be performed by
it in all material respects in connection with Bignificant Contracts and is not in material defamder or in material breach of any Significan
Contract, and no event has occurred which wittpdssage of time or the giving of notice or both Mdi) result in a material default or
material breach thereunder; (ii) give any Perserritpht to declare a default under any Signific@ahtract, (i) give any Person the right to
accelerate the maturity or performance of any Sigamt Contract, or (iv) give any Person the rightancel, terminate or materially modify
any Significant Contract. The Company does not feapeesent expectation or intention of not fullyfpeming any obligation pursuant to any
Significant Contract. Each Significant Contracleigal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full ferand effect, except as enforceability may be
limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reamgation, moratorium or other similar laws affagtthe enforcement of creditors’ rights in
general and general principles of equity.
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(b) The Company has provided Parent with a true angcbcopy of all written Significant Contracts whiare
required to be disclosed on Schedule 3.12i@each case together with all written amendm@iltof which are disclosed on Schedule 3.12
(a)). Schedule 3.12(brontains an accurate and complete descriptiofi ofaterial terms of all oral Significant Contractshe Company does
not have any Government Contracts or Governmerg.Bid

3.13 Claims and Litigation Schedule 3.18escribes all of the claims, demands and Procesdirag have been commenced by or
against the Company or any of its Subsidiariesthadstatus thereof. Except as set forth on Scke®iaB, there is no claim, demand or
Proceeding pending, threatened in writing, orhknowledge of the Company, threatened orallyregair affecting the Company or its asset:
before any court, agency, authority or arbitratisiounal. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.48ither the Company nor any of its Subsidie
has received any opinion or legal advice in writinghe effect that it is exposed from a legal daint to any Liability or disadvantage which
may be material to the business of the Companypoéits Subsidiaries as previously or presentigducted or as presently proposed to be
conducted. None of the Company or any of its efcor other employees is subject to or in defaith respect to any notice, order, writ,
injunction or decree of any Government Authorityadbitration tribunal, which may be material to thesiness of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.

3.14 Compliance with Laws

€)) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has cexhpli all times, and is currently in compliancealirmaterial
respects, with all Laws, regulations, rules, ordpesmits, judgments, decrees and other requirestaamtt policies imposed by any Government
Authority, including but not limited to the Falsda@ns Act, the anti-fraud provisions of the ContrBisputes Act, the Anti-Kickback Act, the
Federal Election Campaign Act, the Sherman ActQlagton Act, the Truth in Negotiations Act, therdees Contract Act, the Procurement
Integrity Act, the Byrd Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 135Re Export Administration Act of 1979, as amethdend each act’s respective
regulations. Each of the Company and its Subs&Baras all material licenses, permits, approvaislifications or the like, from any
Government, Government Authority or Person necgdsathe conduct of its business as conductedsrasently proposed to be conducted,
all such items are in full force and effect andheatthe Company and its Subsidiaries is and ha#l imes been in material compliance with
the terms thereof. Schedule 3skets forth all licenses and permits held by the gamy and each of its Subsidiaries which terminateecome
renewable at any time prior to the first anniveysafrthe date of this Agreement. To the knowledfjthe Company, there are no facts or
circumstances in existence which are reasonaldyylifo prevent the Company or any of its Subsid&from renewing each such license and
permit. The Company has not received any writ@ica or citation for any actual noncompliance vatty of the foregoing in this
Section 3.14.

(b) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries(has, to the knowledge of the Company, has angotir,
officer, principal, assignee, partner, agent, opleyee of the Company or any of its Subsidiariesany other person, acting on behalf of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries) directly oriiadtly: used any of the Company’s or any of itbSdiaries’ funds for unlawful
contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlalgxpenses relating to political activity; made amlawful payment to foreign or domestic
government officials or employees or to foreigrdomestic political parties or campaigns from thenpany’s or any of its Subsidiariefsinds;
violated any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Piges Act, 15 U.S.C. sections 78dd-1, -2, or anyivadent foreign law; established or
maintained any unlawful or unrecorded fund of tleempany’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ monies or otigsets; made any false or fictitious
entry on the books or records of the Company orddritg Subsidiaries; or made any bribe, rebatgofiainfluence payment, kickback, or ott
unlawful payment, to any person or entity, privatgublic, regardless of form, whether in money,
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property, or services, to obtain favorable treatnieisecuring business or to obtain special coneasdor the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, or to pay for favorable treatmentdfiasiness secured or for special concessions glaadined for the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries. Neither the Company nor any or dns@ubsidiaries’ has conducted or initiated amgrnal investigation or made a voluntary
or involuntary disclosure to any Government Authowith respect to any alleged act or omissionigisinder or relating to any
noncompliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practiceg A6 U.S.C. sections 78dd-1, -2, or any equivdiergign law.

(c) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries is in diampe in all material respects with all United t8simport and
export Laws (including without limitation those lawnder the authority of U.S. Departments of ConuaéBureau of Industry and Security)
codified at 15 CFR, Parts 700-799; Homeland Secy@itistoms and Border Protection) codified at 1RCParts 1-199; State (Directorate of
Defense Trade Controls) codified at 22 CFR, Pa%& 120-130; and Treasury (Office of Foreign As€mstrol) codified at 31 CFR, Parts
500-599). Each of the Company and its Subsididr@essconducted its export transactions in accomlanall material respects with applicable
provisions of U.S. export laws and regulations, atietr export laws of the countries where it conslbtisiness. Without limiting the
foregoing: (i) each of the Company and its Subsigisashas obtained all export licenses and otheroays required for its exports of products,
software and technologies from the U.S., (ii) eatthe Company and its Subsidiaries is in compkeincall material respects with the terms of
such applicable export licenses or other approyiglsthere are no pending or overtly threatenkdnis against the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries with respect to such export licensesteer approvals and (iv) there are no actionsditmns or circumstances pertaining to the
Company'’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ export tramigens that would reasonably be expected to gse o any material future claims.

3.15 Environmental and Safety MattersEach of the Company and its Subsidiaries hadwaird its business at all times in
compliance, in all material respects, with all apgible Environmental Laws. To the knowledge of @mmpany, none of the properties
currently or formerly owned or operated by the Campor any of its Subsidiaries contain any Hazasddubstance in amounts exceeding the
levels permitted by applicable Environmental Laweither the Company nor any of its Subsidiariesiat received any notices, demand
letters or requests for information from any Goweemt Authority or other Person, which has not ledoge been resolved with such
Government Authority or other Person, indicatingttthe Company or any of its Subsidiaries may badfation of, or liable under, any
Environmental Law. There are no civil, criminalaaministrative Proceedings pending or, to the Kadge of the Company, overtly
threatened against the Company or any of its Si#vsd relating to any violation, or alleged viddatt, of any Environmental Law. No reports
have been filed, or are required to be filed, iy @ompany or any of its Subsidiaries concerningRékease of any Hazardous Substance or tt
threatened or actual violation of any Environmehtal which have not heretofore been resolved. ldaaidous Substance has been dispose
of, Released or transported by the Company in tr@yleof any applicable Environmental Law from anmgerties owned by the Company. To
the knowledge of the Company, no remediation oegtigation of Hazardous Substances is occurriagaproperty operated, or formerly
operated, by the Company, in each case, with respany action taken by the Company.

3.16 Insurance Schedule 3.1Bsts each insurance policy maintained by, on Hedfafor the benefit of or at the expense of the
Company and each of its Subsidiaries and any claiate by the Company or its Subsidiaries thereuntiee Company has provided copies
to Parent of all such insurance policies. All ofls insurance policies are in full force and effactd neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is, nor ever been, in default witlpees to its obligations under any such insurandieips and neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has never been denied insurance geveethe Company is current in all of its premiuuonsits insurance policies. The Company
does
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not know of any threatened termination of, or matgrremium increase with respect to, any suchcpedi The Company has never received
any notice or other communication regarding anyalair possible (i) cancellation or invalidationasfy insurance policy, (ii) refusal of any
coverage or rejection of any claim under any inscegpolicy, or (iii) material adjustment in the amb of the premiums payable with respec
any insurance policy. Neither the Company nor@iniys Subsidiaries has any self-insurance or soHiance programs.

3.17 Intellectual Property

(a) Company Owned Intellectual Propertyschedule 3.17(a3ets forth a complete and accurate list of altéthStates
and foreign Company Registered Intellectual Prgpefihe foregoing, along with all other Intellect&aoperty owned by the Company or the
Subsidiaries, are the “Company Owned IntellectuapBrty”. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17tag¢ Company and the Subsidiaries are
the sole and exclusive owners of all right, tittelanterest in and to the Company Owned Intellddtuaperty, free and clear of all
Encumbrances. Neither the Company nor any Sulbgides permitted their rights in the Company Regesd Intellectual Property to lapse or,
in the case of registered copyrights, enter théipdomain. Schedule 3.17(a) identifies each emnithgreement, contract, assignment or other
instrument pursuant to which the Company or anysilidry has obtained any joint or sole ownershiprigst in or to any intellectual property
rights in each material item of Company Owned latgbal Property and copies of such agreementsramia, assignments and other
instruments have been made available to Parent.

(b) Company Licensed Intellectual Propert$chedule 3.17(b)dentifies (i) each item of Company Licensed
Intellectual Property and the license or agreerparguant to which the Company or any Subsidiaryreesived rights to Exploit such
Company Licensed Intellectual Property (but exaladill Excluded Contracts); and (ii) all licenses, Isténses and other agreements that
require the Company or any Subsidiary to licenssiga or otherwise grant rights to any additiorsi\atives, modifications or improvements
to Company Licensed Intellectual Property made ibipothe Company or any Subsidiary to any thirdypaThe Company and each
Subsidiary are in material compliance with the teand conditions of all licenses. Neither the Canypnor any Subsidiary is a party to any
oral license, sublicense or other contract or ustdading for any Company Licensed Intellectual Brop To the knowledge of the Company,
there are currently no claims, actions or procegglpending or threatened against Company or angidaby alleging that the Company or ¢
Subsidiary has breached any terms or conditiossict licenses. None of the products or servicesldped, manufactured, distributed,
provided, licensed or sold by the Company or arlysiliary includes Open Source Materials.

(c) All Necessary Rights To the knowledge of the Company, the intellecpuaperty rights in Company Intellectual
Property constitutes all intellectual property tgjhecessary to enable the Company to condudiLtbieess of the Company and the
Subsidiaries in all material respects in the maiirisrcurrently conducted (and contemplated tededucted, based on the product roadmap
furnished to Parent by the Company) by the Compentythe Subsidiaries.

(d) Reqistrations and ApplicationsSchedule 3.17(alists, for each item of Company Registered Intellal Property,
the applicable filing or registration number, tiglerisdiction in which filing was made or from vdhi registration issued, date of filing or
issuance, names of all current applicant(s), irmés), and registered owner(s), the current stafttise application or registration and the next
steps required to be taken in connection with spgilication or registration, and all deadlines ¢ifi@r, as applicable. All necessary registration
maintenance and renewal fees currently requirdet tilled or paid, as applicable, in connection va#ith item of Company Registered
Intellectual Property have been paid and all nesgssocuments and certificates currently requiceld filed in connection
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with such Company Registered Intellectual Propkaye been filed with the relevant patent, copyriglademark, domain registrars and other
authorities in the United States and foreign judsdns, as the case may be, for the purposes woitaiaing such Company Registered
Intellectual Property. Except as set forth_on Sche8.17(a) there are no actions that must be taken by thmepgaay or any Subsidiary within
ninety (90) days following the Closing Date, indhuglthe payment of any registration, maintenancenewal fees or the filing of any
responses to office actions, documents, applicatiorcertificates for the purposes of obtainingint@ning, perfecting, preserving or renewing
any Company Registered Intellectual Property. ceoedance with applicable laws and regulationsQbmpany and each Subsidiary have
recorded each assignment of Company Registereltebiteal Property by a third party to the Compang any Subsidiary with the relevant
governmental authorities, registrars and patesdetmark, and copyright offices, including the Udiiftates Patent and Trademark Office, the
U.S. Copyright Office, Verisign, Inc. (with respe&ot.com and other domains) and other domain nagistrars throughout the world, and their
respective successors and counterparts in othisdictions, as the case may be.

(e) No Claims. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17®ither the Company nor any Subsidiary is culyesthas
been a party to any claim, suit, action or proaegdnor is any claim, suit, action or proceedigthie knowledge of the Company, threatened
against the Company or any Subsidiary, in eachwaseh alleges that the Company or any Subsidias/éngaged in any infringement,
unauthorized use or violation of any Company Lieehintellectual Property, or challenging the Compsor any Subsidiaries’ ownership of,
right to use, make, have made, sell, offer to s&lribute, license or sublicense any Company @wneellectual Property or challenging the
validity or enforceability of any Company Ownedditectual Property. To the knowledge of the Conypédime operation of the business of the
Company, as itis currently conducted (or contetepl@o be conducted, based on the product roadorajsfied to Parent by the Company) by
the Company and the Subsidiaries, does not cuyrearttl will not, infringe or misappropriate anydhéctual Property of any Person, or
constitute unfair competition or trade practicedemthe laws of any jurisdiction, and neither th@@any nor any Subsidiary has received
notice from any Person claiming that such operatifnimges or misappropriates any Intellectual Rmbyp of any Person, or constitutes unfair
competition or trade practices under the laws gfjarisdiction. To the knowledge of the Company,thiod party is infringing upon or
misappropriating, or has infringed upon or misappaded, any Company Owned Intellectual Property.

()] Outbound Licenses and AgreementSchedule 3.17(fjdentifies each license, sublicense, covenantlaero
agreement pursuant to which the Company or anyi&iabg has licensed, distributed or otherwise gedrany right to any Person, or
covenanted not to assert any right, with respeahioCompany Owned Intellectual Property. The @amny and each Subsidiary are in
material compliance with all material terms andditans of such licenses, sublicenses, covenamto#rer agreements. Except as described
on Schedule 3.17(f)neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has ageeiemnify any Person against any infringemeiaiation or
misappropriation of any Intellectual Property wigspect to any Company Product. Except as sét dortSchedule 3.17(f)neither the
Company nor any Subsidiary is a member of or pargny patent pool, industry standards body, teed®ciation or other organization
pursuant to the rules of which it is obligateditehse to any Person any existing or future Com@wnyed Intellectual Property.

(9) Trade Secrets and ConfidentialityThe Company and each Subsidiary have takenmabkosecurity measures
necessary to protect their confidential informatéonl enforce their rights in such information. ither the Company nor any Subsidiary is
currently a party to any claim, suit, action orgegeding, nor to the knowledge of the Company iscaiyn, suit, action or proceeding
threatened against the Company or any Subsidiasach case which alleges that the Company or abgidiary has materially breached any
term of any nondisclosure agreement to which the@my or
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any Subsidiary is a party. The Company and eadtisi8iary have made available to Parent copiesl ofoaldisclosure agreements between the
Company and each Subsidiary, on the one hand, |btiird parties, on the other hand. Schedule @] Tdentifies each third party with which
the Company and each Subsidiary has entered imodisclosure agreement, the effective date thetieeftermination date thereof, and the
term limit for maintaining the confidentiality ofhg information disclosed therein. The Company aach Subsidiary have materially compliec
with all applicable contractual and legal requiratsgoertaining to the handling or use of third padnfidential information, Intellectual
Property, and/or trade secrets that it has recdioed a third party under any nondisclosure agregni¢o complaint alleging an improper use
or disclosure of, or a breach in the security of; such information has been made or, to the kragdef the Company, threatened in writing
against the Company or any Subsidiary. To the kedge of the Company, there has been no (i) unaattbdisclosure of any third party
proprietary or confidential information in the pession, custody or control of the Company or anlys&liary or (ii) breach of the Company’s
or any Subsidiary’s security procedures whereirfidential information has been disclosed to a tipiagty Person.

(h) Nondisclosure and Assignment of Invention AgreemmerExcept as set forth on Schedule 3.17(h), aitefs,
employees, consultants and independent contragtolh® Company and each Subsidiary have execuédelivered to the Company written
agreements (i) requiring each such officer, empoygensultant or independent contractor to praiadtpreserve the confidentiality of the
Company’s confidential information and (ii) exprigsassigning to the Company or a Subsidiary akllettual Property arising from the
services performed for the Company or a Subsidigryuch Persons. To the knowledge of the Compaime of the Company’s employees
have violated the Company’s or any Subsidiary’sqes or practices related to protection of tragersts or confidential information.

0] Development of Intellectual Property By Employead &ontractors Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1 74
Company Owned Intellectual Property has been aldatemployees of the Company or a Subsidiary dnbgpendent contractors or
consultants of the Company or a Subsidiary who kexeeuted valid and binding agreements expressligriag all right, title and interest in
such Intellectual Property to the Company or a Blifxy and waiving their non-assignable rights liiniing moral rights) in such developed
Intellectual Property in favor of the Company dwbsidiary and their permitted assigns and lices)se®d who have no residual claim to such
materials. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17¢ithe extent that any Intellectual Property basn developed or created independently or
jointly by an independent contractor or other thpedty for the Company or a Subsidiary, the Compamguch Subsidiary has a writt
agreement with such independent contractor or fhartly and has thereby obtained ownership of, sutidlei exclusive owner of all such
independent contractor’s or third pagyhtellectual Property in such work, materialmreéntion by operation of law or valid assignment.tfie
knowledge of the Company, none of the activitiethefemployees of the Company or any Subsidiarkatée any contract, obligation or other
arrangement which any such employee has with adoemployer.

@) Noncontravention Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17{}e consummation and performance of the Mergér an
the other transactions contemplated by this Agreemél not (i) cause a breach of or default by @empany under, or create on behalf of any
third party a right to terminate or modify, anyditse or other agreement relating to Company lctelde Property; (i) restrict the continued |
by the Company or any Subsidiary of the Compamglliettual Property to any greater or different aktban the restrictions to which the
Company or any Subsidiary is currently subjectaurse any loss of, the diminishment in value ofherloss of rights to Exploit, any Compe
Intellectual Property; (iii) cause the grant t dinird party of any new, additional or expandeghtito receive or Exploit any Company Owned
Intellectual Property; (iv) cause the Company or Sabsidiary to be bound by, or subject to, any-compete or other material restriction in
the operation or scope of its
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business; or (v) cause the Company or any Subgithee obligated to pay any royalties or otherariat amounts, or offer any incremental
discounts, to any third party in excess of thogeetily payable by the Company or any Subsidiprgyided, howeverthat no representation
and warranty is made with respect to any obligatiohParent or Merger Sub prior to the Effectiven&j or to any acts or omissions undertake
by Parent or Merger Sub after the Effective Time.

() Educational Institutions; Governmental AuthoritieBlo Company Owned Intellectual Property was dgved by,
or directly as the result of the use of any faeditor resources of educational institutions or @oyernmental Authority in a manner that would
cause such educational institutions or Governmexugiority to receive any right in such Company @arintellectual Property.

0] Company Source CodeNeither the Company nor any Subsidiary has §edndistributed or disclosed, and the
Company does not have any knowledge of any licadis&ibution or disclosure by others (including tBompany’s and its Subsidiaries’
employees and contractors) of, the Company Souocke @ any Person that was not an employee, cansuihdependent contractor, or esc
agent of the Company or any Subsidiary at the tifrdisclosure, except pursuant to the agreemestegilion Schedule 3.17(Iand the
Company and each Subsidiary have taken all reat®ophpsical and electronic security measures teegureunauthorized disclosure of such
Company Source Code. No event has occurred, as@daonstance or condition exists, that (with otheut notice or lapse of time, or both)
will, or would reasonably be expected to, nor Wik Merger or the other transactions contemplayeithis Agreement, cause the disclosure or
release of such Company Source Code by the Congraanyy Subsidiary, escrow agent(s), or any othesdPeto any third party.

(m) Open Source MaterialsSchedule 3.17(mlists all Open Source Materials that the Compangny Subsidiary has
incorporated into any Company Products and descthimmanner in which such Open Source Materiale baen utilized, including, without
limitation, whether and how the Open Source Matehave been modified, licensed and/or distribitgthe Company and each Subsidiary.
Except as specifically disclosed_in Schedule 3.17(neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has ¢drporated Open Source Materials into,
or combined Open Source Materials with, any Compnogluct; (ii) used Open Source Materials in Comyparoducts in a manner that
creates obligations for the Company or any Subsidas a condition of Exploitation of such Open @euMaterials, to cause any Company
Owned Intellectual Property to be (x) disclosediributed or otherwise made available in sourceedodn, (y) licensed for the purpose of
making derivative works or (z) redistributable ateharge or minimal charge.

(n) No Defects; No Malicious Code Schedule 3.17(nlists all currently open and unresolved warra&nes for the
Company Products that were received by the Comgaripg the current calendar year. To the Compakiysvledge, the Company Products
did not contain (at the time of delivery thereofthg Company to a distributor, reseller, end-usstamer, or other third party) any disabling
device, virus, worm, back door, Trojan horse oeottiisruptive or malicious code that in each casmpable of disrupting, disabling, or
otherwise impeding the operation of, or providimgwuthorized access to, a computer system or netwarkher device on which such code is
stored or installed or damaging or destroying aaa ar file without the user’s consent.

(0) Personal Information The Company’s and the Subsidiaries’ collectietention and Exploitation of data that
enables the identification of the identity of adiindual natural person and that has been colldayettie Company or any Subsidiary from any
such person is has been and is currently matefraltipmpliance with the Company’s or the applica®ldsidiary’s current published privacy

policy.
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3.18 Related Party TransactionsThe Company has not, since December 31, 20i@néad or maintained credit, arranged for
extension of credit, or renewed an extension adigran the form of a personal loan to or for ansedtor or officer (or equivalent thereof) of t
Company. No officer or director of the Company hexeived since December 31, 2012, nor is entitleéceive, any material compensation
from any Person that has engaged in or is engagiagy material transaction with the Company. Tmenpany is not a party to or bound by
any Contract with any Related Party.

3.19 Customers and SuppliersSchedule 3.1Rlentifies the top ten (10) customers (based oreatifiscal year revenues) of the
Company (“ Significant Customefsand the top ten (10) suppliers (based on curfisoal year revenues) of the Company (* Significan
Suppliers’). No Significant Customer or Significant Supplieas terminated or threatened in writing to terr@nts relationship with the
Company or has during the last twelve (12) monthtenmally decreased, limited or otherwise chan@pedé¢rms and conditions for the purchas
or sale, as applicable, of goods or services fooon the Company, or threatened in writing to dpastd the Company does not know of any
written or oral communication, fact, event or agtighich exists or has occurred which would indidhtg any Significant Customer or
Significant Supplier would do so, whether as altasfithe transaction contemplated hereby or otlisew

3.20 Brokers. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.20 Person has, as a result of the transactianemmplated by this Agreeme
any right, interest or claim against or upon thevising Corporation or the Company for any comnussifee or other compensation payabl
a finder or broker because of any act or omissiothb Company.

3.21 Bank Accounts; Powers of AttorneySchedule 3.28ets forth a true, correct and complete list ofrtames and locations of
all banks and other financial institutions at whihe Company and each of its Subsidiaries mairaiaccount or safe deposit box, the names
of all Persons authorized to withdraw therefronhave access thereto and the names of all Perstiisdhpowers of attorney from the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries as of the dathis Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SIGNIFICANT S TOCKHOLDERS

As a material inducement to the Parent and Mergbert8 enter into this Agreement, and to consumriegdransactions contemplated
hereby, each Significant Stockholder, severallyrtmitjointly, represent and warrant to the Parsnifahe date hereof and as of the Closing, a
follows:

41 Authority for Agreement Such Significant Stockholder has full power hawity and legal right to enter into and perfors it
obligations under this Agreement and each otheument contemplated hereby to which the Signifi&botkholder is or will be a party and to
consummate the transactions contemplated herebthaneby. This Agreement and the other documemitemplated hereby to which the
Significant Stockholder is a party have been of gl duly executed and delivered by the Significatuickholders, as applicable, and are legal
valid and binding obligations of the Significanb8kholders, enforceable against the SignificantiStolders in accordance with their
respective terms, except as enforceability mayrbigdd by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, rearigation, moratorium or other similar la
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights engral and general principles of equity.

4.2 No Violation to Result Except as set forth gn Schedule 4tl?e execution, delivery and performance by tlgmificant
Stockholders of this Agreement and the other docuisneontemplated hereby and the consummation bgitiréficant Stockholders of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, dambwill not, directly or indirectly (with or wibut notice or lapse of time or both):
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(a) (i) violate, breach, conflict with, constitiaedefault under, accelerate or permit the accéberaf the performance required by, any Cont
to which any of the Significant Stockholders isaatp or by which any of the Significant Stockholsler the Significant Stockholders’ assets
are bound or (ii) violate any Law or other legajugement of any Government Authority applicablaty Significant Stockholder; (b) give
any Government Authority or other Person the righthallenge any of the transactions contemplayetthis Agreement; or (c) result in the
creation or imposition of any Encumbrance, posisjbif Encumbrance, or restriction in favor of aRgrson upon any of the Company Stock o
any of the properties or assets of the CompanyeiQhan as set forth gn Schedule /4 notice to, filing with, or consent of, any Bem is
necessary in connection with, and no “change ofronprovision is, or will be, triggered by, the auttration, approval, execution, delivery
performance by the Significant Stockholders of thigeement and the other documents contemplatezbieror the consummation by the
Significant Stockholders of the transactions comtieed hereby or thereby. The Significant Stocébd have given all notices, made all
filings and obtained all consents set forth on Sdhe4.2or will have done so prior to Closing.

4.3 Title . Schedule 4.3 sets forth such Significant Stolddrs’ record and beneficial ownership of Compatock, Company
Options or Series A Warrants, as the case mayshef, the date hereof. Such Significant Stockholder good and valid title to all such
Company Stock, Company Options or Series A Warrastshe case may be, free and clear of all Encamales. Such Significant Stockholder
has, as of the date hereof, no other equity inte@srights to acquire equity interests in the @any or any of its Subsidiaries.

4.4 Litigation . There is no Proceeding pending or threatenethstyar affecting any of the Significant Stockhakler their
assets before any court, agency, authority orrathih tribunal that will adversely affect consuntioa of the Merger or any of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

4.5 Brokers. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.28 Person has or will have, as a result of thes@ictions contemplated by !
Agreement, any right, interest or claim againstjpon the Parent, the Company or the Significanti®tolders or any of their respective
Affiliates for any commission, fee or other compaiten payable as a finder or broker because obahypr omission by the Significant
Stockholders.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

Each of Parent and Merger Sub represents and wsittathe Company, as of the date hereof and #®edtlosing, as follows:

5.1 Organization Parent is a corporation, duly organized, val@hjsting and in good standing under the laws efState of
Delaware and is qualified to do business and irdgtanding in each jurisdiction where the charastdocation of its assets or properties
owned, leased or operated by it or the naturesaddtivities makes such qualification necessargrgdr Sub is a corporation, duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under thedayfithe State of Delaware and is qualified to dsitbess and in good standing in each
jurisdiction where the character or location ofassets or properties owned, leased or operatédbthe nature of its activities makes st
qualification necessary. Each of Parent and MeBger has full corporate power and authority andi@dhses, permits and authorizations
necessary to own and operate its properties aodrtduct its business as conducted.
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5.2 Authority for Agreement Each of Parent and Merger Sub has full powehaity and legal right to enter into and perform
its obligations under this Agreement and the otttmuments contemplated hereby to which Parent agdieSub, as applicable, is or will be a
party and to consummate the transactions conteetpladreby and thereby. The execution, deliverypantbrmance of this Agreement and
other documents contemplated hereby and the conatiomof the transactions contemplated hereby aedby have been duly authorized.
No other corporate proceedings on the part of Raneklerger Sub are necessary to approve and anghihie execution, delivery ai
performance of this Agreement and the other doctsmantemplated hereby and the consummation dfdinsactions contemplated hereby
and thereby. This Agreement and the other docwsreitemplated hereby to which Parent or Merger &silapplicable, is a party is the legal,
valid and binding obligations of Parent or MergabsSas applicable, enforceable against Parentdordance with their respective terms, ex
as enforceability may be limited by applicable haipkcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium ionikar laws affecting the enforcement of
creditors’ rights in general.

5.3 No Violation to Result Except as set forth gn Schedule 518 execution, delivery and performance by eddPagent and
Merger Sub of this Agreement and the other docusnemmitemplated hereby and the consummation by afa@earent and Merger Sub of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, dambwill not, directly or indirectly (with or whibbut notice or lapse of time): (i) violate,
breach, conflict with, constitute a default undagelerate or permit the acceleration of the perémrce required by, (x) any of the terms of the
certificate of incorporation or bylaws of eitherr®at or Merger Sub or any resolution adopted bybterd of directors of Parent or Merger Suk
or stockholders of Parent or Merger Sub, or (y) @optract or encumbrance to which Parent or MeBgdr is a party or by which it is bound;
or (z) any law, judgment, decree, order, rule, k&tipn, permit, license or other legal requiremeinany Government Authority applicable to
Parent or Merger Sub; (ii) give any Person thetrighdeclare a default, exercise any remedy orlate the performance or maturity under
any such Contract to which Parent or any of itsliafes is a party, or cancel, terminate or modifyy such Contract; or (iii) result in the
creation or imposition of any Encumbrance, posisjbdf Encumbrance, or restriction in favor of dPgrson, upon any of the properties or
assets of Parent or Merger Sub. Other than dersieton_Schedule 5.8r as otherwise expressly set forth herein, nacadb, filing with, or
consent of, any Person is necessary in conneciithrtine execution, delivery or performance by PaoerMerger Sub of this Agreement and
the other documents contemplated hereby nor theucomation by Parent or Merger Sub of the transastimntemplated hereby or thereby.

5.4 Interim Operations of Merger SubMerger Sub is wholly-owned (directly or indirgtby Parent, was formed solely for the
purpose of engaging in the transactions contemplagethis Agreement, has engaged in no other bssiaetivities and has conducted its
operations only as contemplated by this Agreement.

55 Brokers. Except as set forth an Schedule 51 Person has or will have, as a result of thestctions contemplated by this
Agreement, any right, interest or claim againsipon the Company for any commission, fee or otberpensation payable as a finder or
broker because of any act or omission by Parektesger Sub.

ARTICLE VI
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

6.1 Access to Properties and Recordsrom the date of this Agreement until the eadiethe Closing Date or the termination of
this Agreement (the * Pr€losing Period), the Company shall, and shall cause its Reptasigas to, afford to Parent's Representatives
reasonable access during the Company’s normal éssimours and in a manner not unreasonably digeuptider the circumstances,
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to all of the Company'’s, and each of its Subsidwlriassets, properties, books and records anceBagatives in order to afford Parent as full
an opportunity of review, examination and invediaas it shall reasonably request of the affafrhe Company and its Subsidiaries, and
Parent and its representatives shall be permittedatke extracts from, or take copies of, such boak®rds (including the share record and
minute books) or other documentation as may beoredsy requested. During the Redesing Period, the Company shall furnish or caodee
furnished to Parent such reasonable financial gedading data and other information about the Campits business as presently conducted,
as conducted in the past and as presently progoseziconducted in the future, and properties @sdta which any of the Representatives of
Parent may reasonably request. No informatiomomiiedge obtained by Parent, its Representativasytndemnified Parties in any
investigation pursuant to this Section 6.1 shd#afor be deemed to modify any representationaramty of the Company or the Significant
Stockholders contained herein or the conditiorthéoobligations of the parties to consummate thesgictions contemplated by this Agreemern
or any provision hereof.

6.2 Interim Covenants of the Companyburing the Pre-Closing Period, except to theexexpressly permitted by this
Agreement or otherwise consented to by an instrameariting signed by Parent(which consent willtfb@ unreasonably withheld or delayed)
or as otherwise set forth in Schedule 6t2e Company shall (i) use commercially reasonefftats to keep intact the Company and its
business, as presently conducted and as condurctiee past; (ii) not take any action or omit tog@ny action other than in the ordinary courst
of its business as the same is presently beingumbed; (iii) use commercially reasonable effort&éep available the services of the directors,
officers, employees, independent contractors aedtagf the Company and retain and maintain goladioaships with its clients and maintain
the Company’s assets and the Facilities in goodition; (iv) perform their obligations under theg8ificant Contracts; (v) maintain the
goodwill and reputation associated with the Compamy (vi) to the extent requested by Parent, takh actions as may be required to
terminate any or all of the Company Plans priathto Closing Date. Without limiting the generalifythe foregoing, except to the extent
expressly permitted by this Agreement or otherwimesented to by an instrument in writing signedPlyent (which consent will not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Companyl sioal

(a) adopt or propose any change to the Certificate@drporation, Bylaws or other organizational docataef the
Company;

(b) merge or consolidate with any other Person or aecquimaterial amount of shares or assets of argr &tbrson or
effect any business combination, recapitalizatiosimilar transaction;

(c) purchase, sell, lease or dispose of or make anyawirior the purchase, sale, lease or dispositfar make subject
to a security interest or any other Encumbrance chthe Company’s properties or assets, other ithéme ordinary and usual course of its
business, for a consideration at least equal téeih@alue of such property or asset;

(d) (i) increase or promise to increase the compensatiyable or to become payable (including, witHmaitation,
bonus grants, incentive payments and retention patsjh other than annual adjustments to base salatg in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice, or increase or acatd or promise to increase or accelerate théngest any benefits provided, or pay or award
any payment or benefit not required as of the Hateof by a Company Plan as existing on the datohand disclosed in Schedule 3.8(&)
the directors, officers, employees, consultantstioer service providers of the Company or any Slisi; (ii) grant or promise to grant any
severance or termination pay or retention paymenkgenefits to, or enter into or amend any emplayngeverance, retention, change in
control, consulting or termination Contract witiya
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director, officer, employee, consultant or othaviee provider of the Company or any Subsidiarij) éstablish, adopt, enter into or amend any
collective bargaining, bonus, profit-sharing, thrdfompensation, stock option, restricted stocksp®, retirement, deferred compensation,
employment, termination, severance or other plagnificant Contract, Company Plan, trust, fund,ippbr arrangement for the benefit of any
director, officer, employee, consultant or othevexe provider of the Company or any Subsidiary) fiay or make, or agree or promise to pay
or make, any accrual or other arrangement forake,tor agree to take, any action to fund or segayenent of, any severance pension,
indemnification, retirement allowance, or other &fén (v) hire (or agree or commit to hire, emplayengage), elect or appoint any officer,
director, employee. consultant or other servicevipler of the Company or any Subsidiary other thathe ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice or in accordance thighCompany’s 2013 budget; or (vi) terminate thipleyment, change the title, office or
position, or materially reduce the responsibilitésiny Key Employee or any management, supervigonther key personnel of the Company
or any Subsidiary;

(e) incur any indebtedness or borrowings, whether timthe ordinary course of its business, or issoe notes or
commercial paper;

() enter into any Contract (i) which would be requitede listed on Schedule 3.h&d it been entered into prior to the
date hereof or (ii) in which any Affiliate of theo@pany or any Stockholder has any direct or beia¢fitterest;

(9) amend or prematurely terminate, or waive any mateight or remedy under, any Significant Contract;

(h) write-off as uncollectible, discount, or establish anfranrdinary reserve with respect to, or acceldiatecollectior
of, any account receivable or other receivableefedor postpone the payment in full or any accewatyable;

() authorize for issuance, issue, sell, deliver oeagr commit to issue, sell or deliver (whetheotigh the issuance
granting of options, warrants, convertible or exajeable securities, phantom rights, commitmentss@iptions, rights to purchase or
otherwise) any shares of the Company’s capitaksto@ny other securitieprovided, howevetthat (i) the Company may issue shares of
Company Stock in connection with the exercise ainany Options or Series A Warrants; and (ii) thenPany may issue shares of Company
Common Stock in connection with the conversion ofrfpany Preferred Stock;

)] redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire, directigdirectly, any shares of the Company’s capitatistor debt
securities or any option, warrant or other righptwchase or acquire any such shares, or declarrieg set aside or pay any dividend or other
distribution (whether in cash, shares or other prty) with respect to such capital stock (exceptdnnection with the termination of a Person’
service or employment with the Company);

(k) create, incur or assume any liability or indebtesdnexcept in the ordinary course of business stargiwith past
practices, or postpone or defer the creation, ineciwe, or assumption of any liability or indebtezskthat would otherwise be created, incurred
or assumed in the ordinary course of business aliseexecution of this Agreement;

(n) pay or apply any of the Compasyassets to the direct or indirect payment, digmhasatisfaction or reduction of ¢
Indebtedness or Non-Ordinary Course Liabilities;

()] change any of its methods of accounting or accogrgractices in any respect;
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(m) commence or settle any legal proceeding, actiomathel, or claim;

(n) make, amend or revoke any election with respetat®s, amend any Tax Return, change any method of
accounting, or settle or compromise any Tax Lishilbr consent to any extension or waiver of thatktion period applicable to any claim or
assessment in respect of Taxes, in each caseydoéd have any material effect on the Company’s Diavilities for any taxable period; or

(0) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

6.3 Publicity and Disclosure. Parent shall determireeform and substance of any press release, pyldicother
communication related to this Agreement or thesaations contemplated hereby; provided, howevat,Rarent and the Company shall
mutually agree on the form and substance of thlmress release announcing this Agreement amttéimsactions contemplated hereby. No
Party shall make any disclosure of this Agreemenihe existence, terms and conditions hereof (wdrath not in response to an inquiry about
the existence or subject matter of this Agreemnény Person unless previously approved by Pamemtiting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing contained herein shall prohitarent from making any disclosure which Parenbioddfaith believes is required by, or
advisable according to, applicable Laws, regulationstock market rules. Notwithstanding anythimghis Agreement to the contrary,
following Closing, the Stockholders’ Representashall be permitted to: (i) after the public anncement of the Merger, publicly announce
that it has been engaged to serve as the StockBbRiepresentative in connection with the Mergeloag as such announcement does not
disclose any of the other terms of the Merger erdther transactions contemplated herein; andiglose information as required by law or to
employees, advisors or consultants of the StocldisldRepresentative and to the Participating Haldiereach case who have a need to know
such information, provided that such persons eithgagree to observe the terms of this Sectioro6.(B) are bound by obligations of
confidentiality to the Stockholders’ Representatifat least as high a standard as those impos#tkedBtockholders’ Representative under thi
Section 6.3.

6.4 No Solicitation.

€) During the Pre-Closing Period, the Company shalland the Company shall cause the Company’s Reptasves
not to) solicit or encourage the initiation or subsion of interest, offers, inquiries or propogaisconsider or entertain any of the foregoing)
from any Person (including, without limitation, taay of providing any non-public information concigithe Company, its business or asset:
to any Person or otherwise), initiate or partiofpiatany negotiations or discussions, or enter, mtgept or authorize any agreement or
agreement in principle, or announce any intentiodd any of the foregoing, with respect to any espion of interest, offer, proposal to
acquire, purchase, license, or lease (i) all ars®ntial portion of the Comparybusiness or assets (including, without limitatiom Compan
Intellectual Property), or (ii) the Company’s capistock or other securities, in each case whdthatock purchase, merger, consolidation,
combination, reorganization, recapitalization, fa®e of assets, tender offer, lease, license erwite (any of the foregoing, a * Competing
Transactiorf). The Company shall, and the Company shall citssRepresentatives to, immediately discontinue@rgoing discussions or
negotiations (other than any ongoing discussiotis Rarent) relating to a possible Competing Tratiwacand shall promptly provide Parent
with an oral and a written notice of any expresgibimterest, proposal or offer relating to a pbksiCompeting Transaction that is received by
the Company or by any of the Company’s Represestfrom any person, which notice shall containrthteire of the proposal proposed and
the material terms of the proposal and includee®pf any such notice, inquiry or proposal.

(b) Neither the board of directors of the Company myr @ommittee thereof shall withdraw, amend or mypdif
propose or resolve to withdraw, amend or modifyRleeommendation;
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provided, however, that prior to the receipt of the Requisite Vdte board of directors of the Company may withdramend or modify the
Recommendation, and may make any statement redayradplicable laws, if (x) the Company receivesiasolicited, written proposal for a
Competing Transaction that the board of directéth® Company determines in good faith, after hgtaken into account the advice of the
Company’s outside legal counsel and its indepenfileenticial advisors, is reasonably likely to resala Superior Proposal that is reasonably
likely to be consummated by the Company, (y) therbf directors of the Company determines in gadtti, upon written advice of outside
legal counsel, that a change in the Recommendistioacessary in order to comply with its fiducidties under the DGCL, and (z) the
Company shall have complied with the notice requést set forth in Section 6.4(a) and provided Randth no less than five (5) business
days’ notice of any contemplated withdrawal, ameaxihor modification to the Recommendation, duririgol time the Company and Parent
shall negotiate in good faith regarding any changeke terms of the Transaction contemplated hyettedt may be proposed by Parent such
that the Competing Transaction would no longerdasonably likely to result in a Superior Propogar purposes of this Agreement, a
“Superior Proposal” shall mean any bona fide prapfer a Competing Transaction that is on terms tih@ board of directors of the Company
has determined in good faith, upon written advitisafinancial advisor and outside legal couns®l after taking into account all legal,
financial, regulatory and other aspects of the psafy including the financing terms thereof is sigrefrom a financial point of view to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

6.5 Notification of Certain Matters During the Pre-Closing Period, each of the Campnd Parent shall give prompt notice to
the other of (a) the occurrence or non-occurrefieay event the occurrence or non-occurrence oflwvhiould be likely to cause any
representation or warranty contained herein tortteug or inaccurate in any respect at or priohto@losing such that any of the conditions se
forth in Article 7 or Article 8, as applicable, leef would not be satisfied; and (b) any failureso€h party to comply with or satisfy any
covenant, condition or agreement to be complieti witsatisfied by such hereunder, in each casetbatlany of the conditions set forth in
Article 7 or Article 8, as applicable, hereof wouldt be satisfied.

6.6 Tax Matters

(a) Preparation of Tax Returns after Closing

0] Parent shall prepare and file (or cause to be peepand filed) with the appropriate Taxing Authiestall
Tax Returns required to be filed by the Compangror of its Subsidiaries with respect to any taxgi@igod beginning before the Closing Date
that become due after the Closing Date (each aerP&equired Prepared Retujpnand any Tax Returns required to have been filgthe
Company that have not been filed on or before tlosifg Date (each a_* Parent Permitted Retuand with Parent Required Prepared Return:s
“ Parent Prepared Returfjs Each Parent Prepared Return shall be pregaradnanner consistent with prior practice of tt@pany and its
Subsidiaries unless otherwise required by appledblx Law or consented to by the Stockholders’ Begmtative (which consent may not be
unreasonably delayed or withheld).

(i) If the Tax shown as due on any Parent PreparediRefuld be subject to indemnification by the
Participating Holders pursuant to Section 9.1, Resbhall provide the Stockholders’ Representatiith & copy of such Parent Prepared Returr
for review and comment at least thirty (30) dayismto the filing of such Tax Return (or, if reqed to be filed within thirty (30) days after the
Closing or the end of the taxable period to whigbhsreturn relates, as soon as reasonably po$siloeing the Closing or the end of such
taxable period, as the case may be), accompariezdgiant) by a statement setting forth and caltind in reasonable detail the Taxes that are
shown as due on such Tax Return and claimed todesrinifiable pursuant to Section 9.1. Parent sfzalke such Tax
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Return to be revised as reasonably requested timgby the Stockholders’ Representative at lei@st () days prior to the required filing date
of such Tax Return. For purposes of the foregangvision to a Parent Prepared Return shabeabonsidered to have been reasonably
requested if (w) there is not substantial authdatythe requested change in reporting within tleaning of Section 6662 of the Code, (x) a
reserve for Tax liability would be required to tmablished in the financial statements of Pareh®@iCompany for potential Tax liability that
is not shown as due on such Tax Return or (y) Paeaisonably determines that the position is naerfikely than not to be sustained and
either the Damages that foreseeably could resut the failure to sustain the requested Tax repgppbsition would not be indemnifiable to
Parent under this Agreement or there is not adegegurity for the potential indemnification olalitgpns of the Participating Holders under
Section 9.1 for such Damages.

(iii) Parent shall, subject to any indemnification punsta Section 9.1, pay or cause to be paid theshaxn
as due on each Parent Prepared Return.

(b) Allocation of Taxes The Stockholders, Parent and the Company arRlultsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable Tax Law, cause the taxable perioth@fCompany and each of its Subsidiaries to erdd tee close of the Closing Date. For
purposes of this Agreement, Taxes incurred by th@@&ny or its Subsidiaries with respect to a taxalelriod that includes but does not enc
the Closing Date, shall be allocated to the portibthe period ending on the Closing Date as fodipwi) except as provided in (i) and
(iii) below, to the extent feasible, on a specifientification basis, according to the date ofekient or transaction giving rise to the Tax,

(ii) except as provided in (iii) below, with respéo periodically assessed ad valorem Taxes andsTaat otherwise feasibly allocable to
specific transactions or events, in proportionh® number of days in such period occurring throaggh including the Closing Date compare:
the total number of days in such taxable period, (@) in the case of any Tax based upon or reldteincome or receipts, in an amount equ
the Tax which would be payable if the relevant td&geriod ended on the Closing Date. It is ackedged for avoidance of doubt that the
Participating Holders shall have no indemnity obign under Section 9.1(a) with respect to any HipdcTaxes without regard to whether
such Taxes would be allocable to a taxable penmting on or before the Closing Date under the alpoiveiples. Any Tax credits relating t
taxable period that begins before and ends afeeCthsing Date shall be taken into account as thalg relevant taxable period ended on the
Closing Date.

(c) Tax Proceedings Any Party who receives any notice of a pendinthceatened Tax audit, assessment, or
adjustment against or with respect to the Compatitg Gubsidiaries that may give rise to Liabilitffanother Party hereto or the Participating
Holders (including pursuant to the indemnificatfmovisions of this Agreement), shall promptly nptuch other Party within ten (10) busin
days of the receipt of such notice. The Partiet egree to consult with and to keep the othelidzahereto informed on a regular basis
regarding the status of any Tax Proceeding to xkenéthat such Proceeding could affect a Liabiltyich could reasonably be a basis for a
claim pursuant to the indemnity obligations hereamdarent will have the right to control the cocidof and the resolution of any Proceeding
which could reasonably be a basis for a claim pansto the indemnity obligations hereunder; prodidbowever, (i) the Stockholders’
Representative shall have the right (but not thg)do participate in the defense of any such Pedo®y and to employ counsel, at the expense
of the Participating Holders, separate from thenseliemployed by Parent, and (ii) Parent may nitleszny such Proceeding in any manner
which would adversely affect the Participating Hoklwithout the written consent of the StockholdRepresentative (which consent will not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

(d) Cooperation, Access to Information, and Record iRete. The Stockholders, Parent and the Company and its
Subsidiaries shall cooperate, and shall cause rigiesentatives to cooperate, as and to the erdasbdnably requested by any other Party
hereto in connection with the
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preparation and filing of Tax Returns as providedein, any Proceeding with respect to Taxes, agdiatermination regarding reflection of
Tax liabilities of the Company or its Subsidiarieginancial statements of Parent. Such coopearatiall include the provision of records and
information which are reasonably relevant to arghstiax Return, Proceeding relating to Taxes or@sparation of financial statements, and
making employees available on a mutually convertiasts to provide additional information and explkéan of any material provided
hereunder. The Stockholders, Parent and the Conmgrathits Subsidiaries shall (i) retain all booksl aecords with respect to Taxes of the
Company and its Subsidiaries (including Tax Returekating to any taxable period beginning befdre €losing Date until the expiration of
the statute of limitations for assessment of Tdgesuch respective taxable period and (ii) give ¢ther Parties hereto reasonable written
notice prior to transferring, destroying or diséagdany such books and records and, if anothelyRartequests, allow the other Party to eithel
copy or take possession of such books and records.

(e) Tax Certificates The Parties further agree, upon request, tgasmonable efforts to obtain any certificate oeoth
document from any Government Authority or any otRerson as may be necessary to mitigate, redugl@ronate any Tax that could be
imposed.

® Termination of Tax Sharing Agreement®\ll Tax sharing agreements or similar agreembetsieen the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries and any other Persdmefadhan any such agreement created by the exaaftibis Agreement and any Excluded
Sharing Agreements) shall be terminated on or katwe Closing Date and, after the Closing Date(beapany and its Subsidiaries shall not
be bound thereby or have any Liability thereunder.

(9) Transfer Taxes and Tax Indemnity

(@ Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary iistAgreement, all Korea Transfer Taxes incurreciy
Stockholder in connection with the transactionstenplated by this Agreement shall be paid by suokk®older when due. Such Stockhol
shall, at such Stockholder’s expense, prepareindlf necessary Tax Returns and other documemtatith respect to all such Transfer
Taxes. If required by applicable Law, Parent stzadtl shall cause its Affiliates to, join in thezention of any such Tax Returns and other
documentation.

(i) All Transfer Taxes (other than Korea Transfer Takeposed on the Company or its Subsidiaries oeit
or its Affiliates in connection with consummatiohtbe Merger shall be borne 50% by the Particigatiolders (directly by indemnification, or
by inclusion of such, as a Tax liability of the Goamy attributable to a taxable period ending obejore the Closing Date, in Closing
Liabilities), and 50% by Parent.

(iii) Parent shall indemnify each Participating Holderdny increase in Tax imposed on such Participating
Holder by reason of the consummation of the Mevggch increase is attributable to direct or indirewnership of capital stock of the Merger
Sub at the Effective Time by a person that is Ndt&. person within the meaning of Section 7703(@)6f the Code.

6.7 Litigation Support In the event and for so long as any Party algtigecontesting or defending against any charge,
complaint, action, suit, audit, proceeding, hegringestigation, claim, or demand in connectiorwij) any transaction contemplated under
Agreement or (ii) any fact, situation, circumstargtatus, condition, activity, practice, plan, ateace, event, incident, action, failure to act, ot
transaction on or prior to the Closing Date invotythe Company, each of the other Parties will eoaje with such Party or its counsel in the
contest or defense, make available its personndlpeovide such testimony and access to its boo##gecords as shall be necessary in
connection with the contest or defense, all astile cost and expense of the contesting or defgndin
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Party (unless the contesting or defending Pargniiled to indemnification therefor under Artiddé below).

6.8 Reasonable Efforts During the Pre-Closing Period, each Party agreese all reasonable efforts promptly to takegaarse
to be taken, all actions and do or cause to be dbtieings necessary, proper or advisable undgliGgble Laws to (a) obtain all consents,
approvals or actions of, make all filings with agide all notices to Government Authorities or arilyes Person required to consummate the
Merger and the other matters contemplated heré&byrovide such other information and communicatitmsuch Government Authorities or
other public or private Persons as the other Rarguch Government Authorities or other public nvgte Persons may reasonably request in
connection therewith, and (c) execute such furtlbeuments, deeds, bills of sale, assignments anutaasces and take such further actions as
may reasonably be required to consummate and nidatiee the transactions contemplated by this &grent including, without limitation,
the satisfaction of all conditions hereto. If dpable, the Parties shall file all notices and othéormation and documents required under the
Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvement Act of 19 amended, as promptly as practicable aftedatehereof.

6.9 Company Employees The Company agrees that during the Pre-Closang® it shall make all reasonable efforts to
maintain good relations with its employees and halhor all previous agreements with employees tpdséormed prior to Closing. The
Company agrees that promptly after the date hérsball allow Parent to make a presentation toGbepany’s and each of its Subsidiaries’
employees and to interview such employees for naeti employment with the Company or its Subsidsaes applicable, after the Closing.
During the Pre-Closing Period, the Company will aleeasonable efforts to cause such Company Brapkto make available their
employment services to the Surviving Corporation.

6.10 Takeover Statutes If any Takeover Statute is or may become appléecto the Merger or any of the other transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, the board of dimscodf the Company shall use commercially reas@nefbrts to grant such approvals and
take such actions as are reasonably necessargtdhéhMerger and such other transactions conteatplay this Agreement may be
consummated as promptly as practicable on the teetn®rth in this Agreement and otherwise actitoinate the effects of any Takeover
Statute on the Merger and any of the other traigatontemplated by this Agreement.

6.11 Employee Benefits Matters Effective immediately preceding the Closing, @@mpany will terminate any and all Company
Plans intended to qualify as a qualified cash éerded arrangement under Section 401(k) of the Gaudk at the request of Parent, the
Company will provide Parent with evidence that sptans have been terminated effective immediataby po the Closing pursuant to
resolutions duly adopted by the board of directdrhe Company or other duly-designated authorityaddition, at the request of Parent no
later than five (5) days prior to the Closing, @@mpany will terminate any one or more Welfare Blancluding any group health, dental,
severance, separation or salary continuation pfaegrams or arrangements, effective as of the sjaeified by Parent and, at the request of
Parent, the Company will provide Parent with evigethat such Welfare Plans have been so termipatesdiant to resolutions duly adopted by
the board of directors of the Company or other dldgignated authority. The Company also shall salch other actions in furtherance of
terminating such Company Plans as Parent may reborequire. Prior to the Closing, each of theceffs, directors, employees and Affiliates
of the Company shall repay in full, in accordandthheir terms, all debts and other obligatiofgny, owed to the Company.

46




6.12 Company Stockholder Approval

€) Subject to Section 6.4(b), the Company, throughdird of directors, shall unanimously recommenithéo
Stockholders that the Stockholders approve andtdtigpAgreement, the Merger and the transactiomseamplated hereby and thereby (the “
Recommendatiot). As soon as practicable after the executiothif Agreement and in accordance with the DGCL Gbepany shall submit
this Agreement, the Merger and the transactionsecoplated hereby and thereby, together with a curs#icitation statement describing the
Company, the principal terms of the Merger anditarsactions contemplated hereby in form and sobstthat complies in all respects with
the DGCL, the Company’s Certificate of Incorporatand the Bylaws and which includes the Recommémnuéhe “ Consent Solicitation
Statement) to all of the Stockholders for approval as pard by the DGCL and the Company'’s Certificate abhporation and Bylaws.

(b) The Company shall promptly solicit, but in any everthin three (3) business day of the date of Agseement, ar
use reasonable and diligent efforts to prompthaimbivritten consents of the Stockholders constituthe Requisite Vote to approve the
Merger, and to enable the Closing to occur as ptiynag practicable following the date hereof, thgreement, the other documents
contemplated hereby and the transactions conteetplareby and thereby (* Written ConséitsPrior to the distribution of the Consent
Solicitation Statement or Information Statementjefned below (or in each case any amendmentppisment thereto), Parent and its cou
shall be provided copies of the Consent SolicitaBtatement and Information Statement (and any aoemndment or supplement) and shall b
provided a reasonable opportunity to review androent thereon. The Company shall comply with thedD@nd all other applicable Laws
with respect to the submission of this Agreemédrd,Merger and the transactions contemplated hemethythereby, the distribution of the
Consent Solicitation Statement and the solicitatibthe Written Consents.

(c) Promptly, but in no event more than three (3) BesinDays after the date of the Written ConsengésCtimpany or
Parent shall (i) deliver notice to each Companyclgtolder that did not execute a Written Conserd {tNonconsenting Stockholdéfsof the
action by Written Consent of the Company Stockhgheirsuant to and in accordance with the appkcpldvisions of the DGCL, and the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and By-la\i§,deliver the notice required pursuant to tipplacable provisions of the DGCL
informing the Nonconsenting Stockholders that digss’ rights are available for their shares alaiiify such other information as is required
by applicable provisions of the DGCL, and (iii) igtut limiting the generality of clause (ii), deliven information statement (the “ Information
Statement) containing substantially the same informatiorisasontained in the Consent Solicitation Statemé&tech Party hereto agrees that
the information supplied by such Party for inclusio the Consent Solicitation Statement and therinftion Statement will not, on the date
Consent Solicitation Statement and the Informa8tatement is first sent or furnished to the Comptngkholders or at any time Written
Consents are being solicited, contain any statembith, at such time, is false or misleading wikpect to any material fact or omit to state
any material fact necessary in order to make #uestents made therein, in light of the circumstanoeler which they are made, not false or
misleading.

(d) During the Pre-Closing Period, each of the SigaiitcStockholders agrees not to, and each Signtfisertkholder
agrees not to permit any Person to, directly oirgadly, (i) sell, assign, transfer, tender, pledgecumber or otherwise dispose of (each, a “
Transfer”), any Company Stock, other than pursuant to Algisgeement, (ii) discuss, negotiate, make an offerer into an agreement,
commitment or other arrangement, whether or netriting, with respect to any Transfer of any Comp&tock, or (iii) take any other action
that could restrict or otherwise adversely affexttsSignificant Stockholder’s legal power, authoeihd right to comply with its obligations
under this Agreement. During the Pre-Closing REré& every meeting of the Stockholders called wegpect to
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any of the following, and at every postponemerdadjournment thereof, and on every action or appgtoyavritten consent or resolution of the
stockholders of Company with respect to any offttiewing, each of the Significant Stockholderslskate or cause to be voted (including by
written consent, if applicable), all Shares held@ntrolled by each of them (a) in favor of (i) apyal of the Merger and this Agreement and
(ii) any other transactions contemplated herebgtloer matters that could reasonably be expectéatiiitate the Merger, and (b) against the
adoption of any Competing Transaction. Each Sicguift Stockholder hereby waives any rights of aispiar rights of dissent to be exercised
with respect to the Shares held by each of them.

(e) Promptly after the date hereof, the Company shalirst to the Company’s stockholders for approvalaimanner
satisfactory to Parent), by such number of stodakdrsl of the Company as is required by the tern&ection 280G(b)(5)(B) of the Code, any
payments or benefits that may, separately or iratfgregate, exceed 299% of such recipient’s “basruat” (as that term is defined in
Section 280G of the Code) (which determinationidtwimade by Company and shall be subject to reaigavapproval by Parent), such that
such payments and benefits shall not be deemeel torstitute “parachute payments” pursuant to 8e@80G of the Code, and prior to the
Effective Time the Company shall deliver to Pamritience satisfactory to Parent that (i) a votthefstockholders of the Company was
solicited in conformance with Section 280G of thed€ and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6.13 Employee Matters

€)) Parent shall provide or shall cause to be providedediately following the Effective Time, to all groyees of the
Company whose employment continues with PareriieBurviving Corporation or any applicable Subsid@f Parent or Surviving
Corporation following the Effective Time (the * Ciimuing Employee$): (i) an annual base salary or hourly wage rh# is no less favorable
than the annual base salary or hourly wage ragéf@ct as of immediately prior to the Effective Epand (ii) employee benefits that are
substantially comparable in the aggregate to thel@ree benefits that are provided to similarly-aied employees of Parent under a Parent
Plan.

(b) To the extent that Continuing Employees are traomsd to the employee welfare and retirement bepéfns of
Parent or its subsidiaries after the Effective T{@&ch a “ Parent Pldhand to the extent permitted by Law, applicablxTualification
requirements and the provisions of the applicablei® Plan, and subject to any applicable brealeimice or similar rule, (i) each Continuing
Employee shall be credited with his or her yearsen¥ice with the Company or its Subsidiary (or prgdecessor entities) before the Effective
Time for purposes of eligibility to participate,steng and determination of level of benefits (bat for purposes of benefit accruals under any
Parent Plans or to the extent that such recognitimuld result in duplication of benefits), but ondythe extent such service would have been
taken into account under a Parent Plan had sugttedreen performed as an employee of Parenpendded that if the Company maintaine
a comparable plan prior to the Effective Time, ssetvice will only be credited to the extent suehve was credited under such Company
Plan; and (i) for purposes of each Parent Plarigiog medical, dental, pharmaceutical and/or vidienefits to any Continuing Employee,
Parent shall use commercially reasonable effortatse its third-party insurance providers or tpiadty administrators to ensure that such
Continuing Employees will receive credit under susddical plans for the shorter of (i) the plan yieawvhich the Closing occurs and (ii) the
period commencing on such Continuing Employee’s déhire towards applicable deductibles and oypaafket limits for expenses incurred
for the plan year in which the Closing occurs urttiercorresponding Company Plans.

(c) No provision of this Agreement is intended to pdw@vor create any third party beneficiary rightsuy stockholder,
Key Employee, consultant, contractor or any other
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Person, including any rights of employment for apgcified period and/or any employee benefits,ratien the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.diticag no provision of this Agreement is intendedshall be interpreted, to amend any term
or condition of any employee related plan, progmamolicy of Parent or any subsidiary of Parentooprohibit the amendment of any such
plan, program or policy.

6.14 Indemnification of Officers and Directors of the i@pany.

(a) From and after the Effective Time, Parent and thevi8ing Corporation shall fulfill and honor in akéspects the
obligations of the Company pursuant to any Conti@ethich the Company or any of its Subsidiariea grty or the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries organizational documents in effecifabe date of this Agreement providing for theanthification and exculpation from liability
of its officers or directors and former officersdatirectors with respect to claims arising fromt$agr events that occurred before or at the
Effective Time (the Persons entitled to be inderadifpursuant to such provisions, and all otheresutrand former officers and directors of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and all otrensBns entitled to be indemnified pursuant to qurolrisions or agreements being referred to
collectively as the “ Pr€losing Indemnified Partie$.

(b) For the period from the Effective Time through #ireh anniversary of the Closing Date, Parent &edSurviving
Corporation shall, solely with respect to claimisiag from facts or events that occurred beforatdhe Effective Time, cause to be maintainec
in effect, for the benefit of the Pre-Closing Indefied Parties (the “ Insured Parti§sthe current directors’ and officers’ liabililpsurance
coverage as set forth in the Company’s currenttbire’ and officers’ liability insurance policy &ffect as of the date of this Agreement or
provide for coverage and amounts on terms and tiondiwhich are, in aggregate, no less advantageadihe Insured Parties; provided,
however, that: (i) in no event shall Parent or$eviving Corporation be required pursuant to 8éstion 6.14 (b) to expend in any one year
an amount in excess of 300% of the annual premiunmently payable by the Company with respect tdhstwarent policy, it being understood
that if the annual premiums payable for such insteacoverage exceed such amount, Parent shalligated to obtain a policy with the
greatest coverage available for a cost equal tbh aowunt; and (ii) in lieu of the foregoing, andwithstanding anything contained in clause
“(i)" above, the Company may obtain a prepaid paiicy prior to the Effective Time that providestmsured Parties with directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance for a period ending earlier than the sixth anniversary of the Clodbage.

(c) If Parent or the Surviving Corporation or any of guccessors or assigns of Parent or the Surv@amgoration
(i) shall consolidate with or merge into any otRerson and shall not be the continuing or survigiogporation or entity of such consolidation
or merger or (ii) shall transfer all or substaryialll of its properties and assets to any othes®eg then, and in each such case, proper
provisions shall be made so that the successorassigins of Parent or the Surviving Corporationl stssume all of the obligations set forth in
this Section 6.14. This Section 6.14: (A) shailvére the consummation of the Merger and the EffecTime; (B) is intended for the benefit
of, and will be enforceable by, each Insured Panrty his or her heirs and representatives; (C) Sedtlinding on all successors and assigns of
Parent and the Surviving Corporation; and (D) miesirights that are in addition to, and not in stiifon for, any other rights to
indemnification or contribution that any Insuredtiyaor any heir or representative of any Insurady? may have by contract or otherwise.

6.15 Books and Records Prior to the Closing, the Company shall deliteeParent the original share records of the Company
books of account, minute books, minutes and o#neords of all meetings of the Company, the corposatl of the Company and such other
documents, records, keys and other items as shakkbessary for the operation of the businesseo€timpany;
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ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS TO THE OBLIGATIONS OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

The obligations of Parent and Merger Sub underAljikement to consummate the Merger and the othesdctions contemplated
hereby are subject to the fulfillment and satiséactprior to or at the time at which the Closisgstheduled to occur, of each of the following
conditions precedent, any one or more of which bmwaived, in part or in full, by Parent in writing

7.1 Representations and Warrantiédl of the representations and warranties of@leenpany and Significant Stockholders
contained in this Agreement: (i) shall be true reorand complete in all material respects at @nof she date of this Agreement (except in the
case of this clause (i) that those representatiadsvarranties which speak as of a specific dade naly be true, correct and complete on and
as of such date); and (ii) shall be true, coramet complete in all respects on and as of the @jdSate with the same effect as though such
representations and warranties had been made oamsarfcsuch date, except in each case where thesfaif such representations and
warranties to be accurate, individually or in tiggm@gate, does not, and would not reasonably becteg to have, a Material Adverse Effeci
the Company (except that in the case of this cléijshose representations and warranties whidakms of a specific date need only be true,
correct and complete on and as of such date, awdhds “material,” “materially,” “Material Adversgffect,” and similar qualifiers contained
in such representations and warranties shall beghsded for purposes of determining such accushsych representations and warranties).

7.2 Performance The Company shall have performed and complieadlimaterial respects with its covenants in thiggement
to be performed prior to or at the Closing.

7.3 No Litigation No temporary restraining order, preliminary ermpanent injunction or other order or judgmenteésshy any
Government Authority challenging the transactioostemplated hereunder or limiting or restricting tonduct or operation of the Company
following the Closing shall be in effect, nor shatly Proceeding brought by any Government Autharitgther instrumentality, domestic or
foreign, seeking any of the foregoing be pending.

7.4 No Material Adverse EffectThere shall not have occurred any Material Adedgffect on the Company.

7.5 Governmental, Requlatory and Othergeots and Approvals All consents, approvals, assignments and actfrfdings
set forth on Schedule 7shall have been obtained, and, if required, thératipn or termination without the objection of aofythe relevant
federal authorities of all applicable waiting pelsoand any extensions thereof) under the Hartt&mdino Antitrust Improvement Act of
1976, as amended.

7.6 IndebtednessEach holder of Indebtedness shall have executédlalivered to the Company a payoff letter satisiy to
Parent and each such holder shall have releasedting all liens and Encumbrances arising fromtstrodebtedness.

7.7 Warrants The Company Warrants shall have been cancelegirainated pursuant to Section 1.9 hereof.
7.8 Key AgreementsEach of the Key Employee Agreements and Keye$takler Agreements entered into prior to or
concurrently with the execution of this Agreememtlsbe in full force and effect, no Key Employeekey Stakeholder shall have terminated,

rescinded or repudiated any such Key Employee Agee¢ or Key Stakeholder Agreement, as applicalle ,rm Key Employee
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shall have notified Parent (in writing) of such KEegnployee’s intention of leaving the employ of Rdrer the Surviving Corporation following
the Closing.

7.9 Written ConsentsThe Requisite Vote shall have been obtained.
7.10 Closing Deliveries of the Compant the Closing, the Company shall have performed delivered the following:
(a) all of the officers, directors, emy#es and Affiliates of the Company shall have reégand shall delivered to Par

evidence of repayment) in full in accordance witait terms all debts and other obligations, if aswed by any of them to the Company;

(b) the Company shall have executed atidgated to Parent a certificate of its secretagfting forth the organization
documents of the Company and the resolutions dfagsd of directors and Stockholders authorizirggetkecution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement and the other documents contemplatezby and the consummation of the transactionteotplated hereby and thereby, and
certifying that such organizational documents a®biutions have not been amended or rescindedrand full force and effect;

(c) the Company’s Chief Executive Officer have delivered to Parent an officer’s certifeeaertifying to the
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sec$i@nl and 7.2 hereof as of the Closing Date;

(d) the Company shall have delivereddoeRt good standing certificates from the jurisdit$ of incorporation of the
Company and each Subsidiary and from each stathich the Company or any Subsidiary is qualified¢obusiness, and its and their certit
charter documents, each dated as of a date redgahade to the Closing Date;

(e) the Company shall have caused thek8tdders’ Representative to execute and deliveiEcrow Agreement;

() the Company shall have caused tdddiwered to Parent the opinion of Cooley LLP, cseirio the Company, as to
the matters attached hereto as Exhibit F

(9) the Company shall have executed atidated to Parent a properly executed FIRPTA htfon Letter; and

(h) the Company shall have secured effeetnd irrevocable 280G Waivers with respect twheRotential Parachute

Recipient, conducted the stockholder vote, andreiedd to Parent the results of such stockholder,\ait as contemplated by Section 6.12(e).

7.11 Other Key EmployeesAt least two (2) of the three (3) Persons idesdion Appendix B-3 shall have entered into an
employment arrangement with Parent or a subsidieseof to be effective as of the Closing Date pans to his or her execution of an offer
letter and a non-disclosure agreement in formsigeavto the Company by Parent.
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ARTICLE VIII
CONDITIONS TO THE COMPANY'’S OBLIGATIONS

The obligations of the Company under this Agreemeigbnsummate the Merger and the other transactiontemplated hereby are
subject to the fulfillment and satisfaction, prtoror at the time at which the Closing Date is sieted to occur, of each of the following
conditions precedent, any one or more of which bwwaived, in part or in full, by the Company inting.

8.1 Representations and Warranties Triieea€losing Date All of the representations and warranties oeRaand Merger St
contained in this Agreement: (i) shall be true reorand complete in all material respects at @nof she date of this Agreement (except in the
case of this clause (i) that those representatiodsvarranties which speak as of a specific dade naly be true, correct and complete on and
as of such date); and (ii) shall be true, corract @omplete in all respects on and as of the G¢pBiate with the same effect as though such
representations and warranties had been made oamsarfcsuch date, except in each case where thesfaif such representations and
warranties to be accurate, individually or in tiggm@gate, does not, and would not reasonably becteg to have, a Material Adverse Effeci
Parent (except that in the case of this clausgtlfigse representations and warranties which speak a specific date need only be true, correc
and complete on and as of such date, and the vimraterial,” “materially,” “Material Adverse Effectand similar qualifiers contained in such
representations and warranties shall be disregdodguiirposes of determining such accuracy of saphesentations and warranties).

8.2 PerformanceParent shall have performed and complied imalierial respects with its covenants in this Agreento be
complied with or performed prior to or at the Chugi

8.3 No Litigation No temporary restraining order, preliminary ermpanent injunction or other order or judgmenteésshy any
Government Authority challenging the transactionstemplated hereunder shall be in effect, nor straflProceeding brought by any
Government Authority seeking any of the foregoiregoending.

8.4 Company Required Vot&he Company Required Vote shall have been olitaine

8.5 Governmental, Regulatory and Othergeats and Approvals All consents, approvals, assignments and acb@rflings
set forth on Schedule 8.5 shall have been obtanddif required, the expiration or terminationhwitit the objection of any of the relevant
federal authorities of all applicable waiting pelsoand any extensions thereof) under the Hartt$tmdino Antitrust Improvement Act of
1976, as amended.

8.6 Escrow AgreementParent and the Escrow Agent shall have exeanddlelivered the Escrow Agreement.
ARTICLE IX
INDEMNITY
9.1 General IndemnificationAfter the Closing and by virtue of the Merger:
(a) each Participating Holder, severhly not jointly, covenants and agrees to indemmi&fend, protect and hold

harmless each of Parent, Merger Sub and, afteCliteing, the Surviving Corporation, and their rexpe officers, directors, employees,
shareholders, assigns, successors, agents, ag@ndAffiliates (each, an_* Indemnified Paflyfrom, against and in respect of
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all Damages suffered, sustained, incurred or pgidrly Indemnified Party, in each case in conneatiith, resulting from or arising out of,
directly or indirectly: (i) the Breach of any repemtation or warranty made by the Company set farthis Agreement; (ii) the Breach of any
covenant or agreement on the part of the Comparfpik in this Agreement; (iii) any Closing Lialiy not accurately reflected on the
Statement of Closing Liabilities; (iv) any and ailhbilities (other than for Specified Taxes) fo) @l Taxes of the Company and its Subsidic
incurred in connection with or arising out of thatigties or business of the Company or its Sulasids on or before the Closing Date
(determined, with respect to taxable periods theiude but do not end on the Closing Date, in atamace with the allocation provisions of
Section 6.6(b)) and all reasonable third partysasd reasonable third party expenses of filing Raturns that were required to have been
filed, but have not been filed, by the Companymy af its Subsidiaries on or before the ClosingeDat excess of the amount of such Taxes,
costs or expenses reflected as a liability in thraputation of Final Net Working Capital, (y) all¥es required to be paid by the Company c
Subsidiaries by reason of the Company or its Sidrséd (or a predecessor of such entities) haveenta member of an affiliated, consolida
combined, or unitary group at any time on or betbeClosing Date, including pursuant to Treasugg®ation Section 1.1502-6 or any
analogous or similar U.S. state, local, or non-Ua®, rule, or regulation in excess of the amourguch Taxes reflected as a liability in the
computation of Final Net Working Capital and (4) Bdxes of any Person (other than the Company tarfaubsidiaries) required to be paid by
the Company or its Subsidiaries by reason of Cohtessumption, transferee liability, or operatidriaw, if the liability of the Company or its
Subsidiaries for such Taxes is attributable tovaneor transaction occurring on or before the ipHate (other than pursuant to Excluded
Tax Sharing Agreements) in excess of the amoustiofl Taxes reflected as a liability in the compataof Final Net Working Capital;

(vii) with respect to each Dissenting Share, anynpents by Parent in respect of demands for apprafisaich Dissenting Shares in excess of
the amounts that otherwise would have been payalspect of such shares in accordance with thig@ment, (viii) any claim brought by a
Stockholder or former stockholder of the Compamyary other Person, based upon (A) ownership bitsitp ownership of any shares of
capital stock or other securities of the CompaBy,any rights of a stockholder (other than the trighreceive a portion of the Merger
Consideration pursuant to Section 1.6 or with respeDissenting Shares), including any optiongpmptive rights or rights to notice or to vc
(C) any rights under the Articles of IncorporatimmBylaws of the Company, (D) any claim that hist br its shares were wrongfully
repurchased by the Company or issued out of cong@iavith applicable securities Laws, or (E) anyraleelating to any Company Option or
the exercise thereof; (ix) any alleged impropescdtion of the Merger Consideration among the Eipeting Holders; provided, that, for any
distributions of Merger Consideration by Parenghsdistributions were made in accordance with tesfrem Allocation Certificate delivered
the Stockholders’ Representative, (X) any actiomaction of the Payments Administrator, and (xijagcing the indemnification rights of the
Indemnified Parties hereunder; and

(b) each Significant Stockholder, sevgrahd not jointly, covenants and agrees to indémudefend, protect and hold
harmless each of the Indemnified Parties fromagainst all Damages suffered, sustained, incunrgaid by any Indemnified Party, in each
case in connection with, resulting from or arising of, directly or indirectly: (i) the Breach ofarepresentation or warranty made by such
Significant Stockholder set forth in this Agreememt(ii) the Breach on the part of such Signific&tockholder of any covenant or agreement
set forth in this Agreement.

9.2 Claims for Indemnificatian

€) In the event that any IndemnifiedtiPais a claim against any Person from whom indéeoation is sought (an “
Indemnifying Party’) pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof, which does nebive a claim being sought to be collected byitparty, the
Indemnified Party shall provide written notice atth claim (a “ Claim Noticé) to the Stockholders’ Representative (or theipalar
Indemnifying Party in the event that recovery ilgesought directly from such Indemnifying Party).
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The Claim Notice shall set forth the amount, if umo or, if not known, an estimate of the maximunoamt of claimed Damages (which
estimate shall not be conclusive of the final antafrsuch Damages) and a reasonable descriptithreddasis for such claim. If the
StockholdersRepresentative (or the Indemnifying Party, if apgiile) does not notify the Indemnified Party witthirty (30) days from recei
of the Claim Notice that Stockholders’ Represewntaor the Indemnifying Party, if applicable) disgsisuch claim, or its (or the Indemnifying
Parties’)liability to the Indemnified Party for such claitihe amount of such claim as set forth in the Cldimtice shall be conclusively deerr
a liability of the Indemnifying Parties hereundén. case an objection is made in writing by thec&tmlders’ Representative (or the
Indemnifying Party, if applicable) in accordancehnthis Section 9.2(a) (an_* Objection Notigethe Indemnified Party shall have thirty (30)
days to respond in a written statement to such &@bje Notice.

(b) In case the Stockholders’ Represamtdor the Indemnifying Party, if applicable) dadis an Objection Notice in
accordance with Section 9.2(a) hereof, the Stoddrsl Representative (or the Indemnifying Partggplicable) and Parent shall attempt in
good faith to agree upon the rights of the resped®arties with respect to each of such claimshdfdispute has not been resolved within tt
(30) days after the Indemnified Party is given doje@tion Notice, either the Stockholders’ Repreatvg (or the Indemnifying Party, if
applicable) or the Parent may initiate litigationaiccordance with this Agreement. In the evenPient does not receive a timely Objection
Notice, the claim(s) set forth in the Claim Notgtll be conclusively deemed to be approved bythekholder Representative (or the
Indemnifying Party, if applicable) and the Indenyimfy Party.

(c) Until the final resolution of any @iaNotice in accordance with this Agreement andBkerow Agreement, an
Indemnified Party, may from time to time, amendts@taim Notice to reflect additional Damages thedsr.

9.3 Third Party ClaimsIn the event of the assertion or commencemeiinyyPerson of any claim, demand or Proceeding
(whether against Parent or against any other Pevgitinrespect to which any Indemnified Party maydmtitled to indemnification pursuant to
this Article IX, Parent shall have the right, @ éection, to proceed with the defense (includietjlement or compromise) of such claim,
demand or Proceeding on its own; providédwever, that Parent may not settle such claim without tter pvritten consent of the
Stockholders’ Representative (which consent maybratnreasonably withheld). Parent shall giveStoekholders’ Representative prompt
notice after it becomes aware of the commencenfearysuch claim or legal proceeding against Pamovided, however, any failure on th
part of Parent to so notify the Stockholders’ Reprgative shall not limit any of the obligationstioé Participating Holders or the Stockholders
Representative, or any of the rights of any InddimahiParty, under this Article 1X (except to thetent such failure materially adversely
prejudices the defense of such Proceeding). ErRatoes not elect to proceed with the defenséu@iimy settlement or compromise) of any
such claim, demand or Proceeding, the StockholdRepresentative may proceed with the defense &f slaém, demand or Proceeding with
counsel reasonably satisfactory to Parent; provjdiedvever, that the Stockholders’ Representative may notesettcompromise any such
claim, demand or Proceeding without the prior writtonsent of Parent (which consent may not beasorebly withheld). No Indemnified
Party (other than Parent or any successor theretssign thereof) shall be permitted to assertiagmnification claim or exercise any other
remedy under this Agreement unless Parent (or acgessor thereto or assign thereof) shall haveeried to the assertion of such
indemnification claim or the exercise of such otteanedy.

9.4 Survival of Representations, Warranéied Covenants Each covenant and agreement contained in thisehgent or in any
agreement or other document delivered pursuantdiehall survive the Closing and be enforceabld sath covenant or agreement has been
fully performed. The representations and warrantintained in this Agreement or in any agreementier document
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delivered pursuant hereto shall survive the Closinij the date that is twelve (12) months after @losing Date and shall thereafter expire,
except that any representation or warranty witpeesto which a claim has been made for a Breaatedm prior to such date shall survive L
such claim is resolved; provided, thdhe foregoing limitations on survival shall ngipdy to (i) claims based on criminal matters, fraud
intentional misrepresentation (* Fraud Claithswhich shall survive without limitation (and imo event less than six years) or (ii) claims basec
on Breaches of the representations and warrardteésrsh in (x) Sections 3.2 (Authority), 3.4 (Ctgization), 3.8 (Company Plans), 3.10
(Taxes) and 3.15 (Environmental and Safety Mattghe) “ Fundamental Representatidhsand claims based on Section 9.1(a)(iv) (Taxes),
which shall survive the Closing until the date dmiat the underlying statute of limitations expi(es if there is no applicable statute of
limitations relating thereto, such representatiod warranty shall survive indefinitely) (colleatiy, the claims described in this clause (ii), the
“ Excluded Claims). Any Indemnified Party may bring a claim hereundergotential or contingent Damages notwithstandigfact that th
full amount of such potential or contingent Damaigasot readily determinable.

9.5 Limitations on Indemnification

(a) Except with respect to Excluded Climnd subject to Section 9.5(d), the indemnificatibligations of the
Participating Holders for Damages for the mattpesc#ied in Section 9.1(a)(i) shall be limitedan amount equal to the Escrow Amount (the
General Caf). Claims for Damages under this Agreement (othan pursuant to Sections 9.1(b) and 9.5(d)) #walli) first against the
Escrow Amount; and (ii) second, after such timalamitial Escrow Amount deposited into the Escréwount have been exhausted, are
subject to preexisting indemnification claims ovéatherwise been distributed to the Participakiofders, and only prior to the deposit of the
Additional Escrowed Funds, by set off against tercpnt (10%) of any unpaid Initial Order Cash Cdesition or unpaid Performance
Payment. Parent shall seek payment for Damagesiinifiable pursuant to Sections 9.1(b) and 9.5{idctly from the applicable Significant
Stockholder.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the camyr contained in this Agreement and subject toiSe&.5(d): (i) no
Participating Holder shall be liable for an amoumnéxcess of such Participant’'s Pro Rata Propodiadhe Damages in respect of such matter;
and (ii) no Participating Holder shall have an imaéfication obligation under this Agreement in ess®f the aggregate amount of the Merger
Consideration actually received by such Particigatiolder pursuant to this Agreement or the Phariouity Agreement.

(c) Subject to Section 9.5(d), Parentlsia be permitted to recover any Damages underAhticle 1X until such
Damages exceed, in the aggregate, $500,000 (theesfiold Amount), provided, that, after the aggregate amount of Damages exceeds the
Threshold Amount, only those Damages above theshiotd Amount shall be recoverable by Parent.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrcontained in this Agreement, the limitationsfeeth in Section 9.5 shall
not be applicable to claims against a Participatiotder based upon fraud committed by such Pagtizig Holder, and the limitations set forth
in Section 9.5(c) shall not be applicable to clabased on Section 9.1(a)(iv) (Taxes).

9.6 No Contribution Each Stockholder waives, and acknowledges arekaghat he shall not have and shall not execcise
assert (or attempt to exercise or assert), any afybontribution, right of indemnity or other sitai right or remedy against the Company,
Parent, the Merger Sub and their respective AféBadirectors, officers and employees, and, #iteEffective Time, the Surviving
Corporation, in connection with any actual or adlddpreach of any representation, warranty or otitigaset forth in this Agreement or any
claim for Damages under Section 9.1.
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9.7 Right of Offset In the event that any Participating Holder shalle an indemnification obligation for Damage®#&vent or
any other Indemnified Party, Parent shall haveritie (but not the obligation) to offset the amoofthe Damages against any portion of the
Merger Consideration otherwise payable pursuatttitobAgreement to such Participating Holder (inahgdwithout limitation the Escrow
Amount and the unpaid Initial Order Cash Considenaand unpaid Performance Payment). Such remealytsdhin addition to and not in
limitation of any injunctive relief or other rights remedies to which the Parent or any other Indféed Party is or may be entitled at law or
equity or in any administrative or other proceedinginder this Agreement (including any exhibitsete).

9.8 Exclusive RemedyThe indemnification provisions contained in tARTICLE IX shall be the sole and exclusive remedy
an Indemnified Party attributable to claims undelating to or arising out of the Agreement andtthesactions contemplated hereby and the
sole and exclusive source of satisfying obligatiohthe Participating Holders under this Agreemettter than Fraud Claims.

9.9 No Double RecoveryNotwithstanding anything herein to the contramy,Party shall be entitled to reimbursement umaag
provision of this Agreement for any amount to tkteat such Party has previously been reimbursedifon amount under any other provision
of this Agreement.

9.10 Third Party RecoveryThe amount of Damages otherwise recoverablerthigeArticle IX shall be limited to the amount of
any Damage that remains after deducting therefipang insurance proceeds and any indemnity, douion or other similar cash payment
recovered by the Indemnified Parties from any thiady with respect thereto and (ii) any Tax basedctually realized by Parent or any of its
Affiliates in the taxable year that the Damageniuirred or in any of the following two (2) taxalylears.

9.11 Waiver of DamagesParent, on behalf of itself and the other Indiiech Parties, waives any claim to punitive, inaith,
indirect, special, consequential or exemplary Dagsggxcept to the extent payable in respect o thérty claims).

ARTICLE X
RESERVED
ARTICLE XI
TERMINATION
111 Termination
(a) This Agreement may, by notice givenoo prior to the Closing Date, in the manner heaer provided, be

terminated and abandoned at any time prior to thei@ Date:

0] by mutual agreement of the Compang Rarent;

(i) by the Company if there has beenrea8h by Parent with respect to its representativaganties or
covenants in this Agreement, in each case suctitteatonditions set forth in Sections 8.1 or 8.2béwould not be satisfied, and such
misrepresentation, default or breach shall not leeen cured within ten (10) days after receipt &seRt of notice specifying particularly such
misrepresentation, default or breach;
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(iii) by Parent if there has been a Brelaghhe Company or the Significant Stockholderdwiispect to any of
their respective representations, warranties oecants in this Agreement, in each case such thatahditions set forth in Sections 7.1 or 7.2
hereof would not be satisfied, and such misreptasien, default or breach shall not have been cwigitin ten (10) days after receipt by the
Company of notice specifying particularly such reesentation, default or breach;

(iv) by the Company or by Parent if the@€ihg shall not have occurred on or before 60 détgs the date of
this Agreement;_provided thte Party seeking to terminate this Agreement siwilbe entitled to terminate this Agreement ititsach or
violation of any representation, warranty or coveérantained herein shall have been the princigase of the Closing not having occurred or
or before such date;

(v) by Parent if Written Consents evidagahe Requisite Vote shall not have been delaepeoperly
completed and executed to approve the MergerAthisement and the documents and transactions cotatad hereby within eight
(8) business days after the date of this Agreement;

(vi) by the Company or by Parent, if (igte shall be a final nonappealable order of aréae state court in
effect preventing the consummation of the transastcontemplated by this Agreement; or (i) thérallde any action taken, or any statute,
rule, regulation or order enacted, promulgatedsuéd or deemed applicable to the transactionsygavernment Authority which would
make the consummation of the transactions illegal;

(vii) by Parent if, at any time prior tocept of the Requisite Vote, it shall have detemdithere has occurred
an effect, event or change which, individually mthe aggregate, has had or would reasonably ectegbto have a Material Adverse Effect
the Company.

(b) In the event of the termination aktAgreement pursuant to Section 11.1 (a), thise&grent shall thereafter
become void and have no effect, except that nothargin will relieve any Party from Liability foma willful breach of any representation,
warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in tigse@ment prior to such termination.

11.2 Termination Fee

(a) Parent shall reimburse the Companjtsaeasonable, documented, out-of-pocket costsried after August 1,
2013 in connection with the negotiation and antit# consummation of this Agreement and the traiossccontemplated hereby in an amc
not to exceed Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($38),0the “ Expense Paymeétin the event that this Agreement is terminat@dby the
Company pursuant to Section 11.1(a)(ii) or Sectibri(a)(iv) or (ii) by Parent pursuant to Sectidn1la)(iv) in the event that, at the time of
such termination, all conditions to Closing haverbsatisfied or waived (other than those conditibas by their nature are to be satisfied a
Closing). Parent shall pay the Expense Paymenmtiteytransfer of immediately available funds wittimee (3) business days of the
termination of this Agreement.

(b) In the event that the Expense Payrheabmes payable and if requested by the CompangnPwill provide
interim financing to the Company in an amount woéxceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) (thentdrim Financind). The Interim
Financing may be provided by Parent in the forma tdan or an investment in the equity of the Comypgyon customary terms to be mutually
agreed between the Company and Parent; providednlyadebt financing shall include the followingrtes: (i) interest rate equal to LIBOR,
(ii) 12 month term, (iii) subordinate to existingrsor debt of the Company, (iv) unsecured and witlmegative pledges on intellectual property
or other assets of the
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Company, (v) the absence of financial or other afyeg covenants, and (vi) the absence of warrantteer equity security coverage.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreent to the contrary, payment of the Expense Palyara, if
requested, Interim Financing to the Company by maneaccordance with this Agreement will be thiesnd exclusive remedy of the
Company and its Stockholders under this Agreemeaatvéll be deemed liquidated damages for any aaiuglrported breach of this
Agreement and the other agreements contemplatethyeand, after such payment has been made, Reitelndve no further liability for any
such actual or purported breach and the Compariyrsiteseek to recover any other money damageseak any other remedy, and all such
claims are hereby waived, except that nothing hesdi relieve any Indemnified Party from Liabilitipr any willful breach of any
representation, warranty, covenant or agreemeriibghtin this Agreement. The Parties agree thatGompany’s actual damages would be
extremely difficult or impracticable to determimethe event of termination pursuant to the prowisiset forth in Section 11.2(a)(i) and (ii).
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the agnégrontained in this Section 11.2(c) are an matquart of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, that without theggeements Parent and Merger Sub would not erttethis Agreement and that the
amounts payable hereunder do not constitute atfyenal

(d) In no event shall Parent be requicepay the Expense Payment or Interim Financingiore than one occasion,
whether or not the Expense Payment or Interim FKimgnmay be payable under more than one provisiahi® Agreement, at the same or at
different times.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

121 Successors and AssigriBhis Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &edinding upon the Parties and their respective
successors and assigns; providadwever, that the Company may not make any assignmeimiofigreement or any interest herein without
the prior written consent of Parent and Parent n@ymake any assignment of this Agreement or at@yest herein without the prior written
Consent of the Company (or after the Closing, tloel$holders’ Representative). Any purported agsignt without prior written consent shall
be void and of no force or effect.

12.2 Governing Law This Agreement shall in all respects be integateconstrued and governed by and in accordartbeting
laws of the State of Delaware, without regard scciinflicts of laws principles.

12.3 Consent to JurisdictiorEach party irrevocably submits to the exclugiresdiction of (a) the state courts located in
Wilmington, Delaware, and (b) the United StatestfitisCourt for the District of Delaware, for themposes of any suit, action or other
proceeding arising out of this Agreement or anyeagrent entered into in connection with this Agresinee any transaction contemplated
hereby or thereby. Each party agrees to commemgcswch action, suit or proceeding either in thétdthStates District Court for the District
of Delaware or if such suit, action or other pratiag may not be brought in such court for jurisiictl reasons, in the state courts located in
Wilmington, Delaware. Each party further agrees gervice of any process, summons, notice or dentiyy U.S. registered mail to such
party’s respective address set forth above shadffeetive service of process for any action, suiproceeding in Delaware with respect to any
matters to which it has submitted to jurisdictiarthis Section 12.3. Each party irrevocably andomaitionally waives any objection to the
laying of venue of any action, suit or proceedinigiag out of this Agreement or any agreement exténto in connection with this Agreement
or the transactions contemplated hereby and therefpythe state courts located in Wilmington, Behre, or (ii) the United States District
Court for
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the District of Delaware, and hereby and therelsthgr irrevocably and unconditionally waives ande@g not to plead or claim in any such
court that any such action, suit or proceeding ghoin any such court has been brought in an inepient forum. This Section 12.3 shall not
apply to any dispute under Section 1.11 that isireq to be decided by the Accounting Firm.

12.4 Waiver of Jury Trial Each party hereby waives to the fullest extembrptted by applicable law, any right it may haveat
trial by jury in respect to any litigation directty indirectly arising out of, under or in connectiwith this Agreement or any agreement entere
into in connection with this Agreement or any tract®on contemplated hereby or thereby. Each fajtgertifies that no representative, agent
or attorney of any other party has representedessty or otherwise, that such other party woultd imathe event of litigation, seek to enforce
the foregoing waiver and (b) acknowledges thamdt the other parties hereto have been inducedtéo erto this Agreement and any agreen
entered into in connection with this Agreementapglicable, by, among other things, the mutual e\and certifications in this Section 12.4.

125 Specific PerformanceThe Company acknowledges that Parent shallreparably harmed and that there shall be no
adequate remedy at law for any violation by Compafrgny of the covenants or agreements containgtiisrAgreement. Parent acknowled
that the Participating Holders shall be irrepardidymed and that there shall be no adequate reatddw for any violation by any Parent, the
Surviving Corporation or any of their respectivdikdtes of any of the covenants or agreementsainatl in this Agreement. It is accordingly
agreed that, in addition to, but not in lieu ofyather remedies which may be available upon tleadir of any such covenants or agreements,
Parent and the Company, if prior to the ClosingherStockholdersRepresentative (on behalf of the Participating oy, if after the Closin
shall have the right to obtain injunctive reliefresstrain a breach or threatened breach of, ornwetbe to obtain specific performance of, any of
the covenants and agreements contained in thisefrgget. All rights and remedies under this Agreemsball be cumulative, and the exercise
of one or more rights or remedies will not precltigie exercise of any other right or remedy avadabider this Agreement or applicable law.

12.6 Severability Each section, subsection and lesser sectidnfgreement constitutes a separate and distimdzntiaking,
covenant and/or provision hereof. In the eventang provision of this Agreement shall finally etermined to be unlawful, such provision
shall be deemed severed from this Agreement, keryenther provision of this Agreement shall remiaifull force and effect.

12.7 Amendment This Agreement may be amended, supplementeddified only by execution of an instrument in wrii
signed by Parent, the Company and, after the Gipsie Stockholders’ Representative.

12.8 Waiver Any Party hereto may to the extent permittecpplicable Law (i) extend the time for the perforroa of any of th
obligations or other acts of the other Partiestoe@) waive any inaccuracies in the representetiand warranties of the other Parties hereto
contained herein or in any document delivered mmshereto or (iii) waive compliance with any oétagreements of the other Parties hereto
contained herein. No such extension or waiver sleakffective unless set forth in a written ingtient duly executed by or on behalf of the
Party extending the time of performance or waivaing such inaccuracy or non-compliance. No waiyeary Party of any term of this
Agreement, in any one or more instances, shaldleengd to be or construed as a waiver of the saraeyoother term of this Agreement on ¢
future occasion.

12.9 Notices All notices, requests, consents, waivers, ahdratommunications required or permitted to be gjivereunder she
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been givign (a) if personally delivered, upon deliveryrefusal of delivery; (b) if mailed by
registered or certified United
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States mail, return receipt requested, postageajteppon delivery or refusal of delivery; or (Esént by a nationally recognized overnight
delivery service, upon delivery or refusal of deliy. All notices, consents, waivers, or other camivations required or permitted to be given
hereunder shall be addressed as follows:

€) If to Parent:

Veeco Instruments Inc.
Terminal Drive

Plainview, New York 11803
Attention: General Counsel
Telephone: (516) 677-0200
Facsimile: (516) 677-0380

with a copy to:

Morrison & Foerster LLP
1650 Tysons Boulevard
Suite 400

McLean, Virginia 22102
Attention: Thomas J. Knox
Telephone: (703) 760-7700
Facsimile: (703) 760-7777

(b) If to the Company prior to the Clagin

Synos Technology, Inc.
3191 Laurelview Court
Fremont, CA 94538
Attn: llsong Lee

Fax: (510) 413-9769

with a copy to:

Cooley LLP

3175 Hanover Street

Palo Alto, CA 94304
Attention: John McKenna
Facsimile: (650) 849-7400

(c) If to the Stockholders’ Representativ

Shareholder Representative Services LLC
1614 15" Street, Suite 200

Denver, CO 80202

Attention: Managing Director

Email: deals@shareholderrep.com
Telephone: (303) 648-4085

Facsimile: (303) 623-0294

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
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Cooley LLP

3175 Hanover Street

Palo Alto, CA 94304
Attention: John McKenna
Facsimile: (650) 849-7400

or at such other address or addresses as thedelartyssed may from time to time designate in vgrifinrsuant to notice given in accordance
with this section.

12.10 _ExpensesAll unpaid Transaction Expenses of the Compangfahe Closing Date shall constitute Closing Lities
hereunder and shall be deducted from the Mergesi@eration pursuant to Article | hereof. All Traicion Expenses of Parent shall be the
responsibility of Parent. All Transaction Expenséany Significant Stockholder shall be the resploitity of such Significant Stockholder.
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 12.10He tontrary, any filing fees required under thet-ScottRodino Antitrust Improvements A
of 1976, as amended, shall be paid by Parent.

12.11 _Complete AgreemenfThis Agreement, those documents expressly edd herein, including all exhibits and schedules
hereto, and the other documents of even date hgrewgether with the Confidentiality Agreementtethas of November 16, 2012 betweer
Company and Parent, embody the complete agreeméntralerstanding among the Parties and superseddaeeeampt any prior
understandings, agreements or representation &mong the Parties, written or oral, which may halated to the subject matter herein.

12.12 _Absence of Third Party Beneficiary RgghOther than Section 6.14, no provision of thigdement is intended, nor will be
interpreted, to provide or create any third paepédficiary rights or any other rights of any kimdainy client, customer, Affiliate, stockholder,
employee or partner of any Party hereto or anyrd®eeson.

12.13 _Mutual Drafting This Agreement is the mutual product of the iBartand each provision hereof has been subjé¢beto
mutual consultation, negotiation and agreementohef the Parties, and shall not be construedrfagainst any Party hereto.

12.14 _Further RepresentationEach Party to this Agreement acknowledges apigbsents that it has been represented by its owr
legal counsel in connection with the transactiontemplated by this Agreement, with the opportutitgeek advice as to its legal rights from
such counsel. Each Party (other than the Stocksil®Representative) further represents thatbeiag independently advised as to the Tax ol
securities consequences of the transactions cotdatedby this Agreement and is not relying on aepresentation or statements made by any
other Party as to such Tax and securities consegsen

12.15 _Gender Unless the context clearly indicates otherwigegre appropriate the singular shall include thegland the
masculine shall include the feminine or neuter, wnd versa to the extent necessary to give the terms defieedin and/or the terms
otherwise used in this Agreement the proper meaning

12.16 _Headings The headings in this Agreement are intendedystide convenience of reference and shall be givereffect in
the construction or interpretation of this Agreemnen

12.17 _CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in two or motenterparts, each of which when executed and deliver
shall be deemed an original and all of which, talegether, shall
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constitute the same agreement. This Agreemenaapdocument or schedule required hereby may beugee by facsimile signature which
shall be considered legally binding for all purpsmse

12.18 _Disclosure ScheduleThe disclosure schedule (collectively the “ Misare Schedul® is a series of schedules
corresponding to the sections contained in Artit|éArticle IV and certain other Articles hereimd containing the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to, and certain exceptiondhrdpresentations and warranties in such Artiddsthing in the Agreement or in the
Disclosure Schedule constitutes an admission thatrdormation disclosed, set forth or incorporabgdreference in the Disclosure Schedul
in the Agreement is material, constitutes a Malt&idverse Effect or is otherwise required by therte of the Agreement to be so disclosed, se
forth or incorporated by reference. Any disclossgeforth in any particular Schedule of the Disale Schedule will be deemed disclosed for
any other Schedule of the Disclosure Schedulega@#tent that its relevance or applicability totsother Schedule of the Disclosure Schedule
is reasonably apparent on the face of such dis@oslihe Disclosure Schedule is incorporated hdrgireference. No disclosure in the
Disclosure Schedules (including but not limitedhose relating to any possible breach of violatbany agreement, law or regulation) shal
construed or deemed to be, nor shall it constiartegdmission to any third party concerning suemit

12.19 _Conflict of Interest If the StockholdersRepresentative or any Participating Holder so dssicting on behalf of each of
Participating Holders and without the need for iddal consent or waiver by the Surviving Corparator Parent, Cooley LLP (“Cooley”)
shall be permitted to represent the StockholdeegrBsentative and each Participating Holder dfeiQiosing with respect to any matters
related to this Agreement or any disagreementspude relating thereto. Upon and after the Clodimg Surviving Corporation shall cease to
have any attorney-client relationship with Coolegless and to the extent Cooley is specificallyagyegl in writing by the Surviving
Corporation to represent the Surviving Corporatifter the Closing and either such engagement igotw conflict of interest with respect to
the Participating Holders or the Stockholders’ Rspntative consents in writing at the time to serfpagement. Any such representation of th
Surviving Corporation by Cooley after the Clositgk not affect the foregoing provisions hereof.

[Signatures appear on following pages.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementgigbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedbs
the date first above written.

VEECO INSTRUMENTS INC.

By: /s/ Authorized Signator

Name:
Title:

VEECO WYOMING INC.

By: /s/ Authorized Signator

Name:
Title:

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementgigbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedbs
the date first above written.

SYNOS TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Authorized Signator

Name:
Title:

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementgigbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedbs
the date first above written.

SHAREHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES LLC , solely in
its capacity as the Stockhold’ Representativ

By: /s/ Authorized Signator
Name:
Title:

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementgigbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedbs
the date first above written.

/s/ San-In Lee

SANG-IN LEE

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementgigbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedbs
the date first above written.

/s/ Daniel C. Rubit

DANIEL C. RUBIN

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each Party hereto has caused this Agreementsimbed by its officer thereunto duly authorizedathe
date first above written.

/sl llsong Lee

ILSONG LEE

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger
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APPENDIX A

DEFINED TERMS

“ 280G Stockholder Approvélshall have the meaning set forth in Section 6).2(

“ 280G Waiver” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Accounting Firm” means an accounting firm mutually satisfactoryrarent and the Stockholders’ Representative.

“ Affiliate " means as to any Party, any Person which dirextindirectly is in control of, is controlled byr & under common control
with, such Party, including any Person who wouldrbated as a member of a controlled group undetidde414 of the Code and any officel
director of such Party. For purposes of this didin, an entity shall be deemed to be “controllgd a Person if the Person possesses, directly
or indirectly, power either to (i) vote a majoritj the securities (including convertible securitiraving ordinary voting power or (ii) direct or
cause the direction of the management or polidissich entity whether by contract or otherwise;,asito a Party who is a natural person,
such person’s Immediate Family Member. For thedarece of doubt, from and after the Closing, Paseffiliates shall include without
limitation the Company.

“ Aggregate Exercise Amoutitmeans the sum of: (a) the aggregate exercise pfiall Company Options that have vested prior to
Closing or that will vest in connection with Clogiand that are outstanding, unexercised and uregkpitmediately prior to the Effective
Time; plus (b) the aggregate exercise price obalies A Warrants that are outstanding immedigtgby to the Effective Time.

“ Agdregate Preference Amouhimeans an amount equal to the product of (i) tteeS A Per Share Preference, multiplied by (&) th
sum of (A) the aggregate number of shares of Sérieseferred Stock outstanding immediately priottte Effective Time, plus (B) the
aggregate number of shares of Series A Prefermk $tsuable upon exercise of the Series A Warrants

“ Agreement’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Introdarct

“ Allocation Certificate” means signed written instructions from the Compgorior to Closing) or the Stockholders’ Represgint
(following Closing) specifying (i) the allocatiomd payment among the Participating Holders of amyddr Consideration payable to such
Participating Holders and whether such paymentligest to wage or payroll tax withholding (providekat the Stockholders’ Representative
shall not be required to make any independent iehkéteations with respect to wage or payroll tax wiltiing, but shall be entitled to rely solely
on such designations provided in the original Adlban Certificate provided by the Company), (iig gportion of such Merger Consideration
that constitutes payments pursuant to Sectionala®y employee or former employee of the Compargngrof its Subsidiaries, and (iii) the
address and other identifying information for s&ahrticipating Holders and any other informatiorsm@ably requested by Parent for purposes
of effecting the payments set forth in the AllooatCertificate.

“ Balance Sheétmeans the unaudited balance sheet of the Comguaahyach of its Subsidiaries at July 31, 2013.

“ Balance Sheet Datemeans the date of the Balance Sheet.
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There shall be deemed to be a “ Breaoha representation, warranty, covenant, obligatr other provision if there is or has been
any inaccuracy in or breach of, or any failureamply with or perform, such representation, wayaobvenant, obligation or other provision.

“ Capped Pro Rata Shateneans the quotient obtained by dividing (i) 1,(Bythe sum of (x) the aggregate number of shafes
Company Common Stock outstanding as of immediatebr to the Effective time, plus (y) the aggregatenber of shares of Company
Common Stock into which all Company Options thateheested prior to Closing or that will vest in cection with Closing, and that are
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Tinfeany, could be converted. Any shares of Comnypatock to be canceled pursuant to the
last sentence of Section 1.6(b)(iii) shall be disreled for the purposes of this definition.

“ Cash” means the aggregate amount of cash and cashadepiis held or owned by the Company and its Sudrsédi, in each case
determined as of the date of this Agreement in @zowe with GAAP in a manner consistent with thedrical accounting policies and
procedures used in preparing the Year-End Finangiadccordance with the Estimated Net Working Gdis set forth on the Estimated
Balance Sheet.

“ Cause” for termination of a Key Employee’s employmentaiimean any of the following: (i) commission ofyafelony, or of any
other crime involving moral turpitude or materigtibnesty; (ii) participation in a fraud or actroéterial dishonesty (or any such attempted
acts) against Surviving Corporation or Parent) illful and material breach of such Key Employgduties or of any of Surviving
Corporation or Parent policies; (iv) deliberate andtinued failure to act in accordance with angcéfic lawful and reasonable instructions of
Surviving Corporation or Parent; (v) intentionalmaterial damage to Surviving Corporation or Pasgmoperty; and (vi) material breach of
any written and fully signed agreement with SumgviCorporation, Parent or an affiliate (includingheut limitation, the confidentiality
agreement between Surviving Corporation and sughBfaployee or any other agreement covering pragmiyahformation and assignment of
inventions).

“ Certificate of Incorporatiori means the Company’s Amended and Restated Ceat#fiof Incorporation, in effect as of immediately
prior to the Effective Time.

“ Certificate of Mergel’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.

“ Certificates” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1al4(

“ Claim Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(a

“ Closing” means the closing of the transactions contemglbayethis Agreement.

“ Closing Amount’ means an amount equal to (i) the Upfront Cashs@taration, plus (ii) Cash, plus (iii) the Aggreg&txercise
Amount, plus (iv) the Estimated Net Working Cap#airplus, if any, less (v) the Estimated Net Wogk@apital Deficit, if any, less (vi) the
Estimated Closing Liabilities, if any, less (vii)e Initial Escrow Amount.

“ Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing occurs.

“ Closing Liabilities” means the amount of Indebtedness of the CompadyNan-Ordinary Course Liabilities, in each case

determined as of the Closing Date in accordance GAAP in a manner consistent with the historicaaunting policies and procedures used
in preparing the Year-End Financials.
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“ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as agtend

“ Common Per Share Closing Amountneans an amount equal to the quotient obtainedvidirty (i) an amount (but not below zer
equal to the difference between (A) the Closing Antpminus (B) the Aggregate Preference Amountddid by (ii) the Fully Diluted Share
Number.

“ Company” shall have the meaning set forth in the Introcaret

“ Company Common Stockmeans the Company’s Common Stock, no par valueipare.

“ Company Employeesshall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.9(a

“ Company Intellectual Propertymeans the Company Owned Intellectual PropertytapdCompany Licensed Intellectual Property.

“ Company Licensed Intellectual Propettgneans all Intellectual Property that is licensedhe Company by any third party.

“ Company Option$ means all options to purchase shares of Compamyrion Stock granted pursuant to the Company Ojtian.

“ Company Owned Intellectual Propefthas the meaning set forth in Section 3.17(a).
“ Company Plari shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.8(a

“ Company Product$means the products and services that have beareaurrently being developed, marketed, distedusold,
licensed, or otherwise made available by the Coppamny Subsidiary.

“ Company Registered Intellectual Propettymeans each of the following that are registerefiled in the name of or for the benefit
the Company or any Subsidiary, alone or jointlyhwathers: (i) United States and foreign Patenh®ig(ii) registered Trademarks;
(iii) registered copyrights, designs and mask welistrations; (iv) network and web site domain eaand other universal resource locator
(URL) registrations; (v) Internet Names; and apdiiens for each of the foregoing.

“ Company Required Voteémeans the affirmative vote of such number of kaddof shares of capital stock of the Company rseecgs
to approve the Merger by law or as provided in@eetificate of Incorporation, and evidenced by &ing reasonably satisfactory to Parent.

“ Company Source Codemeans the source code for any Software includetié products and services developed, manufactured
distributed, licensed or sold by the Company or @absidiary, or in Internal Systems, or other aderfitial information constituting, embodied
in or pertaining to such Software.

“ Company Stock means the capital stock of the Company.

“ Company Stock Plahmeans the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan.

“ Competing Transactiohshall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.4.

“ Consent Solicitation Statemehshall have the meaning set forth in Section &).2(
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“ Contract” means any note, bond, mortgage, debt instrunsecyrity agreement, contract, license, lease, asbjeovenant,
commitment, power of attorney, proxy, indentureighase and sale order, or other agreement or anmaegt, oral or written, to which the
Company is a party or by which the Company or drijsassets or properties are bound.

“ Damages’ means all Liabilities, losses, claims, demandsnédges, lost profits, causes of actions, lawsaiinistrative
proceedings (including informal proceedings), inigegions, audits, demands, assessments, adjustnesigments, settlement payments,
deficiencies, penalties, fines, Taxes, and cosisapenses (including, without limitation, reasdeaiitorneys’ fees and disbursements,
whether incurred in connection with a third pargim, demand or Proceeding in seeking to enforeAtireement (including the
indemnification obligations set forth in Article )X or otherwise.

“ DGCL " means the Delaware General Corporation Law.

“ Dissenting Sharesshall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16.

“ Effective Time” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.

“ Employer Taxes shall mean all employer Taxes associated wittmpeyts to any Participant or Participating Holdeeath case,
arising in contemplation of, or in connection withe transactions contemplated by this Agreementjired to be paid by Parent, the Compan
or any of their respective Affiliates on or aftbetClosing Date and not in the ordinary courseusitess of the Company, including payments
payable pursuant to this Agreement, the Retentian & the Phantom Equity Agreement.

“ Encumbrancé means any claim, lien, pledge, option, chargseaeent, security interest, right-of-way, encumbeamcortgage or
other right, but excluding in all cases any PewrxitEncumbrance.

“ Environment” means navigable waters, waters of the contigzoume, ocean waters, natural resources, surfacesygteund water,
drinking water supply, land surface, subsurfacatatrambient air, both inside and outside of bo@diand structures, man-made buildings and
structures, and plant and animal life on earth.

“ Environmental Law$ means all Laws relating to pollution, protectiohthe Environment, public or worker health andesafor the
emission, discharge, release or threatened retége#lutants, contaminants or industrial, meditakic or hazardous substances or wastes int
the Environment or otherwise relating to the maatufige, processing, distribution, use, treatmentagte, disposal, transport or handling of
pollutants, contaminants or industrial, medicatj¢®mr hazardous substances or wastes, includiftout limitation, the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Lial#ldy 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et. seq., the ResoQwmeservation and Recovery Act, 42
U.S.C. Section 6901 et. seq., the Toxic SubstaBoasrol Act, 15 U.S.C. Section 2601 et. seq., teddral Water Pollution Control Act, 33
U.S.C. Section 1251 et seq., the Clean Air Acti42.C. Section 7401 et seq., the Federal Inseeti¢idngicide and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C.
Section 121 et. seq., the Occupational Safety azalthl Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 651 et. seq., the AslseHazard Emergency Response Act, 1-
U.S.C. Section 2601 et. seq., the Safe Drinkingewatt, 42 U.S.C. Section 300f et. seq., the Ollu®ion Act of 1990 and analogous state
acts.

“ ERISA " means the Employee Retirement Income SecurityoAd974, as amended.
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“ ERISA Affiliate " means each Person which is or was required toclaged as a single employer with the Companysaetrent or
former Subsidiaries under Section 414 of the Cadeeation 4001(b)(1) of ERISA.

“ Estimated Balance Shettmeans a consolidated balance sheet of the Coyngad its Subsidiaries as of the date of this Agrem,
prepared by the Company in accordance with GAA® imanner consistent with the historical accounpiolicies and procedures used in
preparing the Year-End Financials.

“ Estimated Closing Liabilitie$ means the amount of Closing Liabilities set fostihthe Statement of Estimated Closing Liabilities.

“ Estimated Net Working Capitdlmeans the Net Working Capital set forth on thér&ated Balance Sheet.

“ Estimated Net Working Capital Deficitshall mean the amount, if any, by which the Tafdet Working Capital exceeds the
Estimated Net Working Capital.

“ Estimated Net Working Capital Surpliishall mean the amount, if any, by which the Estied Net Working Capital exceeds the
Target Net Working Capital.

“ Excluded Claims shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.4.

“ Excluded Contract means any and all (a) nondisclosure and confidktytagreements (having typical form and substqrentered
into in the ordinary course of the business ofGaenpany and/or any Subsidiary, (b) agreements ffilgaypical form and substance) for off-
the-shelf commercial software, and (c) employeeinddpendent contractor agreements (having typicat and substance).

“ Excluded Tax Sharing Agreemeritshall have the meaning set forth in Section 310(

“ Exploit " means develop, design, test, modify, make, usg,lsave made, used and sold, import, export, cagproduce, publish,
display, perform, market, distribute, commercialiggpport, maintain, correct, translate and crdatevative works of, in any medium or mes
of storage or transmission, now known or hereafieznted.

“ Eacilities” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3a11(

“ Einal Balance Sheétmeans a consolidated balance sheet of the Comguashyts Subsidiaries as of the date of this Agesgm

prepared by Parent in good faith in accordance GRAP in a manner consistent with the historicalamting policies and procedures used ir

preparing the Year-End Financials.

“ Einal Closing Liabilities” means the amount of Closing Liabilities set footihthe Statement of Closing Liabilities.

“ Einal Net Working Capital means the Net Working Capital as set forth onRhmal Balance Sheet.

“ Financial Statementsmeans the Year-End Financials and the Interinafaials.

“ EFIRPTA " means the Foreign Investment and Real PropertyAta of 1980, as amended.
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“ EIRPTA Notification Letter’ means a letter from the Company stating thatGbmpany Stock does not constitutérited States re
property interests” under Section 897(c) of the €ddr purposes of satisfying Parent’s obligationder Treasury Regulation Section 1.1445-.
(c)(3) and a form of notice to the IRS in accordandth the requirements of Treasury Regulationi8ect.897-2(h)(2).

“ Fraud Claims’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.4.

“ Eundamental Representatighshall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.4.

“ Eully Diluted Share Number means the sum (without duplication as to any shh@ompany Common Stock in the event more
one of (A), (B) or (C) are applicable to such shafr€ompany Common Stock) of (A) the aggregate nemalh shares of Company Common
Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effeetilime, plus (B) the aggregate number of shar€xoafpany Common Stock into which all
shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstandingddoeiiconverted immediately prior to the Effectiven& (assuming full exercise of all
Series A Warrants that are outstanding immedigiaby to the Effective Time), plus (C) the aggregatimber of shares of Company Commor
Stock into which all Company Options that have gégirior to Closing or that will vest in connectiaith Closing, and that are outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time, if any,udd be converted, plus (D) sixty five thousand twmdred and eight (65,208). Any shares of
Company Stock to be canceled pursuant to the émsésce of Section 1.6(b)(iii) shall be disregarftedhe purposes of this definition.

“ GAAP " means United States generally accepted accouptingiples, consistently applied.
“ General Cap shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.5(b

“ Governmenf’ means any agency or instrumentality of the UnitedeS of America or any state or territory or swuisibn thereof an
any agency or instrumentality of any of the foregpoi

“ Government Authority means any nation or government, any state or aisgumentality or political subdivision thereofi¢luding
any county or city), and any entity exercising exae, legislative, judicial, military, regulatoyr administrative functions of or pertaining to
government.

“ Government Bid’ means a bid, tender or proposal which, if acogpteuld result in a Government Contract.

“ Government Contractmeans any Contract between the Company and tBe@®bvernment or any other Government Authority, as
well as any Contract by which the Company has agreg@rovide goods or services as a sub-contraotamprime contractor or to a higher-tier
subcontractor, in each case, to a Government Aitghor

“ Hazardous Substanéeneans any toxic waste, pollutant, hazardous sulost, toxic substance, hazardous waste, specitd,was
industrial substance or waste, petroleum or patroteerived substance or waste, radioactive substanwaste, or any constituent of any suct
substance or waste, or any other substance redulatier or defined by any Environmental Law.

“ Holder” has the meaning as set forth in Section 1.12(b).

“ Indebtedness of any Person means, without duplication, (i)aligations of such Person for borrowed money glliobligations of
such Person evidenced by notes, debentures, bomdses similar instruments for the payment of vwhétich Person is responsible or liable,
(iii) all obligations of such Person for the reinnbement of any obligor on any letter of credit, ken's acceptance, guarantee
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or similar credit transaction, in each case, tlatlmeen drawn or claimed against, (iv) all interatt and currency swaps, caps, collars and
similar agreements or hedging devices under whigiments are obligated to be made by such Persatherperiodically or upon the
happening of a contingency, (v) all obligationsategl or arising under any conditional sale or otitlerretention agreement with respect to
property acquired by such Person (even thoughighésrand remedies of the seller or lender unden sigreement in the event of default are
limited to repossession or sale of such propef®) all obligations of such Person or another Bersecured by an Encumbrance on any asse
of such first Person, whether or not such obligaitbassumed by such first Person, and (vii) ararapty of any Indebtedness of any other
Person.

“ Indemnified Party’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(a

“ Indemnifying Party’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(a

“ Initial Escrow Amount’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.11.

“ Information Statemeritshall have the meaning set forth in Section &)L2(

“ Intellectual Property means the following subsisting throughout the ldofi) Patent Rights; (ii) Trademarks; (iii) Copghts
(whether or not registered), works of authorshgpycightable works (including, but not limited ®oftware), designs, data and database right
and registrations and applications for registratimreof, including moral rights of authors, andivhtive works, renewals, extensions,
reversions, and restorations of the foregoing,ndigas of the medium of fixation or means of exgi@s throughout the world; (iv) inventions,
invention disclosures, statutory invention registres, trade secrets and confidential businessnmition, know-how, manufacturing and
product processes and techniques, research anthpeent information, financial, marketing and besia data, pricing and cost information,
business and marketing plans and customer andisufigis and information, whether patentable onpeatentable, whether copyrightable or
noncopyrightable and whether or not reduced totjpeicand (v) other intellectual property and piefary rights relating to any of the
foregoing (including remedies against infringemiigtreof and rights of protection of interest thenender the laws of all jurisdictions),
including, but not limited to, rights to recover feast, present and future violations thereof.

“ Interim Financials’ means the Balance Sheet and the unaudited staterhimcome of the Company and its Subsidiarieste
period ended July 31, 2013.

“ Internal System$ means the Software and documentation and the atenpzommunications and network systems (whettdiliey,
desktop or enterprise), servers, hardware, equipmeaterials and apparatus used by the Compangyyo®absidiary in their business or
operations or to develop, manufacture, fabricatsemble, provide, distribute, support, maintaitest the products and services developed,
manufactured, distributed, licensed or sold byGbenpany or any Subsidiary, whether located on teenses of the Company or any
Subsidiary or hosted at a third party site

“ Internet Names$ means all (i) internet, network and web site domsames, addresses and universal resource lo¢atBiss),
(il) Facebook, Twitter, Google+ and other socialwarking names, tags and registrations, and (iilndWords, AdCenter, SmartAds and otl
search, advertising and directory keyword right3 @egistrations.

“IRS " means the Internal Revenue Service or any suocegency thereto.
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“ Key Employees means the key Company Employees set forth on AgipeB-1 and_Appendix B3 .

“ Key Employee Agreementsshall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Korea Transfer Taxesmeans any stock transfer Tax, stock documentary $tock stamp Tax, stock registration Tax or othe
similar Taxes and fees imposed by a Taxing Authiaritthe Republic of Korea.

“ Laws” means all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules agdlations of any Government Authority, includinbcaders, judgments,
injunctions, awards, decisions or decrees of amytdwaving effect of law.

“ Letter of Transmittal' shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1al4(

“ Liability " or “ Liabilities " means, without limitation, any direct or indirdbility, indebtedness, guaranty, endorsemeain|
loss, damage, deficiency, cost, expense, obligatiorsponsibility, either accrued, absolute, eaggnt, mature, unmature or otherwise and
whether known or unknown, fixed or unfixed, choaténchoate, liquidated or unliquidated, securedrmsecured.

“ Material Adverse Effect means any effect, event or change which, indialjuor in the aggregate, has or would reasonabély b
expected to have a material adverse effect orhédperations, assets, the business or the filameidition, prospects, Liabilities, or relations
with customers, suppliers or employees, or (bidpet or ability to consummate the transactionstemplated hereby; provided thah no
event shall any of the following, in and of itsdd€ deemed to have or constitute a Material Adveffect: (i) any effects, events or changes
that are directly caused by or directly result froomditions affecting the industries in which siRdrson or its Subsidiaries participates, (ii) an
effects, events or changes that are directly cabgext directly result from conditions affectinget).S. or non-U.S. economy, or any
disruptions thereof, as a whole, (iii) any effeetgents or changes that are directly caused bjrextty result from acts of war or terrorism,

(iv) any effects, events or changes that are djreetused by any changes in applicable Law or apple accounting regulations or principle
interpretations thereof, or (v) any effects, evamtshanges that are directly caused by the ndgutisannouncement, pendency, execution,

delivery or performance of this Agreement or theillary documents contemplated hereby but onlinithe case of (i), (i), (iii) and (iv), such
effects, events or changes do not disproportiopatié¢ct such Person or its Subsidiaries.

“ Merger” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Merger Sub’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Introdhrct

“ Merger Sub Common Stockmeans the Company Common Stock, $0.01 par vatuslipare, of Merger Sub.

“ Net Working Capital' means the amount by which the total consolidatadent assets of the Company and its subsidiaries
(excluding Cash and Tax assets) exceeds the totabtidated current liabilities (other than defdriecome Tax liabilities attributable to timi
differences between book and Tax income, Specifads, Closing Liabilities and any payments payablsuant to the Retention Plan or the
Phantom Equity Agreement) of the Company and itssiliaries, in each case determined as of theaddhés Agreement in accordance with
GAAP in a manner consistent with the historicalcagting policies and procedures used in prepatiegriear-End Financials.
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“ Nonconsenting Stockholdetsshall have the meaning set forth in Section &1L2(

“ Non-Ordinary Course Liabilities means: (i) any Transaction Expenses of the Comparits Subsidiaries that remain unpaid as of
the Closing; and (ii) any amounts which become pkeyhy the Company or any of its Subsidiaries tp @mployees of the Company or its
Subsidiaries arising in contemplation of, or in gecation with, the transactions contemplated by Algjiseement, including all amounts payable
pursuant to any carve-out plan, transaction bonagher cash compensation, in each case, other thaBpecified Taxes; (b) payments that
become due as a result of the termination of sereiche Parent after the date of this Agreemer(iz)oamounts payable pursuant to plans
implemented, or Contracts entered into, by PatkatSurviving Corporation or any of their respeetAffiliates after the Effective Time; or
(d) any payments payable pursuant to the ReteRtiam or the Phantom Equity Agreement.

“ Objection Notice’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(a
“ Offer Letter” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Open Source Materialsmeans all Software, documentation and other naserdata and information that is distributed as
“freeware,” “open source,” or “copyleft” materials; licensed under a similar licensing or distribantmodel, including, but not limited to, the
GNU General Public License (GPL), GNU Lesser Gdrfeublic License (LGPL), Apache License, MIT Licen$/SD License, Artistic
License, Mozilla Public License (MPL), or any otlieense described by the Open Source Initiativeea$orth on www.opensource.org.

“ Qverflow Funds’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section @b
“ Parent’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Introduret

“ Parent Confidential Informatiohmeans all documents and information concerning®zor the Company or any of their respective
Representatives furnished in connection with thgse®ment or the transactions contemplated herabjudling, without limitation, any claim
dispute arising out of or related to this Agreenmnthe transactions contemplated hereby, or ttegpretation, making, performance, breach o
termination thereof).

“ Parent Permitted Prepared Retlishall have the meaning set forth in Section §(@(a

“ Parent Prepared Retutrshall have the meaning set forth in Section §(@(a

“ Parent Required Prepared Rettishall have the meaning set forth in Section §(B(a

“ Participant” shall have the meaning given to such term inRkeéention Plan.

“ Participating Holders shall each holder of: (a) Company Stock (otha@ntholders of Dissenting Shares); (b) Series A @rds:;
(c) Company Options that have vested prior to @ipsir that will vest in connection with Closing athét are outstanding, unexercised and
unexpired immediately prior to the Effective Tinagd (d) the Recipient.

“ Party” and “ Parties’ shall have the meanings set forth in the Intrdidunc

“ Patent Rights means all patents, patent applications, utilitydels, design patents, design patent applicatdesgn registrations,
inventor certificates, and certificates of inventand other
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governmental grants for the protection of invergion industrial designs (including all related ¢ounétions, continuations-in-part, divisionals,
renewals, extensions, provisionals, reissues amdminations) and any improvements to the investatiaclosed in each such registration,
patent, or patent application throughout the world.

“ Performance Paymeiishall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.8.

“ Performance Periotshall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.8.

“ Permitted Encumbrancemeans, (a) any mechanic’s, materialmen’s or sinstatutory lien incurred in the ordinary cour$e o
business for monies not yet due, (b) any lien ahestate or other property for Taxes, assessnmgoisynmental charges or levies not yet due
or delinquent, (c) any purchase money lien or §ecuring rental payments under capital lease agraagts to the extent related to the assets
purchased or leased, (d) any easement, right-of-aaing restriction, existing building restrictiaardinance, easement of roads, privilege, or
right of public service companies and other simiélacumbrances relating to real property and abothatters that do not prohibit or materially
impair the current use, occupancy or marketabhiiftitle of the real property subject thereto, (&b respect to leased or subleased real
property, any Encumbrance or restriction explici#ét forth in the lease or sublease for such leasedbleased real property and (f) any lien tc
secure performance of, surety or appeal bondspmeaince bonds or bids or similar statutory oblimyadi

“ Person” means any person, limited liability company, parship, trust, unincorporated organization, capon, association, joint
stock company, business, group, Government Authoribther entity.

“ Phantom Equity Agreemefitmeans the Synos Technology, Inc. Phantom EquigseAment adopted by the board of directors of th
Company on September 18, 2013, as attached heré&xhibit G.

“ PostClosing Adjustment shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1e).2(

“ Potential Parachute Recipienshall have the meaning set forth in Section 3)10(

“ Pro Rata Initial Order Cash Consideratiomeans an amount equal to the quotient obtainedivagling (i) any Initial Order Cash
Consideration payment, by (ii) the Fully Diluteda®& Number.

“ Pro Rata Performance Amouhineans an amount equal to the quotient obtainedivigling (i) the Performance Amount, by (ii) the
Fully Diluted Share Number.

“ Pro Rata Proportio'ymeans with respect to each Participating Holdeamount equal to the quotient obtained by dividipnthe
sum (without duplication as to any share of Comp@oynmon Stock in the event more than one of (A),qiBC) are applicable to such share
of Company Common Stock) of (A) the aggregate nurobshares of Company Common Stock held by sucticiReating Holder immediatel
prior to the Effective Time, plus (B) the aggregatenber of shares of Company Common Stock into kvhitshares of Series A Preferred
Stock held by such Participating Holder could bevested immediately prior to the Effective Timegamning full exercise of all Series A
Warrants that are held by such Participating Hoidenediately prior to the Effective Time), plus (tBg aggregate number of shares of
Company Common Stock into which all Company Optioelsl by such Participating Holder that have vegtéar to Closing or that will vest
in connection with Closing, and that are outstagdinmediately prior to the Effective Time, if argguld be converted, plus (D) the
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number of shares of Company Common Stock subjgatantom stock rights held by such Participatindddoimmediately prior to the
Effective Time, by (ii) the Fully Diluted Share Nier.

“ Proceedind means any action, arbitration, audit, examinatiomestigation, hearing, litigation, suit or app@@hether civil,
criminal, administrative, judicial or investigativehether formal or informal, and whether publiguoivate) commenced, brought, conducted,
heard by or before or otherwise involving any Goweent Authority or arbitrator.

“ Product” means any software (including software provideduse as a service), hardware, firmware or othafyct now or within
the past four (4) years offered for sale or liceimgéhe Company or any Subsidiary, together withusér documentation, data, scripts, macros
modules and other files and information suppliedd ®r licensed with such software, hardware, fimmevor other product.

“ Product Agreemeritmeans the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ stahftam of agreement pursuant to which the Compartya
any Subsidiary licenses or sells any products stocoers.

“ Pro Rata Shareémeans the quotient obtained by dividing 1, by Fu#ly-Diluted Share Number.

“ Purchase Ordermeans a final, written, binding purchase ordeicommercial terms (exclusive of prepayments) otissr
consistent with those negotiated previously byGbenpany for similar system sales.

“ Recipient” shall have the meaning given to such term inRhantom Equity Agreement.

“ Recommendatiofi shall have the meaning set forth in Section &)1.2(

“ Related Party means any officer, director, Key Employee, stadkiler or Affiliate of the Company, any Immediatentity Member
of any of the foregoing individuals or any entitywhich any such Person or individual owns any fieia¢interest. An “ Immediate Family
Member” of a person is any child, stepchild, parent, pepnt or spouse.

“ Releas€ means any release, spill, emission, leaking, pug)pimection, deposit, disposal, discharge, displetsaching or migratic
into, onto or through the indoor or outdoor Envirant or into, through or out of any property, irdihg the movement of Hazardous
Substances through or in the air, soil, surfacewyground water or property.

“ Representative$means, as to a Person, such Person’s Affiliatelsstockholders and any officers, directors, emgdsy consultants,
advisors, trustees, accountants, agents, repréisestand attorneys, or any representative themecfjding without limitation, any broker
disclosed in Article Il or Article V hereof.

“ Requisite Vote' means the affirmative vote of the holders of 96fthe shares of the Company’s capital stock, dated on an as-if-
converted to Common Stock basis, voting together siagle class.

“ Restricted Shargsshall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.9.

“ Retention Plari means the Synos Technology, Inc. Employee RainrRian adopted by the board of directors of then@any on
September 18, 2013, as attached hereto as Exhibit H
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“ Series A Per Share Closing Amotinheans an amount equal to the difference betwiehg sum of (A) the Series A Per Share
Preference, plus (B) the Common Per Share Closmgukt, minus (ii) an amount equal to the produdi®dfthe Pro Rata Share, multiplied by
(B) the Escrow Amount.

“ Series A Per Share Prefereriameans the preference amount which each sharer@sSA Preferred Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time is entitlemreceive under the Certificate of Incorporatigron a liquidation of the Company.

“ Series A Preferred Stockmeans the Company’s Series A Preferred Stockyalaie $0.00001 per share.

“ Series A Warrant means the warrants issued by the Company to psechhares of Series A Preferred Stock.

“ Significant Contract means each Contract in effect as of the dathisfAgreement to which the Company or any of itbstdiaries
is a party, (i) with a dealer, broker, sales ageadyertising agency or other Person engaged &s salpromotional activities; (ii) which by its
terms requires aggregate payments by or to the @oyngr any of its Subsidiaries in excess of $25,0@Ppursuant to which the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries has made loans or advajatiesr than for ordinary course travel and expegsesistent with past practices of the
Company), or has incurred debts or become a guaransurety or pledged its credit on or otherviiseome responsible with respect to any
undertaking of another; (iv) which is an indentunedit agreement, loan agreement, note, mortgagelirity agreement, lease of real property
or personal property or agreement for financingicfeating a partnership or joint venture; (viplpibiting the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries from conducting their respective besses in any geographical area of operations d@rgrthe scope or type of their respective
businesses or prohibiting the Company’s or anysoSubsidiaries’ from hiring or soliciting any Paemnsas an employee, consultant or
independent contractor; (vii) which is a power tibmey or agency agreement or written arrangeméhtany Person pursuant to which such
Person is granted the authority to act for or dmalfeof the Company or any of its Subsidiariesii\wiith respect to which the requirements for
performance extend beyond two (2) years from tlie dbthis Agreement; (ix) which contains warrastth respect to the Company Product:
other than those warranties expressly made iritdrature accompanying such products or in the Gomis or any of its Subsidiariestandart
license agreement; (x) which provides for the asitjoh, directly or indirectly (by merger or othés®), of substantially all of the assets
(whether tangible or intangible) or the capitak&tof another Person; (xi) which is an employmentsulting or professional advisor
agreement (other than standard offer letters anduiting agreements that cannot be terminated withenalty or payment on at least ninety
(90) days’ natice); (xiii) which involves the salssuance or repurchase by the Company or ang &ubsidiaries of any capital stock or
securities of the Company or any of its Subsidgr{giv) with any Government or Government Authgribr (xv) disclosed oSchedule 3.11(;
or Schedule 3.11(b) or (xvi) which is not maddhia ordinary course of business and which is tpdséormed at or after the date of this
Agreement.

“ Significant Customers shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.19.

“ Significant Stockholdet shall have the meaning set forth in the Introdhrect

“ Software” means computer software code, objects, applioafiatilities, tools, libraries, configuration fledevelopment tools,
firmware, operating systems and specificationggmiistics, databases and embedded systems, wheswrrce code, interpreted code or ot
code form, together
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with all boot, compilation, configuration and rung files, data, passwords and other informatiommpanying or relating to the foregoing.

“ Specified Taxe$ means (i) any income Taxes arising in connectidth any election made by Parent under Section@83Be Code
(or comparable provision of state, local or non-UW.&w) with respect to the acquisition of the Comypar any of its Subsidiaries under this
Agreement, (ii) any income Taxes resulting froomg@ctions not in the ordinary course of businesk@fCompany or its Subsidiaries
attributable to actions occurring on the Closingelatter the Effective Time and not otherwise corglated by this Agreement, (iii) any
additional income Taxes that arise in the taxaklr pf the Company or its Subsidiaries ending enGlosing Date solely as a result of an
election pursuant to Treasury Regulation Sectidbd2-76(b)(2)(ii), (iv) the portion of any Transféaxes to be borne by Parent pursuant to
Section 6.6(g), and (v) any Employer Taxes, andé@yerance or other termination benefits providedrf a Key Employee Agreement or an
offer letter or other employment agreement betweament and a Key Employee or other Continuing Eggso

“ Statement of Closing Liabilitiesmeans a schedule prepared by Parent in gooddatting forth the Final Closing Liabilities.

“ Statement of Estimated Closing Liabilitiesneans a schedule prepared by the Company in faithdsetting forth the Estimated
Closing Liabilities.

“ Stockholders’ means the holders of the Company Stock.

“ Stockholders Representative shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.3(a

“ Subsidiary” of a Person means any other Person more thandé@®& voting stock (or of any other form of otleting or
controlling equity interest in the case of a Per$mt is not a corporation) of which is benefigiallwned by the Person directly, or indirectly
through one or more other Persons.

“ Surviving Corporatiori shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.

“ Takeover Statut® means any “fair price,” “moratorium,” “control ghe acquisition” or other antitakeover statutesgjutation
enacted under state or federal Laws in the UnitateS.

“ Target Net Working Capitdl means Sixty Six Thousand Dollars ($66,000).

“ Tax " means (i) all taxes, regardless of formal chaazation, imposed by any Government Authority]uéng without limitation,
all income, gross receipts, license, payroll, epplent, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, preywiindfall profits, environmental,
customs duties, capital stock, ad valorem, valukeddinventory, franchise, profits, withholdingc&d security (or similar), unemployment,
disability, real property, personal property, salgse, transfer, registration, alternative, mimmor estimated tax, and (ii) any interest, pen
or addition arising with respect to the foregoiagthe obligation to file Tax Returns, whether disal or not.

“ Tax Return” means any report, return, statement, claim fare, election, declaration or other informatiorihwiespect to any Tax
required to be filed or actually filed with a Gomearent Authority, including any schedule or attachibereto, and including any amendment
thereof, and where relevant, any statement reqbyetl Government Authority be provided to a thiedtp with respect to Taxes.

“ Taxing Authority” means any Government Authority responsible ferassessment, determination, collection or admatish of
any Tax.
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“ Third Party Intellectual Propertymeans any Company Intellectual Property specifia#disignated as not owned by the Compar
Schedule 3.18(b)(iithat are necessary to or useful in the condutiebusiness of the Company as currently condwtddoroposed to be
conducted.

“ Trademarks’ means all trademarks and service marks, logasriet Names, corporate names and doing busineggdéons and
all registrations and applications for registratafrihe foregoing, unregistered corporate namadgetnames, common law trademarks and
service marks and trade dress, including all viarat derivations, combinations of the foregoirgether with all goodwill pertaining thereto
throughout the world.

“ Transaction Expenséameans, with respect to a Person, all fees, costamissions and expenses incurred by, paid oty
such Person in connection with the transactionsecoplated hereby, including, without limitatiomdincial advisory fees, legal fees and
expenses, broker and finder fees, fees and expehaesountants, and bank fees.

“ Transfer Taxe$ means any transfer, documentary, sales, use pstagistration or other similar Taxes and fees.

“ Upfront Cash Consideratighshall mean $70,000,000, plus interest at the @a2% per annum for the period commencing
September 13, 2013 and ending on the Closing [Dge the aggregate Closing Bonus Payment (as defintbe Retention Plan) payable to all
Participants pursuant to the Retention Plan.

“ Welfare Plan” means any (i) Employee Welfare Benefit Plan whichurrently maintained, administered or contriuito (directly
or indirectly through a professional employer oligation or otherwise) by the Company or any ERISHiliate or (i) Employee Welfare
Benefit Plan which was previously maintained, adstéred or contributed to by the Company or an ERAHiliate.

“ Written Consent$ shall have the meaning set forth in Section &).2(

“ Year-End Financial$ means the audited balance sheet of the Compamhjt@aBubsidiaries and the audited statementscohire,
cash flow and retained earnings of the Companyitarfubsidiaries at and for the fiscal years erldecember 31, 2011 and 2012.
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Exhibit 10.22
VEECO INSTRUMENTS INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED
SENIOR EXECUTIVE CHANGE IN CONTROL POLICY

Effective January 1, 2014

1. Purpose Effective as of September 12, 2008, Veeco Insémis Inc., a Delaware corporation (the * Compaay* Veeco
"), has adopted this Senior Executive Change int@bRolicy (as may be amended from time to tirhe, 't Policy”). The Compensation
Committee of the Board (the * Committ&erecognizes that, as is the case for most pypbhield companies, the possibility of a Change in
Control (as defined below) exists, and the Compaisfes to ensure that certain Eligible Employessifined below) are not practically
disabled from discharging their duties in respéat proposed or actual transaction involving a @eain Control. Accordingly, the Company
wishes to provide additional inducement for theiblie Employees to continue to remain in the empibthe Company and to provide certain
severance benefits to the Eligible Employees iretrent that their employment is terminated undetagecircumstances related to a Change i
Control.

2. Certain Defined Terms In addition to terms defined elsewhere heréia,following capitalized terms have the following
meanings when used herein:

“ Affiliate " shall mean with respect to any Person, any dieeson directly or indirectly, through one or mortermediaries,
controlling, controlled by, or under common contrath, such Person. For purposes of this definjticontrol” shall have the meaning given
such term under Rule 405 of the Securities Acta#3l as amended.

“ Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

“ Cause’ shall mean a termination based on (i) Eligibleftoyee’s willful and substantial misconduct in the perfarme of his dutie
(ii) Eligible Employee’s willful failure to perforniis duties after two weeks written notice from @a@mpany (other than as a result of a total ¢
partial incapacity due to a physical or mentale#ia, accident or similar event), (iii) the Eligildeployee’s material breach of any of the
agreements contained in Section 6 hereof, (ivitmmission by the Eligible Employee of any matefrialidulent act with respect to the
business and affairs of the Company or any subgidiaaffiliate thereof, or (v) Eligible Employeet®nviction of (or plea of nolo contendere
to) a crime constituting a felony.

“ Change in Contral shall mean:

0] any person or group acquires stock ofGloenpany that, together with stock held by suclsg@eior group, constitutes
more than 50% of the total fair market value oatebting power of the stock of the Company. Hoerevf any person or group is
considered to own more than 50% of the total faarkat value or total voting power of the stockleé Company, the acquisition of
additional stock by the same person or group isansidered to cause a Change in Control of theg@om An increase in the
percentage of stock owned by any person or groaprasult of a transaction in which the Companyaeg its stock in exchange for
property will be treated as an acquisition of stmkpurposes of this subsection. This subsecjmplies only when there is a transfer
of stock of the Company (or issuance of stock ehsentity) and stock in such entity remains outditagy after the transaction;
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(i) any person or group acquires (or hasigeq during the 12-month period ending on the détde most recent
acquisition by such person or group) ownershipadls of the Company possessing 30% or more ofdta voting power of the stock
of the Company;

(i)  a majority of members of the Board iplaced during any 12-month period by Directors vehagpointment or
election is not endorsed by a majority of the memloé the such entity’s Board or Directors priothe date of the appointment or
election; or

(iv) any person or group acquires (or hasiaed during the 12-month period ending on the détbe most recent
acquisition by such person or group) substantalllpf the assets of the Company immediately goasuch acquisition or
acquisitions. However, no Change in Control shaltleemed to occur under this subsection (iv)rast of a transfer to:

(A) A shareholder of the Company (immediatefore the asset transfer) in exchange for ¢ waspect to its
stock;

(B) An entity, 50% or more of the total valar voting power of which is owned, directly odirectly, by the
Company;

© A person or group that owns, directlyiratirectly, 50% or more of the total value or vgtipower of all the
outstanding stock of the Company; or

(D) An entity, at least 50% of the total valor voting power of which is owned, directly odirectly, by a persc
described in clause (iii) above.

For purposes of this definition, the term “persshéll mean an individual, corporation, associatjoimt-stock company, business tr

or other similar organization, partnership, limitedbility company, joint venture, trust, unincorpted organization or government or
agency, instrumentality or political subdivisiorethof (for clarification, other than the Companyaay subsidiary of the Company, or
any employee benefit plan maintained by the Commarany subsidiary thereof). The term “growghiall have the meaning set fortl
Rule 13d-5 of the Securities Exchange Commissi®EC"), modified to the extent necessary to comgih Wreasury Regulation
Section 1.409A-3(g)(5)(v)(B), or any successor¢hein effect at the time a determination of wheth€hange in Control has
occurred is being made. If any one person, orgperacting as a group, is considered to effectigehtrol the Company as described
in subsections (ii) or (iii) above, the acquisitioihadditional control by the same person or pesssmot considered to cause a Chang
in Control.

“ Code” shall mean Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as detkn

“ Confidential Informatior’ shall mean any information that: (a) is disclkb$e an Eligible Employee, learned by an Eligibte o
created by an Eligible Employee in connection wiithemployment with Veeco (or a predecessor compamyowned by or part of Veeco),
and (b) Veeco treats as proprietary, private ofidential. Confidential Information may includejtiwout limitation, information relating to
Veeco’s products, services and methods of operatiendentities and competencies of Veeco’s emgseycustomers and suppliers, trade
secrets, know-how, processes, techniques, datehsles plans, drawings, chemical formulae, compadéiware, financial information,
operating and cost data, research databasesgsatithpricing information, business and marketilagng, and information concerning potential
acquisitions, dispositions or joint ventures. Nititstanding the foregoing, “Confidential Informatiodoes not include any of the foregoing
items which has become




publicly known or made generally available (prowdbkat information will not cease to be “Confidahtinformation” as a result of an Eligible
Employee’s breach of confidentiality).

“ Eligible Employee’ shall mean an employee of the Company selectatidoCommittee to be covered by the Policy purst@ant
Section 3 and listed on Exhibit #ereto, as it may be amended from time to time.

“ Good Reasofi shall mean any of the following events: (i) amygluction in the total amount of an Eligible Empleigebase salary or
target bonus; or (ii) any involuntary relocationaof Eligible Employee’s principal place of busin&ssa location more than 50 miles from the
Eligible Employee’s current principal place of mess (or, in the case of employees whose prinpipak of business is more than 50 miles
from their primary residence, an involuntary rekima of such employee’s principal place of businassh that the employee’s overall level of
commuting substantially increases). Good Reasolhrsttebe deemed to have occurred unless the HEidgimployee provides the Company
with written notice of the existence of the appiileacondition described in clauses (i) and (ii)\adowithin 90 days after the initial existence of
such condition and the Company fails to remedy swetdition within 30 days of the date of such weritinotice.

“ Person” shall mean an individual, partnership, corponatibusiness trust, limited liability company, jogtbck company, trust,
unincorporated association, joint venture, govemtaleauthority or other entity of whatever nature.

“Voting Stock” shall mean all capital stock of the Company whighits terms may be voted on all matters submiibestockholders
of the Company generally.

3. Eligibility . The Committee shall determine which employeat®fCompany shall be Eligible Employees coverethby
Policy. As of the effective date of the Policy,Eligible Employees are listed on Exhibit. AFrom time to time, the Committee may, in itsesol
discretion, revise the list of individuals who &kgible Employees by adding additional employeest, subject to Section 13, removing any
Eligible Employee from, the list of Eligible Emplegs set forth on Exhibit A

4, Effect of Change in Control; Certain Terminationgsdonnection with a Change in Control

€) Upon the consummation of a Change in Control, #sing, payment and/or exercisability of all stogkion grants,
restricted stock awards and any other eqb#ged compensation awards granted prior to Jadu&§14 and held by the Eligible Employee
would otherwise be eligible to become vested duttregEligible Employee’s continued employment sballaccelerated and any outstanding
stock options then held by the Eligible Employealistemain exercisable until the earlier of (x)h2nths following the date of termination of
the Eligible Employee’s employment with the Compamy (y) the expiration of the original term of buaptions.

(b) If an Eligible Employee’s employment shall be temated by the Company without Cause, or by the lkgEmployee for
Good Reason, during the period commencing threen@jths prior to, and ending eighteen (18) monthiewing, a Change in Control, and
subject to the Eligible Employee’s execution obparation and release agreement in a form reasosati$factory to the Company:

() The vesting, payment and/or exercisability of &tk option grants, restricted stock awards andathgr equity-
based compensation awards granted on or after dahu2014 and held by the Eligible Employee thatid otherwise be eligible to
become vested during the Eligible Employee’s cathemployment shall be accelerated and any odisstock options

3




then held by the Eligible Employee shall remainreisable until the earlier of (x) 12 months followgithe date of termination of the
Eligible Employee’s employment with the Company g@y)dthe expiration of the original term of suchtiops.

(i) The Company shall pay to the Eligible Employee mnant equal to the product of (i) the sum of hisrtlcurrent
(A) annual base salary and (B) the target bonualgayto the Eligible Employee pursuant to the Camyfsaperformance-based
compensation bonus plan with respect to the figeat ending immediately prior to the date of teration, and (ii) 1.5; such amount
shall be payable in a lump sum as soon as reasopediticable (x) if such termination of employmeucturs on or following the
consummation of the Change in Control, after thie ddsuch termination of employment, or (y) if Buermination occurs prior to the
consummation of the Change in Control, after tlieatiize date of such Change in Control (either siete, the * Vesting Dat®, but
in any event, such payment shall be made withim&3nths following the end of the calendar year inclvlihe Vesting Date occurs;

(iii) The Company shall continue to provide the Eligibteployee (and his dependents) with all health aelfare
benefits which he (or his dependents) was partiicigan or receiving as of the date of terminat{aha level then in effect with resp
to coverage and employee premiums) until the 18tmanniversary of the date of termination. If sbemefits cannot be provided
under the Compang’programs, such benefits and perquisites willrogiged on an individual basis to the Eligible Eny®e such thi
his after-tax costs will be no greater than tha<és such benefits and perquisites under the Gaoyip programs. Any tax gross-up
payment required under this paragraph shall beipaadsingle lump sum payment at the same timeraace is otherwise payable
under paragraph (i) above;

(iv) The Company shall pay to the Eligible Employee@nated amount of the Eligible Employee’s bonustfar fiscal
year in which the date of termination occurs edqodhe product of (i) the amount of the bonus thgille Employee would have
otherwise earned had he been employed by the Conguathe last day of the fiscal year in which tlaedof termination occurs
multiplied by (ii) the number of days elapsed dgrsuch fiscal year prior to the date of terminatidrided by 365. Such pro-rated
bonus shall be payable at the same time as bofarséé® year of termination are paid to employeesegally,provided, howevethat
such payment shall be made within 2 ¥ months faligwthe end of the calendar year in which the WWesbate occurs but in any
event within 2% months after the end of the peromoe period; and

(v) The vesting, payment and/or exercisability of &dck option grants, restricted stock awards andathgr equity-
based compensation awards held by the Eligible Byegl that would otherwise be eligible to becomeeadeduring the Eligible
Employee’s continued employment shall be acceldrate any outstanding stock options then held byHligible Employee shall
remain exercisable until the earlier of (x) 12 niantollowing the date of termination of the EliggiEmployee’s employment with the
Company and (y) the expiration of the original tevhsuch options.

(c) For the sake of clarity, “termination” as usedhistSection 4 shall not include the case whergd€gco offers to retain the
Eligible Employee in a position of substantial resgibility or (ii) Veeco requests that the Eligilfenployee accepts a position with the
acquiring entity in the Change in Control but tHeyible Employee declines the position.
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5. Parachute Payments

€)) Notwithstanding Section 4 (but subject to Secti@m} in the event that an Eligible Employee becsretitled to any
payments or benefits under this Policy and anyigof those payments or benefits, when added yam#trer amount theretofore or thereafter
payable to the Eligible Employee as a result ahaonnection with any Change in Control, whethenat under any other plan, arrangement
or agreement with the Company, any Person whosenaatesulted in the Change in Control or any Rersving such a relationship with the
Company or such Person as to require attributisstaifk ownership between the parties under Se8ti@a) of the Code (the * Agaregate
Payments), would be subject to the tax (the * Excise Ta¥mposed by Section 4999 of the Code, then thenemts or benefits under this
Policy and, if applicable, any other plan, arrangator agreement shall be reduced (first by redyttie cash payments under this Policy, ther
by reducing any fringe or other benefits requirethe provided under this Policy, and finally byweihg the payments and/or benefits under
any other plan, arrangement or agreement) to amanwehich is ten dollars ($10.00) less than the amhof the Aggregate Payments that cc
be made to the Eligible Employee before any portibthe Aggregate Payments would be subject tdcttoise Tax.

(b) Notwithstanding Section 5(a), the Aggregate Paysiehall be reduced pursuant to Section 5(a) ortheiinet after-tax
amount received by the Eligible Employee afterapplication of Section 5(a) is greater than theafietr-tax amount (taking into account the
application of the Excise Tax) that the Eligible loyee would otherwise receive in connection with €hange in Control without the
application of Section 5(a).

(c) All determinations and calculations required teefliate this Section 5 (including, without limitatj the determination as to
whether any Aggregate Payments would be subjatiet&xcise Tax and the amount of any reductiomefAggregate Payments) shall be r
by the Company’s independent auditors (or anoth&onally recognized United States public accounfirm selected in good faith by the
Company) (the “ Auditor8). For purposes of making the calculations anedeinations required by this Section 5, the Auditoray make
reasonable assumptions and approximations congeapiplicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, fgitidinterpretations concerning the
application of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Caukthe Department of Treasury Regulations issuecktinder.

6. Obligations of the Eligible Employee

As a condition to being designated as an Eligibtgbyee and to being eligible to receive benefiésehnder, each individual so
designated agrees as follows (any individual nageeing shall notify the Company in writing withiO days of being notified of the
designation, in which case the designation shatilleand void):

(a) Confidentiality. The Eligible Employee acknowledges that the Camgnd its Affiliates continually develop Confidéit
Information; that the Eligible Employee may developnfidential Information for the Company and itilkates; and that the Eligible
Employee may learn of Confidential Information ahgrithe course of employment, including Confidentiébrmation that may relate to a
transaction which, if consummated, would constitutghange in Control. The Eligible Employee widhtply with the policies and procedures
of the Company and its Affiliates for protectingr@idential Information and shall not disclose Calefitial Information to any Person or use
Confidential Information except for the benefittbé Company or as required by applicable law aftgice to the Company and a reasonable
opportunity for the Company to seek protectionhaf Confidential Information prior to
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disclosure. The Eligible Employee understandstthiatrestriction shall continue to apply after @mployment terminates, regardless of the
reason for such termination.

(b) Return of Company PropertyAll documents, records, tapes and other medevefy kind and description relating to the
business, present or otherwise, of the Companytardfiliates and any copies, in whole or in pahereof (the “Documents”), whether or not
prepared by the Eligible Employee, shall be the soid exclusive property of the Company and itdiatés. The Eligible Employee shall
safeguard all Documents and shall surrender t€tdmapany at the time his employment terminatest eueh earlier time or times as the Bo
or its designee may specify, all Documents andrgiheperty of the Company and its Affiliates thartte Eligible Employee’s possession or
control.

(c) Restricted Activities In further consideration of the compensation thatEligible Employee may become entitled to
hereunder, the Eligible Employee agrees that s@steictions on his activities during and after érsployment are necessary to protect the
goodwill, Confidential Information and other legitate interests of the Company and its Affiliates:

0] While the Eligible Employee is employed by the Camyp and for eighteen (18) months after the terrionaif the
Eligible Employee’s employment (the “Non-CompetitiBeriod”), the Eligible Employee will not own, naage, work for or otherwise
participate in any business whose products, sexacactivities compete with the current or culgenbntemplated products, services
or activities of Veeco in any state or country inigh Veeco sells products or conducts businesgxnd which such Eligible
Employee was involved or (y) with respect to whétith Eligible Employee had access to Confidentifdrimation, in each case,
during the 5 years prior to terminatigrpvided, however, that the Eligible Employee may own up to 1% @ fiecurities of any such
public company (but without otherwise participatinghe activities of such enterprise).

(i) The Eligible Employee further agrees that whildshemployed by the Company and during the Non-Caditiqpre
Period, the Eligible Employee will not for himself any other person: (a) induce or try to inducg @mployee to leave Veeco or
otherwise interfere with the relationship betweezedb and any of its employees, (b) employ or engage independent contractor,
any current or former employee of Veeco, other floamer employees who have not worked for Veechiwithe past year, (c) indu
or try to induce any customer, supplier, licensobusiness relation to stop doing business withcdes otherwise interfere with the
relationship between Veeco and any of its custonsenspliers, licensors or business relations; pedticit the business of any person
known by the Eligible Employee to be a customeveéco, whether or not the Eligible Employee hadgpeal contact with such
person, with respect to products or activities Wwhiompete with the products or activities of Veatexistence or contemplated at the
time of termination of such Eligible Employee’s dmpnent.

(d) Enforcement of Covenantd'he Eligible Employee acknowledges that he hasfally read and considered all the terms anc
conditions of this Agreement, including the resttaimposed upon him pursuant to this Section @. Hlfigible Employee agrees that those
restraints are necessary for the reasonable apeippootection of the Company and its Affiliatesldhat each and every one of the restraints
reasonable in respect to subject matter, lengtimef and geographic area. The Eligible Employeth&iaracknowledges that, were he to breacl
any of the covenants contained in this Sectioh& damage to the Company could be irreparableEligible Employee therefore agrees that
the Company, in addition to any other remedieslabks to it, shall be entitled to seek preliminand permanent injunctive relief against any
breach or threatened breach by the Eligible Em@afeany of said covenants, without having to jpastd. The Eligible Employee agrees that,
in the event that any




provision of this Section 6 shall be determinedahy court of competent jurisdiction to be unenfaide by reason of its being extended over
too great a time, too large a geographical areaamgreat a range of activities, such provisionldfedeemed to be modified to permit its
enforcement to the maximum extent permitted by law.

7. Successors

(a) The Company will require any successor (whethexatlior indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidatiearganization or
otherwise, including, without limitation, any susser due to a Change in Control) to the businesssets of the Company expressly to ass
this Policy and to perform in the same manner arttié same extent the Company would be requir@erimrm if no such succession had te
place. This Policy will be binding upon and inuogthe benefit of the Company and any successdet@€bmpany, including, without
limitation, any persons directly or indirectly adgpug the business or assets of the Company iareséction constituting a Change in Control
(and such successor shall thereafter be deeme@tmepany” for the purpose of this Policy), but wilbt otherwise be assignable, transferable
or delegable by the Company.

(b) This Policy will inure to the benefit of and be erdeable by the Eligible Employees’ personal oalegpresentatives,
executors, administrators, successors, heirsjlalistes and legatees.

(c) This Policy is personal in nature and neither thenBany nor any Eligible Employee shall, without tomsent of the
Company, assign, transfer or delegate any rightblgations hereunder except as expressly proviné&atctions 7(a) and 7(b). Without
limiting the generality or effect of the foregoiray Eligible Employee’s right to receive paymergsgunder will not be assignable, transferabl
or delegable, other than by a transfer by suchititigemployee’s will or by the laws of descent atstribution and, in the event of any
attempted assignment or transfer contrary to taiiGn 7(c), the Company shall have no liabilitypty any amount so attempted to be
assigned, transferred or delegated.

8. Administration; ERISA This Policy shall be administered by the Comesittor the Committes’delegate or successor).
Committee shall have the sole authority to interphis Policy and to determine all questions (wkethf fact or interpretation) arising in
connection with this Policy. The Committee’s demis shall be final and bind all parties. This Boliintended to be an unfunded “top hat
plan” that is not subject to the Employee Retiretiroome Security Act of 1974, as amended (* ERTEA

9. Notices. For all purposes of this Policy, all communioas, including without limitation notices, consenmtquests or
approvals, required or permitted to be given hetleawill be in writing and will be deemed to hawseb duly given when hand delivered or
dispatched by electronic facsimile transmissiorti{wgceipt thereof orally confirmed), or five busés days after having been mailed by Unite
States registered or certified mail, return recegguested, postage prepaid, or three businessaftay$aving been sent by a nationally
recognized overnight courier service, addresséde@Company (to the attention of the General Cdwfshe Company) at its principal
executive office and to the Eligible Employee & jiincipal residence, or to such other addressmaparty may have furnished to the other in
writing and in accordance herewith, except thaicestof changes of address shall be effective opbn receipt.

10. Validity . If any provision of this Policy or the appliaati of any provision hereof to any person or circtameses is held
invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal, thenegnder of this Policy and the application of spcbvision to any other person or
circumstances will not be affected, and the provisio held to be invalid, unenforceable or othemillegal will be reformed to the extent (and
only to the extent) necessary to make it enforegalallid or legal.




11. Governing Law; JurisdictionThe laws of the state of New York shall govera ititerpretation, validity and performance of
the terms of this Policy, regardless of the lavt thaght be applied under principles of conflictsdaifv. Any suit, action or proceeding against
any Eligible Employee, with respect to this Poliagy be brought in any court of competent jurisdictin the State of New York.

12. Relationship with Other PlansThis Policy is intended to supplement, but nqilitate, any benefits to which an Eligible
Employee may be entitled under any other sever@amployment or other individual agreement. The @uttee, in its sole discretion, will
make any interpretation or determination necestanyiplement this provision.

13. Amendment; TerminationThe Company expressly reserves the right to aroetefminate this Policy, to discontinue or
eliminate benefits hereunder or to remove any eygaldrom the list of Eligible Employees coveredthig Policy at any time in its sole
discretion;provided, howevethat, during the period commencing upon the eadli€a) three months prior to the signing of a digifre
agreement that, if consummated, would result ilmar@e in Control, and (b) the filing of a Schedl{® (or any appropriate successor form)
with respect to a tender offer with the Commisgtuat, if accepted, would result in a Change in @infeach, a “ Triggering Eveiit and
ending upon the earlier of (x) the date on whigh@ommittee in its sole discretion determines thatTriggering Event will not actually result
in a Change in Control, and (y) the 18 month amsiae of the Change in Control, no amendment whiobld deprive an Eligible Employee
of any benefit to which he would have been entitiedeunder, nor any termination of this Policy, removal of an employee from the list of
Eligible Employees covered by this Policy, shallfective with respect to such Eligible Employee.

14. Section 409A

€) This Policy is intended to be exempt from the regmients of Section 409A of the Code (together aithh Department of
Treasury regulations and other interpretive guidansued thereunder, including without limitatiary duch regulations or other guidance that
may be issued after the date hereof, “ Section 499Fhe Company may, in its discretion, adopt santendments to the Policy or adopt othel
procedures, or take any other actions, as the Caynetermines are necessary or appropriate to extdisPolicy from Section 409A (or, if
the Committee determines appropriate, to compli tie requirements of Section 409A), including withlimitation amendments, procedures
and action with retroactive effect.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisas this Policy, if and to the extent that the Qmany determines, in its
sole discretion, that any payments or benefits lpi@yander this Policy are deferred compensatiofestibo Section 409A, the following will

apply:

() if the Eligible Employee is a “specified employda’ defined in Section 409A) at the time of hisni@ation of
employment, (x) during the first 6 months afterlsdigible Employee’s termination of employmentckiEligible Employee shall be
paid only the portion, if any, of such paymentd thigl not subject him to additional taxes and net&t under Section 409A (“ Delay
Period “). If this Section applies and the methbgdayment is not a lump sum, the first paymentmEligible Employee will include
all amounts that would have been paid during thieypBeriod but for this Section, and (y) to theeettthat benefits to be provided to
such an Eligible Employee pursuant to this Poligyreot non-taxable medical benefits or other bémefit considered nonqualified
deferred compensation for Section 409A, such piawief benefits shall be delayed until the endhef Delay Period to the extent
necessary to avoid the imposition of additionabtaand interest on the Eligible Employee, provited, if the provision of any
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ongoing benefits would not be required to be daldfthe premiums were paid by the Eligible Empleyghe Eligible Employee shi
pay the full cost of the premiums for such benefiising the Delay Period and the Company shalllpayan amount equal to the
amount of such premiums within ten (10) days dfterend of the Delay Period.

(i) To the extent that any benefits to be providednt&kgible Employee pursuant to this Policy aresidared
nonqualified deferred compensation and are reingmesnts subject to Section 409A, the reimbursemiegligible expenses related to
such benefits shall be made on or before the lsbiithe Eligible Employee’s taxable year follogithe Eligible Employee’s taxable
year in which the expense was incurred.

(iii) Each of the payments and benefits under Sectignoddhis Agreement are designated as separate gagrfor
purposes of the short-term deferral rules undeaguey Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)(4)(i)(F), theemption for involuntary
terminations under separation pay plans under Tirgd&egulation Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii), and #weemption for medical expense
reimbursements under Treasury Regulation Sect®é®ORn-1(b)(9)(v)(B). As a result, (1) any paymetitat become vested as a result
of a qualifying termination that are made on ordpefthe 15th day of the third month following tla¢el of the end of the Company’s
taxable year or the end of the Executive’s taxgbber in which occurs the Executive’s terminatioreofployment, (2) any additional
payments that are made on or before the last diheafecond calendar year following the year offkecutive’s termination and do
not exceed the lesser of two times annual baseysalawo times the limit under Code Section 40(@) then in effect, and (3) the
payment of medical expenses within the applicaldBRA period, are exempt from the requirements ad€8ection 409A. If the
Executive dies prior to the expiration of the DeRsriod, payment of any amounts previously withhelder Section 14(b)(i) above
shall be paid to the Executive’s beneficiary asisa® practicable following the Executive’s death.

15. Miscellaneous
(a) Pronouns Masculine pronouns and other words of masculargr shall refer to both men and women.
(b) Titles and HeadingsThe titles and headings of the sections in tHeyare for convenience of reference only, anthe

event of any conflict, the text of the Policy, mtlthan such titles or headings, shall control.
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization

U.S. Subsidiarie

Veeco ALD Inc. DE
Veeco APAC Inc DE
Veeco Process Equipment It DE
Veeco TK LLC DE

Foreign Subsidiarie

Nihon Veeco K.K. Japar
Veeco ALD Korea Ltd South Kores
Veeco Asia Pte. Ltc Singapore
Veeco Malaysia Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Veeco Korea LLC South Koree
Veeco Instruments Gmb Germany
Veeco Instruments Limite England
Veeco Instruments (Shanghai) Co. L China

Veeco Taiwan Inc Taiwan




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference infélewing Registration Statements of Veeco Instemts Inc. and Subsidiaries (the

“Company”):

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

Option Plan;

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

under the 2000 Stock Option Plan;

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

under the 2000 Stock Option Plan;

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan;

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; and

the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.

333-39pBéaining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. 2000 IStption Plan;

333-66peédlaining to amendments to the Veeco Instrumaets2000 Stock

333-88p48laining to the offer and sale of 2,200,000 ehaf common stock

333-10ypéRaining to the offer and sale of 630,000 shafecommon stock

333-12yp8R’aining to the offer and sale of 2,000,000sb@f common stock

333-12ypéftaining to the offer and sale of 1,500,000 aet&f common stock

333-16ppBRaining to Veeco Instruments, Inc. 2010 Stodentive Plan

of our reports dated February 28, 2014, with ressfethe consolidated financial statements anddulleeof the Company and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of t@mpany included in this Annual Report (Form 10eK}the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

New York, New York
February 28, 201

/sl Ernst & Young LLF




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a—14(a) or RULE 15d—14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

[, John R. Peeler, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktfaryear ended December 31, 2013 (the “Reportth@Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comBajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéte a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduties tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgy or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sla$sire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$adnternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadlisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveenagement or other employees who have a signifioémin the registrand’interna
control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOHN R. PEELEI

John R. Peele

Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
Veeco Instruments In

February 28, 201




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a—14(a) or RULE 15d—14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, David D. Glass, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktfaryear ended December 31, 2013 (the “Reportth@Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comBajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéte a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduties tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgy or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sla$sire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$adnternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadlisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveenagement or other employees who have a signifioémin the registrand’interna
control over financial reporting.

/s/ DAVID D. GLASS
David D. Glass

Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial Office
Veeco Instruments In
February 28, 201




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Veeco lastents Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theayended December 31, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, John R. Pedldief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sask@nley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirerteeaf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exae Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ JOHN R. PEELEI

John R. Peele

Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
Veeco Instruments In

February 28, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Veeco Ingnisninc. and will be retained by
Veeco Instruments Inc. and furnished to the Sdearénd Exchange Commission or its staff upon retque




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Veeco lastents Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theayended December 31, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), |, David D. Glaggecutive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer and Secretary of the Companytifgempursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptesuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ David D. Glas

David D. Glass

Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial Office
Veeco Instruments In
February 28, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to Veeco Ingnisninc. and will be retained by
Veeco Instruments Inc. and furnished to the Sdesrédnd Exchange Commission or its staff upon retque




